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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)

Hong Kong H-share Registrar and Transfer
Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Share Information
Number of issued shares as at 7,997,238,556 Shares
30 June 2018: (6,054,198,556 A Shares

and 1,943,040,000 H Shares)

Board lot (H Shares) 1,000 H Shares
(A Shares) 100 A Shares

Abbreviation of the Company’s share and Stock Codes
A Shares: Weichai Power (#4£8) /1) 000338
H Shares: Weichai Power (#4<&h 1) 2338

Stock Exchange Listings
A Shares: Shenzhen Stock Exchange

H Shares: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange™)

Investors and Media Relations

The Company: Capital Operation Department
Tel: (86) 536-229 7056
Fax: (86) 536-819 7073
Website: www.weichaipower.com
Public Relations Consultant: Hill & Knowlton Asia Ltd

Tel: (852) 2894 6321
Fax: (852) 2576 1990

Website: www.hkstrategies.com

Interim Report 2018 F ks 05

NAEVER ()

i

FWHBE R R P R

BEEPRESFEZLDEHRAF

BE

T

SEARER1835

AFBONT71712-17165% 4

JBe Ao & B

RZZE—N\HF 7,997,238,5560%
NA=TEH (6,054,198,556 % ARL
BEITIRIDEE - 1%1,943,040,0000% HA%)

RSB (HE) 1,000 HR%

(AR%) 100X AR%

A ) B A i 7 e B A 55

AR% : HELEB) S (Weichai Power) 000338

HAE - 45 %) 71 (Weichai Power) 2338

EHR SR

AR RINEHFZ S

HE : BEEBMERXSMARAR

(T & BB )
B H LG REB R
A7 EREEH

T 55 (86) 536-229 7056
{25 : (86) 536-819 7073

#4k : www.weichaipower.com

AS:d- 3 BEARBEREREGRAR
A - E 5% 1 (852) 2894 6
BE: (8



06  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.  #56Eh H IR B E R A

Financial Summary

Revenue amounted to approximately RMB82,264 million, an increase of

approximately 13.8%.

Net Profit Attributable to the Shareholders of the Parent amounted to

approximately RMB4,393 million, an increase of approximately 65.8%.

Basic Earnings Per Share was approximately RMB0.55, an increase of

approximately 65.8%.

S 255

BEBMANORARKS2264B 8T - £THH
13.8% °

BERTAFKRENFMNENAAREKEL 393
B EHA465.8% °

BREXRBANNOASARKEOSST » EAD
65.8% -




Interim Report 2018 s 07

ESNiE S

Chairman’s Statement

BRRR

Dear Shareholders,

AANEBRREFEERARABE_FT-/N\ERX
A=1TRERMARMTPHRE -

— A o] g

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the reviewed interim results of

the Company for the six months’ period ended 30 June 2018.

I. Review of Operations

In the first half of 2018, the Chinese government insisted upon the
general working theme of making progress while maintaining stability,
firmly committed to put the philosophy of new development into
practice and actively benchmarked itself against standards of high-quality
development. The overall nationwide economic performance maintained
a trend of stability with positive development. Structural adjustment
proceeded in a thorough manner, new economic drivers started to take
over the old ones, quality and efficiency improved steadily, and the
economy had a positive start towards a high-quality development. In
the first half of the year, the gross domestic product reached RMB41.90
trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 6.8%. On a quarter-to-
quarter basis, it grew by 6.8% in the first quarter and 6.7% in the second

quarter.

2018F ¥4 - AEIB/NBIFEFRKET
ERER BEBOTHZERES oY
EaEEREER BREEBECELRT
BBPRIHEREEDS  EBARRA
HE  HEDEEEER HEXags
RBA KREBRMSE=TRESRIT - £
£ AREELELOERT A
E£R68% N EFEEEFE  —FERLER
6.8% + —FERILILR6.7% °
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the reporting period, the heavy-duty truck market exhibited an
obvious trend of recovery with substantial growth in sales volume and
delivering sales of 672,000 units in total, representing a year-on-year
increase of 15.1%. This increase in sales volume is a reflection of the
influence of a multitude of favourable factors including the drive from
fixed asset investments and the imposition of more stringent emission
policies. Under such influence, during the reporting period, the Company
reported sales of 194,000 units of heavy-duty truck engines, representing
a year-on-year increase of 8.9%, and a market share of 28.9%,
maintaining its leading position in the industry. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Company Limited (BRPGEE T HFRAF
the Company, reported an aggregate sales of 84,000 units of heavy-duty

), a controlling subsidiary of

trucks for the first half of the year, representing a year-on-year increase
of 14.4%, with a market share of 12.5% and ranking among the first-
tier enterprises in the domestic heavy-duty truck industry in the PRC,
further increasing its competitiveness. Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. (Bt
FETRERERETAR

maintained an absolute leading position in the industry with its aggregate

), a controlling subsidiary of the Company, has

sales of 523,000 units of gear boxes, representing a year-on-year increase
of 22.4% and approximately 75.2% market share in the market of gear

boxes for use in heavy-duty trucks.

In the first half of 2018, fixed-asset investments in the PRC (excluding
agricultural households) reached RMB29.73 trillion, representing a year-
on-year growth of 6.0%, and a drop of 2.6 percentage points in growth
rate year-on-year. Investments in property development reached RMB5.55
trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 9.7%, and an increase
of 1.2 percentage points in growth rate year-on-year. As such, during
the reporting period, the construction machinery industry continued to
recover, delivering sales of 400,000 units for the whole construction
machinery industry (including electric fork-lift trucks), representing a year-
on-year increase of 32.0%, among which the sales volume of wheel
loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes was 43,000 units, representing
a year-on-year increase of 40.0%. The Company sold a total of 38,000
units of engines for wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes,
representing a year-on-year increase of 43.7%, hence maintaining its

leading position in this sector.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Company adhered to the market-
oriented approach and accelerated product innovation and structural
adjustments, thereby enhancing its market competitiveness and
maintaining its trend of relatively fast development. In the first half of
2018, the Company reported a sales figure of 114,000 units of 12L and
13L engines, representing a 12.9% growth year-on-year, and maintaining
its stable leading position of heavy-duty engine products in the heavy-
duty truck market, the market of wheel loaders with a load capacity of
5 tonnes and the market of passenger vehicles with a span of over 11
metres. Meanwhile, sales of strategic products and in strategic markets
grew substantially. The sales of Yangchai engines increased by 20.9%
year-on-year to 59,000 units, the sales of WP9H/WP10H engines reached
30,400 units, representing a year-on-year increase of 260.8%; the sales of
WP13 engines increased by 6.7% year-on-year to 22,000 units, the sales
of engines for use in agricultural equipment increased by 31.8% year-
on-year to 21,000 units and the sales of engines for use in forklift trucks
totalled 2,164 units, remaining basically the same level year-on-year.
During the reporting period, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited,
a controlling subsidiary of the Company, firmly adhered to the use of
technology and innovative development by building its innovative platform
and speeding up the high-end development of products. It explored the
heavy-duty truck segment market and achieved breakthroughs in strategic
areas such as dump trucks, natural gas tankers, tractors used at ports,
grout trucks for urban construction and so forth, and maintained its
leading position in the industry in the PRC. Embarking upon the events
under the “Year of Innovative Development” initiative, Shaanxi Fast Gear
Co., Ltd. solidified product innovation and research and development
(R&D), making important progress in areas such as light-weight
development and new-material applications. Marketing efforts were
stepped up, securing strategic cooperation with Linyi Lingong Machinery
Group Co., Ltd. (FR/TEe TH#ik & E BFR A 7)) and Dayun Motor Co., Ltd.
(K& REBE M B R A A]). The joint venture project named Fast Eaton
(Baoji) Light-duty Transmission Co., Ltd. (&5 P18 (B % ) 65 A 8k 22
AR & £ A7) jointly formed with the U.S. - based Eaton Corporation
plc was implemented successfully, adding further to our development

momentum.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the reporting period, adhering to the principle of “high quality,
robust and stable growth”, the Company focused on both external market
development and internal management. Grasping market opportunities in
a scientific manner, going high-end with innovation, and achieving further
enhancements in the overall operational quality and effectiveness, our
key operating indicators including revenue and profit were all promising.
Firstly, we focused on our main business of engines, gathering power
in terms of marketing, R&D, manufacturing and management and so
forth. Through sales activities such as “Work hard 100 days to achieve a
production and sales volume of 180,000 units”, we allocated resources
in a highly-efficient way, deeply explored target markets, capitalized
on a new round of development opportunities, maintained its faster
pace of development compared to industry peers, and delivered positive
growth in our results of operations. Secondly, we were firmly committed
to innovation and saw it as our first and foremost principle, forming a
“three-in-one” innovation system, namely “self-owned innovation, open
innovation and first-tier innovation” with the characteristics of Weichai,
keeping key and core technology at our own hands; we integrated global
resources for our own use and established technology and innovation
centres in Germany, the United States and Japan, forming a network of
globally coordinated R&D facilities; we fostered the development of high-
end engines including all-series road-going China-VI products and non-
road-going China Stage IV products, H-series and M-series, to build up a
Chinese “Power Core” and took the lead in equipment manufacturing
in the PRC on developing along a high-end path. Thirdly, we expedited
the replacement of “old-power” with “new-power”. The Weichai New-
energy Power Industrial Park Project has been ranked as a key project in
Shandong for old-new power transformation, which had received great
support from the Ministry of Technology and the Shandong Provincial
Government; we took the lead in undertaking a major project of the
PRC regarding the commercialization of hydrogen-fuelled batteries, and
entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with the U.K.-based
Ceres Power Holdings plc, thereby establishing our presence in the
market of Solid Oxide Fuel Cells, and accelerating the commercialization
of new-energy products. Fourthly, we enhanced the value orientation
of customer satisfaction. Based on appraisals, and in various segments
including marketing, R&D, manufacturing, procurement and so forth,
we introduced our customer-oriented mechanism, thereby passing on
the voice of customers and achieving accountability and precise appraisal
along the entire value chain, continued to optimize and improve, leading
to a continuous improvement in customer satisfaction.

During the reporting period, the Company’s revenue increased by 13.8%
compared with that in the corresponding period of 2017 to approximately
RMB82,264 million. The net profit attributable to shareholders of the
listed company was approximately RMB4,393 million, representing an
increase of 65.8% compared with that in the corresponding period
of 2017. The basic earnings per share was RMBO0.55, representing an
increase of 65.8% compared with that in the corresponding period of
2017.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

II.

I1I.

Dividends and Transfer of Capital Reserve

On 14 June 2018, the Company’s 2017 profit distribution proposal
was considered and approved at the Company’s 2017 Annual General
Meeting. Based on the total share capital of 7,997,238,556 shares as at
31 December 2017, the Company distributed to all shareholders a cash
dividend of RMB2.50 (including tax) for every 10 shares held, without any

capitalisation of reserve.

On 28 August 2018, under the authority granted by the shareholders
of the Company, the Board considered and approved the distribution
to all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB1.80 (including tax) for
every 10 shares held, based on the total share capital of the Company
of 7,997,238,556 shares, without any capitalisation of reserve. Please
refer to the announcement issued by the Company on 31 August 2018
for details on the closure of registers of members in determining the

shareholders who are eligible for the 2018 interim dividend.

Acquisition and Consolidation

In May 2018, the Group entered into a strategic partnership with Ceres
Power Holdings plc (“Ceres Power”), the world’s leading UK-based
supplier of Solid Oxide Fuel Cells (“SOFC"), in Weifang, Shandong
province, pursuant to which, the Company will invest more than £40
million to subscribe for shares newly issued by Ceres Power. Upon
completion of the subscription, Weichai's shareholding in Ceres Power
will reach 20%. At the same time, both parties will jointly establish a joint
venture in Weifang, China by 2020, to realize the commercialization of
SOFC technology in China.

The signing of the strategic partnership agreement with Ceres Power
symbolizes a substantial step of Weichai towards the shift from old to new
economic growth drivers and is beneficial to the establishment of a new
energy powertrain system in Shandong province by Weichai, providing
an excellent new energy power solution for domestic commercial vehicles
manufacturers, fostering the Company’s business restructuring, and

enabling the Company to take lead in the new energy technology.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

IV. Outlook and Prospects

In the second half of 2018, the global economy will continue to revive.
From the perspective of the major economies, the U.S. economy witnessed
a positive growth momentum, whereas the European economy has
experienced a slowdown in growth since the beginning of the year, but
all economic data has maintained at a positive level. The economic growth
in emerging economies continued to outperform that of developed
countries. Nevertheless, given the increasing uncertainty and instability, it
is expected that the global economic growth rate will be approximately
3.6% this year. In China, along with the faster and deepening supply-side
structural reform, continual progress of the transformation from old to
new economic growth drivers and enhancement of quality and efficiency,
China’s economy is expected to maintain a positive trend amidst stability.
At the same time, however, China’s economy will undergo some changes
amidst such stability and face some new problems and challenges, in
particular, significant changes to the external environment. Driven by the
factors such as generally stable investment, stable trade growth as well as
steadily growing consumption, it is expected that in the second half of the
year, China’s economy will continue its growth momentum seen in the
first half of the year and will maintain an annual growth rate of around
6.6%.

The Company remains cautiously optimistic about the development
of the industry in which the Company operates in. Looking into the
second half of 2018, it is estimated that the heavy-duty truck market will
continue running within a high range, which is mainly attributable to the
following reasons. Firstly, with the infrastructure investment remaining
at a high level, there will be a greater market demand for heavy-duty
trucks. Secondly, the robust growth of the e-commerce and express
logistics industries will continue to secure strong demands. Thirdly, with
the decreasing price of natural gas, the natural gas heavy-duty truck
market will see a restorative growth. Fourthly, the regulation work on
anti-overloading will continue to be deepened, which will further boost
the demand for upgrading vehicle transporters. Fifthly, the unprecedented
efforts in environmental governance and the apparently accelerated
emission standard upgrade will generate huge demand for vehicle

upgrading and will be beneficial to the industry development.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

In the second half of 2018, benefitting from the favourable factors
such as the combined effect of infrastructure investment and demand
for upgrading, the construction machinery industry will maintain its
cyclical growth but with a lower growth rate as compared to the first
half of the year. It is expected that the overall sales volume will exceed
700,000 units for the whole year, representing an increase of more
than 22.1% over the same period last year. On the international market
front, the national “One Belt and One Road” initiative will largely foster
the mutual access of infrastructure facilities, increase growth of the
highly demanded infrastructure constructions and foreign contractual
projects undertaken by Chinese entities. On the domestic market front,
the domestic investment structure has undergone changes with a
decrease in “Infrastructure + Real Estate” investment, and investments in
infrastructure construction in urban and rural areas, major transportation
projects and major projects or pillar industries supported by the supply-
side structural reform have become new growth points. Furthermore, the
construction machinery industry is in the process of structural change, and
the growth of the loader and bulldozer markets will slow down while the

digger and crane truck markets will sustain a higher growth.

On 27 June 2018, the State Council promulgated the Three-Year Blue
Sky Defending Plan ({47 5 8 R AR @8 = FF 17 Eh 51 E)). Starting from 1
July 2019, the China VI Emission Standards will first be implemented in
major regions, the Pearl River Delta and Chengdu-Chongging Region.
In major regions, strenuous efforts will be made to push ahead with the
early elimination and upgrade of commercial diesel trucks which are at
or below China Ill Standard, and strict control will be imposed on highly
polluting non-road-going mobile machineries. On 3 July 2018, the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment and the State Administration for Market
Regulation jointly issued the Announcement on the National Standards
for the Discharge of Pollutants — Limits and Measurement Methods for
Emissions from Heavy-duty Diesel Vehicles (China Stage VI) (B ZX;5 2%
PR (BRSO B S AW BE MR E R A (REIE RER) )R
) in relation to the formulation of the National VI Emission Standards,
the most stringent set of standards in the world. Such standards may be
implemented in advance in the major regions, significantly accelerating
the reshuffling of the industry. Leveraging on the synergy presented
by its global research and development, full-range and all-rounded
product portfolio, product performance strengths, product advantages
in segment markets and after-sales service warranty, the Company takes
pre-emptive actions and makes active responses to focus on research and
development, customers and ancillary services to fight the critical battle of
emission upgrade. The Board has full confidence in the Company’s future

development prospects.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

In the second half of 2018, the Company will continue to commit to the
main theme of “high-quality, positive and stable growth”, and work
strenuously on the following for the fifteen battles that it must win:
Firstly, the Company will adhere to the market-oriented approach, further
improve its product and market structure, seize market opportunities,
focus on expanding the market, and work diligently towards the annual
sales goal of engines for the year. With the scientific planning and
production layout and highly efficient resources allocation under the WOS
management system, a double million high-end production base will be
established. Secondly, the Company will increase, to a large extent, its
investment in scientific research leveraging on the globally coordinated
research and development platform, which can fully speed up the
comprehensive product research and development. The Company is in
full gear to fight the critical battle of emission upgrade, achieve product
internationalization and push forward the construction of a strong
technology power country and a beautiful China. Thirdly, the Company
will uphold the strategic layout of high starting point and premium
positioning, leverage on its long-term strategic layout and actively
integrate global resources to bring in high-end talents and speed up the
implementation of new energy resources layout. Fourthly, for customer
satisfaction, the Company will set up a collective quality management
system and commence the reform of quality improvement and production
consistency by raising the level of smart manufacturing. The Company will
strive to move towards a culture of high-end quality, manufacture “high-
end and zero-defect” products, and lay a sturdy foundation for product
quality. Fifthly, to cater to the needs arising from internationalization, the
Company will formulate reasonable human resources planning and build
a highly efficient human resources management system by attracting and
nurturing talents, building a team of elites, fostering the construction of
a better talent ecosystem, and cultivating an encouraging atmosphere of
taking root in Weichai, working hard in Weichai and being filled with a
sense of well-being in Weichai. Stepping into the second half the year, the
heavy-duty truck sector will give full play to its strengths in new energy
and intelligent network technologies, and will accelerate the development
and performance enhancement of the new generation of products.
Through gradual implementation of a series of significant reforms, major
projects and key tasks, the Company will promote high-quality operation
and enlarge its market share as well as industry influence with a view to
achieving an annual sales target of 160,000 units. Focusing on the future
market demand, gear box companies will gear up their paces of scientific
innovation and step up efforts to further promote the development of
China-VI products and new energy products, while constantly exploring
the market and realizing mutual benefits for both the domestic and

international markets.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) T E ()
In the meantime, being guided by the “2020-2030 Strategy”, the BB+ A2 A #5 L 2020-2030 B BS & 45
Company will remain focused on scaling new heights and becoming the Bl NEZEERSIE - kEBEERE—
world’s number one by accelerating the transformation into a leading EEEE%EPR  MRERSHEK - &
commercial entity in the whole value chain consisting of powertrain BEG  BEUR  FHERE2EEES
systems, hydraulics system, intelligent logistics and new energy while THOEERZRZ  UREAFSIBEE A
sustaining high-quality development. It will provide customers with the EEFRESINER  ZEEMNRG @ 17
best quality products and services through scientific innovation-driven EX BB bR o
development to and foster itself into a well-respected international
enterprise.

V. Appreciation i B
Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to all &% BRERBOMIHFRRGE K
our shareholders, the general public and our customers for their care and WhHeRRZALT EARFE » [AEFEK
support, as well as to all of our staff for their hard work and dedication in FMTIEMEBET - RA 50 A) R

the past half year!

Tan Xuguang EERFEENTE
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer BB

Hong Kong, 28 August 2018 B ZE-\FENAZ+NH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of
the results of operations of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2018

(“the Period") as follows:

I. Industry Analysis
The Company is one of the vehicles and equipment manufacturing
conglomerates in China with the best comprehensive strengths. It is
a leading company in the markets of powertrains, complete vehicles
and machines, hydraulic controlling parts and automotive parts and
components. It is equipped with the most comprehensive supply chain
of engines, gear boxes and axles, and offers related after-sales market
services. Meanwhile, with the Group’s advantage in intelligent logistics, it

could provide comprehensive solutions to its customers.

1. Heavy-duty Vehicle Industry
In the first half of 2018, the PRC's economy maintained last year's
trend of positive development amidst stability. Through structural
adjustments, quality and efficiency had enhanced, paving way for
a high-quality development of the Chinese economy. In the first
half of the year, the gross domestic product of the PRC reached
RMB41.90 trillion, representing a 6.8% growth year-on-year. The
heavy-duty truck market of the PRC recorded substantial growth
in sales volume, delivering sales of approximately 672,000 units
in total during the Period, representing a substantial year-on-year
increase of 15.1%. Such increase in sales volume is a reflection of
the influence of a multitude of favourable factors including the
acceleration of infrastructure investments and the implementation

of enhanced emission policies.

2. Construction Machinery
During the Period, fixed-asset investments in the PRC (excluding
agricultural households) reached approximately RMB29.73 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 6.0%. Investments in
property development reached approximately RMB5.55 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 9.7%, and an increase of
approximately 1.2 percentage points in growth rate year-on-year.
As such, the construction machinery market in the PRC continued
to recover, delivering sales of approximately 400,000 units for the
whole construction machinery industry (including electric fork-lift
trucks), representing a year-on-year increase of 32.0%, amongst
which, the sales of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes
was approximately 43,000 units, representing a substantial year-on-

year increase of 40.0%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

II.

3. Forklift Truck and Supply Chain Solutions
Industry
In the first half of 2018, the momentum of global economy
continued the increasing trend of last year, electronic commerce
maintained its rapid development and the industrial 4.0 technology
was widely applied to warehousing and automated systems.
As such, the global order for forklift trucks increased from
approximately 694,100 units in the corresponding period last year
to approximately 801,100 units, representing an increase of 15.4%
year-on-year. Except for the Middle East and Africa, a double-digit

growth was recorded in all other regions.

The Group’s Business
An analysis of the Group’s business segments is set out in Note XIV.2 to
the consolidated financial statements. The following is an overview of the

operating conditions of the major products of the Group:

1. Sale of Diesel Engines

For Use in Heavy-duty Trucks

During the Period, the heavy-duty truck market in the PRC reported
a continual increase in sales volume. The Company sold a total
of approximately 194,300 units of heavy-duty truck engines,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 8.9% from
approximately 178,500 units in the corresponding period last year.
The Company maintained its leading position in the heavy-duty

truck auxiliary market with a market share of 28.9%.

For Use in Construction Machinery

The Group is also the largest supplier of diesel engines to major
manufacturers of construction machinery (mainly wheel loaders)
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes in the PRC. During the Period,
under the continual recovery of the construction machinery
market, the Company’s sales of engines for wheel loader with
a load capacity of 5 tonnes was approximately 38,000 units,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 43.7% from
approximately 26,500 units in the corresponding period of last year

and maintaining the Company’s leading position in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B e B AT (A

Forklift Trucks Production, Warehousing
Technology and Supply Chain Solution
Services

Benefiting from the strong growth of the forklift truck industry and
the “2027 Strategy” which was actively pushed forward by KION
Group AG (“KION"), in the first half of 2018, the Group recorded
sales orders for forklift trucks of approximately 110,500 units, a
year-on-year increase of approximately 7.9% from approximately
102,400 units in the corresponding period last year. Overall sales
orders on hand amounted to EUR4,309 million, an increase from
approximately EUR3,852 million in the corresponding period last
year, or a year-on-year increase of 11.9%. Before elimination
of intra-group sales, the forklift trucks production, warehousing
technology services and supply chain solution services business
contributed approximately RMB29,860 million to the Group's sales

revenue during the Period.

Sale of Heavy-duty Trucks

During the Period, the Group reported an aggregate sales of
approximately 84,000 units of heavy-duty trucks, representing an
increase of approximately 14.4% from approximately 73,400 units
sold during the corresponding period of 2017. Shaanxi Heavy-
duty Motor Company Limited, a controlling subsidiary of the
Company, continuously strengthened research and development
of products and achieved significant progress including in areas
such as lightweighting and application of new materials, achieved
tremendous breakthroughs in the heavy-duty truck segment market
and ranked among the first-tier players in the domestic heavy-
duty truck industry in the PRC. Before elimination of intra-group
sales, the heavy-duty trucks business contributed approximately

RMB27,951 million to the Group’s sales revenue during the Period.

Sale of Heavy-duty Gear Boxes

During the Period, the Group sold approximately 523,100 units of
heavy-duty gear boxes, representing an increase of approximately
22.4% compared to approximately 427,300 units sold in the
corresponding period of 2017, and maintained its leading position
in the industry. Before elimination of intra-group sales, the gear
boxes business contributed approximately RMB8,051 million to the

Group's sales revenue during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Sale of Parts and Components of Engine and
Heavy-duty Trucks and Hydraulics Controlling
Parts

Apart from the production and sales of diesel engines for trucks
and construction machinery, heavy-duty trucks and heavy-duty
gear boxes, the Group is also engaged in the production and
sales of engine parts and components and other truck parts and
components such as: spark plugs, axles, chassis, air-conditioner
compressors, hydraulics controlling parts etc. During the Period,
the Group's sales of parts and components of engines and trucks
and hydraulics controlling parts decreased by approximately RMB81
million from approximately RMB2,055 million in the corresponding
period in last year to approximately RMB1,974 million, representing

a year-on-year decrease of approximately 3.9%.

ITI. Financial Review

The Group’s Results of Operations

a. Revenue
The Group's revenue increased by approximately RMB9,951
million or approximately 13.8% from approximately
RMB72,313 million in the corresponding period of 2017 to
approximately RMB82,264 million for the Period. This was
primarily attributable to the continual increase in sales volume
in the heavy-duty truck market in China and the breakthrough
achieved by Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited,
a controlling subsidiary of the Company, in the heavy-duty
truck segment market, resulting in a substantial increase in
sales volume. Revenue from principal operations increased by
approximately 13.7% from approximately RMB70,596 million
in the corresponding period of last year to approximately
RMB80,295 million for the Period. Other revenue increased by
approximately 14.7%, from approximately RMB1,718 million
in the corresponding period of last year to approximately
RMB 1,969 million for the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B e B AT (A
b. Profit from Principal Operations b. FEEBKAE

During the Period, the Group generated profit from principal RAEME - AEEEEEBH
operations in the amount of approximately RMB17,690 HHOARK17,69058 T
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB2,545 =Tt FRBOHNARE
million or 16.8% as compared to approximately RMB15,145 15,1458 87t - BN AR
million recorded in the corresponding period in 2017. The 25455 8L 16.8% « A&
Group has concentrated on its main business, continuously EHEIXE  TEHEAERN
engaged in product research and development and BERAREHEA  FERE
effectively controlled costs, giving advantages to its products’ BERAR - ORMmNEERE
competitiveness in terms of cost, core technology and quality. N EEEBFNEERREFR
The Group's profit margin of principal operations increased Hi#921.5% A E22.0% °

from approximately 21.5% in the corresponding period of

last year to approximately 22.0%.

c.  Distribution and Selling Expenses c. HEEH

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately RAER  HEERALAAR
RMB447 million or 8.9% to approximately RMB5,474 547488 T LT —+
million in the Period from approximately RMB5,027 million FRBHVOARKES 02788
in the corresponding period of 2017. The increase of T EIMHWARKE4TEE T
distribution and selling expenses was primarily attributable %89% - HHEBMRLMNEZE
to the Company’s intensified efforts in market expansion, REATMATISHRANE » A
causing increases in staff costs and marketing expenses. ITRAMMESRMERERN L
Meanwhile, the increase in sales volume resulted in increases FRAE HEEFHAFEES
in transportation expenses, but the overall expenses were BFETEN BEEEEASBIE
controlled effectively. As such, the distribution and selling REd - A E B A2 %
expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased from WAL BB EFERENLT7.0%
approximately 7.0% in the corresponding period of last year TREEREBAHL6.7% °

to approximately 6.7% in the Period.

d.  General and Administrative Expenses d. EBEEEA
General and administrative expenses increased by ERERAR_T—tFRBPH
approximately RMB135 million or 4.4% from approximately HDARBIBGIEET AR
RMB3,061 million in the corresponding period of 2017 to AEHEMHARK3 1968 8
approximately RMB3,196 million in the Period, which was T EAHNARKEIZSEETT
mainly due to the increase in staff costs resulting from H4.4% - TEREBERREE
the additional recruitments for business expansion. Under EHARIEIEE T - fAIKAK
effective control of expenses by the Group, the general and EALEHA - EEBEEBIEHE
administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased AT EERERGEERAL
from approximately 4.2% in the corresponding period of last Bl EFRERNA4.2% THEE

year to approximately 3.9% in the Period. REAHI493.9%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) and Adjusted
Total Profit For Purchase Price Allocation

During the Period, the Group’s EBIT increased by
approximately RMB2,639 million or 57.7% to approximately
RMB7,216 million from approximately RMB4,577 million
in the corresponding period last year. The increase was
primarily attributable to the increase in sales amount, while
the improved EBIT margin from approximately 6.3% in the
corresponding period of 2017 to approximately 8.8% this
Period was due to a slower rate of increase in expenses in the

Period.

For a business combination involving enterprises not under
common control, the cost of business combination should
be allocated between the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired on the date of acquisition, and assets and liabilities
should be accounted for at fair value and are subsequently
measured (“purchase price allocation”). The purchase price
allocation of the Group primarily arose from the acquisition of
KION and Dematic. During the Period, the two purchase price
allocations stated above resulted in a decrease in profit before
tax of RMB739 million (in the corresponding period of 2017:
RMB1,383 million). After adjustment for the purchase price
allocation, total profit amounted to approximately RMB7,994
million, representing an increase of approximately 38.5%
from approximately RMB5,771 million in the corresponding

period of last year.

Finance Expenses

Finance expenses decreased by approximately 84.6%
to approximately RMB57 million in the Period from
approximately RMB369 million in the corresponding period of
2017. This was mainly attributable to the decrease in foreign
exchange losses and increase in interest income for the

Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B e B AT (A

g. Income Tax Expenses g. FEHEHR
The Group's income tax expenses increased by 41.6% AEBEFEHERBE _T—t
from approximately RMB907 million in the corresponding FRBMNHARKITESE
period of 2017 to approximately RMB1,285 million in the TEMERNARANOARE
Period. During the Period, the Group's average effective 1,285 BB © EF41.6% °
tax rate was approximately 17.9%, representing a decrease RAPEAEENFHERM
of approximately 2.8 percentage points as compared to KU A17.9% @ L EFREH
approximately 20.7% in the corresponding period of last #920.7% TPE#)2 . 8EBE D2 -
year, which was primarily because of the increase in the FEERANEBMBELL &
proportion of profit from the Group’s business in China, o mBERFHERRRLLE
where the average effective tax rate is lower than those in S IE AR o

overseas regions.

h.  Net Profit and Net Profit Margin h. SEME RS R E =
The Group's net profit for the Period increased by RAEIRE - AEBEFFHEO R
approximately RMB2,406 million or 69.2% from ARB5882AETL LEF
approximately RMB3,476 million in the corresponding period REHHARKE3 47688 T
of last year to approximately RMB5,882 million in the Period. B AR®E2,4068H & T3k
Net profit margin for the Period was approximately 7.2%, an 69.2% ° 72N B R FE I 4
increase of 2.4 percentage points from approximately 4.8% R7.2%  BEFERILA8%
in the corresponding period of last year. This was primarily J:l:?‘T EA24EEDE - =2
attributable to the continual growth in the heavy-duty truck BRERITEFERE
industry, the synergy between domestic and international & B 79 5 2 75 175 (R R e AN %ﬁﬁﬁ
businesses and the effective cost control of the Group. THIK I EEMTE -
Liquidity and Cash Flow i nEBEERBEN
During the Period, the Group generated net operating cash R - REEEEKLER
flows of approximately RMB8,484 million and cash inflow EREFHE Z’J AR ¥S,484H
from financing activities of approximately RMB11,012 million. B MEEXETHEALADIE
A portion of such proceeds was applied to prepaying for ERAHAREI1,01288
the acquisition of 2,053,558 additional KION shares (at total I o H A #m B B TE 1
consideration of approximately EUR150 million) and paying 52,053,558 IR Sl Bk 10 (42
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment for the RELHAISERT) M
expansion of the Group'’s business. As of 30 June 2018, the BEWE  KERDEBUERE
Group's gearing ratio (Interest-bearing debts/(Interest-bearing AREBZEK N _ZT—N\F
debts + Shareholders’ equity)) was approximately 35.8% (31 NAZ+TEASEBECZEAREBE
December 2017: approximately 35.5%). & (GFEER (G EB+

PR iEZ)) 4 R35.8% (R =
—+E+_A=+—H : &
35.5%) o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

2. Financial Position 2. BABARR
a. Assets and Liabilities a. BEKBRE
As at 30 June 2018, the Group had total assets of RZE-—N\NFXA=+8"
approximately RMB197,400 million, of which approximately AEBEBEELBOAAREK

RMB 108,855 million were current assets. As at 30 June 2018,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB37,040 million (as at 31 December 2017: approximately
RMB34,222 million). On the same date, the Group’s total
liabilities amounted to approximately RMB138,811 million,
of which approximately RMB84,723 million were current
liabilities. The current ratio was approximately 1.28 (as at 31
December 2017: 1.28).

Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had total equity of
approximately RMB58,589 million, of which approximately
RMB36,974 million was attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the balance was minority interests. Interest
attributable to minority interest holders included the issue of

perpetual capital securities in the principal amount of US$775

197,400 B &7t - HFR&HE
E#HABAR®KI0885EH8
TLToRZE-—NFRA=T
H XEBHABHOARE
37,040 BB TN EBES (KX
ZE—+F+ZA=+—8:
WARM34222858L) - [
H AEBEBERBANRAR
®138,811TEHIL EFR R
BENAARKESLT723EE
T o MBI ELH A28 (R
ZE—+F+ZA=+—H8H:
1.28f%) °

RZE—NFESA=+H &
SEBEERL R ARY58,589
BB HPHARY36,974
BELAARRRERISAARE
I AfEmzRERR
o PERRERITE AR

million in September 2017. The borrowings of the Group as LHEZEFERE_ZE—tF N
at 30 June 2018 amounted to approximately RMB32,657 A7 758X TKkER
million, which included bonds of approximately RMB11,916 %  KEBR-_ZT—NEFERA

million and bank borrowings of approximately RMB20,741 Z+HERNEESHENABARYE
million. The bank borrowings included approximately 32,657B8L  EFBEELHA

RMB9,896 million of fixed interest rate bank borrowings
and approximately RMB10,845 million of floating interest
rate bank borrowings. Borrowings repayable on demand or
within a period not exceeding one year were approximately
RMB6,917 million, borrowings repayable within a period
of more than one year but not exceeding two years were
approximately RMB2,080 million; borrowings repayable
within a period of more than two years but not exceeding
five years were approximately RMB11,434 million; and
borrowings repayable within a period of more than five

years were approximately RMB310 million. Other than Euro-

RE11,916 8B TtHESH kL
AE%N7M§%ﬁmﬁﬁF

c IRITIEERIEE BRITE
AﬁAEM9w6§§ﬁ&ﬁ
BRITEELHARK 10,845
BB - BRESEFHARE
6,917 A& LA — F AR Bk
BERF ZREMER  HARE
2,080 &L AZNR—FED
HBAME AR BRER  HAR
11,434 BB TAZRMER
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

denominated borrowings, USD-denominated borrowings
and Turkish Lira-denominated borrowings equivalent to
approximately RMB17,859 million, RMB234 million and
RMB153 million respectively, the borrowings are Renminbi-
denominated borrowings. The revenue of the Group is mainly
in Renminbi and Euro. To prevent exchange rate risk arising
from the fluctuation of the USD exchange rate, contracts
have been entered into with financial institutions to swap the
USD400 million USD-denominated bonds issued in September
2015 and the USD775 million USD-denominated perpetual
capital securities issued in September 2017 to Euro, and
thus the Group does not consider the currency risk facing its
future general cash outflow significant. As a policy, the Group
manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to shareholders through the optimization of the debts
and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior years.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2018, bank deposits and notes receivable of
approximately RMB17,634 million (as at 31 December 2017:
approximately RMB16,830 million) were pledged to banks
to secure the Group’s notes payable, letter of guarantee,
letter of credit and etc. issued by banks. The pledged bank
deposits carry prevailing bank interest rates. The pledge
will be released upon the settlement of the relevant bank
borrowings. The fair value of the bank deposits as at the
balance sheet date was approximately the same as the
carrying amount. Certain other assets were also pledged by

the Group to secure the Group’s borrowings.

THE @A F A EEERFLOA
REI0EE TR AFEIE
B e BRARBITZ17,8598
B ARBHAN2348E T
MAREHI153EE LD B
ABEIT  ELMEIEHEBRE
FON HMERHABARKEE
o REBRAETERARYE
MBI - ABRETLELREH
mELKIINERRE - AE@E
ZE-RAFNAMZE—+tF
NABITH A AIEBETEFMN
7SR ERKEESFCDES R
WIEETESNEBMARIT - T
UAREERAEERAKRERES
TEHEEIINERRBRIETEKX -
AEBHBRAEEEEAR
BRASEEBENSTEL
g RANEZABLAERESR
LAl AR REHZARER o 7K
EEERRREBTFELR

N

= °

EERH

RZZE—N\FASA=+H" K
SEBOARK17,634BE T
(RZE—+tF+ZA=+—
H: AR#16,83068 L) M
BITFEAREREERER TR
T ERAREEMERITEE
ERNEE - RE - ERAEER
EHRE  BEARRITHERERR
TRTFIEG B - ZBERE
R IRIT B REBR T AR
BReMEEAERRD  RITHF
RN FEEEREBERES
AEBITEEBRE THEMLE
E - ERAEEERZER-



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

d. Contingencies

On 30 June 2018, the Group provided certain distributors
and agents bank guarantee amounting to approximately
RMB3,864 million (as at 31 December 2017: approximately
RMB3,522 million) to secure their obtaining and use of

banking facilities.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group provided guarantee for joint
liabilities in respect of failure of the leasee under finance lease
to settle instalment payments plus interest. Risk exposure in
respect of possible guarantee for joint liabilities amounted to

approximately RMB1,744 million (as at 31 December 2017:

approximately RMB1,507 million).

As at 30 June 2018, the Group's guarantee for borrowings
and other guarantee amounted to approximately RMB487

million (as at 31 December 2017: approximately RMB376

million).

e. Commitments

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RMB1,214 million (as at 31 December 2017:
approximately RMB1,803 million), principally for the capital
expenditure in respect of acquisition of property, plant and

equipment. The capital expenditure will be financed by

internal resources.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

3.

Other Financial Information

a.

Employees

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had approximately 74
thousand employees (including approximately 32 thousand
employees of KION). During the Period, the Group had
paid remuneration of approximately RMB11,659 million.
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on the basis of their merits,

qualifications and competence.

Major Investment

During the Period, the Group, through Barclays Bank,
acquired from the secondary market 2,053,558 shares of
KION, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which
is a stock corporation incorporated in Germany whose shares
are listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange, at a consideration
of approximately EUR146 million. Following the completion of
the transaction, the Company has through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding
S.a r.l. become the holder of 53,140,500 KION shares, and
accordingly the Group has increased its shareholding in KION

from approximately 43.26% to 45%.

Major Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not have any major acquisition or disposal

during the Period.

i P e B A (A

3.

H At Bt B BB
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EEEHR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

d.

Subsequent Events

On 28 August 2018, under the authority granted by
the shareholders of the Company, the Board considered
and approved the distribution to all shareholders of
cash dividend of RMB1.80 (including tax) for every
10 shares held, based on the total share capital of
the Company of 7,997,238,556 shares, without any

capitalisation of reserve.

In July 2018, the Company and Weichai Power
(Shanghai) Technology Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Technology”), a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Agreement on Participating
in (Withdrawing from) Huzhou Yingcan Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) with, among others,
Hangzhou Gaomu Asset Management Company
Limited, pursuant to which the Company and Shanghai
Technology as a limited partner and a general
partner respectively, participated in Huzhou Yingcan
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Yingcan
Investment”) by way of taking up the subscription
amounts of RMB1,405.80 million and RMB200,000.
Yingcan Investment subscribed for 367,957,139 new
issue shares of XCMG Construction Machinery Co.,
Ltd. ("XCMG"), representing 4.70% of the total shares

of XCMG upon completion of the capital increase.
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HRBORHAERDE

Auditors’” Review Report

EY:x

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2018) Zhuan Zi No. 60729920_B07
To the Shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.:

We have reviewed the accompanying interim financial statements of Weichai
Power Co., Ltd. which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 30 June 2018, the consolidated and company income statements, statement
of changes in equity and cash flow statement for January to June 2018 and
notes to the financial statements. The management of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
is responsible for the preparation of these interim financial statements. Our
responsibility is to issue our review report on these interim financial statements

based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Review Standard for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants No. 2101 Review of Financial Statements. The
standard requires us to plan and conduct a review to obtain limited assurance as
to whether the interim financial statements are free from material misstatement.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and performing
analytical procedures on the data. A review provides less assurance than an
audit. We have not performed an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit

opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the interim financial statements are not prepared in accordance
with the requirement in Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32

Interim Financial Reporting.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Beijing, PRC

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Liu Ying
Chinese Certified Public Accountant:

You Jin

28 August 2018
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aHEERMRE

201846 H30H (A E¥T)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note V 30 June 2018 31 December 2017
ASSETS BE Misr T 20186 H30H 20179 12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (F&E%)
Current assets mMENEE
Cash and cash equivalents BE¥ES 1 P R S 34,221,837,770.90
KAanEEEAER
Financial assets at fair value through FEEAEBRERD
profit or loss SREE 2 - 384,067,087.32
Financial assets held for trading RGMEHEE 3 1,090,763,052.20 -
Notes receivable and accounts receivable FEZ s N FEURBRE 7K 4 JEREle a0 38,863,774,260.96
Prepayments A RIA 5 892,878,443.17 559,802,492.16
Other receivables H M fE R 6 1,103,649,773.06 888,122,035.12
Inventories T8 7 21,051,363,532.53 19,850,822,463.67
Contract assets AREE 8 1,029,394,552.50 -
Non-current assets due within one year —F NI BN IERFHEE 9 1,809,419,068.50 1,778,971,213.80
Other current assets HEiREghEE 10 1,738,313,381.57 3,792,776,498.74
Total current assets mEEEAST (loririisPAo ks eiE 100,340,173,822.67
Non-current assets EMEEE
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESMEE 11 - 594,847,216.31
Investment in other equity instruments HigEs TAKRE 12 344,932,671.75 =
Long-term receivables £ B FE R 13 5,239,387,579.50 5,197,814,237.00
Long-term equity investments REIRIERE 14 2,867,622,067.55 2,638,935,915.48
Other non-current financial assets HM3EmeemaE 15 234,694,459.50 =
Investment property BEMEEHE 16 596,593,949.51 569,210,526.81
Fixed assets EEEE 17 PARSY R PRV YR 27,068,307,958.45
Construction in progress EETE 18 1,790,672,969.18 1,218,747,351.06
Intangible assets BmILEE 19 PPl el A 23,839,954,192.45
Development expenditure &AL 20 522,979,946.28 515,853,805.25
Goodwill S 21 PPICEVIICEWI RV 22,583,192,662.42
Long-term prepaid expenses REGHER 22 275,988,486.82 283,430,938.92
Deferred tax assets RIEFISTHEE VVEEWELWEY R 4,533,525,646.91
Other non-current assets HihIEREEE 23 186,464,064.75 254,172,355.79
Total non-current assets FEREBEEAGT RV PLRCRIEEN 89,297,992,806.85
Total assets BEBT VAR NPl 189,638,166,629.52
The financial statements have been signed by: HERERAATALESR

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting:

EEREA FEEHIEEEA:
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong
R BIRE
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued) G EE A ER ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)
Note V 30 June 2018
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EEMREER N 20186 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Current liabilities mEBE
Short-term loans EEfE R 24 4,741,754,576.66
Financial liabilities at fair value through UWRAREBENFE2EHE
profit or loss B AERERD
TRBE 25 =
Financial liabilities held for trading REECRAE 26 379,338,525.97
Notes payable and accounts payable FEN =98 M FE IR R 27 47,804,442,438.45
Advances from customers T8 Wk IE 28 =
Contract liabilities aRARE 8 5,835,123,607.04
Payroll payable JRE A< B T 57 B 29 4,881,833,939.86
Taxes payable BB 30 2,393,774,742.40
Other payables H fth, A< 5K 31 7,653,880,607.76
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FRNEHNIERBAR 32 5,681,039,573.50
Other current liabilities HimEha & 33 5,351,877,587.87
Total current liabilities REBAESE 84,723,065,599.51
Non-current liabilities FERFEE
Long-term borrowings RAEMER 34 13,824,151,743.45
Bonds payable JE A 5 5 35 11,916,122,424.42
Long-term payables REFET AR 36 9,439,003,335.00
Long-term payroll payable = HA 8 1< 55 T 57 B 37 9,144,413,878.76
Accruals and provisions TEFtAE 38 319,969,845.90
Deferred income RIEW 2% 39 2,653,164,919.67
Deferred tax liabilities RLEFTEHAE 6,009,042,894.28
Other non-current liabilities BEMIEREEE 782,010,659.00
Total non-current liabilities FERBDEEES 54,087,879,700.48
Total liabilities BERE 138,810,945,299.99
The financial statements have been signed by: MIEMREATALESE

Principal in charge of accounting:
FEEAIEAEA:

Legal Representative:

REA

Kwong Kwan Tong

B =

Li Xia

==
E=

31 December 2017
20174F12A31H
(Audited)

(&%)

3,174,887,395.62

482,880,099.94
43,016,241,784.82
5,814,905,624.90
4,810,305,393.38
2,700,258,706.06
8,026,100,946.56
5,596,251,134.50
4,851,696,489.11

78,473,527,574.89

15,678,594,729.35
10,459,780,084.07
9,241,432,433.10
9,236,773,057.02
344,923,046.70
3,121,664,308.58
6,500,274,764.52
226,205,400.79

54,809,647,824.13

133,283,175,399.02

Head of accounting department:

BEIBRBAEA
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued) AU EEABER ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
Note V 30 June 2018 31 December 2017
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BEMBRER MisER 201856 H30H 2017412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (JesEi%)
Shareholders’ equity B% SR A 25
Share capital [N 40 7,997,238,556.00 7,997,238,556.00
Capital reserve BARNE 41 111,621,160.68 135,898,754.99
Other comprehensive income Hitndr & W 42 (Rl SR RPN (1,527,566,155.73)
Special reserve HIEFEE 43 143,912,283.47 118,355,897.38
Surplus reserve BHBNTE 44 - 616,811,881.87
Retained earnings &5 B FE 45 S0 vasparlailsys - 27,898,783,968.43
Total equity attributable to the BENEAFIRREERE R
shareholders of the parent Sl il | 35,239,522,902.94
Minority interests LEHR R 46 DA SR e Al 21,115,468,327.56
Total shareholders’ equity REERSEE step etttk skt eEl | 56,354,991,230.50
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEMBRRERE 197,399,526,605:32  AELNELRITA VIRV
The financial statements have been signed by: MEMERBEATALESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREA FERIIEERA FEREEEREA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia

B BiRE =
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HRBORHAERDE

Consolidated Income Statement

January to June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

& O FE 2%

2018F 1-6 A(ARE¥T)

January to June

2018
2018%1-6A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Note V
{ogzaeal

47 82,263,906,908.88
47 64,335,849,214.51
48 399,294,357.54
49 5,473,595,476.28
50 3,196,179,093.83
51 1,751,132,452.88
52 56,645,514.29

612,147,513.99

563,067,891.29
53 179,326,217.62
54 105,247,274.82
55 58,339,437.77
56 221,176,005.84

136,233,044.06
57 26,873,836.25
4,186,159.48

7,077,212,746.45
58 142,190,971.81
59 52,526,096.81

7,166,877,621.45
61 1,284,648,536.55

Revenue EERA

Less: Cost of sales R
Taxes and surcharges i & Mt an
Distribution and selling expenses HEEBH
General and administrative expenses EHRER
Research & development expenses HEEA
Finance expenses %8 A
Incl: Interest expenses HEeh - FIBEA

Interest income FE WA

Impairment loss of assets BEREEX
Impairment loss of credit ERRBEERL

Add: Other income s Bt
Investment income wE W=
Incl: Investment income He %’Tﬂﬁ“ i

from associates and naEhEN
jointly controlled enterprises Tx B m

Gain or loss on fair value changes NAEEZHER
Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets BERE W (BX)

Operating profit & EFE

Add:  Non-operating income o EEINIEA

Less: Non-operating expenses B B EINT

Total profit F 4R %8

Less: Income tax expense B FTISTHER

Net profit A

Incl: Net profit from continuing operations Heh - SEKEFFE
Net profit from discontinued operations A R

5,882,229,084.90
5,882,229,084.90

Breakdown by attributable interests
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of
the parent

RTBERSEB DR

BN QB RIRAFENE

4,392,587,359.49

Minority interests

1,489,641,725.41

ial statements have been signed by:

Principal in charge of accounting:

B THEREA

BISHERAATALESE :

January to June
2017
2017%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

72,313,265,590.11
56,987,411,183.56
373,189,991.32
5,027,424,399.09
3,061,107,092.58
1,531,986,191.85
368,716,470.81
664,527,888.68
470,373,560.53
953,074,047.47
39,869,770.84
135,204,722.57

120,804,392.87
142,460,083.61
(5,032,604.91)

4,322,858,185.54
116,891,259.00
56,452,852.00

4,383,296,592.54
907,205,448.79

3,476,091,143.75
3,476,091,143.75

2,650,042,739.83

826,048,403.92

Head of accounting department:

BRRBAERA:

Li Xia
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Consolidated Income Statement (Continued) G AR (48)
January to June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018%F 1-6 A( AR ¥T)
January to June January to June
Note V 2018 2017
MR 2018%1-6 B 2017%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RRBEX) (REEZR)
Net other comprehensive income after tax Hinir A WS NF & F5E
Net other comprehensive income attributable to BEENEATIREN
shareholders of the parent after tax Hihsr e Wz Tiig F5m (41,354,889.09) (754,005,994.31)
Those other comprehensive income not TReENEEBRED
to be reclassified into profit or loss Hbire s
Changes arising from re-measuring defined benefit =zt 2% E < w2l
plan B 17,362,053.85 161,064,157.23
Other comprehensive income not to be taken to BERETTEEEERD
profit or loss using the equity method Hira s (1,135,343.38) 1,498,557.20
Change of fair value of investment in HugEmTAKRE
other equity instruments N BEEEE (65,902,072.83) -
Those other comprehensive income to be BEDEEERZN
reclassified into profit or loss HibiraUles
Other comprehensive income to be taken to BERE T EBZEE
profit or loss using the equity method E s M 1,002,941.82 1,850,567.27
Change of fair value of available-for-sale financial ~ Al f{t H && 7 & E
assets ARBEEEE - 4,556,426.85
Cashflow hedging reserve RensEMNR#EE (29,131,420.11) 46,750,523.02
Exchange differences on foreign currency INEBF ISR R ITE 5
translation 36,448,951.56 (969,726,225.88)

Net other comprehensive income attributable to BB R L BIRENEMEGES

minority owners after tax e M Bi1& F 58 (123,419,940.23) (544,391,705.31)
Total comprehensive income el E 5,717,454,255.58 2,177,693,444.13
Incl: He
Total comprehensive income attributable to HENERAARENGE

the shareholders of the parent WS 4a%a 4,351,232,470.40 1,896,036,745.52
Total comprehensive income attributable to minority §3 B L #RE N &

interest Wzt 5 1,366,221,785.18 281,656,698.61
Earnings per share B Y= 62
Basic earnings per share ERG R 0.33
Diluted earnings per share wRESRkE 0.33
The financial statements have been signed by: B MERAATALES
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting:
EEREA - EEHIEARA:
Tan Xuguang
& B



34  \Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #SE HIRBDAR AT

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity E 1 B R R 4 A ) R

January to June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F 1-6 A(ARE¥T)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

SERSNARRER
Other
Share Gapital ~ comprehensive Spedcal Surplus Retained Minority Total
Unaudited) Note V capital reserve income reserve reserve earnings Subtotal NEE equity
it HERR L i
(728%) G EA0E 2l EERE N FARAE it & ait
I, Atend of previousyear - PEERRE TOBS600 13589875499 (152756615573 118358738 GIGSISBIET 278987836843 52395000294 2111546832756  56,354991,23050
1. Change in accounting plces [-Eit - - GBI - - NBKBTNN B3N (119,71055) 23642357335
I Atbegiing of perog o KHENRE TOUB5600 13580875499 (149992165203 11835589738 GIGSISBIGT 281076874863 354606610684 2111534861700 5659141480385
Il Movements n current priod R i |
() Total comprehersiv income (- Bahzes (41354,889.09) 439056735949 43513247040 13660178518 57174545558
(1) Ijecion and reducton () BRRATR S EX
1. Capltlinjction from sharehalders 1. BERARK 18972000 114972000
2. Acquition of adetonalshaes in 1 ERTRARR
subsidars 4 (25,592,887.14) (B16,811,88187)  (238.5845860)  (B80,66322761) (3644316353  (1,117,106,391.14)
3. Amout ofshere-based payment taken 3. REXMARR
o owners'equiy EaNeE iy 1315,20283 - 131529283 1658438.14 29373097
4, Disposl ofsubsidares 4, RETAA (404, 62463) (A046483) (571815258 (56,122777.1)
5. Others 5. Ef - - 1,331361.00 1331,361.00
(1) Profit approprizton (Z)HEsE
1. Distibution o owrers 1. HRROAR “ - (199930963900 (199930963900 (S09.870,10.77)  (2.509,179,749.77)
2. Distrution o holders of other equiy 1 YFLAEMERTA
instruments of subsidiries BEENASR (92,183599.18)  (92,183,599.18)
(V) Speci esenve (B) EREE
1. Appropriaton during th period 1. KRR I 50,145,391.94 S50 29817 7240528371
2. Used durng the perod 1. THER 2 (24,184381.22) (418438122)  (9660951.26)  (3384533249)
N, Atend o period I FESFASE TOUB5600 11162116088 (154127654000 14391208347 302627001052 3697419746955 2161438383578 58,588,581305.33
The financial statements have been signed by: HMBEREREAATALTES
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EERKA FEETIEARA BEREBATA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

January to June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2018 A HAZRE

AR RN R B R (4
2017 1-6 H(AKE¥T)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

BERSNTRRER
Other
Capital ~ comprehensive Special Surplus Retained Minority Total
(Unaudited) NoteV reserve income reserve reserve earnings Subtotal interests equity
Bha HERR hEEE
(728%) S E50E L Bt BHLE AARAA it B aif
I Atbeginning of period - FEENRE 3013985991 (295,101,754.34) 9871132061 - 27.905900916.04 3173826962022 1282340023900  44,561,669,859.22
1. Movemens n curent peiod o FEEEERLE
() Total comprehensive income (-] BeuasEE - (75400599431 - - 265000273983 189603674550 28165669860 217769344413
(1) jecion and reduction () BRRAMR &L
1. Capita inection from shareholders 1. BERAER B (9,776,74351) - - - - (9,776,74351) 261316953101 2,603392,78750
2. Amount of share based payment taken 1 RAERHAREE
to owners' equty BaNLE 5] 118845982 - - - - 118845982 184163378 3030,093.60
3. Amounttaken to owners equit upon 3 FREDEREME
captalzation of capital resene of FARELENES
minorityshereholders of subsiiais AARREZNEE 8 466768263 - - - S DTG (166768263 -
4. Others 4 A - - - - - - 44947680 14947680
(1) Profit approprizton (=) HEAR
1. Distrbution to owners 1. HRENAR & - - - - (999654819500 (999.65481950)  (394491,666.16)  (1,394,146,485.66)
() Specil esene S
1. Agyropriaiondung the e I AR 5 - - IS - S BTMES BESN B8R0
2. Used during the period 1 RHER ) - - (15835,724.38) - - (15,835,724.38) (8,683,882.30) 24519,606.68)
Il Atend of period = FHERRE 6421925885 (1,049,07,74865) 11245050216 - 095568883637 3268247012673 1528853120125  47,971,001,327.98
The financial statements have been signed by: MEMEREATALTESE

Legal Representative:

EERERA

Tan Xuguang
B

Principal in charge of accounting:

TEGFHIFEEEA:

Kwong Kwan Tong

Head of accounting department:

BEIRBAERA

Li Xia

FE
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36  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B OF B 4B i B AR

2018F 1-6 A(ARE¥T)

January to June

January to June
2017
2017%1-6 4
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

56,500,209,608.67
144,515,582.89

496,159,099.51

57,140,884,291.07

32,423,330,883.44

12,037,011,635.38
3,735,901,725.23

4,178,852,633.78

52,375,096,877.83

4,765,787,413.24

2,276,000,000.00

77,909,801.10

21,558,169.23

20,020,630.05

2,395,488,600.38

1,091,604,785.74
2,707,782,338.86

128,257,290.00

3,927,644,414.60

(1,532,155,814.22)

Note V 2018
Loy 20185 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEX)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES - RETEBELDN
Hene
Cash received from sales of goods or rendering HERMMm  BEHEHK
of services W Bl iR & 66,413,776,983.13
Refunds of taxes BT B iRiE 235,419,233.88
Other cash received relating to operating U B Hfth R AC 2R E)
activities BFHNERS 63 786,156,825.82
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities LETEENIR & A /NG 67,435,353,042.83
Cash paid for goods and services BEER  BX4H
XRRE 35,605,171,317.17
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees S EB T AN A
BINOE S 11,810,894,126.45
Cash paid for all types of taxes TRHEERE 4,588,503,589.72
Other cash paid relating to operating activities S E A AT
BEHERMNE S 63 6,946,458,429.69
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating EEEIR R /AT
activities 58,951,027,463.03
Net cash flows from operating activities LETEBELR
BenEFHE 64 8,484,325,579.80
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES = BREEYEEH
Bene
Cash received from sale of investments U B3 B U B8 3R & 2,365,000,000.00
Cash received from return on investments NEEENS
Sl 112,726,825.14
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REETEE BF
intangible assets and other long-term assets BEMEMRBEE
Y lel 9 3R & 4 27,940,095.15
Net cash received for disposal of subsidiaries and BETFARREMES
other business units BAWEINEREFE 64 130,019,045.68
Other cash received relating to investing activities U B At E245 8 E B
BRNRE 63 29,101,177.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities BREEHRE TN 2,664,787,142.97
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BRETEE &
intangible assets and other long-term assets BEEMEMRE
BEXNORE 1,506,264,665.87
Cash paid for acquisition of investments REI MBS 4,962,395,000.00
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and REFRARIREMERE
other business units BUNYNHBEFE 8,175,005.00
Other cash paid relating to investing activities FE i 8245 B R B
BHNRS 16,542,635.00
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities BEZER LML /&t 6,493,377,305.87
Net cash flows from investing activities BEESZNM
Reme a8 (3,828,590,162.90)
ial statements have been signed by: MBMEBATALESE
Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
TESHTIEREA BITREASTA
_____ Li Xia
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued) B ERER (H)
January to June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018%F 1-6 A( AR ¥T)
January to June January to June
Note V 2018 2017
ik 2018%F1-6 B 20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEXK) (REEEZ)
. CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES =« E&EFHELHN
Rene
Cash received from capital contributions R AR HIE S 11,439,720.00 2,658,322,964.98
Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries from capital B FRRRKADH
contributions of minority owners e el
HE S (PZEREPLOOI Y 2,658,322,964.98
Cash received from borrowings BEETWEINERS (et AN 0R ] 16,854,499,975.50
Other cash received relating to financing activities W EMEEERTH
BRNRE 118,360,326.57 30,899,704.50
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities E8FHRET/ANET LSRRl | 19,543,722,644.98
Cash repayments of borrowings EREEEINHES Sk i | 19,494,866,102.50
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or profits DB - FIEKEN
and for interest expenses MELX RS 1,167,477,025.37 933,077,403.27
Incl: Cash paid to minority owners for Hep: FREIX NS
distribution of dividends or profits by DER R A
subsidiaries BEF - FE 752,018,795.61 393,894,446.62
Other cash paid relating to financing activities SN EMEEEES
BRNRE 63 1,166,637,841.81 504,607,023.13
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing EEEHRERE /DT
activities IRWALCRCERCI RN 20,932,550,528.90
Net cash flows used for financing activities EE TN
REREFR (CLEFOEPIEFEIAN  (1,388,827,883.92)

IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATEON [0« [EREEHIH S E

CASH (32,095,944.81) (64,645,935.26)
V. NETINCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 1 BReRBAEEED
EQUIVALENTS SR INEE 4,415,557,092.68 1,780,157,779.84
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of e BBEe &
period B4 EEYHBRE LWLV N WAT AR 21,598,831,905.22

VI.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF N HRBRERES
PERIOD EEYHE 64 E(UCYL R YRS Wil 23,378,989,685.06

The financial statements have been signed by: HIEMRHATALESE

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting:

EERKRA : EGFIEATA :
Tan Xuguang

B

B
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38 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.  #LeE HIRBDAR AT

Balance Sheet

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HEEAMREK

201846304 (A E¥T)

Note XV 30 June 2018
20186 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

18,460,583,386.92

1 24,146,494,587.67
193,703,210.27

2 514,120,470.22
1,742,510,930.35
177,565,419.58

45,234,978,005.01

193,270,000.00

3 13,046,201,825.60
1,303,904,201.30
2,707,445,313.94
396,916,585.36
459,390,503.43
341,073,643.76
889,463,335.81
1,640,869,158.89

20,978,534,568.09

ASSETS BE M+ a
Current assets MENEE

Cash and cash equivalents EES

Notes receivable and accounts receivable JE U 2R K i U BR 3R

Prepayments T FRIE

Other receivables H o fE l-lﬁl/ﬂ

Inventories 7(?“

Other current assets mENEE
Total current assets MEVEESE
Non-current assets FERBEE

Available-for-sale financial assets HEEEREE

Investment in other equity instruments HmERTAKRE

Long-term equity investments RERERE

Investment property REMREIE

Fixed assets EE & E

Construction in progress ERETIE

Intangible assets BmEEE

Goodwill Bk

Deferred tax assets BEFBHREE

Other non-current assets HEmIERBEE
Total non-current assets SERBEESE
Total assets BEMGT

66,213,512,573.10

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EERERA

Tan Xuguang
I8 %

Principal in charge of accounting:

FESHIEEBEA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BPIRE

BBSHMERBATALESE

31 December 2017
2017912 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

14,229,215,401.61
24,511,854,655.99
90,735,869.78
623,760,403.93
1,337,111,784.14
29,109,553.59

40,821,787,669.04

256,480,000.00
12,588,403,518.10
1,201,197,929.43
3,043,915,670.87
176,542,666.47
463,712,921.79
341,073,643.76
724,662,933.48
958,732,818.89

19,754,722,102.79

60,576,509,771.83

Head of accounting department:

BERRBAEA

Li Xia
=B



Interim Report 2018 A HAZRE

Balance Sheet (Continued) HE AR (E)
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
Note XV 30 June 2018 31 December 2017
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BENRRER [ifsdaukall 201856430 5 WwlbES P ER=!
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&E=)
Current liabilities mENBE
Notes payable and accounts payable FEAT =5 K FE AT IR R epelopd el SEa el 17,699,735,161.03
Advances from customers TE U FRIE - 53,587,374.55
Contract liabilities cRAE 731,144,280.40 -
Payroll payable JE < B TS B 985,676,865.61 859,386,749.65
Taxes payable JERT B 507,617,659.75 741,716,110.76
Other payables E h & A 5K Sl eplsk Pk ield | 2,497,504,438.30
Other current liabilities HiRnea s 1,731,016,058.32 1,617,152,913.39
Total current liabilities REHBESE eI e Bt Gl | 23,469,082,747.68
Non-current liabilities FnBarE
Long term payroll payable = HA JE A<T B T 35 16,528,145.77 18,825,899.20
Deferred income AT W e 563,135,619.39 521,977,016.97
Total non-current liabilities ErRBAaBEEE 579,663,765.16 540,802,916.17
Total liabilities BESE 27,899,899,123.81 24,009,885,663.85
Shareholders’ equity (g 5
Share capital A% A% 7,997,238,556.00 7,997,238,556.00
Capital reserve BRNTE 1,084,612,950.62 1,080,313,374.62
Other comprehensive income Hibira Wz (27,548,500.00) 26,180,000.00
Special reserve HIFHE 69,534,389.13 59,958,938.53
Surplus reserve P YN 2,136,832,331.58 2,136,832,331.58
Retained earnings Ko I A PROEPACIEITPAREI 25,266,100,907.25
Total shareholders’ equity AR R fERS A 5T 38,313,613,449:29  EEl R R yr Moyt
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEMRRER LT CEPACRAPRYER(N 60,576,509,771.83
The financial statements have been signed by: MBEmMERBUATALESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREA TEEIEAEA FEHIBAERA ¢
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia
END e =




40  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

Income Statement

HRBORHAERDE

January to June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

AINEES

2018F 1-6 A(ARE¥T)

January to June

Note XV 2018
M+ a 2018%1-6 A
(Unaudited)

(REEX)

4 20,805,365,797.30
4 14,779,298,756.16
185,368,366.78
801,514,911.15
675,608,621.79
668,380,978.13
(94,131,546.46)

January to June
2017
2017%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

18,346,175,915.73

13,982,037,504.80
159,094,693.60
833,454,516.71
468,296,774.96
449,251,312.39
(54,287,993.99)

Revenue EERA

Less: Cost of sales o ERRAR
Taxes and surcharges i R B an
Distribution and selling expenses HEER
General and administrative expenses EIEE
Research and development expenses [ReE-
Finance expenses % & A
Incl:  Interest expenses He: FEER

Interest income FlE M A

Impairment loss of assets BEREELX
Impairment loss of credit ERRMEERXKX

Add: Other income o E A Es
Investment income "B W
Incl:  Investment income from associates Heh o HEE RN

and jointly-controlled enterprises BEBEN
BB W

Gain on disposal of assets BEREBE NS

Operating profit EENE

Add: Non-operating income hn s g EIMNRA

Less: Non-operating expenses W EEINT

Total profit A 4 g8

Less: Income tax expenses o TS ER

Net profit A

Incl:  Net profit from continuing operations

Net profit from discontinued operations

Heh : @KL RN
R R R

Net other comprehensive income after tax
Those other comprehensive income not to be

reclassified into profit or loss change of fair

value of investment in other equity instruments

Hipfr e Wam iR IF 8
TREED REREH
Hipfr e W H g e

TARBEAABEEY

Those other comprehensive income to be

reclassified into profit or loss change of fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets

BED FE BT E AR
BlRHEAIEHESRE

Total comprehensive income

e W E

The financial statements have been signed by:

ong Kwan Tong

Principal in charge of accounting:
EE

B ITEREA:

101,980,818.34
1,480,858.42
5,008,399.61
26,145,452.76
574,891,386.08

53,294,536.99
1,440,810.51

4,385,314,101.07

3,226,106.66
2,591,527.97

4,385,948,679.76

599,796,226.05

3,786,152,453.71
3,786,152,453.71

(53,040,000.00)

3,733,112,453.71

MBSIMERAATALES :

Li Xia

65,853,674.36
148,452,692.05
8,419,655.46
335,235,641.16

24,288,840.34
1,151,456.74

2,704,683,168.57

1,629,791.62
526,708.84

2,705,786,251.35

338,722,035.34

2,367,064,216.01
2,367,064,216.01

(17,000,000.00)

2,350,064,216.01

Head of accounting department:

SEHBREA
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Statement of Changes in Equity 5 BRRE # 5 ) 3R

January to June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018%F 1-6 A( AR ¥T)
Other
comprehensive
(Unaudited) Share capital  Capital reserve income  Specialreserve  Surplusreserve  Retained earnings Total equity
(RBEH) RA& BRNR RGakE EGE A I AABAE REERAH
. Atend of previous year - EERBE 7,997,238,556.00  1,080,313,374.62 26,180,000.00 59,958938.53  2,136,832,331.58  25,266,100,907.25  36,566,624,107.98
Add: Change in accounting policies n: SHBRER - - (688,500.00) - - - (688,500.00)
I At beginning of period o KEHVRE 7,997,238,556.00  1,080,313,374.62 25,491,500.00 59,958,938.53  2,136,832,331.58  25,266,100,907.25  36,565,935,607.98
Il Movements in current period = AEERRELE
() Total comprehensive income (=) Balnes (53,040,000.00) 3,786,152,453.71  3,733,112,453.11
(1) Injection and reduction (2) BREATELER
1. Acquisition of subsidiaries by 1. REAHFAT
way of absorption 4,299,576.00 4,299,576.00
(I Profit appropriation (Z) #EE
1. Distribution to owners 1. HRROAE (1,999,309,639.00)  (1,999,309,639.00)
(V) Special reserve (W) ZEGEE
1. Appropriation during the period 1. RERE 13,054,693.72 13,054,693.72
2. Used during the period 2. TEER (3,479243.12) (3,479,243.12)
IV, Atend of period M- KHHARGE 7,997,238,556.00  1,084,612,950.62 (27,548,500.00) 69,534,389.13  2,136,832,331.58  27,052,943,721.96  38,313,613,449.29
January to June 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2017 1-6 A AKEE T
Other
comprehensive
(Unaudited) Share capital Capital reserve income Special reserve Surplus reserve  Retained eamings Total equity
(RE%7) e BAQHE AlrakE Evt BHQE AAEHE REERAH
. Atbeginning of period - FHEN%E 3,998,619,278.00  1,003,313,374.62 45,220,000.00 50,137,320.74  1520,020,449.71  25912,653,851.34  32,529,964,274.41
I Movements in current period I AEHRRELE
() Total comprehensive income (=) Gakzes - - (17,000,000.00) - - 236706421600 2,350,064,216.01
(1) Profit appropriation (2) #HEsR
1. Distribution to owners 1. BRENAE = = = - - (999,654,81950)  (999,654,819.50)
() Special reserve (Z) 2BkE
1. Appropriation during the period 1. KERR - = = 7,421,469.69 = = 7.421,469.69
2. Used during the period 2. KEER = = = (1,967 452.15) = = (1967 452.15)
Il Atend of period = FERBE 3998,619.27800  1,003,313,374.62 28,220,000.00 5559133828 1520,020449.71  27,280,063,247.85  33,885,827,688.46
The financial statements have been signed by: S MABEATALTES :
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EERKA FESHIEEEA EEHBEEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong
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42 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

v2s EL
REemhsR
2018F 1-6 A(ARE¥T)

January to June
2018

20185 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEK)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from sales of goods or rendering
of services

Other cash received relating to operating
activities

RERBHELR
ReEnE

HEmm  RHESH
LEl:0p

Yo B o B RE
BRNRE

22,610,391,199.40

324,683,819.94

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities

RETHRERANG

22,935,075,019.34

Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

Cash paid for all types of taxes
Other cash paid relating to operating activities

BERER BXEHB
XfHRE
EREB T AR
BIXNH0RE
XHBERE
XA EA B R E
BRNRE

14,368,875,075.33

836,196,703.57
2,283,726,064.16

410,096,515.27

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating
activities

RETHRBM MG

17,898,894,358.33

5,036,180,661.01

Net cash flows from operating activities REEEEER

Behefs

II. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES = REETHELEM
BERE

Cash received from sale of investments
Cash received from return on investments

LqEkvee B e Eobien
BRGHREWRERE

211,615,695.00

537,803,105.79

65,860.00

23,549,422.79

773,034,083.58

279,939,747.53
396,644,880.00

822,270,140.00

1,498,854,767.53

e
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REETEE BF
intangible assets and other long-term assets BEMEMRBEE
WE R e FE
Other cash received relating to investing activities U B H h BR K E E)
BEHENRS
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities REEHRERANET
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BRETEE -
intangible assets and other long-term assets EREEMEM
REABEXNORS
Cash paid for acquisition of investments BEIfMES
Other cash paid relating to investing activities SRR EEE
BFHENRE
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities BEFZEHRL L /Nat
Net cash flows from investing activities BB FH TN
Ren8 %R

(725,820,683.95)

ial statements have been signed by:

Principal in charge of accounting:

EFEGHIIEAFA :

an Tong

BISHERAATALESE :

January to June
2017

20175 1-6 4
(Unaudited)
(Rg&EZ)

12,652,804,553.80

70,003,465.66

12,722,808,019.46

8,910,014,112.42

643,516,316.91
1,852,871,467.72

324,887,883.62

11,731,289,780.67

991,518,238.79

128,333,128.21

678,054.48

10,000,000.00

139,011,182.69

165,810,197.93
422,558,695.65

424,057,400.00

1,012,426,293.58

(873,415,110.89)

Head of accounting department:

BRBARA ¢

Li Xia



Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

January to June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
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January to June

Note XV 2018
s +a 20185 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REBER)
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES =+ E&EHEEN
BERE
Cash paid for distribution of dividend, profit DERF - FIEKES
or interest payment MEZNMIRE 35,210,522.95
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing EEFHRE R at
activities 35,210,522.95
Net cash flows used for financing activities SEFYHINHHAEN
258 (35,210,522.95)
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE me EXFHHRLHTE
ON CASH 11,389.25
V. NETINCREASE IN CASH AND T ReRBESEEMF
CASH EQUIVALENTS hah)li| 4,275,160,843.36
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of e BRe MEe
period EEMNE 14,138,495,877.47
VI CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF N HERRESERBES
PERIOD LEMBE 18,413,656,720.83
The financial statements have been signed by: HHEREAATALESRE

Legal Representative:

Principal in charge of accounting:

EEREKA TEGHIHEBEA BB ATA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia
e iR % 8

January to June
2017
201741-6 4
(Unaudited)
(REEER)

14,196.77

118,117,324.67

9,744,275,681.71

9,862,393,006.38

Head of accounting department:
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Notes to Financial Statements

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

I. Corporate Background

Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a joint stock company limited
by shares incorporated in Shandong, the People’s Republic of China. It
was established on 23 December 2002.

The RMB ordinary A shares and overseas listed foreign H shares issued
by the Company were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, respectively. The registered
address of the Company’s headquarters is 197, Section A, Fu Shou
East Street, High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang,
Shandong Province. The Company operates in the transportation
equipment manufacturing industry. The approved scope of operations
of the Company covers: Design, development, production, sale, repair,
import and export of diesel engines and auxiliary products; automobile,
automobile axle and components, gear boxes and components and other
automobile components, hydraulic pumps, hydraulic motors, hydraulic
valves, gears and gear transmission devices, ancillary casting and casting
products of hydraulic components, internal combustion engines, new-
energy powertrain systems and ancillary products; technical consultation
and technical services; leasing of self-owned houses; sale of steel;
business management service; forklift trucks production, warehousing
technology and supply chain solution services. For the aforesaid business
scopes, operating permit(s) should be held for those operations requiring

administrative permission.

Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, are the parent company and ultimate

parent company of the Group respectively.

These interim financial statements were approved by the board of

directors of the Company on 28 August 2018.

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements is determined

on the basis of control. Please refer to Note VI for changes this period.

MR OBRHABRAR(ARA )RR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Preparation basis of the financial statements

I1I.

These interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32 Interim Financial

Reporting issued by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF").

These interim financial statements include selected explanatory notes,
which are provided for easy understanding of the Group’s important
events and transactions leading to its financial position and change of
results of operations since the financial statements for the year 2017.
These selected notes do not include all information and disclosures
required under the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises for a
full set of financial statements. As such, these statements shall be read in

conjunction with the financial statements for the year 2017.
The interim financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

Other than certain financial instruments, these financial statements
have been prepared at historical costs. Disposal groups held-for-sale are
presented at the lower of carrying amount or the net value of fair value
less selling expenses. If the assets are impaired, corresponding provisions

for impairment shall be made according to relevant provisions.

Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates

Accounting policies and accounting estimates are formulated based
on the actual characteristics of production and operation. These are
reflected in the classification of leases, provision for bad debts in respect
of receivables, classification of fixed assets and depreciation estimation,
classification of intangible assets and long-term pre-paid expenses and

estimation of amortization.

1. Accounting year
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December
of each calendar year. This accounting period is from 1 January to
30 June.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B K & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

2. Functional currency 2. FOERA(UME

fi=—

The functional currency of the Company and the currency used in
preparing the financial statements were Renminbi. The amounts
in the financial statements were denominated in Renminbi, unless

otherwise stated.

The subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates of the
Company may determine their own functional currencies based
on the major economic environment in which they operate the
business. In preparation of financial statements, their functional
currencies shall be translated into Renminbi.

Business combination

A business combination is a transaction or event that brings
together two or more separate entities into one reporting entity.
Business combinations are classified into business combinations
involving entities under common control and business combinations
not involving entities under common control.

Business combinations involving entities under common
control

A business combination involving entities under common control
is a business combination in which all of the combining entities
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the combination, and that control is not transitory. For
a business combination involving entities under common control,
the party that, on the combination date, obtains control of another
entity participating in the combination is the absorbing party, while
that other entity participating in the combination is the party being
absorbed. Combination date is the date on which the absorbing
party effectively obtains control of the party being absorbed.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained by the absorbing party in
a business combination involving entities under common control,
including goodwill arising from the acquisition of the party being
absorbed by the ultimate controller, shall be accounted for on
the basis of the carrying amounts on the financial statements of
the ultimate controller at the combination date. The difference
between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained and the
carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination (or
the aggregate face value of shares issued as consideration) shall
be adjusted to share premium under capital reserve. If the capital
reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be
adjusted against retained earnings.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

3.

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control

A business combination not involving entities under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining
entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
both before and after the combination. For a business combination
not involving entities under common control, the party that, on the
acquisition date, obtains control of another entity participating in
the combination is the acquirer, while that other entity participating
in the combination is the acquiree. Acquisition date refers to
the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the

acquiree.

The acquirer shall measure the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in the business
combination not involving entities under common control at their
fair values on the acquisition date.

The excess of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities
securities issued) for business combination and equity interests in
the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition over the share of
the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, measured
at fair value, was recognized as goodwill, which is subsequently
measured at cost less cumulative impairment loss. In case the fair
value of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities securities
issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior to the date of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the share of the attributable
net identifiable assets of the acquiree, a review of the measurement
of the fair values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities, the consideration paid for the combination (or equities
securities issued) and the equity interests in the acquiree held prior
to the date of acquisition is conducted. If the review indicates that
the fair value of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities
securities issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior
to the date of acquisition is indeed less than the fair value of the
share of the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, the
difference is recognized in current profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

3.

fi=—

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control (Continued)

For a business combination involving enterprises not under common
control and achieved in stages, the Group remeasures its previously-
held long-term equity investments in the acquiree to its fair value
at the acquisition date. The difference between the fair value and
the carrying amount is recognized as profit or loss for the current
period; the amount recognized in other comprehensive income
using the equity method and relating to the previously-held long-
term equity investments in the acquiree shall be accounted for in
accordance with the same accounting treatment for direct disposal
of relevant asset or liability by investee. Movement of other owners’
equity (excluding net profit or loss, other comprehensive income
and profit distribution) shall be transferred to profit or loss for
the current period to which the acquisition date belongs. For the
other investments in equity instruments in the acquiree held prior
to acquisition date, the change of fair value of the investments in
equity instruments accrued to other comprehensive income prior to
the acquisition date is taken to retained profit or accumulated loss.

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control, including the financial
statements for the half year ended 30 June 2018 of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled
by the Company, including separable parts of an enterprise or
investee and structured entities controlled by the Company, etc.

In preparation of consolidated financial statements, the subsidiaries
use the same accounting period and accounting policies as those
of the Company. When the accounting policies of a subsidiary are
different from those of the Company, the Company shall make
adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based
on its own accounting policies. All intra-group assets, liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Where the amount of losses of a subsidiary attributable to the
minority shareholders in the current period exceeds their share of
the opening balance of owner’s equity of the subsidiary, the excess
shall be allocated against minority interests.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

4.

Consolidated financial statements (Continued)
For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not
involving entities under common control, the operating results and
cash flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements, from the day on which the Group gains
control, till the Group ceases the control of it. While preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the acquirer shall adjust the
subsidiary’s financial statements, on the basis of the fair values of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized
on the acquisition date.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations involving
entities under common control, the operating results and cash
flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements from the beginning of the period in which
the combination occurs. While preparing the comparative financial
statements, adjustments are made to related items in the financial
statements for the prior period as if the reporting entity established
through combination has been existing since the ultimate controller
begins to exercise control.

The Group’s control over an investee is re-assessed if change in
relevant facts and situations causes changes in one or more of the
control substances.

Where there is no loss of control, the change in minority interests is
accounted for as equity transaction.

Classification of joint arrangements and joint
operation

Joint arrangements are in the form of joint operation or jointly-
controlled enterprise. A joint operation is a joint arrangement under
which the joint venture parties are entitled to assets and undertake
liabilities under the arrangement. A jointly-controlled enterprise is
a joint arrangement under which the joint venture parties are only
entitled to the net assets under such arrangement.

The following items should be recognized by a joint venture party in
relation to its share of profit in the joint operation: solely held assets,
as well as jointly held assets according to its share; solely assumed
liabilities, as well as jointly assumed liabilities according to its share;
income derived from its entitled share of production of the joint
operation; income derived from the sales of production of the joint
operation according to its share; solely incurred expenses, as well as
expenses incurred by the joint operation according to its share.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
6.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Group'’s cash on hand and deposits that can
be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are short-
term, highly liquid investments held by the Group, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation

The Group translates the amount of foreign currency transactions
occurred into its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition,
in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate prevailing on the transaction dates.
At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are
translated using the spot exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date. All the resulting differences on settlement and monetary
item translation are taken to profit or loss in the current period,
except for those relating to foreign currency borrowings specifically
for construction and acquisition of qualifying assets, which are
capitalized in accordance with the principle of capitalization of
borrowing costs. Non-monetary foreign currency items measured
at historical cost shall still be translated at the spot exchange rate
prevailing on the transaction date, and the amount denominated
in the functional currency is not changed. Non-monetary foreign
currency items measured at fair value are translated at the spot
exchange rate prevailing at the date on which the fair values are
determined. The difference thus resulted are recognized in profit or
loss for the current period or as other comprehensive income based
on the nature of the non-monetary items.

For foreign operations, the Group translates their functional
currency amounts into RMB in preparing the financial statements as
follows: asset and liability items in the balance sheet are translated
using the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date, and
equity items other than “retained earnings” are translated using
the spot exchange rate at the date of transactions; revenue and
expense items in the income statement are translated using the
average exchange rate for the period during which the transactions
occur. The resulting foreign currency exchange differences in the
financial statement are recognized in other comprehensive income.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognized in the profit or loss for the current period. If the disposal
only involves a portion of a particular foreign operation, the amount
is recognized on a pro-rata basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

7.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation (Continued)

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of foreign
subsidiaries are translated using the average exchange rate for the
period during which the cash flows occur. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash is separately presented as an adjustment item

in the cash flow statement.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

another entity.

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial

instrument.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset (or part of a financial
asset, or part of a group of similar financial assets), i.e. writes off
the financial asset from the account and balance sheet, when the

following conditions are met:

(1) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have

expired;

(2)  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of
the financial asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the
financial asset, but has transferred control of the financial

asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
(Continued)

If the underlying obligation of a financial liability has been
discharged or cancelled or has expired, the financial liability is
derecognized. If an existing financial liability is replaced by the
same creditor with a new financial liability that has substantially
different terms, or if the terms of an existing financial liability are
substantially revised, such replacement or revision is accounted for
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the resulting difference is recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized using trade date accounting. Regular way purchase
or sale of financial assets refers to that the financial assets are
delivered to or by the Group under the terms of a contract within a
period as specified by law or general practice. The trade date is the

date on which the Group undertakes to buy or sell a financial asset.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

The financial assets of the Group are classified in the initial
recognition based on the business model of the Group’s financial
asset management and the characteristics of the financial assets’
contractual cash flows: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income, or derivatives
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets are
measured at fair value on initial recognition. However, if the initial
recognition of accounts receivable does not include significant
financing components or does not consider financing components
not exceeding one year,it shall be recognized as the transaction

price determined according to Note IIl.22.

For financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, the
related transaction expense is directly recognised in profit or loss
for the current period. Transaction costs related to other types of

financial assets are included in their initial recognition amounts.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

The subsequent measurement of a financial asset is determined by

its category:

Debt instrument investment measured at amortized cost

Financial assets are classified as financial assets measured at
amortized cost if the financial assets meet the following conditions:
The Group's business model for managing the financial assets is to
collect contractual cash flows; the contractual terms of the financial
assets stipulate that cash flows generated on a specific date The
flow is only the payment of the principal and the interest based
on the outstanding principal amount. For such financial assets, the
effective interest rate method is used for subsequent measurement
according to the amortized cost. The gains or losses arising from

amortization or impairment are recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets which satisfy all of the following criteria are classified
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income: That the business model upon which the Group manages
the financial asset targets at both obtaining the contracted
cashflow and also disposing of the financial asset; that the financial
asset contract provides that the cashflow generated on certain
dates are only for paying the principal and interest which is based
on the outstanding principal amount. Such financial assets are
measured at fair value for subsequent measurement. The discount
or premium is amortized using the effective interest rate method
and recognized as interest income or expense. A change in the fair
value of these financial assets is recognized as other comprehensive
income, except that impairment losses and exchange differences
resulting from monetary financial assets in foreign currency are
recognized as profit or loss for the current period, until the financial
asset is derecognized, at which time the accumulated gain or loss is
transferred to profit or loss for the current period. Interest incomes
relating to these financial assets are recognized in profit or loss for

the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & it B & & & 5114 5
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
8. Financial instruments (Continued) 8. TR IA(HE)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

Investment in debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Continued)

The Group irrevocably opts to designate some of the investments
in non-trading equity instruments as financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and only recognizes
relevant dividend incomes in profit or loss for the current period,
while change in fair value is recognized as other comprehensive
income, until the financial asset is derecognized, upon which the

accumulated gain or loss is transferred to retained earnings.

If the management considers an equity instrument as a strategic
investment which is for the purpose of uplifting the Group’s long-
term profitability through equity participation, the Group will then
designate such investment in equity instrument as a financial asset

at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

The financial assets other than those measured at amortized
cost and financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss for the current period. For such financial assets,
fair value is used for subsequent measurement, and all changes in

fair value are recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

Only if the Group changes its business model for managing financial

assets, all affected financial assets can be reclassified.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities are, on initial recognition, classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, other
financial liabilities or derivatives designated as effective hedging
instruments. For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, relevant transaction costs are directly recognized in profit or
loss for the current period, and transaction costs relating to other

financial liabilities are included in the initial recognition amounts.

The subsequent measurement of financial liability is determined by

its category:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading (including derivatives that
are financial liabilities) and financial liabilities designated upon initial

recognition as measured at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset or a financial liability held for trading shall satisfy
one of the following conditions: acquiring the relevant financial asset
or assuming the relevant financial liability is mainly for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near future; it belongs to a portfolio
of identifiable financial instruments that are collectively managed,
and there is objective evidence that the company has recently
adopted short-term profit-making methods; it is a derivative, except
for derivatives that are designated as effective hedging instruments
or derivatives that qualify for financial guarantee contracts. Financial
liabilities held for trading (including derivatives that are financial
liabilities) are subsequently measured at fair value, except for hedge

accounting, all changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

Other financial liabilities

This kind of financial liabilities are measured at amortized costs by

using the effective interest rate method.

Elimination of financial instruments

The net amount after eliminating financial assets and financial
liabilities is presented in the balance sheet if the following
conditions are satisfied: A lawful right exists for eliminating
recognized amounts, and such lawful right is currently enforceable;
it is planned that the financial assets and financial liabilities are to
be netted against each other, or that they are to be realized and

settled simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make payments of specified amounts to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or revised terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are measured, on initial
recognition, at fair value. For financial guarantee contracts that are
not designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, they are, after initial recognition, subsequently measured at
the higher of: the amount of provision for losses recognized as at
the balance sheet date; and the amount initially recognized less the
accumulated amortization determined according to the principles of

revenue recognition.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair

value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to profit or loss for the current period, except for
the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized in
other comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss

when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Instruments

On the basis of expected credit losses, the Group performs the
impairment treatment on financial assets carried at amortized
cost, investment in debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, contract assets and

financial guarantee contracts and recognize the loss provision.

Credit loss refers to the difference between all contractual cash
flows receivable from the contract and all cash flows expected to be
received by the Group that are discounted at the original effective
interest rate, that is, the present value of all cash shortfalls. Among
them, financial assets that have been credit-depleted by the Group
or purchased by the Group shall be discounted according to the

actual interest rate adjusted by the financial assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Instruments (Continued)

For receivables and contractual assets that do not contain significant
financing components, the Group uses a simplified measurement
method to measure loss provision based on the amount of expected

credit losses for the entire duration of the life.

For lease receivables and receivables and contractual assets with
significant financing components, the Group uses a simplified
measurement method to measure loss provisions based on the

amount of expected credit losses for the entire duration of the life.

For financial assets other than those measured by the aforesaid
simplified measurement method and financial guarantee contracts,
the Group assesses whether its credit risk has increased significantly
since the initial recognition on each balance sheet date. If the credit
risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition, the
Group measures loss provision based on the amount of expected
credit losses for the entire duration of the life; if the credit risk has
not increased significantly since the initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss provision based on the amount of expected credit

loss over the next 12 months.

Expected credit losses of financial instruments is assessed on an
individual basis and group basis. Assessment on group basis includes

groupings by age, by quality of credit history and by overdue age.

The Group considers all reasonable and evidenced information,
including forward-looking information, when assessing expected

credit losses.

When the Group no longer reasonably expects to be able to fully
or partially recover the contractual cash flows of financial assets,

the Group directly writes down the carrying amount of the financial

assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Modifications of Financial Assets

Where a modification or re-negotiation of a contract between the
Group and a counterparty results in a change in the contractual
cash flows without resulting in the de-recognition of the financial
assets, the Group will recalculate the carrying amount of the
financial assets, with relevant gain or loss recognized in profit or
loss for the current period, based on the present value discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the financial assets (or
effective interest rate as adjusted based on credit) according to
the contractual cashflows as re-negotiated or modified. Carrying
amount of the financial assets as modified based on the adjusted
costs or expenses of the modification of financial assets are

amortized over the remaining life of the modified financial assets.

Transfer of Financial Assets

If the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset to the transferee, the Group
derecognizes the financial asset; if the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group

does not derecognize the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it is accounted for as
follows: if the Group has not retained control, it derecognizes the
financial asset and recognizes any resulting assets or liabilities; if the
Group has retained control, it continues to recognize the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the transferred

financial asset and recognizes the relevant liability.

For ongoing involvement by providing financial guarantee in respect
of the transferred financial assets, the assets arising from such
involvement is recognized as the lower of the carrying amount of
the financial assets and the amount of the financial guarantee.
Amount of financial guarantee refers to the maximum amount to

be repayable on demand among the considerations received.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

9.

10.

Inventories
Inventories include raw materials, work in progress, finished goods,
materials under entrusted processing, self made semi-finished

goods and second-hand forklift trucks etc.

Inventories are initially carried at cost. Cost of inventories comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs. The actual
cost of inventories transferred out is assigned by using weighted
average method, first-in-first-out method or specific identification
method. Low value consumables are amortized by using immediate

write-off method.
The Groups adopts perpetual inventory system.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower of
cost and net realizable value. If the cost of inventories is higher than
the net realizable value, a provision for impairment of inventories
is recognized in profit or loss for the current period. If factors that
previously resulted in the provision for decline in value of inventories
no longer exist, so that the net realizable value is higher than the
carrying amount, the amount of the write-down is reversed. The
reversal is limited to the amount originally provided for the decline
in value of inventories. The amount of the reversal is recognized in

profit or loss for the current period.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
provision for decline in value of inventories is made on an individual

basis or a category basis.

Long-term equity investments
Long-term equity investments include equity investments in

subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued
10. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

A long-term equity investment is initially recorded at its initial
investment cost on acquisition. For a long-term equity investment
acquired under business combination involving entities under
common control, the initial investment cost is determined as
the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment is
the carrying value of the absorbing party’s share of the owner’s
equity of the party being absorbed as of the date of business
combination on the consolidated financial statements of the
ultimate controller. The difference between the initial investment
cost and the carrying value of the consideration for combination is
adjusted to capital reserve (or charged against retained earnings if
there is any shortfall). Other comprehensive income held prior to
the acquisition date is accounted for on the same basis as where
the assets or liabilities are directly disposed of by the investee in
disposing of such assets or liabilities. Owners' equity recognized as
a result of changes in other owners’ equity of the investee other
than net gains and losses, other comprehensive income and profit
appropriation is taken to profit and loss for the current period upon
the disposal of such investment. In particular, those which remain as
long-term equity investments upon disposal are carried forward in
proportion, and those which are converted to financial instruments
upon disposal are carried forward in full. For a long-term equity
investment acquired through a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the initial investment cost is
the cost of business combination (Business combination involving
entities not under common control which is achieved after multiple
transactions, the initial investment cost is the sum of carrying
value of equity investments of the acquiree held prior to the date
of acquisition and the addition to investment cost on the date of
acquisition). Cost of business combination includes the sum of fair
values of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
securities issued by the acquirer. Other comprehensive income
recognized on equity method held prior to the date of acquisition is
accounted for on the same basis as where the assets or liabilities are
directly disposed of by the investee in disposing of such assets or
liabilities. Owners’ equity recognized as a result of changes in other
owners’ equity of the investee other than net gains and losses,
other comprehensive income and profit appropriation is taken to
profit and loss for the current period upon the disposal of such
investment. In particular, those which remain as long-term equity
investments upon disposal are carried forward in proportion, and
those which are converted to financial instruments upon disposal
are carried forward in full. Accumulated fair value change of equity
investments held prior to the date of acquisition being taken to
other comprehensive income as financial instrument is taken to
profit or loss for the current period under cost method. Long-
term equity investments acquired by means other than business
combination, initial investment cost is determined as follows: for
a long-term equity investment acquired by paying cash, the initial
investment cost is the actual purchase price paid and those costs,
taxes and other necessary expenditures directly attributable to
the acquisition of the long-term equity investment; for a long-
term equity investment acquired by the issue of equity securities,
the initial investment cost is the fair value of the equity securities
issued. For a long-term equity investment acquired by the swap of
non-monetary assets, initial investment cost is determined based
on Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 7 — Swap of
Non-monetary Assets. For a long-term equity investment acquired
by way of debt restructuring, initial investment cost is determined
based on Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 12 —
Debt Restructuring.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

10. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 10. REIRERE (&)

fi=—

For a long-term equity investment where the Company can exercise
control over the investee, the Company uses the cost method in the
Company’s financial statements. Control refers to the power over
an investee, and exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power over

the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

Under the cost method, the long-term equity investment is
measured at its initial investment cost. For addition or reduction of
investments, the cost of long-term equity investments is adjusted
accordingly. Cash dividend or profit distribution declared by an

investee is recognized as profit or loss in the current period.

The equity method is adopted for a long-term equity investment
when the Group holds joint control, or exercises significant
influence on the investee. Joint control refers to the contractually-
agreed shared control over an arrangement and related activities
under such arrangement shall be decided upon with the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but cannot control or jointly control with other

parties over the formulation of those policies.

Under the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a
long-term equity investment exceeds the investing entity’s interest
in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date, the excess is included in the initial investment cost.
Where the initial investment cost is less than the investing entity’s
interest in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at
the acquisition date, the difference is charged to profit or loss for
the current period, and the cost of the long-term equity investment is

adjusted accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

10.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes its share of the
net profits or losses and other comprehensive income made by the
investee as investment income or losses and other comprehensive
income after the acquisition of the long-term equity investments,
and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment accordingly.
The Group recognizes its share of the investee’s net profits or
losses after making appropriate adjustments to the investee’s net
profits based on the fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets
at the acquisition date, using the Group’s accounting policies and
periods, and eliminating the portion of the profits or losses arising
from internal transactions with its jointly controlled enterprises
and associates, attributable to the investing entity according to its
share ratio (but impairment losses for assets arising from internal
transactions shall be recognized in full). The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced accordingly based on the Group’s share of
any profit distributions or cash dividends declared by the investee.
The Group's share of net losses of the investee is recognized to the
extent the carrying amount of the investment together with any
long-term interests that in substance form part of its net investment
in the investee is reduced to zero, except that the Group has
incurred obligations to assume additional losses. The Group adjusts
the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment for any
changes in owners’ equity of the investee (other than net profits
or losses, other comprehensive income and profit distribution) and

includes the corresponding adjustments in the shareholders’ equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

10.

11.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

On disposal of the long-term equity investments, the difference
between book value and consideration received is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. For long-term equity
investments under equity method, when the use of the equity
method is discontinued, other comprehensive income previously
accounted for under the equity method shall be dealt with on the
same basis as if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of
directly by the investee. Shareholders’ equity recognized as a result
of changes in shareholders’ equity other than the net-off of profit
and loss, other comprehensive income and profit allocation of the
investee shall be transferred in full to current profit and loss. If
the equity method remains in use, other comprehensive income
previously accounted for under the equity method shall be dealt
with on the same basis as if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of directly by the investee and transferred to current profit
and loss on a pro-rata basis. Shareholders’ equity recognized as a
result of changes in shareholders’ equity other than the net-off of
profit and loss, other comprehensive income and profit allocation of
the investee shall be transferred to current profit and loss on a pro-

rata basis.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Investment property includes a land use right

that is leased out and a building that is leased out.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. If the
economic benefits relating to an investment property will probably
flow in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent costs
incurred for the property is included in the cost of the investment
property. Otherwise, subsequent costs are recognized in profit or

loss for the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % & 5t Bt 5% & & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
11. Investment property (Continued) 1. REMEWE(E)
The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of its NEBEFBRAE R HISEEEE
investment property. Depreciation or amortization is calculated on WITRESNE  CHERSGANEHR
the straight-line basis over its useful life, as follows: HASEEH IR T E SIS - FIRN T
Estimated Estimated net Annual
useful lives residual depreciation
(years) value rate (%) rate (%)
TERHE A TREHEE FHEX
ltem THH Hw(F) EE(%) (%)
Land use rights + b AR 48.5-50 0 2.00-2.06
Houses and buildings FEEREY 14.5-30 0-5 3.17-6.90
12. Fixed assets 12. EEEE
A fixed asset is recognized only when the economic benefits ErEEREEREFEANSENRR
associated with the asset will probably flow to the Group and the AIEEMAANEE - BEK AR 5
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure et ERA FUAER - BETEER
incurred for a fixed asset that meet the recognition criteria shall BB EY L @ FTEZERIEER
be included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the carrying amount FFABEEENAN - WRIEHEREE
of the component of the fixed asset that is replaced shall be BESREEE - TR NBEAER
derecognized. Otherwise, such expenditure shall be recognized in sFAEHI8 -

profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~& % & 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)

12. Fixed assets (Continued) 12. BEEEE(E)
Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of a purchased BEFEERBRAEITIRE ° B
fixed asset comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any BEETEENKABRIEBEEBR A
directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working BiRE UkABFRTEEZRTETE
condition for its intended use. Other than fixed assets arising T{ERAMRERIFTBEAN T EERER
from the use and appropriation of safety funds, special reserve ZEEAEMEMS L - BREARRA
offset against the cost of fixed assets, and equivalent amounts of TEHEEBEANETEE  BRFE
accumulated depreciation recognized; the straight line method or BREFEEENKA AR BIBERZE I
double-declining balance method is adopted for the depreciation of MERER SN ETITE 29 KE
fixed assets of the Group. EETEENMERREREZNERS

BRERRORRT IR

The expected useful lives, net residual value rates and annual ZHETEEMRRBEN EASS
depreciation rates of fixed assets are presented as follows: FEIREREEERIRAOT ¢
Estimated Estimated net Annual
useful lives residual depreciation
(years) value rate (%) rate (%)
TEHE A AR EE FHEX
ltem EH Hw(F) EE(%) (%)
Land ownership TP A Indefinite
EAAIR 0 0
Houses and buildings FEEREY 10-50 0-5 1.90-10.00
Machinery and equipment 2SR 3-15 0-5 6.33-33.33
Electronic equipment BFEE 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00
Vehicles EH R 4-10 0-5 9.50-25.00
Forklift trucks and equipment AEMNERRLR
leased out (long-term) (KH) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
Forklift trucks and equipment AEMNERRLR
leased out (short-term) (%2 8) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00

Others EAh 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

12. Fixed assets (Continued) 12. BIEEE(E)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (long-term)

If the control over the leased assets remains with KION GROUP AG,
a subsidiary of the Company, as the lessor under an operating lease,
the assets are reported as a separate item in the balance sheet
and, being measured at cost and are depreciated. To fund leases,
industrial trucks are generally sold by KION GROUP AG to leasing
companies. The industrial trucks are then leased back to companies
of KION GROUP AG internally (head lease), who sublease them to
external end customers (described below as”sale and leaseback
sub-leases”). These long-term leases generally have a term of four
to five years. If, in the case of sale and leaseback sub-leases, the
main control over the respective leased assets incidental to the
head lease are substantially remained by KION GROUP AG and are
not transferred to the end customers, the corresponding assets are
reported as forklift trucks and equipment leased out (long-term)
under fixed assets. However, if the main control incidental to the
head lease is transferred to the end customers, a corresponding
lease receivable is recognized. In both cases, the long-term finance
leases, which are funded for terms that match those of the leases,
are recognized as lease liabilities.

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term)
Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term) arises from
short-term rental transactions as well as the sale of industrial trucks
in relation to which main control remains with KION GROUP AG
("sale with risk").

In the case of short-term rentals, the subsidiaries of KION GROUP
AG, a subsidiary group under the Company, rent industrial trucks
to customers directly. Short-term rental agreements usually have a
term within one year. The main control of products remains within
the aforesaid companies. The industrial trucks are carried at cost
and depreciated over the normal useful life, depending on the
product group.

In an indirect leasing arrangement, industrial trucks are sold to
finance partners who then enter into leases with end customers.
However, the subsidiaries of KION GROUP AG retain main control
over the assets leased out, the aforesaid leased-out assets are
recognized as asset items in the balance sheet upon disposal,
measured at cost, and written down to their guaranteed residual
value, or zero, on a straight-line basis over the lease period. If
the Company provides a residual value guarantee, an amount
equivalent to the residual value obligation is recognized under
financial liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

12. Fixed assets (Continued)
Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term)
(Continued)
For fixed assets leased in under finance lease, depreciation for
leased assets is provided for using policy similar to that applied to
self-owned fixed assets. When it can be reasonably determined
that the ownership of a leased asset will be obtained at the end of
the lease term, it is depreciated over the period of expected use;
otherwise, the lease asset is depreciated over the shorter period of

the lease term and its useful life.

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value
of a fixed asset and the depreciation method applied at least at

each year-end, and make adjustments if necessary.

13. Construction in progress
The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure incurred for the construction, including all
necessary construction expenditure incurred during the construction
period, borrowing costs that shall be capitalized before the
construction gets ready for its intended use and other relevant

expenses.

A construction in progress is transferred to fixed asset when the asset

is ready for its intended use.

14. Assets related to contract costs
The Group's assets related to contract costs include contract
acquisition costs and contract performance costs. According to its
liquidity, it is presented in the inventories, other current assets and

other non-current assets.

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract which are expected
to be collected shall be recognize as an asset as contract acquisition

costs, unless the amortization period of the asset is less than one

year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

14. Assets related to contract costs (Continued) 14 BEERRAEAEBEBNEE

The cost of the contract for the performance of the contract is
recognized as an asset as the contract performance cost, if it does
not apply to the scope of the relevant standards of inventories, fixed
assets or intangible assets and meets the following conditions:

(1) The cost is directly related to a current or anticipated contract,
including direct labor, direct materials, manufacturing
expenses (or similar expenses), clear costs incurred by the
customer, and other costs incurred solely for the contract;

(2)  This cost increases the resources that the Company will use to
fulfill its performance obligations in the future;

(3)  The cost is expected to be recovered.

The Group amortizes the assets related to the contract costs on the
same basis as the revenue recognition related to the assets, which is
recognised in profit or loss.

For assets related to contract costs whose carrying amount is higher
than the following two differences, the Group will make provision
for impairment on the excess and recognize the asset impairment

losses:

(1) Remaining considerations expected to obtain by the transfer
of goods related to the asset;

(2)  Estimated costs that will be incurred in order to transfer the
relevant commodity.

The factors of impairment in the previous period have changed,
so that if the difference between (1) minus (2) is higher than the
book value of the asset, it should be transferred back to the original
provision for impairment of assets, and included in the current
profit or loss, but the reversed book value of the subsequent asset
shall not exceed the book value of the asset on the date of reversal,

assuming no provision for impairment.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~& % & 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)
15. Borrowing costs 15. EREA

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group
in connection with the borrowing of the funds. Borrowing costs
include interest, amortization of discounts or premiums related
to borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings, and exchange differences arising from

foreign currency borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized. The
amounts of other borrowing costs incurred are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Qualifying assets
are assets (fixed assets, investment property and inventories, etc.)
that necessarily take a substantial period of time for acquisition,
construction or production to get ready for their intended use or

sale.

The capitalization of borrowing costs commences only when all of

the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) expenditures for the asset are being incurred;

(2)  borrowing costs are being incurred;

(3) activities relating to the acquisition, construction or
production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale have commenced.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset

being acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready for its

intended use or sale. Any borrowing costs subsequently incurred are

recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
15. Borrowing costs (Continued)
During the capitalization period, the amount of interest to be
capitalized for each accounting period shall be determined as

follows:

EMERAEHAERELENT
of interest to be capitalized is the actual interest expense BEER REIRENTFERF
B AR E W Er &R

o

(1) where funds are borrowed for a specific purpose, the amount (1)

incurred on that borrowing for the period less any bank

it

interest earned form depositing the borrowed funds before
being used on the asset or any investment income on the

temporary investment of those funds.

R —REFX  RERTFE
EXHBREMEREINE

(2)  where funds are borrowed for a general purpose, the amount (2)

of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings is determined

by applying a weighted average interest rate to the weighted
average of the excess amounts of accumulated expenditure

on the asset over and above the amounts of specific-purpose

B X A BOR AR A
—REREIEF R RGTE
HEE e

borrowings.
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Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in
which the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset is interrupted by activities other than those necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, when the interruption
is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs
incurred during these periods are recognized as an expense for the
current period until the acquisition, construction or production is

resumed.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
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16. Intangible assets 16. ML &EE

An intangible asset shall be recognized only when it is probable
that the economic benefit associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. However, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with a fair value that can
be measured reliably are recognized separately as intangible assets

and measured at the fair value.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined according to the
period over which it is expected to generate economic benefits for
the Group. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the

Group.

The original useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

B EEECEREARANEANGER
ARERARER - BHEBKAEHA
ST ERT T AR - WA AHE
TTHIRETE - BEREAFFHEUSHE
WEE ErrEEEANSEE
B BEBERREVEELIRRA

nEEE -
B EERRERERANEETREE
M) R EEE RS - BAEL

HAASEGREEFZHARNES
ERSH TRENETLEE

BEREVEENRBERSHOT

Useful lives (years)

EREm(F)
Technology know-how BEARM 3-20
Trademark rights R A Indefinite ~HEE
License FEETHE 3-15
Land use rights b {0 A A 30-50
Orders on hand EFFIE 1-25
Customer relationship EFEBE 2-17
Software Eg e 2-10
Others Hith 3-10

Land use rights that are acquired by the Group are generally
accounted for as intangible assets. Buildings, such as plants that
are developed and constructed by the Group, and relevant land use
rights and buildings, are accounted for as intangible assets and fixed
assets, respectively. Payments for the land and buildings acquired
are allocated between the land use rights and the buildings; if
they cannot be reasonably allocated, all of the land use rights and

buildings are accounted for as fixed assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

16.

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized using
the straight-line method over its useful life. For an intangible
asset with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful life
and amortization method at least at each year-end and makes

adjustment if necessary.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life are tested for
impairment at least once every year, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that the asset may be impaired. This category of
intangible assets will not be amortized and will be reviewed every
accounting period based on its useful life. If there are evidence
indicates that its useful life is limited, the asset will be accounted for
in accordance to the policy for intangible asset with definite useful

life stated above.

The Group classifies the expenditure on an internal research and
development project into expenditure on the research phase and
expenditure on the development phase. Expenditure on the research
phase is recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on the development phase is capitalized when
the Group can demonstrate all of the following: (i) the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale; (i) the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it; (i) how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits. Among other things, the Group
can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the
intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset; (iv) the availability
of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
and (v) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development. Expenditure in
the development phase that does not meet the above criteria is

recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is incurred.
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
17. Impairment of assets
The Group determines the impairment of assets, other than the
impairment of inventories, deferred income taxes, financial assets

and assets classified as held-for-sale, using the following methods:

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists
that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs test for impairment. Goodwill
arising from a business combination and an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets that have not been ready for

intended use are tested for impairment each year.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flow expected
to be derived from the asset. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount on an individual basis. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines
the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. Identification of an asset group is based on whether major
cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely independent

of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset group is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The reduction in carrying amount is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. A provision for impairment of

the asset is recognized accordingly.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated from the
acquisition date on a reasonable basis, to each of the related asset
groups; if it is impossible to allocate to the related asset groups,
it is allocated to each of the related sets of asset groups. Each of
the related asset groups or sets of asset groups is an asset group
or set of asset group that is able to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination and shall not be larger than a reportable

segment determined by the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

17.

18.

Impairment of assets (Continued)

In testing an asset group or a set of asset groups to which goodwill
has been allocated for impairment, if there is any indication of
impairment, the Group firstly tests the asset group or set of
asset groups excluding the amount of goodwill allocated for
impairment, determines the recoverable amount and recognizes
any impairment loss. After that, the Group tests the asset group or
set of asset groups including goodwill for impairment, whereby the
carrying amount of the related asset group or set of asset groups
is compared to its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of
the asset group or set of asset groups is higher than its recoverable
amount, the amount of the impairment loss firstly reduces the
carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the asset group or
set of asset groups, and then reduce the carrying amount of other
assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset

groups, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset.

Once the above impairment loss is recognized, it cannot be reversed

in subsequent accounting periods.

Long-term prepaid expenses
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized using straight-line

method with amortization period as follows:
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

19. Payroll 19. B T & A

Payroll are all forms of consideration or compensation given
by the Group for obtaining services rendered by employees or
for terminating working relationship. Payroll include short-term
remuneration, post-employment benefits, severance benefits and
other long-term staff benefits. The benefits provided to spouses,
children, persons receiving maintenance, widows or widowers of

deceased staff and other beneficiaries are also included in payroll.

Short-term remuneration

Short-term remuneration actually incurred during the accounting
period in which the staff members provide services are recognized as
liability and taken to the profit and loss for the current period or the

costs of the relevant asset.

Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plan)

The employees of the Group participate in pension insurance and
unemployment insurance administered by local governments, as
well as annuity plan. The relevant expenditure is recognized, when
incurred, in the costs of relevant assets or the profit and loss for the

current period.

Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plan)

Some overseas subsidiaries of the group operate defined benefit
pension plan, under which contributions shall be made to a
separately-administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under
the defined benefit pension plan is determined using the projected

unit credit method.

Any re-measurements arising from the defined benefit pension
plan, including actuarial gains and losses, change to the effect on
maximum assets (net of amounts included under net interest) and
return on assets under the plan (net of amount included under net
interest), are recognized immediately in balance sheet, and included
as incurred in owners’ equity through other comprehensive income.

No reversal to profit or loss will be made in subsequent periods.
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19. Payroll (Continued) 19. BRI %M (&)

Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plan)
(Continued)

Previous service costs are recognized as expenses for the current
period on the earlier of the following dates: when amendments are
made to the defined benefit plan; or when the Group recognizes

the relevant reorganization costs or severance benefits.

Net interest is calculated by multiplying the net liabilities or net assets
under the defined benefit plan with the discount rate. Changes in
the net obligations under the defined benefit plan are recognized
under cost of sales, selling expenses, general and administrative
expenses and finance expenses in the income statement. Costs of
services include costs of services for the current period, costs of
services for previous periods, and gains or losses on settlement. Net
interest includes interest income accrued upon assets under the
plan, interest expenses incurred due to obligations under the plan,

and interest under the effect of maximum assets.

Severance benefits

Where the Group provides severance benefits to its employees,
payroll payable arising from such severance benefits are recognized
on the earlier of the following dates and included in profit or loss
for the current period: when the company is unable to unilaterally
withdraw the severance benefits provided under its plan to
terminate working relationship with employees or redundancy plan;
or when the company recognizes costs or expenses relating to

reorganization involving the payment of severance benefits.

Other long-term staff benefits

For other long-term staff benefits provided to staff members, the
provisions for post-employment benefits apply for recognizing and
measuring the net liabilities or net assets for other long-term staff
benefits, but movements are taken to profit and loss for the current

period or the costs of the relevant assets.
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20. Accruals and provisions 20. BFtEE

Except for contingent consideration transferred and contingent
liability assumed in business combinations not involving entities
under common control, the Group recognizes an obligation related
to a contingency as a provision when all of the following conditions

are satisfied:

(1)  the obligation is a present obligation of the Group;

(2) itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the

Group will be required to settle the obligation;

(3)  the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation,
with comprehensive consideration of factors such as the risks,
uncertainty and time value of money relating to a contingency. The
carrying amount of a provision is reviewed at the balance sheet
date. If there is clear evidence that the carrying amount does not
reflect the current best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted to

the best estimate.

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination from
the acquiree is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognized
in accordance with the general guidance for provisions above; and (ii)
the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative

amortization recognized in accordance with the guidance for

revenue recognition.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

21.

Share-based payments

Share-based payments can be distinguished into equity-settled
share-based payments and cash-settled share-based payments.
Equity-settled share-based payments are transactions of the Group
settled through the payment of shares or other equity instruments

in consideration for receiving services.

Equity-settled share-based payments made in exchange for
services rendered by employees are measured at the fair value
of equity instruments granted to employees. Instruments which
are vested immediately upon the grant are charged to relevant
costs or expenses at the fair value on the date of grant and the
capital reserve is credited accordingly. Instruments of which
vesting is conditional upon completion of services or fulfillment
of performance conditions are measured by recognizing services
rendered during the period in relevant costs or expenses and
crediting the capital reserve accordingly at the fair value on the date
of grant according to the best estimates conducted by the Group
at each balance sheet date during the pending period based on
subsequent information such as latest updates on the change in the
number of entitled employees and whether performance conditions
have been fulfilled, and etc. For the fair value of equity instruments,

see Note XI.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with
a corresponding increase in capital reserve, over the period in which
the performance and service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate

of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or
not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that

all other non-market conditions are satisfied.
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
21.

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based payment are
modified, as a minimum, services obtained are recognized as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognized
for any modification which increases the total fair value of the
instrument granted, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as

measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. Where
employees or other parties are permitted to choose to fulfill non-
vesting conditions but have not fulfilled during the pending period,
equity-settled share-based payments are deemed cancelled.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award.

A cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured in
accordance with the fair value of liability calculated and confirmed
based on the shares or other equity instruments undertaken by the
Group. Initial measurement is based on fair value as at the date of
grant, and reference is made to the terms and conditions attached
to the equity instruments. Refer to Note XI. If the right may be
exercised immediately after the grant, the fair value of the liability
undertaken by the enterprise shall, on the date of the grant, be
included in the relevant costs or expenses, and the liabilities shall
be increased accordingly. If the right may not be exercised until the
vesting period comes to an end or until the specified performance
conditions are met, on each balance sheet date within the vesting
period, the services obtained in the current period shall, based on
the best estimate of the information about the exercisable right,
be included in the relevant costs or expenses at the fair value of
the liability undertaken by the enterprise, and the liabilities shall
be increased accordingly. On each balance sheet date prior to
settlement of the relevant liabilities and on the settlement date, the
fair value of the liability is re-measured and any change of fair value

is taken to profit or loss for the current period.
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Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
22. Revenue 22. WA

The Group has fulfilled its performance obligations of the contract
that the revenue is recognized when the customers take control of
the relevant goods or services. Taking control of the relevant goods
or services means being able to dominate the use of the goods or
the provision of the services and obtain almost all of the economic

benefits from them.

Contracts for sale of goods

Contracts for sale of goods between the Group and its customers
usually include only the performance obligations in respect of the
transfer of goods. In general, the Group recognizes revenue at the
point of time when the customer accepts the goods, taking into full
consideration of the following factors: obtaining the present right
to receiving payment in respect of the goods; transfer of substantial
risks and returns in respect of the title to the goods; transfer of
legal title in respect of the goods; transfer of the physical asset of

the goods; and the customer accepts the goods.

Contracts for provision of services

Contracts for provision of services between the Group and its
customers usually include performance obligations including after-
sale maintenance services, modernization and upgrade of supply
chain system, maintenance and management of supply chain
system, technical consultation and training. While the Group
performs the contract, the customer obtains and consumes the
economic benefit brought by the Group’s performance, and
in respect of the portion of revenue arising from the Group's
performance completed to date, the Group is entitled, during
the entire validity period of the contract, to recognize revenue
according to progress of performance within such period for
satisfying such performance obligations during a period of time,
however other than circumstances that the progress of performance
cannot be reasonably determined. The Group determines progress
of performance in respect of the provision of services using output
method. When the progress of performance cannot be reasonably
determined, if the costs incurred are expected to be compensated,
the Group recognizes revenue based on the amount of costs
incurred, until the progress of performance can be reasonably

determined.
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22. Revenue (Continued) 22. WA (&)

Construction contracts — supply chain solution system

Construction contracts — supply chain solution system between
the Group and its customers usually include performance
obligations including the construction of smart delivery, sorting
and transportation guiding system, automatic storage, searching
and palletization system and so forth. Since the customers are
able to control the Group’s design and development of the project
system in the course of its performance, the Group recognizes
revenue according to progress of performance within such period
for satisfying such performance obligations during a period of time,
however other than circumstances that the progress of performance
cannot be reasonably determined. The Group determines progress
of performance in respect of the provision of services using output
method. When the progress of performance cannot be reasonably
determined, if the costs incurred are expected to be compensated,
the Group recognizes revenue based on the amount of costs
incurred, until the progress of performance can be reasonably

determined.

Variable consideration

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers involve sales rebates,
which give rise to variable consideration. The best estimate of
variable consideration is arrived at using either an expected value
or most likely outcome method. Variable consideration is included
in the transaction price to the extent it is highly probable that
there will not be a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative

revenue recognized when the uncertainty is resolved.

Warranty obligations

In accordance with contractual arrangements and legal
requirements, the Group provides warranty for goods that it sells.
For the guarantee-type warranties under which the Group warrants
to the customers that the goods sold satisfy certain pre-set criteria,

accounting treatments are as set out in Note I11.20.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

22.

23.

Revenue (Continued)

A principal/an agent

In acquiring control over a product from a third party and reselling
the same to a customer, or in providing substantial service to
integrate products already purchased with other products to create
a bundle which is then transferred to a customer, the Group can
freely determine the price at which the product is transacted, i.e.
the Group is in control of that product prior to transferring the
same to a customer; in this case the Group is a principal, and
revenue shall be recognized based on the total consideration
received or receivable. Otherwise, the Group is an agent, and
revenue shall be recognized at the amount of commissions or
service charges expected to be entitled to collect, and such amount
shall be determined based on net amount of total consideration
received or receivable less amounts payable to other related parties,

or on established amounts or proportions of commissions.

Interest Income
It is determined according to the length of time for which the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents is used by others and the

effective interest rate.

Lease Income
Lease income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are charged to profit or

loss in the period in which they actually arise.

Government grants

Government grant is recognized when the Group can comply with
the conditions attached to it and it can be received. Government
grant is classified as asset-related government grant and income-
related government grant. Government grant for purchasing,
building or otherwise forming long-term assets is recognized as
one related to assets. Otherwise it is recognized as one related to

income.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of monetary asset,
it is measured at the amount received or receivable. If a government
grant is in the form of a transfer of non-monetary asset, it is
measured at fair value; if fair value is not reliably determinable, it is

measured at a nominal amount.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
23. Government grants (Continued)
An asset-related government grant is recognized as deferred
income and recognized in profit or loss by stages over the useful life
of the related assets in a reasonable and systematic way. However,
a government grant measured at a nominal amount is recognized
directly in profit or loss for the current period. A government grant
related to income is accounted for as follows: (a) if the grant is a
compensation for related costs expenses or losses to be incurred
in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as deferred income,
and recognized in profit or loss over the periods in which the
related costs are recognized; (b) if the grant is a compensation for
related costs expenses or losses already incurred, it is recognized

immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

Government grant related to daily operations is recognized in
other income. Government grant not related to daily operations is

recognized in non-operating income.

24. Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized as income or an expense in profit or loss for the current
period, or recognized directly in shareholders’ equity if it arises from
a business combination or relates to a transaction or event which is

recognized directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group measures a current tax asset or liability arising from
the current and prior period based on the amount of income tax
expected to be paid by the Group or returned by tax authority

calculated by related tax laws.

For temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, and
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of items, the tax bases of which can be determined for
tax purposes, but which have not been recognized as assets and
liabilities according to the tax laws, deferred taxes are provided using
the liability method.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
24. Income tax (Continued)

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

)

where the taxable temporary differences arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction which contains both of the
following characteristics: (i) the transaction is not a business
combination; and (ii) at the time of the transaction, it affects

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or deductible loss.

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, jointly-controlled enterprises and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable

future.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary

differences, carryforward of deductible tax losses from prior years

and tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and deductible tax losses and tax credits can be utilized,

except:

M

where the deductible temporary differences arises from a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or deductible loss is affected.

in respect of the deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly-
controlled enterprises, a deferred tax asset is only recognized
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will be reversed in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilized in the future.
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

24,

25.

Income tax (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to the
requirements of tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the balance

sheet date, to recover the assets or settle the liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in future
periods to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the balance sheet date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities presented on a
net basis are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities on a net basis and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. An operating lease is a

lease other than a finance lease.

In the Case of the Lessee of an Operating Lease

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized by a lessee
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, and either included
in the cost of the related asset or charged to profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

25.

26.

Leases (Continued)

In the Case of the Lessor of an Operating Lease

Rent income under an operating lease is recognized by a lessor on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, through profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.

In the Case of the Lessee of a Finance Lease

At the commencement of lease term, for an asset leased in under
finance lease, the difference between the book value of the leased-
in asset, which is determined as the lower of the fair value of such
leased asset as at the commencement of lease term and the present
value of minimum lease payments, and the book value of long-term
payables, which is determined as the minimum lease payments, is
treated as unrecognized finance costs which is apportioned to the
leasing period using effective interest rate method. Contingent
rents are charged to profit or loss in the period in which they

actually arise.

In the Case of the Lessor of a Finance Lease

At the commencement of lease term, for an asset leased out under
finance lease, the book value of finance lease receivable is measured
at the sum of minimum lease receipts and initial direct costs, whilst
risk exposure shall be recorded simultaneously; and unrealized
finance income shall be measured at the difference between the
sum of minimum lease receipt, initial direct costs and risk exposure,
and its present value. These are recognized using effective interest
rate method during the leasing period. Contingent rents are

charged to profit or loss in the period in which they actually arise.

Hedge accounting
For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Group adopts fair value
hedging against interest rate risks and cash flow hedging against

interest rate risks and exchange rate risks.

Fair value hedging refers to the hedging against the risk of fair
value change in respect of definite commitments which are not yet
recognized (other than exchange rate risks) of assets and liabilities

already recognized.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

26. Hedge accounting (Continued) 26. EFES (&)

Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash
flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,

or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognized firm commitment.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and the risk management strategy. The documentation
includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item,
the nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess
the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to
the hedged risk. Such hedges are assessed on an ongoing basis as
complying with the validity requirements of a hedge as at the initial

designated date and in subsequent periods.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised
(with the expiry of rollover of the hedging strategic component
or unfulfilled replacement or the termination of processing of the
contract), if its objective of risk management changes, so that
the hedge relationship no longer satisfies the objective of risk
management, or if the hedge no longer fulfills the other conditions
under the accounting requirement of a hedge, the Group will cease

the adoption of such hedge accounting.

Where the hedge relationship no longer satisfies the validity
requirements due to the hedging ratio, and the objective of risk
management designated for the hedge relationship does not

change, the hedge relationship will be re-balanced.
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26. Hedge accounting (Continued) 26. EHEE (&)

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are

accounted for as follows:

Fair value hedges

Gains or losses arising from a hedging instrument are recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. Gains or losses in respect of
the hedged item attributable to hedged risk are recognized in profit
or loss and the carrying amount of the hedged item at fair value is

adjusted.

For fair value hedge relating to debt instruments carried at
amortized cost, the carrying amount of the hedged items is
adjusted and amortized to profit or loss over the remaining term of
the hedge using the effective interest rate method. Effective interest
rate amortization may begin upon the adjustment of the carrying
amount but no later than when the hedged item ceases to be
adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being
hedged. For the hedged items which are debt instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gains
or losses arising from the hedging already recognized are amortized
in the same manner, and taken to profit or loss for the current
period, but no adjustment shall be made to the carrying amount of

financial assets.

If the hedged item is derecognized, the unamortized fair value is

recognized directly in profit or loss for the current period.

When an unrecognized firm commitment is designated as a hedged
item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm
commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognized as an asset
or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
26.

Hedge accounting (Continued)

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is recognized directly in other comprehensive income, while the

ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

If the expected transaction being hedged is subsequently recognized
as non-financial assets or non-financial liabilities, or when the
expected transaction of non-financial assets or non-financial
liabilities becomes the firm commitment under applicable fair
value hedges, the amount of cashflow hedging reserve originally
recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred out and
taken to the initial recognized amount of that asset or liability item.
For other cashflow hedges, during the same period in which the
expected cashflow being hedged affects profit or loss, for example
when the expected sale occurs, the cashflow hedging reserve
recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred out and

taken to profit or loss for the current period.

When the Group no longer applies hedging accounting to cashflow
hedges, if the future cashflow being hedged is still expected to
occur, the amount previously taken to other comprehensive income
is not transferred out until the expected transaction actually occurs
or the committed performance is confirmed; if the future cashflow
being hedged is no longer expected to occur, the accumulated
amount of cashflow hedging reserve shall be transferred out from
other comprehensive income and taken to profit or loss for the

current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

27.

28.

29.

30.

Repurchase of shares

Consideration and transaction costs paid for the repurchase of
the Company’s own equity instruments are charged against
shareholders’ equity. Other than share-based payments, issuance
(including refinancing), repurchase, sale or cancellation of its own

equity instruments is treated as change in equity.

Profit appropriation
Interim and final cash dividends are recognized as liabilities upon

approval by shareholders in general meeting.

Safety funds

Safety funds provided for as required were included in cost of
product or the current profit and loss, and credited in special
reserve. And the funds are treated separately depending on
whether fixed assets are resulted when being used: funds related
to expenditure is offset against special reserve directly while those
forming fixed assets will consolidate expenditure incurred and
recognized as fixed assets when such assets are ready for their
intended use, at the same time offsetting equivalent amounts in the
special reserve and recognizing equivalent amounts of accumulated

depreciation.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and listed
equity investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group
at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) PR R BT 5 (48)
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20186 H30H (AR #oT)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%ﬁ)

30. Fair value measurement (Continued)
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest

and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs only under
the circumstances where such relevant observable inputs cannot be

obtained or practicably obtained.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: Level 1 —
based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date; Level 2 — based on inputs other than inputs within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
Level 3 — based on input for the asset or liability that is not based

on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group re-assess
them at each balance sheet date to determine whether transfers

have occurred between levels in the hierarchy.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

31.

32.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal
organization structure, managerial requirements and internal
reporting system, identifies reportable segments based on operating

segments and discloses segment information by operating segment.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that meets all

the following conditions:

(1) it engages in business activities from which it may earn

revenues and incur expenses;

(2)  its operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s
management to make decisions about resources to be

allocated to the segment and assess its performance;

(3)  the Group is able to obtain relevant accounting information
such as its financial position, operating results and cash flows

of such segment.

If two or more segments have similar economic characteristics and
meet certain conditions, then they can be aggregated into a single

operating segment.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that will affect the
reported amounts and disclosure of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance
sheet date. However, uncertainty about these estimates and
assumptions could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments which have
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements.

Interim Report 2018 R HEAZRE

Wb 5 ¥ 26 BT 5E (48
201846308 (AR ET)
= H B G BOR Ko’ EE A EE
(%)
31. /'\ﬁl&*ﬁﬂ:

32.

REBEUANABEBSEE  EEBELR
AEHREHIESRBEEELEDE
AR & ) R i B REHE FE 3R 5 0 AR AL I

SE AR E T

1

%%:

(1) AR HENERHEBH TR
EERA  BEBR

(2) ARAEERERNENFER
@R MIBERR - R
AERE LR  FHEREE

(3) AEERBEGSZAKETH
MEAR - BERRMR TR
EEAMWERER -

P flE] 35 % {8 48 & 0 /R AL B AR L RO AR O
B WHRE —ERGER - RIAA
HRE—EREDE -

EXREFHE MG

R R R R 2R E IR E 1 Al -
EEHAIRER - S HE - AERER
GXBEA B BENEENT
BeBMERE URBEAFGRA
KB BENWE - A Lﬁbﬂ?“%ﬂ
AN REE T M AR AT RE &
WW*X?%%E’J’QEEXE%E’U%E
SRETENRE

41
ERAAREENSTEERIBRESD -
BEEER T ATHIBRRAMER
e REBERZEN A -

93



94 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) Foh B ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20186 H30H (AR #oT)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. EAEFTHEMMEE ()

estimates (Continued)

Judgments (Continued)

Confirmation of Functional Currency

Since the Company owns a number of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and branch organizations, when recognizing its
functional currency, multiple factors are taken into consideration
to recognize the major economic environment of their operating
locations. Under circumstances with multiple factors and no obvious
functional currency, the Group uses judgment to confirm its
functional currency. Such judgment is the best to reflect economic
influence of the underlying transactions, events and environment.
Unless there appear material changes in the major economic
environment relating to the recognition of functional currency, once

the functional currency is recognized, it would not change.

Finance lease — in the case of the lessor

Leases where all risks and rewards relating to the ownership of the
assets are substantially transferred are referred to as finance leases.
The Group does not retain all substantial risks and rewards of the
ownership of these leased assets, and thus they are regarded as

finance leases.

Operating lease — in the case of the lessor

The Group has entered into leasing contracts for its investment
properties, certain intangible assets and certain fixed assets. The
Group is of the opinion that, according to the terms of such leasing
contracts, the Group has retained all material risks and returns of
ownership of these investment properties, intangible assets and

fixed assets and therefore they are accounted for as operating lease.

I (%)

FORR A7 B Y HEE
ARBERINEESZRTF AR - BE
EERDHEE T ELRAMC
B ZRZERKEEELLME
MEREERE - HZERERES
—fE - RERAGIETRENBERT
N EE B E B A BT A T B AL BR A
¥ ZHERERRERRS - FR
MIRBHRETE © FRIFERETE LR
AMUBHBNEIELQERBEELEX
B RRAIE -KEETELE
B o

BEHE —ERLHEA
EELEBTHEEEMBREABNE
HBERMBRMOEERBERE - KA
SEAGBELHEEEMARE LY
FrEEXREARMBEH - FiERmE
HERE -

BEHE —ERHHEA
REERKREERE - BHBBFE
ENBOBEEEER THESR -
AEERE - BRBEEHESBOGK
AEERBTELREUEE &
WEENBEEEEMAELNMESE
RKEBRAMBH - FEREEHER
B o



Interim Report 2018 e 95

5 i 2 M 5 (48
201846 H30H (A R#T)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. ERGF A& (&)

estimates (Continued)

Judgments (Continued)

Business model

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the business model of the Group’s management of financial
assets. When determining whether the business model is still likely
to be based on the collection of contractual cash flows, the Group
needs to analyze the sale of financial assets before the maturity
date. It also requires judgment as to whether the sale is accidental

or whether the value of the sale is insignificant.

Contractual cash flow characteristics

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
When it is necessary to judge whether the contractual cash flow
is only the payment of the principal and the interest based on the
outstanding principal, including the assessment of the correction of
the time value of money, it is necessary to judge whether there is a

significant difference compared with the benchmark cash flow.

Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the future accounting

periods, are discussed below.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Group uses the expected credit loss model to assess the
impairment of financial instruments. The application of the expected
credit loss model requires significant judgments and estimations,
and all reasonable and evidenced information, including forward-
looking information, should be considered. In making such
judgments and estimations, the Group infers the expected changes
in the debtor’s credit risk based on the historical repayment data
in combination with economic policies, macroeconomic indicators,

and industry risks.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

J

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. EAEFTHEFMMEE ()

estimates (Continued)

Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets
(other than goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life)

At the balance sheet date, the Company makes its judgment as to
whether there is any evidence indicating potential impairment of
non-current assets other than financial assets. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful life shall be tested for impairment when there is
any indication of impairment in addition to the annual impairment
testing. Other non-current assets other than financial assets shall be
tested for impairment if there is any evidence indicating that their
carrying amount cannot be recovered. When the carrying amount
of an asset or asset groups is higher than the recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and the
present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from
the asset, it indicates impairment. The net amount of the fair value
less costs of disposal is determined by making reference to the price
in a sale agreement in an arm’s length transaction or the observable
market price less the incremental costs directly attributable to such
assets disposal. In projecting the present value of future cashflow,
the management is required to estimate the projected future
cashflow of the asset or asset group and select an appropriate

discount rate for determining the present value of future cashflow.

Defined benefit plans

The management of the Group recognizes defined benefit plans
liabilities based on calculating model of the present value of the
defined benefit liabilities less fair value of the planned assets. The
present value of defined benefit liabilities comprises of various
assumptions, including term of benefits and discount rate.
Inconsistency between the future events and such assumptions may
subject the defined benefit plans liabilities on the balance sheet

date to material adjustment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

estimates (Continued)

Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value

Fair value of derivatives as at the balance sheet date is calculated by
the management of the Group based on models. Such calculation is
on the basis of some assumptions. Carrying value of derivatives may
differ significantly if future events deviate from such assumptions.

Quality warranty

For groups of contracts with similar characteristics, the Group
reasonably estimates maintenance fee charge based on historical
data on and current situation of maintenance, and taking into
account all relevant data including product upgrade and market
changes. The Group re-assesses maintenance fee charge at least on
every balance sheet date and determines accruals and provisions
based on the re-assessed maintenance fee charge.

Limitations on the estimation of variable consideration

In estimating variable consideration, the Group considers all such
information as shall be reasonably obtained, including historical
data, current data and projected data, thereby estimating the
amount of possible consideration and the probability to the
extent of such quantities as shall be reasonable. If it is estimated
that multiple outcomes are possible for the contracts, the Group
estimates the amount of variable consideration based on the
expected value approach. If it is estimated that only two outcomes
are possible, the variable consideration is arrived at using the most
likely outcome method. Variable consideration is included in the
transaction price to the extent it is highly probable that there will
not be a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized when the uncertainty is resolved. In assessing whether it
is highly probable that there will not be a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognized when the uncertainty
relevant to the variable consideration is resolved, the Group also
considers the possibility of reversal of income and the ratio of
reversed amount. The Group considers that “highly probable”
shall mean a probability of more than 75%. On each balance sheet
date, the Group re-assesses the amount of variable consideration,
including re-assessing whether the estimation of variable
consideration is limited, to reflect the circumstance as at the end of
the reporting period as well as changes during the reporting period.

HETRNHEE
R EE
AEBEREXKBENGETETLA
REEBBRENAAREE  %tHE
ﬁA%EF“ WMARREHBZ B R
T JREEBTETARAEEN
BEARFHE o

(&)

BERE
AEEHAFRUFENERAS
REELREBE - BRREBER -
EREMSE MERLCERHEH
EE%  BREBEXTUSEMET -
$%I39%§*§§§%§E%%
(B BERETEHRNIE - UREBEHF
HEOREBERETERTEE -

FT A B HHE R %1
REBHUZHELETHEAR  Z8
BEMABESHNAMIBREE  BERE
FEE - BEREEUREAEE
é@%%%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬁTaﬁ
WEESTEUREE o A5t &R
EEZEERE  AEBEIRBHE
EEFTAIEEESE  EAREHM
B e sE R - NEBIRR R 8
ii%%ﬁT“H1i$°@§ﬂﬁ
%EW&%E%$LEEW@$$E
MEEBR R 2 5T B B R AR AT g
&iéﬁﬁ@%%%o$%lﬁﬁﬁ
3 n] B 4T (B AR A A0 T HEE M R B
2HERRNBASCER SRR 8
AL ERNELR  RRFEERA
BRI RERSEMNLE -
REEBRAIBAIRE | HEHHES
RN75% - AEBEB-—BEAER
H SHT A8 EeE - BiEE
A A FHENEFTEEXEIR
Hl - AR BERE BARFEM BRI R
HEBHANEERNBEREL -

I-I-TF?T

ﬁ




98 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT

PR R BT 5 (48)
201846 H30H (A E#T)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

J

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 14 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. ERGF A& (&)

estimates (Continued)

Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused deductible
temporary differences and deductible losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and deductible losses can be
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profit together

with future tax planning strategies.

Net realizable values of inventories

The net realizable values of inventories are based on the saleability
of the evaluated inventory and their net realizable values.
The management’s judgments and estimates are required for
determining inventory impairment on the basis of clear evidence,
purpose of holding the inventories, effect of subsequent events
and other factors. The difference between the actual outcome and
original estimate will affect the carrying amount of inventories and
provision and reversal of decline in value of inventories during the

estimated revision period.
Estimated useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of fixed assets and
intangible assets at least once at the end of the year. Estimated
useful lives are determined by the management based on
historical experience of similar assets and expected technological
advancement. Corresponding adjustment to depreciation and
amortization expenses for future periods will be made in case of

substantial changes in previous estimates.
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (AR #or)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & it B & & & 5114 5
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Change of accounting policies 33. ETtBEEE

In 2017, the MOF issued the amended Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 14 — Revenue (the “New Standard on
Revenue”); Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.
22 - Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments;
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 23 — Transfer of
Financial Assets; Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.
24 — Hedge Accounting; and Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 37 — Presentation of Financial Instruments (the “New
Standard on Financial Instruments”). With effect from 1 January
2018, the Group has adopted the newly amended accounting
standards set out above for accounting treatment. According to the
transitional requirements, no adjustment is made to information for
the comparative period. Adjustments arising from the difference in
first adopting the new standards and the original standards will be
dealt with in the opening retained earnings or other comprehensive

income.

New Standard on Revenue

The New Standard on Revenue establishes a new model to
recognize revenue arising from contracts with customers. Revenue is
recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for delivering goods and
services to a customer. The standard also provides for the judgments
and estimates to be made on the contract costs, performance
obligations, variable consideration, principals, agents and so forth.
Adjustments are only made to the cumulative effect of contracts
that remain outstanding as of 1 January 2018. For changes in
contracts incurred before 1 January 2018, a simplified approach is
adopted in respect of the final arrangements for all contracts based
on changes in contracts, identify performance obligations that have
been performed or remain outstanding, determine the transaction
price and apportion the transaction price between performance

obligations that have been performed or remain outstanding.
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)

New Standard on Revenue (Continued)
Except for certain indirect leasing business as stated in Note IIl.
12 and certain supply chain solutions construction contracts
being affected by the New Standard on Revenue and leading to
changes in the time of revenue recognition as stated in Note IIl.
22, for major sales contracts, service contracts and construction
contracts, there have been no material changes in the time and
manner of recognition. On 1 January 2018, adjustments are
only made to the cumulative effect of contracts that remain
outstanding, and contracts entered into and performed prior
to 1 January 2018 under the aforesaid indirect leasing business
were all completed prior to 1 January 2018, thus has no impacts
on the opening retained earnings; the aforesaid changes in time
of recognition for construction contracts have given rise to an
increase of RMB46,813,800.00 in contract assets, a decrease
of RMB62,418,400.00 in contract liabilities, a decrease of
RMB19,505,750.00 in deferred tax assets, and an increase of
RMB89,726,450.00 in opening retained earnings.

New Standard on Financial Instruments

The New Standard on Financial Instruments has changed the
classification and measurement of financial assets, affirming three
major categories of measurement, namely at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income and fair value through
profit or loss. Such categorization takes into account the entity’s
own business model and the characteristics of the contracted
cashflow of its financial assets. An equity investment is required to
be measured at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable
option at inception to be measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (profit or loss at disposal may not be

transferred back to profit or loss; however, dividends are included in

profit/loss).

S 5 R A R (A

201846 H30H (A R¥T)
= W E 9 G BOR k| s b
(%)

33. BRTBERSE (&)

ST AZER(8)
AREFEBRTHEZ - 12FR RN
PHEEREEBMMEZ - 22794
MO HREEBATREESR
BT AERIRZE - WA TR B B
EBIN HREEMHESR - R
BERMEEEAR - WARERRER
MAXEBEEEERE( - R2018
FI1A1H  REEZEEBEHHKRT
BEERERAZEEETHE
FuEEEEEB P R2018F1 A1
BRI ARRBITHNARBEERE
20181 A1 HAITEA » At ¥ B 9)
ROBEMBEEELE  FEESR
WARRREIEENNE  EHER
BEEHMARE46,813,800.007T
aRAEERD> ARKE62,418,400.00
BEEMSHEERD AR
19,505,750.007C * LA R EA¥I R 5 iR
)8 AR #89,726,450.007T °

¥ e ml T AR

MM TAEANNETEREEND
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REBREFTRANEBEFAEEEY
Bt AEHEE - BERERER
BERAABEFESEAEZHAAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)

New Standard on Financial Instruments (Continued)

The New Standard on Financial Instruments requires the
measurement of impairment of financial assets be changed from
the “incurred loss model” to the “expected credit loss model”,
which is applicable to financial assets measured at amortized cost,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,

loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

The new hedge accounting model has strengthened the link
between enterprises’ risk management and financial statements,
broadened the scope of hedging instruments and hedged items,
abandoned retrospective validity test, introduced a re-balancing
mechanism and the concept of cost of hedging. On 1 January 2018,
the Group's reassessment of the hedge relationship suggested that

the validity requirement of hedging was still satisfied and thus no

re-balancing would be required.

MEr T AR (E)

e TAENERSREERER
BRIEZABRRE IWRIEHRE
FRIBRMEE | - AR AR AT
EBNeMEE URAEBEFERR
BEARLMGEE RN EREE -
NREFEAEMTBERER -

MEMETEANE T PERKRER
M BREZEANHBE  BATES
TARWESMEEMN®RE  BUE T
EEA MR - SIAT B &
EMRANES o REEMN20184F1
A1BYESHBERET T EHAME
RAMRERBERME R BFELT
B -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)
New Standard on Financial Instruments (Continued)
On the date of first adoption, the categorization and measurement
of financial assets conducted according to the standards on the
recognition and measurement of financial instruments before and
after amendment are compared as follows:

The Group

PR 3 B 5 (48D
201846304 (A E¥T)

Standards on the recognition and measurement of
financial instruments before amendment
BRI BT ARRT 2L

Measurement categories
STEHR

Carrying amount

FREEE

(%)

=R HEBUR o' ut Al

33. @t RS E(E)
e T AR (E)
EBRHTE  SREERRBETN
e T ARRHEEAMBTET
DEMAESERYELMT -

AEE

Standards on the recognition and measurement of
financial instruments after amendment

CHE Lok ]

Measurement categories
STEHER

Carrying amount

FEEE

Accounts receivable

AR R

Long-term receivables

RERYK

Other non-current
debt investments

A FRBDEHRE

Equity investments

Amortized cost
(Loans and receivables)

BRXA(ERMERR)

Amortized cost
(Loans and receivables)

BerpR (B AR YR)

Amortized cost
(Loans and receivables)
B AR
(BERAER)

Fair value through other
comprehensive income
(Available-for-sale)

WanBEEBAZ AR
thima e (AT ER)

Cost method (Available-for-sale)

PR3
(JHEER)

Fair value through other
comprehensive income

13,572,535,350.44

5,197,814,237.00

17,227,478.40

319,262,446.10

275,584,770.21

000.000.00

Amortized cost

Berp AR

Fair value through profit or loss
(required by standard)

UAnBEFEEAZEHAE
Mg CERESR)

Amortized cost

B

Fair value through profit or loss
(required by standard)

NARBEEEEEHHAAE
HiEa CERIZK)

Fair value through profit or loss
(required by standard)

AR EEFAEEEZHAAE
Mg CEHEXR)

Fair value through profit or loss
(required by standard)

AR EEFAEEEZHAAE
HEE(EREKR)

Fair value through other
comprehensive income

(designated)
NAREBEFEAEEHFAL
fhér e e (F87E)

Long-term equity investments

Fair value through profit or loss
(required by standard)

WAABEHEBAEDHAY
 HEETEES)

13,605,102,150.64

145,122,780.00

5,054,002,243.40

143,811,993.60

17,227,478.40

3,378,395.90

438,106,427.08

190,118,644.10

2,365,000,000.00

A o
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~& % & 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued) 33. BFTBUREE (&)
New Standard on Financial Instruments (Continued) FemT AEER(E)
On the date of first adoption, the categorization and measurement EHXHTH  eREERRBEETA
of financial assets conducted according to the standards on the BemI AR ENNREET
recognition and measurement of financial instruments before and DEMASERYLLNOT(E)

after amendment are compared as follows: (Continued)

The Company P
Standards on the recognition and measurement of Standards on the recognition and measurement of
financial instruments before amendment financial instruments after amendment
BRI ER T ARA2E8 BilkmeB I ERAT2 2L
Measurement categories Carrying amount  Measurement categories Carrying amount
R FEEE HEER REERE
Equity investments Fair value through other

comprehensive income

(Available-for-sale)

kg AR BEGTEEEZHA
Hfira s (THHER) 224,800,000.00
Cost method Fair value through other
(Available-for-sale) comprehensive income
(designated)
A% AR EEFEEHEHFA

(HLER) 31,680,000.00 Hipr Ak (B E) 255,670,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)
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33. Bt BREE(H)
#rdmh T AR (&)
EERHITE ReRAEREME

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)
New Standard on Financial Instruments (Continued)

On the date of first adoption, the original carrying amount of

the financial assets and the new carrying amount of the financial ARARBIET e TABR=
assets as categorized and measured according to the standards on HAMREETHENGENHT SR
the recognition and measurement of financial instruments after BEFREEENHER
amendment are reconciled as follows:
The Group rEH
Carrying amount
presented according Carrying amount
to the original presented according
standard applicable to the New Standard
to financial on Financial
instruments Instruments
31 December 2017 Reclassified Re-measured 1 January 2018
RREBIAER EHeBIARA
SR EREEE JITHMEEERE
20175128318 R it E 201851718
Financial assets measured at amortized cost ~ MBS A BH S BERE
Accounts receivable W
Balance presented according to the original -~ R & B T AE8I7| KA HE
standard applicable to financial instruments 13,572,535,350.44 - - 13,572,535,350.44
Less: Transferred out to fair value through ~ J§ - EEFE AL BEHE
profit or loss (New Standard on BEZHHAEHER
Financial Instruments) (eI AEd) - (145,122,780.00) - (145122,780.00)
Re-measured: Allowance for expected credit ~ E#3t 8 : EHRERBL LR
losses - - 177,689,580.20 177,689,580.20
Balance presented according to the New ¥ &£ B T B2 8IS REVE
Standard on Financial Instruments 13,605,102,150.64
Long-term receivables REEN
Balance presented according to the original %R 4 B8 T B BI5| REVE
standard applicable to financial instruments 5,197,814,237.00 - - 5197,814,237.00

Less: Transferred out to fair value through 5 : EEE R4 EEHE
BEZFHA\EHER
(FepTAER)

23 & BT AERIIROBE

profit or loss (New Standard on
- (143,811,993.60) - (143,811,993.60)

5,054,002,243.40

y e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)

New Standard on Financial Instruments (Continued)

On the date of first adoption, the original carrying amount of

the financial assets and the new carrying amount of the financial

assets as categorized and measured according to the standards on

the recognition and measurement of financial instruments after

amendment are reconciled as follows: (Continued)

33. SR BRBE (&)

TEER(4E)

XA

MemT
EHXHTH  RemEERAEE
FREABEBE AR IARERZ
EAWBREETOENGTENT S
BEREEENADE(E)

The Group (Continued) KEE(E)
Carrying amount
presented according Carrying amount
to the original presented according
standard applicable to the New Standard
to financial on Financial
instruments Instruments
31 December 2017 Reclassified Re-measured 1 January 2018
BRI AES| ENeB I AER
JIRHEEEE JITMEEEE
20176127318 BAR B E 201851A1H
Other non-current assefs AMH#REEE
Balance presented according to the original %4 B T B HI5| R &V 44%
standard applicable to financial instruments 17,227,478.40 - - 17,227,478.40
Less: Transferred out to fair value through i, : B Z AN 4 EE: 2
profit or loss (New standard on BEZ# AR HER
financial instruments) (FempTaEd) - (17,227,478 40) - (17,227,478 40)
Balance presented according to the New %372 B T B2 BI5| R
Standard on Financial Instruments M =
Financial assets at fair value through other AR 4 BEFFEREEHA
comprehensive income EtGalarenEE
Equity investments - Available-for-sale RERE-THAELR
financial assets (Note 1) EE(H)
Balance presented according to the original 3% /F £ 5 T & ERI5| R
standard applicable to financial instruments  H)g4% 594,847,216.31 - - 594,847,216.31
Less: Transferred out to fair value through 5 : L E R4 EEHE
profit or loss (New Standard on BEZHH AL HEE
Financial Instruments) (FemIAEl) - (3,378,395.90)

BHEUAAEEHER
EEHH AL ERE
K -#HIE
(FemIARS

Transferred out to fair value through other
comprehensive income-Equity instruments
(New Standard on Financial Instruments)

Transferred out to long-term equity investment
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued) 33. BT EERE(E)
New Standard on Financial Instruments (Continued) e T AER(E)
On the date of first adoption, the original carrying amount of EHXHTH  REemEERAEER
the financial assets and the new carrying amount of the financial ARAZRBIET e TARR =
assets as categorized and measured according to the standards on HAMREETHENGENT SR
the recognition and measurement of financial instruments after EEGEBENASNR(E)

amendment are reconciled as follows: (Continued)

The Group (Continued) REE (&
Carrying amount
presented according Carrying amount
to the original presented according
standard applicable to the New Standard
to finandial on Financial
instruments Instruments
31 December 2017 Redlassified Re-measured 1 January 2018
BRREBIAES EH BT ALS
SIRMEREEE JITHNEREEE
20176127318 BHE EifitE 201851718
Add: Transferred in to fair value through m:BAZNAREEHER
other comprehensive income-Equity HEBH AL el
instruments (New Standard on B-EXTAGMER
Financial Instruments) TEER) - 401,350,176.31 - 401,350,176.31
Remeasured: Cost method changed to EINGE  MAEELAAER
measurement of fair value iE - - 36,756,250.77 36,756,250.77

Balance presented according to the New ¥ £ B T BB 8IS REVHE
Standard on Financial Instruments 438,106,427.08

Wealth management products - Available-for- 781 — THHE2BEE

sale financial assets (Note 2) (7£2)
Balance presented according to the original 2R ¢ B T BRI RV 8%

standards applicable to financial instruments 2,365,000,000.00 - - 2,365,000,000.00
Less: Transferred out to fair value through 3 : BHZEUA L EfETE

profit or loss (New Standard on BEEHHNEHRER

Financial Instruments) (MeRmIAER) (2,365,000,000.00) (2,365,000,000.00)

esented according to the e T ARRF REHE

y e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)
New Standard on Financial Instruments (Continued)

On the date of first adoption, the original carrying amount of

the financial assets and the new carrying amount of the financial

assets as categorized and measured according to the standards on

the recognition and measurement of financial instruments after

amendment are reconciled as follows: (Continued)

33. ERTBERSE (&)
HEemTAER(E)
EERHITE  ReRAEEEEE
BEARRETASBT ARRHE
AR TS BN RO 2B
AEREMEBENBGHR(A)

The Group (Continued) KEEF (&)
Carrying amount
presented according Carrying amount
to the original presented according
standard applicable to the New Standard
to financial on Financial
instruments Instruments
31 December 2017 Reclassified Re-measured 1 January 2018
RREBIAER EH eI AL
SIREREEE JIREEREE
20176127318 BHE BifitE 201851710
Financial assets at fair value through DA BEFEAEZBHTA
profit or loss EHBRNeREE
Financial assets held for trading RHUEREE
Balance presented according to the original %4 B T B85 R &V 448
standard applicable to financial instruments 384,067,087.32 - - 384,067,087.32
Add: Transferred in to fair value through m:EAZNAREBME
profit or loss (the New Standard on BEEH A EHER
Financial Instruments) (MreBIA%R) - 2510,122,780.00 - 2510,122,780.00
Balance presented according to the RSB I ARSI RMHE
New Standard on Financial Instruments 2,894,189,867.32
Other non-current financial assets AFnacHEE
Balance presented according to the original -~ R & B T A &8I R E
standard applicable to financial instruments = = = =
Add: Transferred in to fair value through m:EAZNALEBEHE
profit or loss (the New Standard on BEZFHAAZHES
Financial Instruments) (FremIAZA) - 164,417,867.90

Balance presented according to the
New Standard on Financial Instruments

BHERTARASIRNHBE
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued) 33. B BRESE(E)
New Standard on Financial Instruments (Continued) Fem T AR (E)
On the date of first adoption, the original carrying amount of EHXHTH  RemEERAEE
the financial assets and the new carrying amount of the financial ABRAIRBETTIR#LMIAERTE
assets as categorized and measured according to the standards on HAWREETHENGENF SR
the recognition and measurement of financial instruments after EEREAEENRHOR(E)

amendment are reconciled as follows: (Continued)

The Company K E]
Carrying amount
presented according Carrying amount
to the original presented according
standard applicable to the New Standard
to financial on Financial
instruments Instruments
31 December 2017 Reclassified Re-measured 1 January 2018
RESRI AES EHMEBIEES
JIRHREEE JIFMEREE
2017612318 BAR Bt E 201851 A1H
Financial assets at fair value through other LA % BEHEEEEH A
comprehensive income Bt AN ERSREE
Equity investments - Available-for-sale RERE-HYELHEE
financial assets (Note 1) (&1)
Balance presented according to original RREBIBENSIRHBE
standard applicable to financial instruments 256,480,000.00 - - 256,480,000.00
Less: Transferred out to fair value through i - EHZEU AL BEEER
other comprehensive income - Equity HEEHT AL MEAR
instruments (the New Standard on H-BEXTA(MER
Financial Instruments) TEER|) = (256,480,000.00) = (256,480,000.00)
Add: Transferred in to fair value through m:BAZURAEENER
other comprehensive income - Equity E2BH AR MRS
instruments (the New Standard on R-ERIE(HLR
Financial Instruments) TEER|) = 256,480,000.00 - 256,480,000.00
Remeasured: Cost method changed to BN E  NAEEAAER
measurement of fair value HE - - (810,000.00) (810,000.00)

Balance presented according tothe New #2574 B T B3| ReVsaE
Standard on Financial Instruments 255,670,000.00

Note 1: The investments in equity instruments were strategic investments aiming i1 WRESTAERERBKIE BER
to uplift the Group's long term profitability through equity participation. BE2RBIERALEE R B RF G
oup designated that such investments shall be measured at fair N AEEEESEUNAABEEGE

ugh other comprehensive income. BHZFH AR MERE W -
22 WEFESENSHITEELTRE
ancial Instruments. BERARESTBERFEAH - EELR
e FRAREBETELZE AL HE

=3
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33. Change of accounting policies (Continued) 33. B BRESE(E)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

New Standard on Financial Instruments (Continued)
On the date of first adoption, the original provision for impairment

of financial assets as of 31 December 2017 and the new provision

for impairment of financial assets as categorized and measured

according to the standards applicable to the financial instruments

after amendment are reconciled as follows:

Fem T AEER(E)
EEXRMTH  REpEEREEE
2017512 A3 1B BB RBILRIE
AR R T AR EHEITH AR
FrEMFBRERAE K

The Group REH
Provision for Provision for
impairment made impairment made
according to the according to the
original standard New Standard
applicable to on Financial
Measurement categories finandial instruments Reclassified Re-measured Instruments
RREBIAER BRI AES
FHEER SREKER BAR EHfiEtE SHRERER
Loans and receivables (Original standard ERNERT(REBIAE
for financial instruments)/Financial assets 8)) /N BAR AT ENS
measured at amortized cost (the New BEE(MemIARR)
Standard on Financial Instruments)
Accounts receivable JEWER 1,433,114,728.64 - (177,689,580.20)  1,255,425,148.44
Other receivables Eft YR 48,508,702.99 - - 48,508,702.99
The Company KA A]
Provision for Provision for
impairment made impairment made
according to the according to the
original standard New Standard
on financial on Financial
Measurement categories instruments Redlassified Re-measured Instruments
EReBIAER i R
HERR SHRRAER 558 it e SHRRAER

Loans and receivables (Original standard

ERNELG(RERMTIAE

on finandial instruments)/Financial assets 8l) /BRGNS
measured at amortized cost (the New REE(MeBIA%S)
standard on financial instruments)

Accounts receivable G

Other receivables

EfuHR
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IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued)

RS i R B 5 (48D

201846 H30H (A RHET)

=TT R A
(%)

New Standard on Financial Instruments (Continued)

Major impacts of the changes in accounting policies arising from
the New Standard on Revenue and the New Standard on Financial
Instruments stated above on the financial statements as at 1 January

2018 are as follows:

33. @t RS E(E)

Fem T AEER(E)

T A BN 3 & mh T A AR 3
BREFRRSEEH2018F1A1H
W BHREANEBHENT ¢

The Group K
Redlassified Re-measured
EHE it
Carrying amount Carrying amount
presented Impact of the Impact of the presented
according to the Impact of the New Standard Impact of the New Standard according to the
original standards New Standard on Financial New Standard on Financial new standards
31 December 2017 on Revenue Instruments on Revenue Instruments 1 January 2018
RRERIFI R k=l
MEREE A i N TR HERIA MEREE
20175128318 Efye Elpe By EfgE 01851818
Financial assets at fair value WAREEGEEL
through profit or loss ORI
MeREE 384,067,087.32 - (384,067,087.3) - - -
Financial assets held for trading X 52 BEE - - 2,894,189,867.32 - - 2,894,189,867.32
Accounts receivable R 13572,535,350.44  (1,590,884,422.70) (145,122,780.00) - 177,689,580.20  12,014,217,727.94
Contract assets AREE - 735,764,692.30 - 46,313,800.00 - 782,578,492.30
Inventories k5 19,850,822,463.67 (735,764,692.30) - - - 19,115,057,77137
Other current assets EtrEEE 3,792,776,498.74 - {2,365,000,000.00) - - 1427,776,498.74
Available-for-sale financial assets At HESBEE 504,847,216.31 - (59484721631) - - -
Investment in other equity EERTARE
instruments - - 401,350,176.31 - 36,756,250.77 438,106,427.08
Other non-current financial assets  £fo3kiEI2BEE - - 16441786790 - - 16441786790
Long-term receivables REERH 5,197,814,237.00 - (143,811,993.60) - - 5,054,002,24340
Long-term equity investments  REIRERE 2,638,935,915.48 - 190,118,644.10 - - 2,829,054,559.58
Deferred tax assets ERMEREE 4,533,525,646.91 - - (19,505,750.00) (58,453,657.62)  4,455,566,239.29
Other non-current assets HitEr8aE 254,172,355.79 = (17,227,478.40) = = 236,944,877.39
Receipts in advance RRER (5,814905,624.90)  5,814,905,624.90 - - - -
Contract iabilities ERARE - (7417610,663.24) - 62,418,400.00 - (7355,192,63.24)
Other payables Ef R (7,723,245,808.19)  2,811,214,342.64 - - - (4912,031,465.55)
Other current liabiliies EREaE (4,851,696,489.11) 382,375,118.40 - - - (4469321370.71)
Deferred income EthE (3,121,664,308.58) 305,225,976.00 - - - (281643833258
Deferred tax libltes BEMERAE (6,500,274,764.52) - - - (9295050000 (6,509,569,814.52)
entlabilies ~ EMFEFHAR (22620540079)  (305,225,976.00) - - - (531431376.79)
(27,898,783,968.43) - - (89,726,450.00) (119,172,330.20)  (28,107,682,748.63)
6,155.73 - - - (27,644503.70)  1,499,921,652.03
- - - 11971055 (21,115,348,617.01)
- (24,905,181,764.69)

A o
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II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~& % & 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued) 33. EFtBEEE(E)
New Standard on Financial Instruments (Continued) Fem T AXER|(E)
Major impacts of the changes in accounting policies arising from ot R A E B RN 3 6 @t T EERI 5
the New Standard on Revenue and the New Standard on Financial RO BRZE 20181711
Instruments stated above on the financial statements as at 1 January M ERERNEEZEMNT(E) ¢

2018 are as follows: (Continued)

The Company P
Reclassified Re-measured
558 Eififg

Carrying amount Carrying amount

presented Impact of the Impact of the presented

according to the Impact of the New Standard Impact of the New Standard according to the

original standards New Standard on Financial New Standard on Financial New Standard

31 December 2017 on Revenue Instruments on Revenue Instruments 1 January 2018

RRERIFIR iRl

WEREE A heRIA HA HeRIA WEREE

20175128318 REpE e 2 EHgE 01851718

Accounts receivable U 1,492,883,648.61 (397,204,441.44) - = - 1,095,679,207.17

Available-for-sale financial assets  ATEHESBERE 256,480,000.00 - (256,480,000.00 - - -
Investrment n other equity EHERTERE

instruments - - 256,480,000.00 - (810,00000)  255,670,000.00

Deferred tax assels EEMEREE 724,662,933.48 - - - 12150000 72478443348

Receipts in advance EER (53,587,374.55) 53,587,374.55 - - - -

Other payables AR (2,497 504,43830)  1,503,283,483.34 - - - (994220,954.96)

Contract liabilities cRAR - (1,159,666,416.45) - - - (1,159,666,416.45)

Other comprehensive income  EfeiAME (26,180,000.00) = = = 688,500.00 (25,491,500.00)

(103,245,230.76) = = = = (103,245,230.76)
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = H % & 5} Bt 5% X & 5145 5
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (48)

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued) 33. BT EERE(E)

Formats of financial statements

As required by the Notice on Revising and Circulating General
Corporate Financial Statement Formats 2018 (Cai Kuai [2018]
No.15), other than the changes in presentation arising from the
adoption of the aforesaid New Standard on Financial Instrument
and the New Standard on Revenue, “notes receivable” and
“accounts receivable” are classified under the new “notes
receivable and accounts receivable” item; “dividend receivable” and
“interest receivable” are classified under the “other receivables”
item; “disposal of fixed assets” are classified under the “fixed
assets” item; “materials used in construction” are classified under
the “construction in progress” item; “notes payable” and “accounts
payable” are classified under the new “notes payable and accounts
payable” item; “special payables” are classified under the “long-
term payables” item; the “research and development expenses”
item is separated from the “general and administrative expenses”
in the income statement; the “interest expenses” and “interest
income” items are separated from the finance expenses item;
the new item of “transfer of changes in defined benefit plan to
retained earnings” has been added under the statement of changes
in equity; and the Group has restated the financial statements for
the comparative period on a retrospective basis. The changes in

accounting policies have no impact on consolidated and company

net profit and shareholders’ equity.

KRB R
BECHEANETEHE2018F E — K
TrEVBEREREANBHN)(HE
[2018]155%8) &2k - BR#IT Lt &
MTAERURFTBRALNELER
REI  REBGERERE]
MIEWRR BT =LA ERE
BREREZIER « #& EYRRF ]
K[ EUF B |58 I 2= [ H 4 FE UL 5K
EH #EATEESEIGITEIE
TEEIER  BIIEDEIRTE
[EEIRIEE - Bl EMERIM
[EAIRERIBLEIEH BN
REMERIEER - I EEEM K]
BUE[REAEGRIEES  EFBEE
PRIEEEBRIBERIFIFES
B1EE EMBEREE THIFIF
BERIMFBWAIAMAER : &
RS RPNEIREZLmTE
BOBAERFTWREIEE  AKE
AEEBNER T L BERRE - Z g5
BUOREEH AT RARDEFBEMAR R
BmETE o




Interim Report 2018 FssE 113

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
IIl. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 5} B 5K & & 51 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Change of accounting policies (Continued) 33. BT ERE(E)
Formats of financial statements (Continued) ERERER(E)

Major impacts of the retrospective adjustment arising from the

T EET RS E S| A B AR
2017F 12 A3MAMNEEBRRER

changes in accounting policies stated above on the balance sheet as

at 31 December 2017 are as follows: A= SUNNE
The Group rEH

Closing balance
before changes in

accounting policies

Adjustment arising
from changes in

accounting policies

Closing balance
after changes in

accounting policies

SHBREEA BEER BHBREER
FRBE ZEHERE FREBTE
Notes receivable M EE 25,291,238,910.52  (25,291,238,910.52) -
Accounts receivable FEBERR 13,572,535,350.44  (13,572,535,350.44) -
Notes receivable and RIS T FEURBR 3R
accounts receivable - 38863,774260.96  38,863,774,260.96
Interests receivable FEUH 2 25,264,533.85 (25,264,533.85) -
Dividends receivable JEH A R 5,228,280.90 (5,228,280.90) -
Other receivables H ek 857,629,220.37 30,492,814.75 888,122,035.12
Fixed assets ETEE 27,067,404,030.16 903,92829  27,068,307,958.45
Construction in progress wEIR 1,218,157,893.32 589,457.74 1,218,747,351.06
Materials used in construction TiEmE 589,457.74 (589,457.74) =
Disposal of fixed assets ETEERRE 903,928.29 (903,928.29) =
Notes payable R RE 12,361,446,846.30  (12,361,446,846.30) -
Accounts payable FERIRTR 30,654,794,938.52 (30,654,794,938.52) =
Notes payable and accounts payable  fE{T 2 & JERIE SR - 43,016,241,784.82 43,016,241,784.82
Interests payable RIS, 95,394,487.50 (95,394,487.50) -
Dividends payable A AR 207,460,650.87 (207,460,650.87) -
Other payables H A e 7,723,245,808.19 302,855,138.37 8,026,100,946.56
Long-term payables REBERZ 9,218,432,433.10 23,000,000.00 9,241,432,433.10
Special payables EIEERK 23,000,000.00 (23,000,000.00) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)
III. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~% % € 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Change of accounting policies (Continued) 33. BT EERE(E)
Formats of financial statements (Continued) g mEER (&)

Major impacts of the retrospective adjustment arising from the

T ST BREE S| BB A
2017F 12 A3AMNEEBRRESR

changes in accounting policies stated above on the balance sheet as

at 31 December 2017 are as follows: (Continued)

The Company

Closing balance
before changes in

accounting policies

FamT (&)
AR A]
Adjustment arising

from changes in

accounting policies

Closing balance
after changes in

accounting policies

SHBREEA B RKRER BHBREEE
FERBE HEH FRHBE
Notes receivable EWERE 23,018,971,007.38 (23,018,971,007.38) -
Accounts receivable FERER 1,492,883,648.61 (1,492,883,648.61) -
Notes receivable and BN KRR
accounts receivable - 24,511,854,655.99 24,511,854,655.99
Interests receivable PRI 23,116,750.00 (23,116,750.00) -
Dividends receivable FEUTRRF 240,204,169.02 (240,204,169.02) -
Other receivables Hib R 360,439,484.91 263,320,919.02 623,760,403.93
Notes payable ERER 9,339,569,093.38 (9,339,569,093.38) -
Accounts payable FERHIRTR 8,360,166,067.65 (8,360,166,067.65) -

Notes payable and accounts payable

ENRRREMNRK

17,699,735,161.03

17,699,735,161.03
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant Accounting Policies and = ~& % & 5t Bt 5% K & 546 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

33. Change of accounting policies (Continued) 33. BFTBUREE (&)
Formats of financial statements (Continued) igmEER (&)

Affected items in income statements for the period from January to 20176 1-6 A EBMFIHEERIER ¢

June 2017:

The Group

Incurred before
changes in

accounting policies

FEE

Adjustment arising
from changes in

accounting policies

Incurred after
changes in

accounting policies

EHERLEN RHBERE  HREREE

General and administrative expenses IR E 4,593,093,284.43 (1,531,986,191.85) 3,061,107,092.58

Research & development expenses HEER - 1,531,986,191.85 1,531,986,191.85
The Company AR E]

Incurred before Adjustment arising Incurred after

changes in from changes in changes in

accounting policies accounting policies accounting policies

B BREEA BHBRER SHBKRET %

General and administrative expenses ~ EIEE 917,548,087.35 (449,251,530.89) 468,296,556.46

Research & development expenses &R - 449,251,530.89 449,251,530.89
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IV. Taxation

PR 3 B 5 (48D
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ILIRY T

1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. FEFHERBE

rates

Value-added tax (VAT)
EER

City maintenance and construction tax

Before 1 May 2018, for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, output VAT is
calculated by applying 17%, 11% and 6% to the taxable income for
normal taxpayers, but the Group may pay it after deducting deductible
input VAT for the current period. After 1 May 2018, for the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, output VAT is calculated by applying 16%, 10% and 6% to
the taxable income for normal taxpayers, but the Group may pay it after
deducting deductible input VAT for the current period.

201855 A1 B 23T - AEEIRAT LA —MAT ARET AL
17% ~ 1% ~ 6%V X EHHIAT - WIZHERE B2 FFENe EIR
BN BT HSEN - 2018F54 18 2% - AEBRANFAR]
—REANFE AR BT ARI16% « 10% 6% M RFTHHEER - Wik
HBREHAFFENAER RN ZEABISEN -

The basis of computation and applicable rate of VAT primarily applicable
to major overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set out below:
REFERNFRARTEZEANBERTREBERBERREIIRMOT

Basis of computation Applicable country Tax rate
BB BABEX W=
Amount of taxable added-value Germany 19%
e M B EER EE

Value-added tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax laws
and regulations in force in the respective countries.

HipFSIBEMREEEZ R ERERETE -

It is levied at 7% or 5% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

BRERBMNREHANT %H5 %8
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
IV. Taxation (Continued) g ~BiIE (%)
1.  Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. TEHRERMUE(E)

rates (Continued)

Education surcharge It is levied at 3% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

HREBKM BRERSMNRERA3 %

Local education surcharge It is levied at 2% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

73 A B K0 RERBMRRERM2 % -

Corporate income tax It is levied at 15% or 25% on the taxable profit, except that for overseas

TEMER subsidiaries, it is levied at the statutory tax rate of the countries or regions
in which the subsidiaries operate.
BRENTFARIZEMERR - MEAEEBR RGN - CEMSHIE
JEMTLFTISEERI15% 5k 25% AT 4 o
—  The basis of computation and applicable rate of corporate income tax

primarily applicable to major overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set

out below:
AEEBIFEFRRFEEANCEMGHARKEERBT XS
TRIATR ¢
Basis of computation Applicable country January to
Bk IE BEABEXR June 2018
20184
1-6 B =
Amount of taxable income Germany 30.82%
JE ML P iS 2R 1=

Income tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax laws and
regulations in force in the respective countries.

HBERAERRXBREE MR EREREE

2. Tax benefits 2. BIWERE
Value-added tax BED
In accordance with the Notice Concerning Exemption from Value- ARAFZFRARKRASFETEFRA
added Tax and Consumption Tax applicable to Special-purpose AR A  BRBBER(ER
Military Vehicles ( (BN E R EEFHEELERNEERNR FRAKEEHOEEERTEETA

H1) ) issued by MOF and State Administration of Taxation, the sale BAEESRER « HEE
of special-purpose military vehicles to army and armed police by 7
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, is

exempted from value-added tax.




118  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

MBI RHBRAF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Preferential corporate income tax for the Company

The Company was recognized as a high-tech enterprise on 27
November 2008. The Company continued to be recognized as a
high-tech enterprise in 2017 and is therefore entitled to enjoy a

preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2017 to 2019.

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.,
Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Torch
Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Euro Grace Gear
Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd. and Weichai Power Yangzhou
Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. were recognized as high-tech enterprises
again in 2017 and are therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019.

Weichai Power Freshen Air Technology Co., Ltd., Baudouin
(Weifang) Power Co., Ltd. and Linde Hydraulics (China) Co., Ltd.
were recognized as high-tech enterprises in 2017 and are therefore
entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. and Shaanxi
Automobile Datong Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd. were
recognized as high-tech enterprises and are therefore entitled to
enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2016 to
31 December 2018.

PR 3 B 5 (48D
201846304 (A E¥T)

IR
2.

H (%)
RWEE(E)
KRARTEMERESR
AR 2008F 11 A27HWRTE A
BEEMAE 2017 ARKER
BEMENEERE - B20174%
2019F ZRN15% RIS TERRE -

RABIEAFRRIREREH
BE
PRAEAERAERRAA - BREVELS
BWRAREMELAF  BEHEETHE
WAEREERF - HRMNERERET
DA RN MERWBLEBRE (T
~aEl - RN AR IR E S AR AR A A
KAL) N NS BEBRE TR R
R2017TH5EHESSHRMEESR
% B2017F1H1HZE2019412A4
BTEZERIS%AEHESRRE -

HEBHHTERFCREBRAR - 18
Tt 2 G5 ) B B R A R FIME R E
(FE)BRARR2017F BB
Rt ERE - B2017F1A18%
2019512 A31AER15%FEHE
BHE -

LB N () BREBRAF - R
AARRERABERAREBBASN
RMThERE - B2016F1A18E
2018F 12 A31AEX15%F1EHE
BHE -
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

Other than the aforesaid companies, the respective High-tech
Enterprise Certificate (€ & % $ fif 7 3 & & )) of Shaanxi Hande
Axle Co., Ltd., Xi"an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd. and Zhuzhou Torch
Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. expired on 31 December 2017. As at the
approval date of these financial statements, these subsidiaries of
the Company were still at the review stage for such status where
the management had completed a self-appraisal of the enterprises’
high-tech enterprise qualifications. It is expected that the possibility
of acquiring high-tech enterprise qualifications is high and the tax

rate of 15% is expected to be still applicable.

Pursuant to the requirement of Cai Shui [2015] No. 34, Shaanxi
Fast Automotive Components Import and Export Company Limited
meets the criteria of a low-margin small-scale industrial enterprise
and is subject to corporate income tax at the reduced rate of 20%
based on its taxable income which is taken as 50% of its income

(equivalent to a 10% tax rate for corporate income tax).

Pursuant to the requirement of the Notice Concerning Issues on
Taxation Policies Relating to the Thorough Implementation of
China’s Strategy of Western Development (Cai Shui Fa No. [2011]
58) (CRAR R AE i 78 88 K 5 35 B IS 8 A B UR BUR R RE A0 B AN)D)
promulgated by MOF, the State Administration of Taxation and
the General Administration of Customs dated 27 July 2011, the
following companies have implemented preferential tax policy of

15% for the Western Development:

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd.,
Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Automobile Xinjiang
Motor Co., Ltd, Xi‘an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast
Gear Co., Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Fast Eaton (Xi'an) Power
Transmission System Co., Ltd. and Weichai (Chongging) Automotive
Co., Ltd.
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

“Pursuant to the requirement of the Announcement Concerning the
Cancellation of 22 Matters of Approvals About Non-administrative
Permissions to be Sought for Taxation Issues” numbered 58 of
2015 issued by the State Administration of Taxation on 18 August
2015, for those companies entitled to the preferential tax treatment
at 15% under the western development strategy of China, only
filing is required instead of approval. All the aforesaid companies
have passed the examination of 2017 Taxation Filing, and they are
expected to be entitled again to enjoy a preferential policy for the

Western Development in 2018.

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements

1.

Cash and cash equivalents

R 3% B G (7
201846 H30H (A RHIT)
g ~BEE (4)
2. BIWEEE)
RAGBIEANTRABIDEMGN
BE(&)

f~f

1.

Cash at bank BEFRE
Bank deposits RITIE
Other cash and cash equivalents EmErEs

3

3

As at 30 June 2018, the other cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to RMB6,370,197,437.79 (31 December 2017:
RMB7,967,247,514.79), all of which are used in letter of guarantee
and security monies for special accounts such as bank acceptance
bills and letter of credit and fixed deposits pledged to secure the

bank borrowings.

BIE2015F8A18HBRBB AR A
%2015 E58% XN A EHUB
B22 BB TE IEIT AT Al R IH BY
NEVNHRTE  EXAIPARMAE15%
WBRRERBRORRATHEEEH]R
FHER LARRARHEEB2017F
WS HERER - HHH2018F N
EEEXABAALEERRNHE

1% o

fF B B e 3 £ IE H 5k R
E¥ES
30 June 2018 31 December 2017
20186 H30H 2017912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (L ®|HZ)

57,937,270.15
0,551,043,363.51
6,431,364,152.92

138,172,603.17
26,110,295,839.47
7,973,369,328.26

7,040,344,786.58 34,221,837,770.90

R 2018 F 6 A308 @ XN &£ @
EHtmEBESPRBEARE
6,370,197,437.797t (2017 12 A
318 : AR¥7,967,247,514.7970)
ARRE - PRRITEREER - EH
BEEFPRTFHRES - URARE
HARBRITE RO ERFE -




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

1.

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)
As at 30 June 2018, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of RMB1,752,843,314.15 (31 December 2017:
RMB1,348,285,336.19), which were deposited overseas.

Interest income earned on bank current deposits is calculated by
using current deposit interest rate of the bank. The deposit periods
for fixed deposits vary from 7 days to 12 months depending on
the cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest income at

respective deposit interest rates of the bank.
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RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201846 H30H (A E¥T)

h G ORI B Rk T IE H AR

(%
1.

)

E¥ES(E)
MR2018F 6 A30H » A& BT
MRBEINEEESITAEARKE
A& 1,752,843,314.15 7T ( 2017
F12H31H : MAEARKE A
1,348,285,336.197T) °

RITE BT FIRBIRITIE R FHRA X
HREHBWA - ERFROFHRAE
TRENEATE  KAKENRE
FRME - WIRIBBAE A RITF A
KRG BUA e

UAREBESEBEESZS
FFAEHEENEREE
(EER2017%)

31 December 2017
2017912 A831H

Financial assets at fair value through profit 2.
or loss (applicable to 2017 only)

(Audited)

(&%)

Forward contracts EHAER

Warrants and cash compensation RAxEE RIR s mE
Others b

232,883,050.40
150,169,737.92
1,014,299.00

384,067,087.32
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7. ~& 0F i % 3 £ HIH H 5 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
3. Financial assets held for trading (Applicable 3. XMt EE(EEH
to 2018 only) 2018%)

Recognised gains/

(Unaudited) 30 June 2018 (loss) for the period
7 HA T 2R
(RRER) 201856 H30H B (FEX)
Financial assets at fair value AR BEFEAEEA
through profit or loss EHBRRNEREE
Forward contracts EHAR 163,214,146.50 (17,696,179.66)
Structured deposit and wealth EEETRA RN ER
management products 630,000,000.00
Other debt instruments HitfE#TA 126,379,825.50
Warrants and cash compensation RREE IR wEE ()
(Note) 171,169,080.20 18,821,947.94
1,090,763,052.20 1,125,768.28
Note: In March 2017, the Company approved the entering into of a share 0 2017638 ARFRBBAZETAA
purchase agreement by Weichai America Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary M5B b 3= A PR F) B 3E Bl Power
of the Company, with the U.S.— based Power Solutions International, Inc. Solutions International Inc. ( LA T
(hereinafter, “PSI Inc.”), for the purchase of 2,728,752 ordinary shares HIPSIRA ) BRAIBRNDEEHZE -
and 2,385,624 preferred shares (convertible into 4,771,248 ordinary DA 42 % {8 6000 8 X T B8 B PSIA &)
shares in the future) of PSI Inc., with a total investment of USD60 million. 2,728,752 f% & i@ A% K& 2,385,624 %
In November 2017, upon full conversion of the aforesaid preferred shares BRR (R EIRAL4,771,24808
into ordinary shares, the Company, through Weichai America Corp., holds W) 2 2017F11A - FEERSE
shares representing 40.7% of the total issued share capital of PSI Inc. and HER ST BERE - AATBBME
becomes PSI Inc.’s single largest shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, EEBARAAFAPSIEITERAN
18 months after the completion of the above transaction, Weichai America 40.7% MR + B RPSIARIME — KR
Corp. may exercise a call option to increase its holding in PSI Inc. to 51%. R REWHE - LR HREITKIS

BR%  #EFHNILEFRDATT
ORI - — S IEFFPSIA RIS

£51% °
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & ff I % it 3 1 B 1H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Notes receivable and accounts receivable 4. EWREEREWRER

30 June 2018

31 December 2017

201846 HA30H 20174%12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEHFER) (f&#%)
Notes receivable e ZEE 27,578,915,285.34 25,291,238,910.52
Accounts receivable FEUBRE TR 16,852,805,371.16 15,005,650,079.08
44,431,720,656.50 40,296,888,989.60
Less: Provision for bad debts B EERREE 1,332,645,750.48 1,433,114,728.64
43,099,074,906.02 38,863,774,260.96

Notes receivable e W E I
30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201856 H30H 2017912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEFZ) (fe#&Z)
Bank acceptance bills RITERHESZ 27,441,814,203.96 25,259,282,610.52
Commercial acceptance bills [GEZSE 137,101,081.38 31,956,300.00

27,578,915,285.34

Among which, notes receivable which had been pledged are

presented as follows:

25,291,238,910.52

Hep DERWEREENT :

30 June 2018
201846 H30H

31 December 2017
2017912 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (e ®|HZ)

Bank acceptance bills SRITAGLIES 11,169,836,092.10 8,862,401,073.29
Commercial acceptance bills PFEA N EE 93,553,840.00

11,263,389,932.10
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201846 H30H (A R #oT

)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)

4. Notes receivable and accounts receivable 4., EWEBREWRERR(E)
(Continued)
Notes receivable (Continued) EWER(E)
Notes receivable which had been endorsed but not yet expired as at ESEETEEEABRAMAIBEHN
the balance sheet date are presented as follows: EUWEENT

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
20186 430H 2017F12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Derecognized Not derecognized Derecognized  Not derecognized
RILER RE R BRIEHR AERER
Bank acceptance bills BITRAES 11,998,020,396.92 11,897,133,700.14 -
Commerdial acceptance bills HEALESR - - 7,321,000.00
11,998,020,396.92 11,897,133,700.14 7,321,000.00
Notes receivable already discounted but not yet expired as at the BMRELEEBERB WARIEN
balance sheet date are presented as follows: EWEENT :
30 June 2018 31 December 2017
2018%6A30H 2017912A318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B&E%)
Derecognized  Not derecognized Derecognized  Not derecognized
HRILER KA LLRERR LR R ILTER
Bank acceptance bills PITRGEE 214,187,942.56 19,718,076.84 -
As at 30 June 2018, the Group had not transferred any notes R2018%F6H30H ' AEBERHE
into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure in performance (31 AENBAT S RRE REWRRRE
December 2017: Nil). ZHR(2017F12A318 : &) o
Accounts receivable JE W BR 5k
The Group trades with its customers primarily on credit terms, AEBEZFHEAMNE S BRIANEAR
and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new SRE  B—REKHEPEMMKK
3 Credit period is generally one to six months. Accounts KREINRARNET  EAHES

R1-618A o BUBRRI TFH R o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (48)

4.

Notes receivable and accounts receivable

(Continued)
Accounts receivable (Continued)

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on invoice dates is

presented as follows:

4. BREBKEWERR(GE)

FEU BR K (48)

RERARBH - BURFTOREKE DT

mT -

30 June 2018

31 December 2017

20186 HA30H 2017912 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&%)

Within 1 year 1FEAR 15,116,129,076.92 13,127,341,974.02
1 to 2 years 1FER2F 467,755,045.62 597,200,935.15
2 to 3 years 2HFE3F 180,341,643.52 190,287,768.61
Over 3 years 3FEME 1,088,579,605.10 1,090,819,401.30
16,852,805,371.16 15,005,650,079.08

Less: provision for bad debts VB IEERYEE 1,332,645,750.48 1,433,114,728.64

15,520,159,620.68

13,572,535,350.44

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of accounts receivable

are presented as follows:

FEW R FURARE B E BN T

30 June 2018
20186 H30H

31 December 2017
20179128311

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEFZ) (L #|Z)

Opening balance
Opening effect of New Standard on
Financial Instruments

iy
¥ B T A ER LB

1,433,114,728.64

(177,689,580.20)

1,144,057,968.02

Opening balance under New Standard
on Financial Instruments

BT AERTH FUME

1,255,425,148.44

1,144,057,968.02

Provision for the period/year NER R 171,612,595.41 370,477,690.97
Decrease during the period/year: Vi

Reversal LA (70,611,633.45) (33,037,659.83)
Decrease upon disposal of subsidiaries BE AR (7,188,013.81)

Eliminated Sk (12,737,308.91)

Written off %5y -

Adjustments for exchange differences  [& X Z &% (3,855,037.20)

Closing balance

B FRBRE

1,332,645,750.48
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
4. Notes receivable and accounts receivable

(Continued)
Accounts receivable (Conti

nued)

G OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)
4. BREBREWRR(E)

U AR X (48

30 June 2018
201856 H30A
Gross carrying  Proportion Provision for  Percentage
(Unaudited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
B
(REEZ) AR 8RR EEBI(%) RAREE HBI(%)
Items for which provision for bad 2 18 57{ 78 Hi{= FB
debts is recognized and expected 1Bk FHREIE L
credit loss is assessed separately 2,219,737,022.84 722,783,700.99
Iltems for which provision for bad 1% {Z AR EHA L
debts is recognized and expected 7 7 Hi{Z A B %
credit loss is assessed by group TR R A
with distinctive credit risk
characteristics 14,633,068,348.32 86.83 609,862,049.49
16,852,805,371.16 100.00 1,332,645,750.48
31 December 2017
2017%12A31H
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for Percentage
(Audited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
g
(&=5%) REE EE41(%) ERREE EE47(%)
Individually significant items for ~ EIBESEE AL
which provision for bad debt is BRI ERER
recognized separately 1,558,286,912.47 10.38 541,702,763.60 34.76
Items for which provision for bad 1z {= R S4B 4
debt is recognized by group with ~ 5HZEBRERE
distinctive credit risk characteristics 12,820,513,104.70 85.44 759,675,762.97 5.93
Not individually significant items for EIE4E A E AR
which provision for bad debt is BRI ERER
ecognized separately 626,850,061.91 418 131,736,202.07 21.02
15,005,650,079.08 100.00 1,433,114,728.64 9.55




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
Notes receivable and accounts receivable

4,

(Continued)

Accounts receivable (Continued)

SRS R A (A

Interim Report 2018 A HAZRE

201846 H30H (A E¥T)

(%)

As at 30 June 2018, items for which provision for bad debts is

recognized and expected credit loss is assessed separately are

presented as follows:

(Unaudited)
(REBER)

Customer 1

B

Customer 2

®F2

Customer 3

EF3

Customer 4

XF4

Customer 5

5

Customer 6

XF6

Customer 7

BE7

Customer 8

®F8

Customer 9

®F9

Customer 10

®F10
Others

Hity

Gross carrying
amount

AR ERER

56,927,140.00

49,159,575.31

40,516,068.59

37,449,568.86

33,808,426.00

32,989,886.43

32,623,150.80

32,556,007.92

28,471,419.76

26,400,747.00

1,848,835,032.17

2,219,737,022.84

Provision for
bad debt

56,927,140.00

49,159,575.31

38,490,265.16

35,577,090.42

27,046,740.80

32,456,366.43

29,360,835.72

32,291,887.03

27,297,117.10

25,080,709.65

369,095,973.37

722,783,700.99

A P B B Ak R H H AR
4. EURRBEREVRNR(E)

FEUBR SR (48)
M2018%F6H30R @ BEFHIEH(E
BiEKHREREEENERKERIER

mF

Percentage

B 1240

100%

100%

95%

95%

80%

98%

Reasons

AR E

Long credit age
RIRER

Bad repayment ability
EEELZ

Bad repayment ability
EEELZ
Liquidation
DRAFESH

Long credit age
RIRER

Assets have been
preserved

BEEEH

Litigation

EEA

Long credit age
KRR

Long credit age
KRR

Litigation

Long credit age etc.

RERE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& ff B % it 3 £ % EH H 5: &
Statements (Continued) (#)

4. BREBREWRR(E)

4. Notes receivable and accounts receivable
(Continued)
Accounts receivable (Continued)

FEM R R (48)

MR2017%128310 > BESEE A

As at 31 December 2017, individually significant items for which

provision for bad debt is recognized separately are presented as

I B F IR E B A B R BR

follows: AN
Gross carrying Provision for
(Audited) amount bad debt Percentage Reasons
(&%) fRE S BREE R FHRER
Customer 1 56,927,140.00 56,927,140.00 100% Long credit age
P RIRE
Customer 2 49,159,575.31 49,159,575.31 100% Bad repayment ability
EF2 EEaE N =
Customer 3 40,516,068.59 38,490,265.16 95% Bad repayment ability
EF3 EEaE N =
Customer 4 37,449,568.86 35,577,090.42 95% Liquidation
P4 RAEHEF
Customer 5 32,989,886.43 32,456,366.43 98% Assets have been
5 preserved
HMEEEH
Customer 6 32,623,150.80 26,098,520.64 80% Litigation
EF6 BN
Customer 7 29,745,233.41 21,312,766.31 72% Bad repayment ability
B®RF7 BEaE =
Customer 8 28,369,816.49 26,663,258.86 94% Long credit age
EPF8 RIRER
Customer 9 26,400,747.00 25,080,709.65 95% Litigation
EF9 N
Customer 10 24,671,392.36 19,737,113.89 80% Bad repayment ability
EF10 EEENE
Others 1,199,434,333.22 210,199,956.93 Long credit age etc.
A RERSE

1,558,286,912.47

541,702,763.60
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& ff I % it 3% 1 B IH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)

4. Notes receivable and accounts receivable 4., EWEBREWRERR(E)
(Continued)
Accounts receivable (Continued) FEW AR R (48 )
The Group's accounts receivable for which bad debts are provided AEBEFKBRE DA IRERER
for using aging analysis are presented as follows: R FEUBRFRIB R T ¢

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201856 A30A 20175128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEK) (&=21)
Carrying  Expected Expected credit

amount credit |oss during Gross
estimated  loss rate the entire carrying  Proportion Provision for  Percentage
to be in default (%) subsistence amount (%) bad debt (%)
i RERY  RAER BEFEH dl] SR
MEESE BXE%) RHEREX FasE (%) BHRER (%)

Within 1 year TEHA 2,793,093,061.73 X (EIREREVERIE  4,153,297,472.89 86.37 235,956,825.77 5.68
1102 years 1228 168,342,636.40 15.00 25,249,703.11 179,278,257.61 373 23,184,910.36 1293
210 3 years 253% 102,419,955.21 29.64 30,359,397.42 115,587,025.62 240 31,359,396.59 27.13
310 4 years 354E 94,617,721.96 50.35 47,636,406.03 179,392,572.43 373 83,254,744.56 4641
4105 years 4E55F 39,471,871.90 19.75 31,477,394.51 38,460,830.81 0.80 28,784,084.45 74.84
QOver 5 years SENE 155,671,259.05 100.00 155,671,259.05 142,884,643.24 297 142,884,643.24 100.00

3,353,616,512.25 14.03 CYOBIERERRZAS  4,808,900,802.60 100.00 545,424,604.97 1134
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)

4. Notes receivable and accounts receivable 4. EWEEREWRR(E)
(Continued)
Accounts receivable (Continued) FEUWBR FR (#8)
The Group's accounts receivable for which bad debts are provided REABPRKIEAEBRRFEER
for using overdue periods as credit risk profile are presented as EEEEENERERBRT
follows:

30 June 2018

20186 H30H
Carrying Expected credit
amount loss during
estimated Expected credit the entire
(Unaudited) to be in default loss rate (%) subsistence

fhEt B AEEY AHER BEFES
(REEZ) HY AR [ 85 B8 BERE(%) AAERRX

Provided for using overdue age ¥z EABRESFTIE 8,057,978,286.01 0.75 60,798,818.99

8,057,978,286.01 0.75 60,798,818.99

The Group's accounts receivable for which bad debts are provided KRB HRREREARBRSEER
for using overdue periods as credit risk profile are presented as BEREBRNERERBRAAT
follows:

31 December 2017

20174124318

Proportion Provision for Percentage

(Audited) Amount (%) bad debt (%)
g

(&=5%) | L l(%) ERREE EE4(%)
Neither overdue nor impaired R E 6,211,411,030.00 77.53 - -
Overdue and impaired BHERE 229,356,410.80 2.86 214,251,158.00 93.41
Overdue and not impaired BEERE 1,570,844,861.30 19.61 - -

8,011,612,302.10 100.00 214,251,158.00 2.67




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
Notes receivable and accounts receivable

4,

(Continued)
Accounts receivable (Continued)

Interim Report 2018 A HAZRE

PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201846 H30H (A E¥T)

Bad debt provision for the Group’s accounts receivable with good

credit history are presented as follows:

(Unaudited)

(REER)

Accounts receivable with

good credit history

ERTHREEN
FEYFRMEE

Carrying

amount
estimated

to be in default
At BEEN
B9 BR E 81 58

3,221,473,550.06

3,221,473,550.06

As at 30 June 2018, the top five balances in respect of accounts
receivable had a sum of closing balance of RMB2,021,748,829.00
(31 December 2017: RMB1,460,834,595.71), accounting for
12.00% (31 December 2017: 9.74%) of the total of closing balance
of accounts receivable. The closing balance in respect of bad debt
provided for the top five amounted to RMB42,562,871.73 (31

December 2017: RMB62,847,994.57).

In January-June 2018, provision for bad debts of
RMB171,612,595.41 (2017: RMB370,477,690.97) was made,
and provision for bad debts of RMB70,611,633.45 (2017:

RMB33,037,659.83) was reversed.

In January-June 2018, no accounts receivable was written off (2017:

RMB1,984,107.32).

. ‘ﬁﬁg{#ﬁjﬁiﬁﬁigiﬁ H iR
(ln )
4. EURRBEREVRNR(E)

e R K (48)
ERRREENRYERBEARRE
RERNERLDT -

30 June 2018

2018%F6H30H

Expected credit

loss during

Expected credit the entire
subsistence

REFAMES
FRBX

loss rate (%)
FEREH
BRE(%)

78,549,744.57

78,549,744.57

M201856 A30H KB AEHN
BURERNFRABETARARE
2,021,748,829.007L (2017 4F 12 A
318 : AR % 1,460,834,595.71
) MERERFRABBES TR
Bt Bl & 12.00% (2017 F 12 A
318 : 9.74% ) + %A1 7 & 8 FE 5
REOZBEEBFRBERARE
42,562,871.73 ¢ (2017 12 A 31
B : AR®62,847,994.577L) °

2018F 1-6 At RREREHE AR
171,612,595.41 7L (201745 : AR
#370,477,690.97 7t ) -+ & [ % B
A ANR¥70,611,633.457T (2017
#F : AR¥33,037,659.837L) °

20184 1-6 A&
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201846304 (A E¥T)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
5. Prepayments 5. EfNRE

An aging analysis of prepayments is presented as follows: T RIBRRESTAT

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
2018 6H30H 2017F12A318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBEX) (&&ER)
Proportion Proportion
Amount (%) Amount (%)
kx| o 4l(%) | EE41(%)
Within 1 year 1FIAR 853,632,320.21 95.60 526,645,255.35 94.08
110 2 years 1226 9,909,460.01 1.11 20,047,546.92 3.58
2 to 3 years 2E3F 19,427,003.75 2.18 5,656,242.87 1.01
Over 3 years 3L E 9,909,659.20 . 7,453,447.02 133
892,878,443.17 559,802,492.16 100.00

MR2018F6H30H @« EERE—FIU L

MEZEMNK(2017F12H31H
) o

As at 30 June 2018, there was no significant prepayments with an

age of more than one year (31 December 2017: Nil).

M201856 A30H © B AEHN
ENRENBRRREETAARE
297,124,344.59 7 © & T8 1 318 55
REAFEA TR L1 /533.28% ©

As at 30 June 2018, the closing balances of the top 5 prepayments
amounted in aggregate to RMB297,124,344.59, representing

33.28% of the total closing balances of all prepayments at end.

20174128318 » BEMNAELZHN
BRRENFRBEETRARE
156,630,224.47 7L 5B KB F
RERFEE T EM L /R27.98% -

As at 31 December 2017, the closing balances of the top 5
prepayments amounted in aggregate to RMB156,630,224.47,
representing 27.98% of the total closing balances of all

prepayments as at year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~# f B % it % 3 2 EH H 5 5

Statements (Continued) (%)
6. Other receivables 6. HfthpE KR

30 June 2018
2018%F6H30H

31 December 2017
2017912 A831H

Interests receivable
Fixed deposits
Dividends receivable
Juli Motorenwerke CZ
Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Finance Co., Ltd.
Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.
Proplan Transport
Procurement rebates receivable
Employee advance

Corporate lending and payment

JE U B,
TEHIER
JFEE U P A
Juli Motorenwerke CZ

LRETSREMNBARAE

PREGERET RS EE R I B PR A
Proplan Transport

JE IR B R R

kR

R EEER AT

(Unaudited)
(REER)

76,888,774.46
76,888,774.46
97,125,525.81
14,920,425.00

82,205,100.81

87,665,167.98
51,622,773.34

(Audited)
(BFEZ)

25,264,533.85
25,264,533.85
5,228,280.90

2,240,000.00
2,988,280.90
71,881,477.84
45,557,451.03

on behalf 45,507,079.84 46,344,186.61
Tax rebate receivable FEUGR R 2,743,652.35 38,191,631.63
Others Hih 792,362,309.20 704,163,176.25
1,153,915,282.98 936,630,738.11

Less: provision for bad debts B SRR 50,265,509.92 48,508,702.99

1,103,649,773.06 888,122,035.12
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

6. Other receivables (Continued)
An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:

PR 5 2 M R (4)
201846304 (A E¥T)

G OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

6. HttEWR(E)
E A BRI BREE D AT AT -

30 June 2018
201856 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

1,028,604,631.42
37,452,831.89
17,516,235.23
70,341,584.44

Within 1 year 1F AR

1 to 2 years 15824F

2 to 3 years 235

Over 3 years 3FLAE

Less: Provision for bad debts A IR

1,153,915,282.98
50,265,509.92

1,103,649,773.06

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables

are as follows:

31 December 2017
2017912 A31H
(Audited)
(gE=)

816,955,863.79
34,618,444.64
16,715,314.94
68,341,114.74

936,630,738.11
48,508,702.99

888,122,035.12

Hoth YR HY IR AR R AV BB AN T

30 June 2018
20186 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

48,508,702.99
4,647,260.84

(400,947.98)

(1,628,480.00)

(920,510.09)
59,484.16

Opening balance ), F R
Provision for the period/year RERFEHR
Decrease during the period/year: Vi e
Reversal (]
Written off B
Decrease upon disposal of subsidiaries ~ BRE& T A @R
Adjustment for exchange differences N E R
Closing balance =, F KRR

50,265,509.92

31 December 2017
2017412 A31H
(Audited)
(gEZ)

51,626,275.30
8,846,040.31

(11,677,167.96)
(306,229.04)

19,784.38

48,508,702.99
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
6. Other receivables (Continued) 6. HEWF(E)

30 June 2018
2018%6H30H

Gross carrying ~ Proportion Provision for ~ Percentage

(Unaudited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
e
(REER) IREEAEE B 6l(%) BRER £ 4l(%)

Items for which provision for bad 2 18 57{ 78 Hi{= FB
debts is recognized and expected 1Bk EHREIE L
credit loss is assessed separately 468,966,183.37 20,836,314.01

Iltems for which provision for bad ~ #%{E RER AL
debts is recognized and expected 7 7 Hi{Z A 1B %
credit loss is assessed by group T IREER A
with distinctive credit risk
characteristics 684,949,099.61 29,429,195.91

1,153,915,282.98 50,265,509.92

31 December 2017

20174%12A31RH
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for Percentage
(Audited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
AR
(&5%) REEE L l(%) EREE L Bl(%)
Individually significant items for ~ EEGHESEATE
which provision for bad debtis ~ BEHIREERER
recognized separately 59,707,919.14 6.37 - -
Items for which provision for bad 1% {z A& 418 4
debt is recognized by group FHRERERE
with distinctive credit risk
characteristics 768,023,556.04 82.00 26,326,849.04 343
Not individually significant items ~ BEIE& A& AR
for which provision for bad debt ~ EXEsH R E R4
is recognized separately 108,899,262.93 11.63 22,181,853.95

936,630,738.11 100.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
6. Other receivables (Continued) 6. HREW(E)
The Group's other receivables for which bad debts are provided for AEBEFEABRE DA IRERER
using aging analysis are presented as follows: B E At E RIS R
30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201856 A30A 20175128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g21)
Carrying amount  Expected
estimatedtobe  credit loss Expected Gross carrying ~ Proportion Provision for ~ Percentage
indefault  rate (%) credit loss amount (%) bad debt (%)
A REES  RHEA iR
HEREHE Bx% BHERRX FESE L% EREE  HOI%)
Within 1 year [E 81,383,456.67 489 3,980,200.85 115,601,615.69 73.10 3,412,673.94 2.95
1102 years 15226 28,333,427.64 9.49 2,688,522.63 12,050,002.74 762 680,121.73 5.64
210 3 years 123F 5.903,953.73 30.00 1,771,186.12 9,106,807.44 5.76 2,175,938.61 23.89
3104 years 3E4F 4,315,540.83 44.97 1,940,515.45 1,389,743.01 0.88 495322.13 35.64
4105 years 4E5F 1,256,591.93 80.00 1,005,273.55 1,628,140.13 1.03 1,197,929.70 73.58
QOver 5 years SEE 17,308,953.31 100.00 17,308,953.31 18,364,862.93 11.61 18,364,862.93 100.00

138,501,924.11 20.72 28,694,651.91 158,141,171.94 100.00 26,326,849.04 16.65

Bad debts are provided for using overdue periods as credit risk KASBRRREREARBISE-EE
profile as follows: WIZERERERNAT

30 June 2018
2018%6H30H

Carrying Expected credit
amount loss during

estimated Expected credit the entire

(Unaudited) to be in default loss rate subsistence
HErEEN FEHIEH AHEH
(REER) Y AR &R &8 BL®E BX

Provided for using overdue age IZBHABRESFHR 546,447,175.50 0.13 734,544.00

546,447,175.50 0.13 734,544.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ B 0H H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)
6. Other receivables (Continued) 6. HEWF(E)

31 December 2017

2017F12A31H
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for Percentage
(Audited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
BEs
(&&”) SR L 1(%) ZIRER L6 51(%)
Within 1 year 1ER 556,545,861.30 91.25 - -
110 2 years 1226 22,259,961.90 3.65 - -
2 to 3 years 2E3F 4,798,414.50 0.79 - -
Over 3 years 3FEME 26,278,146.40 431 - -
609,882,384.10 100.00 - -
As at 30 June 2018, the top 5 other receivables are presented as M2018F 6300 » HibERFKEHE
follows: AIAEZNT :
Percentage of Closing balance
total other of bad debt
(Unaudited) Closing balance receivables (%) Nature provision
R E A YRR
BEATY BERER
(REER) BRBE KL Al (%) #tHE i HRGBE
First F£—4% 82,205,100.81 7.12  Dividends receivable Within 1 year
FEUR R F k20
Second £-4 38,349,318.00 . Others Within 1 year 53,113.81

Hity (ED

Third E=4 32,411,754.00 . Others Within 1 year 44,890.28
Hity (ED

Fourth ik 18,187,615.50 : Others Within 1 year 25,189.85
Hity 1 HA

Fifth FRhA 17,514,283.50 . Others Within 1 year 24,257.28
Hity 1 HA

188,668,071.81 147,451.22

‘I
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
6. Other receivables (Continued) 6. HEWI(E)
As at 31 December 2017, the top 5 other receivables are presented MR2017F128318 - HEKR S
as follows: HAILAWT

Percentage of Closing balance

total other of bad debt

(Audited) Closing balance  receivables (%) Nature Age provision

8 AT 5R

BEAHH BRER

(B&%) ERBE #9LE (%) 41 KR ERBE

First £—4 119,819,921.10 1279 Commission receivable Within 1 year -
ElEe 1ELR

Second £-% 34,443,385.29 3.68 Tax rebate receivable Within 1 year -
FENCERT TR TEHR

Third £=4 34,041,434.90 3.63 Others 110 2 years -
it 1526

Fourth EJUES 19,568,168.40 2.09 Others Within 1 year -
Hith TEHR

Fifth LR 18,694,310.80 2.00 Others Within 1 year -
Hfth 1ELAR

226,567,220.49 24.19 -

As at 30 June 2018, no other receivables was pledged for securing M2018F 6300 » REEE G HA

bank borrowings of the Group (31 December 2017: Nil). RN E RARRSRITERNBER

(20174%12A318 : &) -

i3

7. Inventories 7. &

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201856A30H 017128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH) (B&%)
@ross carrying Provision for Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carying
amount decline in value amount amount decline in value amount

REGHHE HEER RERE RESKE HEER RHEE

Raw materials R 5,514,072,191.38 (252,091,946.51)  5,261,980,244.87 4,567,989,108.76 (215650465.41)  4,352,338,643.35
Finished goods Ebim 13,375,599,897.16 (418,957,860.69)  12,956,642,036.47  IVEVIWITFEIRY (535,36743939)  12,290,898,997.59

OEM materials ZREMIHH 314,211,297.77 (1,424,589.02) 312,786,708.75 198,682,585.73 (2,228,686.48) 196,453,899.25

1,983,791,385.00 (85,834,929.06)  1,897,956,455.94 2,598,462, 747.11 (81459,284.93)  2,517,003,462.18
690,588,203.24 (68,590,116.74) 621,998,086.50 553,295,796.60 (59,168,335.30) 494,127,461.30

21,878,262,974.55 (826,899442.02)  21,051,363532.53  RANEINELNTENE (893,874211.51)  19,850,822,463.67

_.j-
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)

7. Inventories (Continued) 7. BE(#&)
The changes in provision for decline in value of inventories are as FEREBEBESHMOT ¢
follows:
January to June 2018 20184 1-6 H

Decrease during the period

AHHD
Charge Adjustment
Opening during for exchange Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period Reversal Write-off EEE balance
(REEH) HnE KR 1] B EREZENE HABE
Raw materials BT 215,650,465.41 56,666,783.56 (13,841,145.77) (2,427,953.15) (3,956,203.54) 252,091,946.51
Finished goods Efm 535,367,439.39 89,856,486.66 (12,466,942.38)  (193,062,543.76) (736,579.22) 418,957,860.69
OEM materials ZEMIMH 2,228,686.48 601,850.14 (59,328.50) (1,193,204.01) (153,415.09) 1,424,589.02
Seff made semi-finished goods ~ BEER AR
and work in progress EER 81,459,284.93 8,564,316.51 (3,823,858.64) (364,813.74) 85,834,929.06
Second-hand vehicles k3 59,168,335.30 15,402,345.711 (4,650,628.27) (1,329,936.00) 68,590,116.74
893,874,211.51 171,091,782.58 (34,841,903.56)  (196,683,700.92) (6,540,947.59) 826,899,442.02
2017 20174
Decrease during the year
KRS
Adjustment
Opening Charge for exchange Closing
(Audited) balance during the year Reversal Write-off differences balance
(LE7) ENGBE KEGIR 20 &y EREEAR ERBE
Raw materials RiTH 163,651,027.37  106,799,685.78  (44,064,505.23)  (19,373,308.23) 8,637,565.72 215,650,465.41
Finished goods Efm 399,709,065.68  455349,455.05  (30,414,230.91)  (292,355,224.31) 3,078,373.88 535,367,439.39
OEM materials ZRNIHH 679,124.35 10,265.04 (515,460.54) - 2,054,757.63 2,28,686.48
Self made semi-finished goods B ¥ Kk
and work in progress EER 64,180,637.89 22,705,341.20 (4,912,082.27) (1,283,189.79) 768,577.90
Second-hand vehicles “F® 38,111,090.22 31,341,60431  (13,122,209.22) - 2,837,849.99

666,330,945.51  616,206,351.38  (93,028,488.17)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

7.

Inventories (Continued)

Provision for decline in value of inventories is determined based on
the excess of cost over net realizable value and shall be reversed
within the original provision for decline in value of inventories when
the factors that give rise to the decline in value of inventories in

prior years are not in effect in current period.

Contract assets and contract liabilities
(applicable to 2018 only)

(
7

PR 5 2 M R (4)
201846304 (A E¥T)

G OF B R R IH H RE R

)
. FE(E)

REBRRAABRTERFENZ
BAHREEBEEMR - B ARTRE
FEREENTEEZUANE  ERE
ARNEEREERNSEANEE -

cREEREGRAEE(EE
F2018%)

30 June 2018

Provision for Carrying

impairment amount

HEER AREEE

998,092,266.00
31,302,286.50

1,029,394,552,50

30 June 2018
2018%F6H30H

1,688,073,930.00

201846 HA30H
Gross
carrying
(Unaudited) amount
(REER) AR EREE
Contract assets SRIEE
Construction contracts EZiEAR 998,092,266.00
Others EHih 31,302,286.50
1,029,394,552.50
(Unaudited)
(REBER)
Contract liabilities ERBE
Construction contracts EiEAR
Sales and other services SHE R EAM AR

4,147,049,677.04

5,835,123,607.04




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

8.

Contract assets and contract liabilities
(applicable to 2018 only) (Continued)

The combined information of the completed and unsettled assets
arising from construction contracts included in closing balance of

contract assets is set out below:

Interim Report 2018 A HAZRE

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201846 H30H (A RHET)
1 ~é‘ﬁg{#,ﬁa‘%$&%igiﬁ H &k R
(ll' )
8. EREERGRAGB(ERE
20184 ) (&)

AREESNRBEPEERESRT
KRBT IAREEEENEAELN
T

Cost incurred Gross profit/(loss) Amount already

(Unaudited) todate  recognized to date Expected loss settled
ZiER4 2iEER BHELS
(REEH) RA 8/ (68) SEHE-PY Med

30 June 2018 20184630 15,006,481,420.50 163,619,676.00 (7,651.50)  (15,860,075,109.00) (689,981,664.00)

As at 30 June 2018, provision for impairment of contract assets was

not made or reversed.

Non-current assets due within one year

Incl.: Contract assets Hb: AEEE 998,092,266.00
Contract liabilities AFEE  1,688,073,930.00

Total i (689,981,664.00)

HZE2018F6A30H @ NEB TR
b EA B EEREEE -

9. —FRIMNFARDEE

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201856 A30H 201712 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Finance lease receivables BB T & R Note V.13
MsER - 13 1,809,419,068.50 1,778,971,213.80

As at 30 June 2018, none of the Group’s non-current assets due
within one year was pledged to secure its bank borrowings (31
December 2017: Nil).

20186 A30R @ AEEEK—F
WEIER ) FER B) & 2= E 1 A R EVAS ER
TERMIEBR (20174128318
/) o

141
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PR 5 2 M R (4)
201846304 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ 20H H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
10. Other current assets 10. EtERBEE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

30 June 2018 31 December 2017

20186 H30H 2017128318

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (gER)

Prepaid expenses FHER 598,478,008.92 317,226,252.50

Input tax credit to be deducted FIRFEER R 943,300,732.41 976,689,410.88
Principal-protected fixed income wealth  {RZN[EE W s i 12 B 2 S

management products 900,000,000.00

RAZEN USRI IB B EE

wealth management products -
Prepaid corporate income tax TEBI S 166,154,419.07
Others Hih 30,380,221.17

Principal-protected variable income
1,465,000,000.00
112,464,979.01
21,395,856.35

1,738,313,381.57

3,792,776,498.74

M. IHHEELREE(EEH
2017%)

11. Available-for-sale financial assets (applicable
to 2017 only)

31 December 2017
20179 12A31H

Gross carrying Provision for Carrying

(Audited) amount impairment amount

(&= Z) BRMEeREE B BREEE
Available-for-sale equity HHERSTEA

instruments

At fair value BRAREERE 319,262,446.10 = 319,262,446.10

At cost B AR 2 404,076,700.21 (128,491,930.00) 275,584,770.21

723,339,146.31 (128,491,930.00) 594,847,216.31

Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value: WAARBEAENAIHEESRE

=

31 December 2017

20174 12H31H

Cost of equity instruments HEZE T ARAK 220,938,445.40

air value AL I=LIE] 319,262,446.10

ZEFTAR MR A RER DA BEED)
97,267,793.70
T 5 Z=Ra T B 1,056,207.00
FHRRIE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~# f B % it % 3 2 1EH B 5 5

Statements (Continued) (#)
11. Available-for-sale financial assets (applicable M. AtHESHEE(EER
to 2017 only) (Continued) 20175 ) (#&)
Available-for-sale financial assets at cost: A ENAHEESHERE
2017 20174
(Gross carying amount
BESE
Opening
balance and
Increase Decrease Adjustment dosing balance ~ Percentage of
Opening during duing forexchange Closng ~ of provisionfor ~~~shareholding ~~ Cash diidend
(Audited) balance the year the year differences balance impairment (%) for the year
HEERF BRI 33
(#21) F8E AEEN KER)  EREESE ErBE REXBE (%) REAH
Xiamen Fengtai Bus & Coach EFERARTER
Intemational Co, Ltd AERRAT 24,999,800.00 - - - 24,999,800.00 - 1547 -
Huarong Xiangjiang Bank ERETRA
Corporation Limited 20,000,000.00 - - - 20,000,000.00 = 032 2,000,000.00
Thuzhou Gear Company Limited KHEERHERAR 1,680,000.00 - - - 1,680,00000 = 245 =
Yangzhou Suken Yinhe Auto BlNEEETET
Connecting Rod Co,, Ltd. BRAT 1563,949.23 - = - 15639493 - 15.00 =
Others it 3807870968  49,066,044.00  (31,641,83820) 1033003550 35583295098  128491,930.00 18,394,992.00

37632245891 49,066,04400  (31,64183820) 1033003550 40407670021  128,491,930.00 20,394,992.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (#)
12. Investment in other equity instruments 12. HEETAERE(EER
(applicable to 2018 only) 2018%)

30 June 2018 20186 H30H

Dividend income in current period

KHRFIRA
Fair value
changes accrued
to other Equity instruments
comprehensive derecognised Equity
(Unaudited) income Fair value in current period instruments held
EE DN
AfpiRala RHALRD SR
(REEH) 7 HARBESE f MERIR
Beigi Foton Motor Co, Lid. tARESERR
1N 194,000,000.00 (31,600,000.00) 162,400,000.00
Balyo SA Balyo SA 23,516,325.00 38,093,553.00 61,609,878.00
Huarong Xiangjiang Bank ERRIHN
Corporation Limited 20,000,000.00 29,560,000.00 49,560,000.00
Xiamen Fengtai Bus & Coach B LHERBH KR
International Co., Ltd HEERAT 24,999,800.00 7,620,200.00 32,620,000.00
Foton Heavy-duty Machinery B ER iR (7
Co,, Ltd. ARRAE 30,000,000.00 - 30,000,000.00
Others i 11,874,826.11 (3,132,032.36) 8,742,7193.75

304,390,951.11

40,541,720.64

344,932,671.75
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
13. Long-term receivables

Interim Report 2018 s 145

PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201846 H30H (A E¥T)

(748)
13. REIEWRR

o~ O B R

H ke

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201856830 20175128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&HK) (827
@ross carrying Provision for Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount impairment amount amount impairment amount
i) AERR REfE FE4E HEERE REEE
Finance lease receivables BARERUT 7,048,806,648.00 7,048,806,648.00 6,832,973451.20 - 6,832,973,457.20
Other long-term receivables i & BB 43 = - 143,811,993.60 - 143,811,993.60
7,048,806,648.00 7,048,806,648.00 6,976,785,450.80 - 6,976,785,450.80
Less: Finance lease AR
receivables classified —Ef
as due within HEnmE
one year icilel  1,809,419,068.50 1,809,419,068.50 1,778,971,213.80 - 1,778,971,213.80
5,239,387,579.50 5.239,387,579.50 5,197,814,237.00 = 5,197,814,237.00

The discount rate adopted for finance lease receivables ranged from

0% to 15%.

As at 30 June 2018, among the aforesaid finance lease receivables,
unrealized finance income amounted to RMB725,568,790.50 (31

December 2017: RMB674,563,451.10).

As at 30 June 2018, no long-term receivables was pledged for

0%-15% -

BEHERUFRANTRERRER

M2018F6HA30H » Lilg&EHE
FERRPRERBERZAARE

725,568,790.50 0 (20174 12 A 31
H: AR#¥674,563,451.107T) °

MR2018FE6A30H  AEBEE S K H

securing bank borrowings of the Group (31 December 2017: Nil).

JEU G R AR BB RITERNBR
(20174128318 : £&) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
14. Long-term equity investments
30 June 2018

Opening Increase in Other
(Unaudited) balance investments increases
(%E2H) LB EngE Him

Jointlycontrolled enterprises A ERE
X'an FC ntellgence Transmission B& &5 588

PR 5 2 M R (4)
201846304 (A E¥T)

G OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

14. RERERSE
201846 A30H

Change during the period
LS 1)

Gains and losses

Decrease in
investments

Other
comprehensive
income

on investment
under equity
method
EmiET

RERE  RttARNE

Declaration of
cash dividend

Closing
balance

EERERA HRBE

incl: Closing
provision for
impairment
A AR

AEER

Co, L1d. Note ) ERAAGH) 106,244,043.95 90,03431 106,334,786
Assocites Beis
Shanzhong Fnance Leasing ~~ LUEBEHEE
(o, td. ERAR 461,023,063.87 11,429,695.01 472,452,758.88
Shandong Heay Industy WREISESH
Group Finance Co,, Ltd. BRAA 962,366,597.64 55,872,233.78 (82,205,100.81) 936,033,730.61
Other associates which arenot ~ EEAERHIEA
individually significant Ba0g 1,109,302,210.02 68,445,000.00 190,118,644.10 (431,480.00) 68,841,080.96 (9,955,009.69) (713518945.59)  1,352,801,499.80 (4,844,091.33)
2,638,935,915.48 68,445,000.00 190,118,644.10 (431,480.00) 136,233,044.06 (9.955,000.69)  (155,724,046.40)  2,867,622,067.55 (4,844,091.33)
2017 20174
Change during the year
KE8Y
(Gains and losses
on investment Other Closing Closing
Opening Increase in Decrease in underequity  comprehensive Declaration of arnying provision for
(Audited) balance nvestrents nvestrments method income cash dividend amount impairment
ERET
= EfBE BinkE RORE REEE  EbGekE  SERERN  FAREEE  EAREER
Jointly-controlled enterprises AEhE
Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission AZEREEEHERAT
Co, Ltd. (Note 1) (1) 129,176,924.53 - - (2932,88058) - - 106,244,04395 -
Bsociates BEtE
Shanzhong Fnence Leasing Co, td. BB ERERBAT 10771337898 3521739130 - 1809229359 - - 61006387 -
Shandong Heavy Industry Group LREISEREARAA
finance Co,, Ltd. 267,764440.23  648,207,280.00 - 46,394.871.41 - - 962,366,597.64 -
hongging Yunyang Automobile L REES N
ing Company Limited - 75,502,871.68 - (1,192,489.41) - - 7431038227 -
n0 BEREAMANBRECE
740316,048.11  278818145.12 - 44,054,290.46 230397846 (50,500,63440) 1,034,991,827.75 (4,844.091.33)
4497079185 1,037,745,688.10 8441609147 2230397846 (50,500,63440) 2,638,935915.48 (4,844,001.33)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F i % 3% £ HIH H s B

Statements (Continued) ()
14. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 14. RERERE (&)

Note 1: Xi’an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. is held as to 51% by the H1: AEBERBEARERESEEHARR
Group, and as to 4% and 45% by Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive RIS1% MR - SHONMALRE APEF
Transmission Co., Ltd. (“Transmission Co") and Caterpillar (China) FrTEESHEEAEREETAR(ES
Investment Co., Ltd (“Caterpillar”) respectively. Its board of directors E@/ DM RERH(FEHR)REERA
comprises seven directors, three of whom being nominated by the AT RE®EE])  BED B AB4%M
Group, one being nominated by Transmission Co and three being 45% c EEEHEREFMAX - A
nominated by Caterpillar. According to its articles of association, board —ZHEAEEZER —FHEEHEE
resolutions require unanimous approval or approval by substantially all ZE BI=Z2HEEERHZT B
directors, and thus Xi‘an FC Intelligence Transmission Co. is a jointly- BARERNT EFQREATEE
controlled enterprise of the Group. EERRIEBRAZHAZTAB

AL EREEEHERANBRAE
SEEERE -
Provision for impairment of long-term equity investments is presented as REREREREEFEOER
follows:
January to June 2018 20184 1-6 7
Increase Decrease Adjustment
Opening during the during the  for exchange Closing
(Unaudited) balance period period differences balance
ERZHE
(RBEXK) HHEREE 75 38 hn D AE HREREE
Zhuzhou Auto Trading Market % ITERZ 55 (284,499.56) - (284,499.56)
Torque Turbine Torque Turbine
Engine Co. Engine Co. (4,559,591.77) - (4,559,591.77)
(4,844,091.33) - (4,844,091.33)
2017 20174
Increase Decrease Adjustment
Opening during the during the for exchange Closing
(Audited) balance year year differences balance
EHER
(&%) FEE ARELLN RER A AE FERHBH
Zhuzhou Auto Trading Market  #kMNREX Z 15 (284,499.56) - - - (284,499.56)
Torque Turbine Torque Turbine
Engine Co. Engine Co. (4,559,591.77) - - - (4,559,591.77)

(4,844,091.33) = = - (4,844,091.33)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20186 H30H (AR T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
15. Other non-current financial assets 15. HttERBERMEE
30 June 2018 201846 A30H
(Audited) 30 June 2017
(58 &%) 201766 H30H
Long-term receivables of financial assets at fair value AR A BEE 8 B A S & AL H
through profit or loss for the current period B mEERPERKIE
174,002,761.50
Others Hi 60,691,698.00
234,694,459.50
16. Investment property 16. REMEME
Subsequent measurement under the cost model: HARAENETREE -
January to June 2018 20184 1-6 H
Houses and
(Unaudited) buildings Land use rights
(REER) EEREY + i {5 FIRE
Gross carrying amount JRIE

Opening balance s 723,095,330.53 62,341,667.04  785,436,997.57

Transfer from construction in ~ fEZT2E A

progress 29,047,227.54 29,047,227.54
Transfer from fixed assets BTEEEA 16,003,102.98 16,003,102.98
Closing balance BAREREE 768,145,661.05 62,341,667.04 830,487,328.09

Less: Accumulated depreciation J& : SEtH7TE F# s
and amortization
Opening balance HATNERER 208,256,880.37 7,969,590.39 216,226,470.76
Provision S 14,533,236.74 749,992.89 15,283,229.63
Transfer from fixed assets BEEEEEA 2,383,678.19 - 2,383,678.19

Closing balance BARep%8 225,173,795.30 8,719,583.28 233,893,378.58

Carrying amount FREEE
At period end ! 542,971,865.75 53,622,083.76 596,593,949.51

514,838,450.16 54,372,076.65 569,210,526.81
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F % 3 £ ZIH H 5 B
Statements (Continued) (%)

16. Investment property (Continued)

Subsequent measurement under the cost model (Continued):

16. REMFEHE (&)
RARAER AT R () -

2017 20174
Houses and
(Audited) buildings Land use rights Total
¢ &) FEEREEY + Hb {5 A A A&t
Gross carrying amount BE
Opening balance FAEREE 733,197,517.53 62,341,667.04 795,539,184.57
Transfer from construction EEIREA
in progress 7,665,755.07 - 7,665,755.07
Transfer from fixed assets BEFEEEA 256,862.25 - 256,862.25
Transfer to fixed assets EHERTEE (18,024,804.32) - (18,024,804.32)
Closing balance FREREE 723,095,330.53 62,341,667.04 785,436,997.57
Less: Accumulated depreciation & : 2 EHHTEE A
and amortization
Opening balance FHREE 180,745,184.75 6,677,407.00 187,422,591.75
Provision TR 33,566,778.04 1,292,183.39 34,858,961.43
Transfer to fixed assets HHEERTEE (6,055,082.42) = (6,055,082.42)
Closing balance FREFTE 208,256,880.37 7,969,590.39 216,226,470.76
Carrying amount REEE
At year end FR 514,838,450.16 54,372,076.65 569,210,526.81
At year beginning F7) 552,452,332.78 55,664,260.04 608,116,592.82

As at 30 June 2018, there were no investment properties for which R2018F6 A30H « A& B &M AE
SEMEZFNREEREE(2017F
12A31H8 : ARK#¥16,042,210.35

JC) °©

the Group had not obtained real estate certificates (31 December
2017: RMB16,042,210.35).

17. Fixed assets

17. BEEE

30 June 2018
20186 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

31 December 2017
2017912 A831H

BE&E
BEEEBE

Fixed Assets 26,450,965,452.10

Disposal of fixed assets 1,227,092.75

26,452,192,544.85
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)
17. Fixed assets (Continued) 17. BEEE(E)
January to June 2018 2018 1-6 H

Forklift trucks Forklift trucks

and equipment  and equipment

Land, houses and Machinery and Electronic leased out leased out
(Unaudited) buildings equipment equipment Vehicles (long-term) (short-term)
DL HhRE
(7E%H) 1HREEREY KERE ET3f EaRf RRE(RE) RRfE(EH)
(Gross carrying amount @
Opening balance Binee 12,670326,175.16  17,496,254819.76  1,304,847,699.26 40466247472 541071850626 7,130,148,156.74  2,529,767,449.51  46,946,725,281.41
Addition BE 4948261857 115,511,711.07 11,543,495.64 429372110 968,626,370.00  1,717,290,400.00 1522542343 3,019,000,805.81
Transfer from construction- R THEEA
n-progress 203,273,915.44 133,422,608.35 23,185,683.87 8,742,755.48 72,989,983.27 441,614946.41
Increase arising from WETFAR
acquisition of subsidiaries Em - - = - - - 115,575.00 115,575.00
Disposals or refirements RENEE (0633539.77)  (132.232,552.8) (29,510,149.78) (1057957433)  (572,936,095.00) ~ (1,265,631,005.00) (91,122872.27)  (2,111,645,788.97)
Decrease arising from REFAT
disposal of subsidiaries 03 (27,443,180.47)  (184,572,959.80) (7,041,869.76) (3,201,286.80) (3,609,297.79)  (225,368,594.62)
Transfer o investment property  # AR
RiE (16,003,102.98) (16,003,102.98)
Adustmentforexchange ¥ £EHE
diference (111,075,788.49) (59,941,473.22) (34,8298 (53388.01)  (151,044551.33)  (260,446,138,57) (34,175,56852)  (616,771,737.96)
Closing balance BR4E 12758927,09746  17,368,442.21334  1,302,990,029.41 40386470816 565536422993 732136141317 262621769263  47,437,167,384.10

Less: Accumulated depreciation i : E3t17E

Opening balance BiesE 2907,717,358.01  10,605,688.215.75  1,035,983,208.25 17163236 133370466426  2,049457365.95  1,209,342,996.88  19,464,065,441.46
Provision i3 288,815,114.10 616,497,09%.48 81,503,195.65 12,854,585.48 508,953,264.55 831,530,210.57 220,026,831.92  2,560,180,298.75
Disposals or retirements REJHE (7,466,200.23) (94,208,624.43) (33,232,481.05) (9157,593.70)  (277,783,881.05)  (699,533,363.24) (38249,476.70)  (1,159,631,62040)
Decrease arising from RETAT
disposal of subsidiaries i (19,486,110.69) (7,043,190.36) (4,659,968.82) (2,075,621.54) (2142,429.03)  (102,407,32044)
Transfer to investment property & AR A
EiE (2,383,678.19) (2,383,678.19)
Adjustment for exchange EfZH
difference = (35,567,508.87) (22,855,500.73) (11,932.99) (20,502.66) (40,868,379.33) (94,491,601.62) (13302,71087)  (207,118,137.07)

Closing balance BreE 313162897413 11,031,0779%6.71  1,079,582,021.04 3371249994 152400566843 2,086,962,611.66 137567521220  20,552,704,984.11
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F i % 3% £ HIH H s B

Statements (Continued) (78)
17. Fixed assets (Continued) 17. BEEEE(E)
January to June 2018 (Continued) 2018F1-6 A (#)

Forklift trucks Forklift trucks

and equipment and equipment

Land, houses and Machinery and Electronic leased out leased out
(Unaudited) buildings equipment equipment Vehicles (long-term) (short-term) Others
LD AthRE
(7E%H) THREEREY KERE E1RE EURE RRfE(RS) R (EH) At
Less: Provision for impairment & : HE£[E
Opening balance HingaE 196,075,379.40 210,254,959.51 7,049,355.92 58,339.59 1817171531 415,255,809.79
Provision iR 20,000,000.00 - - - - 20,000,000.00
Disposals or retirements RESHE - (52,329.04) (2,901.00 - - (55,230.04)
Decrease arising from RETAE
disposal of subsidaries B (660,547.27) (28,132.90) (6,223.91) (694,904.08)
Adustmentforexchange ~~ EY EERE
diference (70,423.60) (921,715.87) (0.01) (16,588.30) (1,008,727.78)
Closing balance BReE 216,004,955.80 208,620,367.33 7,018,322.01 58,339.59 1,794,963.16 433,496,947.89
Canying amount EAEE
At period end S 941129316753 6,128,743,84930 216,389,686.36 8003386863 413135856150 523439880151  1,248,747517.21  26,450,965452.10

At period beginning b 9,566,533,437.75  6,680,311,64.50 261,815,135.09 8243250277 4077,01384200  5080690,790.79  1,318,606,677.26  27,067,404,030.16
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& ff B % it 3 £ % EH H 5: &

Statements (Continued) (#)
17. Fixed assets (Continued) 17. BEEE(E)
2017 20174

Forklft trucks Forkift trucks
and equipment and equipment

Houses and Machinery and Electronic leased out leased out
(Audited) buldings equipment equipment Vehicles (long-term) (short-term) Others Total
ALHNE ALHNE
(%7) BEREEN EERE 13k B8k RE(RE) REE(EE) ifh At
(Gross carrying amount FE
Opening balance ENHE 11970692,560.82  16,909,302,759.76 1.215,459,453.91 405,99,127.49  3972,096,113.21 5766,139,95246  2,152,990,305.28 4239267727293
Addition BE 141,543,736.53 278,643,822.86 26,869,723.49 16,175,999.81 249722508480 2,652,229,525.19 531.214,453.77 6,143,902,346.45
Transfer from construction- AR THREA
n-progress 469,768,892.58 721,744,162.78 82,503,851.76 1347197072 - - 43398,353.53 1,330,887,231.37
Increase arising from RUEFAR
acquisition of subsidiaries 0 10,99,737.04 10,420,162.63 - - 3472,014.00 3,853,554.00 5,265,252.00 34,007,719.67
Transfer from investment FEERERE
properties EIN 18,024,804.32 - - - - - - 18,024,804.32

Disposals or refirements EEE (103,665,253.02) (525,929,825.44) (19,.826,617.52) (30.789,81792)  (1,335,351,846.00  (1,516,873,316.40) (232,174,760.45) (3,764,611,436.75)
Transfer to investment &) REk

property BHE (256,862.25) - - - - - - (256,862.25)
Adustment forexchange Y ZERE

(ifferences 163,221,559.14 102,073,737.17 (158,712.38) (191,805.38) 273,277,140.25 204,793 441.49 29,073,845.38 792,094,205.67
Closing balance FREE 12670326,175.16 17,496,254,819.76 130484769926 40466247472 541071850626 7,130,148,156.74  2,529,767,449.51 46,946,125,281.41

Less: Accumulated depreciation | © 2317

Opening balance ENHE 2411.881,19560  9,506,867,000.02 916,550,609.71 3374318 831,005,088.41 1,511,254,405.97 941,889,482.10 16,442,875,219.63
Provision i 571456,983.65  1,480,044,591.82 134,313.820.88 21,170,015.73 886,576,867.20  1,468349,059.20 485,152,7192.01 5,053,064,13049
Increase arising from REETFAR

acquisiton of subsidiaries Em - - - - - - - -
Transfer from investment RELEWE

properties #\ 6,055,08242 - - - - - - 6,055,08242
Disposals or retirements REYHE (1471871282) (418,261,977 (14,846,627.11) (28311,60240)  (44486800020)  (929,065161.60)  (214,964,232.49) (2,125,036,322.64)
Adustment for exchange EERER

differences (6,957,190.84) 37,038,60093 (34595.23) (114218.79) 60,990,717.85 (1,080,937.62) (2,735,044.74) 87,107,33156

Closing balance ERRE 290771735801 1060568821575 103598320825 32217163236 133370466426 204945736595  1,209,342,996.88 19,464,005,44146

Less: Provision for impairment 5 ¢ HEERE
Opening balance 58 185054345 151,417,04550 14,649.06 5833959 - - 375,366.68 153,845,944.28
Provision it 19417485358 128,284866.38 703353199 - - - 1436,339.68 330929591 63
Disposals or etirements RESHE - (7005380459) (128825.13) - - - (5,704.14) (70,188,333.86)
Adustmentforexchange Y ZEEE

4998231 606,852.22 = = = = 717315 £68,607.74

196,075,379.40 210,254,959.51 704935592 5833959 = = 181777531 415,255,800.79

843050077 407701384200 508069,790.79  1,318,606,677.26 27,067 404,030.16

425488554649 1,210,725456.50 25,795,956,109.02

y e
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F i % 3% £ HIH H s B
Statements (Continued) (%)

17. Fixed assets (Continued)

17. BEEEE(E)

Fixed assets which are temporarily idle are presented as follows:

ERHNEMNBETEEDT

30 June 2018 2018F6 H30H

Gross Accumulated Provision for
(Unaudited) carrying amount depreciation impairment ~ Carrying amount
(REER) RE BRIt & BEER REEE
Houses and buildings FEEEY 393,669,808.95 (76,343,076.68)  (189,932,741.31)  127,393,990.96
Machinery and equipment R 302,075,203.40 (181,649,870.61) (65,801,758.22) 54,623,574.57
Electronic equipment B 40,621,114.97 (32,266,022.54) (7,020,836.42) 1,334,256.01
Transportation equipment BHHRE 9,615,300.96 (8,905,459.38) (38,973.52) 670,868.06
Others o R4 487,426.10 (472,803.32) - 14,622.78

746,468,854.38  (299,637,232.53)  (262,794,309.47)  184,037,312.38

31 December 2017 201712 H31H

Gross Accumulated Provision for
(Audited) carrying amount depreciation impairment Carrying amount
(f&&E”) RE ZEtiIE B FEEE
Houses and buildings FEEEY 377,994,957.48 (66,336,182.93)  (126,729,546.42) 184,929,228.13
Machinery and equipment R 268,769,786.39  (174,520,361.99) (25,474,315.01) 68,775,109.39
Electronic equipment BFHE 31,128,096.50 (24,481,074.37) (1,583,571.77) 5,063,450.36
Transportation equipment BERE 3,523,809.69 (2,441,616.74) (95,604.70) 986,588.25

681,416,650.06

(267,779,236.03)

(153,883,037.90)

259,754,376.13
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (#)
17. Fixed assets (Continued) 17. BEEE (&)
Fixed assets leased in under finance lease are presented as follows: BEMABRTEENT ¢
30 June 2018 2018%F 6 H30H
Gross Accumulated Provision for
(Unaudited) carrying amount depreciation impairment  Carrying amount
(REER) RE RiHE HEERE RHEEE
Houses and buildings FEEEEY) 43,024,598.74 (22,480,107.00) 20,544,491.74
Machinery and equipment EEET 66,942,973.50 (29,902,062.00) 37,040,911.50
Electronic equipment ETH 194,286,413.61 (45,970,212.00) 148,316,201.61
Forklift trucks and equipment MmN ER
leased out (long-term) HE(RE) 4,113,229,261.43  (1,108,431,650.93) 3,004,797,610.50
Forklift trucks and equipment MmN ER
leased out (short-term) RE(EH) 5,481,862,911.53  (1,375,379,376.53) 4,106,483,535.00
9,899,346,158.81  (2,582,163,408.46) 7,317,182,750.35
31 December 2017 2017%F12H31H
Gross Accumulated Provision for
(Audited) carrying amount depreciation impairment Carrying amount
(BE=R) R{E ZENE WEER FEERE
Houses and buildings EEREY 34,915,292.50 (21,120,826.10) - 13,794,466.40
Machinery and equipment RN 68,262,322.70 (23,040,191.90) - 45,222,130.80
Electronic equipment ETH 225,853,178.10 (55,755,235.80) - 170,097,942.30
Forklift trucks and equipment AHAXER
leased out (long-term) FfE(RE) 4,357,443,567.58  (1,074,079,681.58) - 3,283,363,886.00
Forklift trucks and equipment AHAXER
leased out (short-term) FfE(EH) 5,238,393,336.89  (1,318,572,432.99) - 3,919,820,903.90
9,924,867,697.77  (2,492,568,368.37) - 7,432,299,329.40
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (48)
17. Fixed assets (Continued) 17. BEEEE(E)

Carrying amount of fixed assets leased out under operating lease is
presented as follows:

KEMBELBEETEERMEENT :

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201846 H30H 201712 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Houses and buildings EEREY
Electronic equipment BFRE
Machinery and equipment R
Vehicles B THE

Forklift trucks and equipment leased MY E REH(RRS)

out (long-term)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased TR X E Rk ()

out (short-term)

5,839,840.15 -
792,601.41 119,023.30
46,069,313.84 5,822,311.21
274,952.23 2,449.49

4,131,358,561.50 4,077,013,842.00

5,234,398,801.51 5,080,690,790.79

As at 30 June 2018, fixed assets for which the Group
had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying
amount of RMB1,836,570,506.87 (31 December 2017:
RMB1,742,360,572.97).

As at 30 June 2018, fixed assets with a carrying amount of
RMB357,576,261.59 (31 December 2017: RMB582,039,959.05)
were pledged for securing bank borrowings of the Group, among
which the pledge over fixed assets with a carrying amount of
RMB311,243,509.42 had yet to be registered. Fixed assets with
a carrying amount of RMB140,251,995.00 (31 December 2017:
RMB143,016,159.00) was pledged to guarantee the obligations

under the staff retirement benefit.

R2018F6A30H » REE N KRES
EMEINETEEREEEAAR
#1,836,570,506.87 7t (2017 F 12
A318 : AR#1,742,360,572.97

) &

MN2018%F6 A308 * AEE KK
m{EEAARM357,576,261.59
7L (201712 A318 : ARK
582,039,959.057T ) M) [E & & &= A
REFRBPSRITER - B - RE
BEAARKY311,243,509.42 LK)
BEEE  WMAMEBEEBERZ K
BEEEMEAAKRYK140,251,995.00
L (2017F 12 A31H : AR
143,016,159.007T ) & & & & E A 7
HETRARENTHRBIREER -




156  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. M4 R HERA T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
18. Construction in progress 18. EEIRE
30 June 2018 31 December 2017
2018%630A 2017F12731H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(%E%H) (#57)
Gross Provision for Carrying (ross Provision for Carrying
carrying amount impairment amount carrying amount impairment amount
RESE AEER RafE FEAE %R FEERE
FAST transmission technology ETRERRIER
renovation project 15,170,62085 15,170,62085 05,742,42857 - 05,742,42857
HD assembling and welding fne HDRRER
technology renovation project YiEER 60,900,000.00 60,900,000.00 30,450,000.00 - 30,450,000.00
Phase Il of new base of Shaani Zhonggi  PRE 35728~ 5 34,152,551.05 34,152,551.05 24,079,281.05 - 24,079,281.05
Thuzhou Gear technology ENEsRMER
renovation project 30,801,347.72 30,801,347.72 8,086,786.19 - 8,086,786.19
Renovation project for WMl warehouse ~ VMIE £ B E
sorting automation B8 HERR 28,984,067.99 28,984,067.99 - - -
Project of relocation of Chongging El) 25
Weichai Power HEAE 28,861,976.10 28,861,976.10 - - -
Project of global accessoris distribution #4682 IRE M4
centre of Weichai Power AERLER 25,535,645.99 - 25,535,645.99 20,994,090.11 - 20,994,090.11
Construction of Yulin new factoryarea i3 E 2% 75,267,638.12 (52,697,845.65) 20,569,792.47 75,267,638.12 (42,097,845.65) 33,169,792.47
Others -0 1,304,031,179.07 (4,869,170.27) 1,299,162,008.80 810,271,958.70 (4,298,324.83) 865,973,633.87
Tentative construction equipment LHTRRE 182,812,014.12 182,812,014.12 169,661,881.06 - 169,661,881.06
Materials used in construction TENE 1,722,944.09 1,722,944.09 589,457.74 - 589,457.74

1,848,239,985.10 (57,567,015.92) 1,790,672,99.18 1,265,143 521.54 (46,39,170.48) 1,218,747,351.06
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ B 0H H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)

18. Construction in progress 18. EEIRE(HE)
Movement in key construction-in-progress from January to June EEHEETE2018F1-6 AE BN
2018 is presented as follows: T

Actual

Fived asset costs as a

Increase transferred percentage

Opening during in during Other Closing Source of ~ of budget

(Unaudited) Budget balance the period the period decrease balance funding (%)

IERA

AHEA L
(REEH) 5 BEEE EERE  HAI()

Projectof global accessories - 4601 2%
ditribution centre of s Internal fund
Weichai Power MER 419,620,000.00 20,994,090.11 12,082,644.67 (7,541,088.79) - 2553564599 REES  3130%

Movement in key construction-in-progress in 2017 is presented as EEEETRE2017FE8HMT -
follows:
Actual
Fixed asset costs a5 a
Increase transferred percentage
Opening during in during Other Closing Source of of budget
(Audited) Budget balance the year the year decrease balance funding (%)
TERA
KEEL RS
(&%4) BE Ef8E REED BEaE BbH S EXRE EERE  hi%)
Weichal Power Testing Centre #5871 Internal fund

ERhl 94231000000 3061056383 1237997350 (3450277079)  (236752.12) 825101442 ARES 99.77%
Project of global accessories BEBNR
distribution centre of [ Internal und
Weichai Power hLER 41962000000 15406670050 1704792869 (14983690075  (283,63833) 2099409011 BRES 34.42%
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
19. Intangible assets 19. B EE
January to June 2018 2018 1-6 H
Adjustment
Internal Disposals or for exchange
(Unaudited) Opening balance Addition R&D  Redlassification retirements differences  Closing balance
(REEH) BaE BE S ABERR RESEE EXZESE BRGE
(r0ss carrying amount EERE
Technology know-how R 1,257,451,112.50 - - (26,693,460.76) (13,585,921.94)  1,217,171,729.80
Trademark rights ERERE 7,620,445,681.54 219,780.00 - - (143460337.29) 74772051425
License TR 878,966,936.75 21,674,165.00 200,433,934.60 (3,112,820.00) (18,623930.18)  1,079,338,286.17
Land use rights TiERE 1,854,999,464.31 2,614,407.00 - (1,224,960.00) - 1,856,388,911.31
Orders on hand EFiE 290,871,616.55 = = (5,621,860.19)  285,249,756.36
Customer rlationship RFEE 10,227,888,290.55 739,680.00 - - (90,24,262.10)  10,138,353,708.45
Software an 506,222,999.03 32,258,929.58 - (143265,495.40) (295,595.92) (2.817,17807)  392,103,659.22
Others 2 7,044,038 941.42 324,981,490.00 30,966,395.00 (57,168,439.20) - (41,221453.77)  7,301,596,933.45

29,680,885,04265  382,488451.58 30,966,395.00 (31,326,836.68)  (315,604943.54)  29,747,408,109.01

Adjustment

Disposals or for exchange
Opening balance Provision Reclassification retirements differences  Closing balance
BaE it APEDE RELHE EiZESE BR&E
Less: Accumulated amortization W BiER
Technology know-how R T12,237,921.40 40,841,795.95 - (26,194,945.29) (5,803786.23)  721,080,985.83
Trademark rights BiEkRE 23,257,866.02 956,415.18 - - (516,056.89) 23,698,224.31
License e 463,526,369.80 93,077,044.09 7,178419.10 (3,112510.13) (9,79833490)  550,870,987.96
Land use rights THERE 257,899,179.40 19,243,066.54 - (836,343.26) - 276,305,902.68
Orders on hand EFiE 115,552,063.00 6,973,025.00 = = (2,281,765.50)  120,243322.50
Customer relationship XPER 1973916322.20 344817,791.91 - - (27,7M,27501)  2,290,992,839.10
Software gl 158,218,725.11 19,993,386.95 (7,178419.10) (134,530.53) (542,855.55)  170,356,306.88
Others o 1,430,204,843.76 500,562,936.88 - - (7,995,23086)  1,922,772,549.78

5134813,290.69  1,026,465,462.50 (3027832921)  (5467930494)  6,076,321,119.04




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

19. Intangible assets (Continued)
January to June 2018 (Continued)

(Unaudited)

(kEEH)

Less: Provison for impairment W BEER
Technology know-how L
Trademark rights BERAE
License i
Land use rights THFRE
Orders on hand EFiIE
Customer relationship REHA
Software E
Others it

Camying amount FE%E
Technology know-how LR
Trademark rights BERAE
License HiHE
Land use rights 1hERE
Orders on hand EFiE
Customer relationship REHA
Software at
Others if

Opening balance

Bi5E

67,099,780.00

19,412,122.40
546,264,037.11

73,341,620.00
706,117,559.51

Opening balance

L

545,213,191.10
7,530,088,035.52
415,440,566.95
1,597,100,284.91
155,907431.15
1,107,707,931.24
348,004,273.92
5,540,492 477.66

23,839,954,192.45

Addition
e

5699,686.72

6,205,806.44

11,905,493.16
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(748)
19. B EE(E)
20184 1-6 A (#&)

Adjustment
Disposals or for exchange
retirements differences

REZHE  EXZERE

(1,296,880.00)
(98,788.72)
(375,19040)
(10,57,991.46)
(107,560.94)
(1,417,52000)

(13,853,931.52)

H ke

Closing balance

BREE

£5,802,900.00
5,600,898.00
19,036,932.00
535,706,045.65
6,098,245.50
71,924,100.00

704,169,121.15

Closing balance

Br6E

496,090,743.97
1,387,703,999.94
522,806,400.21
1,580,083,008.63
145,969,501.86
1311,654823.70
215,649,106.84
5:306,900,283.67

22,966,917,868.82
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued) (#)
19. Intangible assets (Continued) 19. B EE(H)
2017 20174
Increase upon Adjustment
acquisition Disposals for exchange
(Audited) Opening balance Addtion Intemal R&D of subsidiaries or retirements differences Closing balance
(&5%) 8% BE nERE  WETATEN REIHE EXZEAE EreE
(ross carrying amount EERE
Technology know-how vy 1,203,947,761.26 31327285 10450,741.42 - (113,207.53) 4285254450 1,257.451,112.50
Trademark rights B 715838720130 - - - - 462,0584804  7,620,445,681.54
License i 887,26897430 90,322,958.02 - 824,126.40 (124,931,457.60) 25,482,335.63 878,966,936.75
Land use rights THERE 1787,320,511.64 67,326,162.02 - - - 312,79085  1,854,999,464.31
Orders on hand =S 272,399,257.63 - - - - 18472,358.92 290871,616.55
Customer relationship ZEHE 10,155,067,134.06 4,681,60399 - - - 68,139,55250 10,227 888,290.55
Software i 337,607,404.33 157,920,259.36 - - (3,96393) 10,699,299.27 506,222,999.03
Others 1) 6,944,095,395.61 581,126,667.47 6,058,855.20 - (8112793680 (10611404008 704403894142
28,746,093,640.13 901,690,923.71 16,509,596.62 82412640 (506,176565.86) 52194332165 29,680,885,042.65
Adjustment
Disposals for exchange
Opening balance Provision or refirements differences Closing balance
2 it RESRE EXZEE EReE
Less: Acumulated amortization 5 : 25HEH
Technology know-how 2R 615,15,122.99 82,575,651.98 - 14,506,146.43 T12,23792140
Trademark rghts HiEERE 20,036,046.54 1881,118.44 - (659,298.96) 13,57,866.02
License IirE 379,844,746.30 193,565,025.20 (124,931,457.60) 15,048,055.90 463,526,369.80
Land use rights TiERE 218,164,781.14 36,199,342.60 - 3,535,055.66 1578%9,179.40
Orders on hand REE 95,054,282.74 13,745,541.26 - 6,752,239.00 115,552,063.00
Customer relationship ZEBE 1,182,864,411.9 723,457 814.84 - 6759409540 1973916322.20
Software i 131,372,405.35 24,701,838.58 - 2,144.481.18 158.218,725.11
Others A1) 697,961,236.05  1,108,684,410.40 (381,051,628.80) 461082611 1,430,20484376
33045403307 218481074330 (505,983,086.40) 11353160072 5,134,813.290.69
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~# f B % it % 3 2 1EH B 5 5

Statements (Continued) (#)
19. Intangible assets (Continued) 19. B EE(H)
2017 (Continued) 2017 (%)
Increase Decrease Adjustment
during during for exchange

(Audited) Opening balance the year the year differences Closing balance

(#20) 4% AEEN KEHD Bz Ereg

Less: Provision for impaiment 8+ HIE%E
Technology know-how 2ERI - - _ _ B
Trademark rights BREAE - 66,179333.94 - 92044606 67,099,780.00
License KiE - - - - -
Land use rights THERE - - - - -
Orders on hand EHE 18,179,318.40 - - 1,232,804.00 1941212240
Customer relationship EPEE 159,441,682.80 371,69,846.38 - 15,125507.93 546,264,037.11
Software gl - - - - =
Others it 68,830949.10 - - 451067090 7334162000

24645195030 437,876,180.32 - 21,789,42889 706,117,559.51

Camying amount EEFE
Technology know-how EVp 588,791,638.27 545,213,191.10
Trademark rights AEFRE 7,136,351,154.76 7530,088,035.52
License e 507,424,228.00 415,440,566.95
Land use rights THERE 1,569,155,730.50 1,597,100,284.91
Orders on hand = 159,165,656.49 155,907,431.15
Customer relationship LASlTA 8812,761,039.30 7,707,707,931.24
Software #it 206,234,998.93 348,004,273.92
Others 1) 617730321046 5,540,492,477.86

25,157,187,656.76 13,839,954,192.45
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
19. Intangible assets (Continued) 19. B & E (&)

As at 30 June 2018, intangible assets with carrying amount of
RMB250,303,251.70 (31 December 2017: RMB253,010,437.60)
were pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group. Intangible
assets with carrying amount of RMB139,261,690.13 (31 December
2017: RMB140,815,490.00) were pledged to secure the general
banking facilities in the total amount of RMB73,000,000.00, to be
used as borrowings as liquid fund or for issuing bank acceptance
notes. As at 30 June 2018, the facilities had not been utilized.

As at 30 June 2018, the intangible assets for which the Group
had not obtained title certificates had a carrying amount of
RMB144,837,625.92, for which the Group was in the process of
applying (31 December 2017: RMB146,343,370.26).

The trademarks are renewable every 10 years at minimal cost. The
management of the Group are of the opinion that the Group has
both the intention and ability to renew the trademarks continuously.
As a result, the useful life of the trademarks is considered by the
management of the Group as indefinite because the trademarks are
expected to contribute to the Group’s net cash inflows indefinitely.
The trademarks will not be amortized unless their useful life is

determined to be finite.

M2018%F6 A308 + AEE KK
H{EE A A K 250,303,251.70
L (2017F 12 A31H : AR¥
253,010,437.6070 ) B9 fE 2 & &= K
AARBRGRITER - REE KK
H{EEAARM139,261,690.13
T (2017F 12 A31H : AR¥
140,815,490.00 7T ) &) & ¥ & & &
HRARERRITGARERAARE
73,000,000.007T &KX E5E A A
REBELER  FAEBTELE
= o HZE2018F6H30R © HMAFEH
ZRERE -

201846 A30H » AL E &K
LERFENELEEREEEBEAA
R144,837,625.9270 * % EE
BEMNEEZWEIHIE(2017F12A4
318 : AR¥146,343,370.267T) °

BEE T FRARRERAEE X -
AEBERERR  AREREERA
BENTHEEZSHIER - Bit%ER
BRAKABAEREELRSRAF
Booul - AREERERARZRED
BREAXAAERFR - RIFZERD
FEOAIEAFRERAERER - TR
TEETHHE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ B 0H H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)

20. Expenditure on development 20. ¥ H
Capitalization of expenditure on development starts when BB P ER MR RS
the development stage is reached. Capitalized expenditure on ERL  REBERNCHAZE EN
development of the Group is presented as follows: T
January to June 2018 2018 1-6 H

Decrease during the period

AHED
Increase in
internal R&D Transfer to

(Unaudited) Opening balance  during the period intangible assets ~ Other decrease  Closing balance

RHE M
(REEH) BYnE R & BABYEE RS RGBS
Improvement project on driver's cabin -~ B ZXUEEH 46,460,506.85 1,613,207.54 - - 48,073,714.39
Hydraulics project REER 291,390,703.03 46,125,401.07  (30,966,395.00) (5,975,834.60)  300,573,874.50
Others 4 178,002,595.37 - - (3,670,237.98)  174,332,357.39

515,853,805.25 47,738,608.61 (30,966,395.00) (9,646,072.58)  522,979,946.28

2017 20174
Decrease during the year
TERD
Increase in
internal R&D Recognition of

(Audited) Opening balance during the year ~ intangible assets Other decrease Closing balance

AEEM
(&z7) EURE bk BREVEE Hfpr ERBE
Improvement project on driver's cabin ERZMEER 43,415,166.75 3,045,340.10 - - 46,460,506.85
Hydraulics project REER 162,264,750.28  135,184,807.95 (6,058,855.20) - 291,390,703.03
Others b0 240,094,549.89 - (10450741.42) (51641213100  178,002,595.37

44577446692 138,230,148.05 (16509,596.62)  (51,641,213.10)  515,853,805.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fo ~f ff I % it % £ 200 H 5B

Statements (Continued) (%)
21. Goodwill 21. B8
January to June 2018 2018 1-6 H
Increase during
the period
business
combination
not involving Adjustment
Opening entities under Decrease during Provision for for exchange
(Unaudited) balance ~ common control the period impairment differences Closing balance ~ Asset group unit
KBEN
FR-£4T
(%858 L ¥ Cli : HE EjEEHE BR8E S
Merger ith TAGC AfRkE Asset group unit B
299,502,336.46 (6:347,483.79) 293,154,852.68
Merger with Linde Hydraulic ARIERESHAR Asset group unit C
GmbH & Co. KG 827,542,331.55 (15,994,435.44) 811,547.89.11 2
Merger with KION GROUP AG A{HKION GROUP AG Asset group unit D
6,685,808.921.91 (190547,641.40)  6,495,261,28051
Merger with Egemin Automationnc. & Egemin Automation
Retrotech Inc. Dematic Group Inc. Retrotech Inc. Asset group unit E
Dematic Group 14,601,864,008.60 - (32,994.827.60)  14,568,869,181.00
Others it 168,475,063.90 1,484,391.00 (6,699,399.40) 163,260,055.50
2583,192,66242 1,484,391.00 (6:347,483.78) (246,236,30384)  22,332,093,265.80
2017
20174
ncregse during
the perod
business
combination
notinvolving Adjustment
Opening entiies under Decregse during Provision for for exchange
(Aucited) balance common control the perod impaiment dfferences (Closing balance Asset group unit
KEEN
T
(#57) FinE txak KERY iR EizERE FRBE BEgda
Merger vith TAGC AUHENE Asset group it B
53157373646 - - (238,071,400.00) - 2995023346 EEfEss
Merger with Linde Hydraulc AfEREE R Asset group unit C
GmbH & Co. KG T74987671.35 - - - 52,554,660.20 827,542,315 EEffac
Merger with KION GROUP AG AHFKION GROUP AG Asset group unit D
6,284946,311.89 - - - 40086261002 6,685,80892191 EEfAED
in Automation e £ffEgemin Automation
Inc. Retrotech Inc. Asset group unit E
15,110,170,128.00 - - - (508,306,11940) 14,601,864,008.60 EEfat
8 44547120 - - 465819550 168475,063.90

(238,071 400.00) (50.23065368) 22,583,192, 862.42
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~# f B % it % 3 2 1EH B 5 5

Statements (Continued) (%)
21. Goodwill (Continued) 21. BE(H)
The change in provision for impairment of goodwill was as follows: EEREEENESHOT ¢
January to June 2018 2018 1-6 H
Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) B8R REEm N ) HARGHE
Merger with TAGC AbFEAE (238,071,400.00) (238,071,400.00)
2017 20174
Opening Increase during Decrease during

(Audited) balance the year the year Closing halance
(F5%) ERE RER KERD FRBE
Merger with TAGC AHRNE - (238,071,400.00) - (238,071,400.00)
Balance as at 30 June 2018 mainly represented goodwill arising 2018 F6 A0 MEREEE A
from merger with TAGC, Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG, KION AEHMAE  MEBERBAEELE -
Group AG, Egemin Inc. and Retrotech Inc. Goodwill arising from KION GROUP AG * Egemin Inc.#l
merger would be allocated to material asset group units to test for Retrotech Inc. MEAMEE - A&
impairment on an annual basis. BEEUNZEAMHEBNEERER

EAREEREMMBEEITHERENR

e
Further, the trademark with indefinite useful life comprised in the AN BERWER  19EFEEE
intangible assets in Note V.19 amounted to RMB7,387,282,997.00 FRKARERANEZEESARE
and is included in those asset group units for impairment testing. 7,387,282,997.007C * UK B HEFE %

SEEHAAATETRERNHR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
21. Goodwill (Continued)
Carrying amount of material goodwill and trademarks is allocated

to the following asset group units as follows:

o asset group unit A: manufacture and sale of diesel engines

and related parts

o asset group unit B: major automobile components other than

automotive and diesel engines
o asset group unit C: manufacture of hydraulic pumps,
hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears and other

components

o asset group unit D: forklift trucks production and

warehousing technology services

o asset group unit E: Intelligent supply chains and automation

solutions

The carrying amount of material goodwill and trademark are

RS i 26 BT 5 (48

201846 H30H (A RHET)

T G OF B R 2 BEIH H RERE
(78)

21. BE(E)
EEHEREBRNEASEIREE
EANBRNT

o FEHMAAA EERHER
AR T B

o  EEMBAAB: RERIMEI
M EBETEM

e FEMHMAAC: EERER -
REBZE  BRERM - EH R

e

e HEEHMAD: XFEHEERE
JEE B2 110 AR 75

o EEMMAAE: HeettEEME
BRI S

EERELBENEASEIEEE

allocated to the asset group units as follows: EANBRAT
Carrying amount of goodwill Carrying amount of trademark
BENRESE BENEESE

30 June 2018
201856 A30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

Asset group unit A BEMRBEA -
Asset group unit B EEMHAAB 293,154,852.68
Asset group unit C BEMRBAC 811,547,896.11
Asset group unit D EEMHAED 6,495,261,280.51

Asset group unit E BEMBAAE 14,568,869,181.00

31 December 2017 30 June 2018 31 December 2017
20175128318 201868308 [PINNEIPECERE:!

(Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(&E%) (REBEZ) (&E%)

= 116,422,784.00 116,422,784.00
299,502,336.46 94,197,000.00 94,197,000.00
827,542,331.55 = =

6,685,808,921.91 4,494,361,024.50 4,575,674,439.60
14,601,864,008.60 2,682,302,188.50 2,735,486,380.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ B 0H H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
22. Long-term prepaid expenses 22. REIFHBER
January to June 2018 20185 1-6 H

Increase Amortization
Opening during during Other Provision for Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period the period decrease impairment balance
(REEH) BARE KA -] HtoH S AEER BRBE
Industrial mould fee TERAE 213,983,352.98 41,794,916.01 (20,310,110.53)  (11,703,555.02) 223,764,603.44
Industrial equipment fee TfiRAE 47,918,751.28 393027048 (10,478540.33)  (6,136,852.70) 35,233,628.73
Expenditure on improvementof ~ ABFEE
fixed assets leased in BRI 2152883466  10,413931.80  (13,537,780.64)  (1,414,731.17) 16,990,254.65
28343093892  56,139,118.29  (44,326,431.50)  (19,255,138.89) 275,988,486.82
2017 20174
Increase Amortization
Opening during during QOther Provision for Closing
(Audited) balance the period the period decrease impairment balance
(&%) FBE RELN AR s HEEE FRAE
Industrial mould fee TH#EAB 25341342554 7327733529 (46,239,907.50) - (66,467,500.35) 213,983,352.98
Industial equipment fee BRIERS 5108353588 1944410478 (247874713 (130,14229) - 091875128
Expenditure on improvementof ~ FAETE
fixed assets leased in HEZ 28162,755.78  16,722,69.13  (23,298,664.08) (57,953.17) - 21,528 834.66
332,659,71720  109,44413620  (92,01731871) (188,095.42)  (66,467,500.35) 283,430,938.92
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (#)
23. Other non-current assets 23. HERBEE

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201846 H30H 2017%12831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BFEZ)
Scheme assets under defined BEZRETEIZFEEE
benefit scheme 167,460,729.00 188,885,880.70
Others Hi 19,003,335.75 65,286,475.09
186,464,064.75 254,172,355.79
24. Short-term loans 24, SEHIfE R

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201846 HA30H 2017912 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (=)
Mortgage loans (Note 1) B ER(GE) 360,000,000.00 400,000,000.00
Credit loans ERER 4,381,754,576.66 2,774,887,395.62
4,741,754,576.66 3,174,887,395.62
Note 1: Among the short-term loans, RMB360,000,000.00 (31 December 2017: 1 R EE R AR 360,000,000.00
RMB400,000,000.00) represented the loan secured by the pledge of (2017 F 124318 AR#
fixed deposit of RMB421,060,000.00 by Shaanxi Automobile Xinjiang 400,000,000.007t ) B A A&l ZF
Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, to Shanghai Pudong ARRAFHBREAR D A MA
Development Bank Co., Ltd. Urumgi branch. BEROBBAEBEDTERARY
421,060,000.007CH) & HiTF B ELS -
25. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 25. U A REETTEEHEF
or loss for the current period (applicable to FAEHERNSRMES

2017 only) (EEM2017%F)
(Audited) 31 December 2017
(&%) 20179F12A318

Forward contracts EHER 43,919,146.70
currency interest rate swap instruments IXEENRETE(HER -« 65)
438,960,953.24

482,880,099.94

_.j-
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F % 3 £ HIH H s B
Statements (Continued) (%)
26 XML REB(EEH

26. Financial liability held for trading (applicable

to 2018 only)

2018%)

Recognised

gains/(loss)

(Unaudited) 30 June 2018 for the period

NHARE R &

(REgEzER) 201856 A30H FlfF (18 %)

Forward contracts AR 59,521,018.50 (30,227,376.81)
Cross currency interest rate swap RYXEBFMEEHRT A

instruments (Note V.65) (M3EH - 65) 319,817,507.47 55,975,444.78

Total A&t 379,338,525.97 25,748,067.97

27. Notes payable and accounts payable 27. BN EBREMIKRK

30 June 2018 31 December 2017

20186 H30H 20174%12H31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEEFZ) (fE &%)

Notes payable FET R 13,813,699,608.40 12,361,446,846.30

Incl: Bank acceptance bills Hr o RITHAHEE 13,751,023,162.20 12,192,327,019.82

Commercial acceptance bills HEANIES 62,676,446.20 169,119,826.48

Accounts payable JE R R Skl bl | 30,654,794,938.52

Total A& YRV VR EL W NN 43,016,241,784.82

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had no notes payable which were
due and outstanding (31 December 2017: Nil).

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are non-interest bearing, and are generally settled

within three to four months.

As at 30 June 2018, there was no material accounts payable which

aged over one year (31 December 2017: nil).

M2018F6H30H @« AEBEELHR
NEEMNEZE(2017F12 8318 :

) -

JE& A BR K

NERTEE - TBEEIE4E

HRIEME -

H2018%F6H30H -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
28. Advances from customers 28. AW RIE

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201846 H30H 2017%12831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREX) (')
Advances from customers TR RIA 5,814,905,624.90
As at 30 June 2018, there was no material advances from MR2018F6A30H « ERI:—F A L
customers which aged over one year (31 December 2017: nil). BEZHFERKIE(2017F 12 A 31
H: &)
29. Payroll payable 29. FEATEE T 5o
January to June 2018 20184 1-6 H
Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) e REE KEHD RS
Short-term remuneration 2 HE 4,047,452,935.16  9,717,840,835.80  (9,595,248,831.52)  4,170,044,939.44
Post-employment benefits (defined BB 4 @ F|
contribution plan) (FERF:E) 458,059,460.95 1,723,477,008.91  (1,704,957,383.90) 476,579,085.96
Severance benefits portion due BRIET
within 1 year —FRIHNHBH 112,926,637.97 24,587,636.93 (32,774,273.13) 104,740,001.77
Cash-settled share-based payment due — 4R Z| 4R &
within 1 year HEOROX 168,974,411.10 93,284,435.00  (160,447,987.10)  101,810,859.00
Other long-term payroll due —FEREHNELM
within 1 year REBTHH 22,891,948.20 100,076,035.94 (94,308,930.45) 28,659,053.69

4,810,305393.38  11,659,265,952.58 (11,587,737,406.10)  4,881,833,939.86
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)

29. Payroll payable (Continued) 29. BB THM(E)

2017 20174
Opening Increase during Decrease during

(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(&%) EEE RESEN REFD ERHE
Short-term remuneration kbt 3,360,957,243.87  19,050,216,379.34  (18,363,720,688.05) 4,047,452,935.16
Post-employment benefits (defined BBk 14 @ F|

contribution plan) (RERfFE) 396,891,852.17  2,506,112,185.16  (2,444,944,576.38) 458,059,460.95
Severance benefits BHERH

portion due within 1 year —FRZAOEH 244,764,498.25 27,849,366.89 (159,687,227.17) 112,926,637.97
Cash-settled share-based payment  —FRE|HHLAR S

due within 1 year BENRO SR 147,801,950.40 174,108,954.30 (152,936,493.60) 168,974,411.10
Other long-term payroll due —ERIBANELM

within 1 year B THM 18,376,602.00 22068831110 (216,172,964.90) 22,891,948.20

4,168,792,146.69

21,978,975,196.79

(21,337,461,950.10)

4,810,305,393.38

Short-term remuneration is presented as follows:

January to June 2018

Opening

MO T

2018 1-6 A

Increase during

Decrease during

(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) BABE REEm REED HARBE

Salaries, bonuses, allowances and

1% %% 2HA

subsidies e 3,208,736,270.82 8,547,407,954.90 (8,497,983,831.16) 3,258,160,394.56
Staff welfare BIRHZ 32,082,584.34 226,063,565.58 (222,923,930.43) 35,222,219.49
Social security HERRE 85,581,848.81 574,001,732.53 (560,770,042.41) 98,813,538.93
Incl: Medical insurance 2 BERRE 61,956,964.00 492,023,487.16 (485,485,240.22) 68,495,210.94
Work injury insurance IERRE 15,249,450.45 44,216,260.25 (40,463,447.33) 19,002,263.37
Matemnity insurance EERRE 853,243.64 6,669,171.19 (6,277,444.97) 1,244,969.86
Supplementary medical insurance BREERR 7,522,190.72 31,092,813.93 (28,543,909.89) 10,071,094.76
Housing funds BN 22,743,598.85 126,808,358.09 (126,403,833.92) 23,148,123.02
Labor union operating funds and TeRENRT
employee education costs HELB 497,853,296.00 81,031,043.37 (45,813,959.08) 533,070,380.29
Other short-term remuneration H {2 HA B 200,455,336.34 162,528,181.33 (141,353,234.52) 221,630,283.15

4,047,452,935.16

9,717,840,835.80

(9,595,248,831.52)

4,170,044,939.44
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (#)

29. Payroll payable (Continued) 29. BB IHM(E)

2017 20174
Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(BE%) FOHE REEM RERD FREB
Salaries, bonuses, allowancesand ~ T& -+ %4 « EEREE
subsidies 2,656,161,495.05 16,945,370,936.49 (16,392,796,160.72) 3,208,736,270.82
Staff welfare BIRNE 24,301,210.24 411,246,716.21 (403,465,342.11) 32,082,584.34
Sodial security HERRE 68,950,706.91 1,035,545,860.13 (1,018,914,718.23) 85,581,848.81
Incl: Medical insurance i BERRE 58,039,607.35 888,688,631.25 (834,771,274.60) 61,956,964.00
Work injury insurance IGRRE 7,306,903.96 80,909,039.36 (72,966,492.87) 15,249,450.45
Maternity insurance TERRE 328,196.16 12,607,276.43 (12,082,228.95) 853,243.64
Supplementary medical insurance BRBEERR 3,275,999.44 53,340,913.09 (49,094,721.81) 7,522,190.72
Housing funds EINEE 14,844,500.60 236,687,015.07 (228,787,916.82) 22,743,598.85
Labor union operating funds and TeRENBTHELE
employee education costs 395,756,768.88 159,786,369.77 (57,689,842.65) 497,853,296.00
Other short-term remuneration e upshiE| 200,942,562.19 261,579,481.67 (262,066,707.52) 200,455,336.34
3,360,957,243.87 19,050,216,379.34 (18,363,720,688.05) 4,047,452,935.16

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan) is presented as

follows:

January to June 2018

(Unaudited)
(REBER)

Basic pension insurance

Unemployment insurance

Contribution to pension fund

EARZRR
KERRE
LEFLAB

Opening
balance

HARE

391,491,489.28
16,012,883.04
50,555,088.63

458,059,460.95

BERUR A (RERFATEDOT ¢

20184 1-6 A

Increase during
the period
AHE

1,459,422,435.65
101,264,770.05
162,789,803.21

1,723,477,008.91

Decrease during
the period
THED

(1,440,720,418.48)
(101,996,548.53)
(162,240,416.89)

(1,704,957,383.90)

Closing balance

HRRE

410,193,506.45
15,281,104.56
51,104,474.95

476,579,085.96
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~# f B % it % 3 2 1EH B 5 5

Statements (Continued) (#)
29. Payroll payable (Continued) 29. BB IHM (&)
2017 20174
Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(EER) EHE REEM TERD ERHE
Basic pension insurance EAREZRR 335,457,306.14 2,055,136,044.56 (1,999,101,861.42) 391,491,489.28
Unemployment insurance RERRE 13,480,163.15 175,773,229.08 (173,240,509.19) 16,012,883.04
Contribution to pension fund PEELHE 47,954,382.88 275,202,911.52 (272,602,205.77) 50,555,088.63
396,891,852.17 2,506,112,185.16 (2,444,944,576.38) 458,059,460.95
30. Taxes payable 30. EXHBLE

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
20186 HA30H 2017912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&EZ)

Corporate income tax TEFTISH 1,426,334,248.60 1,543,088,566.82
Value-added tax #ER 626,164,881.50 681,877,198.39
Individual income tax [EPNTEEE 185,275,580.60 257,630,025.18
Property tax FEER 16,324,345.89 18,426,617.01
Stamp duty ENFER 11,726,718.75 15,120,039.70
Land use tax TR AR 11,661,098.24 15,450,670.55
City maintenance and construction tax 35 T 4 2 R 1 9,667,211.62 5,502,891.22
Educational surtax HEBWM 6,826,829.03 3,990,803.55
Other taxes i FiIE 99,793,828.17 159,171,893.64

2,393,774,742.40 2,700,258,706.06
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
31. Other payables

PR 3 B 5 (48D
201846304 (A E¥T)

g ‘ﬁgﬁt,ﬁjﬁiﬁﬁigﬁi H il B
31, HUEAR

30 June 2018 31 December 2017

20186 HA30H 2017512 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEFEZ) (fE#&Z)

79,387,711.60
28,717,504.27
50,670,207.33

95,394,487.50
26,954,508.38
68,439,979.12

Interests payable JERTFILE
Interests on medium-term notes FREIZEERE
Interests on borrowings B AL

Dividends payable JERT AT

Dividends payable to shareholders of
the parent (Note 1)

Dividends payable to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Coupon interest on perpetual bonds
payable (Note 2)

JE SRR R B RAR (RE1)

N F R B D BRI A

PR KBRS (FE2)

Sales discount HEE
Guarantees and deposits REZRFE

Payables for purchase of construction
and fixed assets

After-sales expenses and repair and —AREBERES
maintenance expenses

Technology development expenses FirAEs

Commission llifsa

Land facility fee and land premiums TEEE KR

Transportation expenses BB

Others Al

e TR R ElE B ERBR

2,055,035,497.56

1,999,309,639.00

55,725,858.56

2,456,721,058.19

519,637,586.05

482,114,987.67
195,162,581.55
189,264,302.63
137,033,794.39
50,982,188.38
1,488,540,899.74

7,653,880,607.76

207,460,650.87

151,016,140.79

56,444,510.08
2,806,603,102.35
2,429,156,446.19

622,779,150.47

482,901,056.33
18,048,633.64
184,967,215.16
137,039,104.43
68,668,537.42
973,082,562.20

8,026,100,946.56

Note 1: Dividends payable to the shareholders of the parent in the amount
of RMB1,999,309,639.00 has been distributed during the period
from the balance sheet date to the date on which the issue of these
financial statements was approved. For details, please refer to Note XIlI.
Subsequent Events.

Note 2: On 30 June 2018, Weichai International Hong Kong Energy Group
Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, confirmed the distribution
of coupon interest in the amount of RMB55,725,858.56 to holders
of perpetual bonds on 14 September 2018, as stipulated in relevant
agreements.

ne 2018, there were no other payables in significant
1 December 2017: Nil).

1 EARFIREM SRR RERSRFA
K #1,999,309,639.00tREERE
RAEAPBREHAEAREBZEE
TR FRME+= EEERE
KHAKEHE-

2 R2018F6A30R * ARRIZFAHA
LR (BB EREBER QAR
BIEBHZLOE - TR81201849
R14RRXBERHAERENKER
=8 AR¥55,725,858.56 7T ©

MN2018%F6 A308 @ EER# —F A
EHEENEMEMNFK(2017F12A4
318 : ££) -
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (48)
32. Non-current liabilities due within one year 32. " FREFBHNIERBERE

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
20186 H30H 2017912 831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZR) (&%)
Long-term payable due within one year —HFRZF|HR)REBER X 3,505,527,073.50 3,838,848,634.50
Long-term borrowings due within —FARER R EER

one year 2,175,512,500.00 1,757,402,500.00

5,681,039,573.50 5,596,251,134.50

Long-term borrowings due within Hep  —SFRF B RIER -
one year include:
Credit loans ZHRER 2,165,012,500.00 1,747,402,500.00
Mortgage loans (Note V.34 — Note 1) #IBEFR(FIER - 34 - 5£1) 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
Other loans Hibfg 500,000.00 -
33. Other current liabilities 33. HttRBAE
30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201846 H30H 20179128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (L #|HZ)
Product quality assurance deposit EmEERES 3,249,882,807.42 3,047,633,625.09
Deferred income (portion due within FEEMW S (—F R HES)
one year) 205,052,548.50 594,340,202.50
Others Hih 1,896,942,231.95 1,209,722,661.52
5,351,877,587.87 4,851,696,489.11
34. Long-term borrowings 34. REIERK
30 June 2018 31 December 2017
2018%6H30H 20179124318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&ER) (F&EZ)
Credit loans ERER 13,014,923,992.00
Mortgage loans (Note 1 — Note 2) HIRER(GE - 2) 660,227,751.45

Other loans (Note 3) HfEFR(E3) 149,000,000.00

13,824,151,743.45
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (#)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

34. Long-term borrowings (Continued)

Long-term borrowings are classified according to maturity dates as

follows:

34. REEBRUE)

RHMEFIRIBA SN

30 June 2018

31 December 2017

201846 H30H 2017%12A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&%)

Due within 1 year 1 AEE 2,175,512,500.00 1,757,402,500.00
Due within 1 to 2 years 1225 N3 ER 2,080,317,611.20 2,972,878,811.20
Due within 2 to 5 years 235 EREIHE 11,433,566,380.80 12,534,448,166.70
Due over 5 years 5L E 310,267,751.45 171,267,751.45

Less: Long-term borrowings classified as

due within one year

B N BRRTFREHN
REIER

15,999,664,243.45

2,175,512,500.00

17,435,997,229.35

1,757,402,500.00

13,824,151,743.45

15,678,594,729.35

As at 30 June 2018, the above loans carried interest at rates ranging M2018F 6308 -+ Ll {& e FF
from 1.08% to 5.305% (31 December 2017: 1.1% to 5.047%) per R 51.08%~5.305% (201712 A
annum. 31H 1 1.1%~5.047%) °

Note 1: The mortgage loans amounting to RMB10,000,000.00 under long-term 1 REEARFR AR 10,000,000.007T
borrowings and amounting to RMB10,000,000.00 under non-current R—FNIBOIERTDEERAR
liabilities due within one year (31 December 2017: RMB10,000,000.00 #10,000,000.007C (2017412 A 31
under long-term borrowings and RMB10,000,000.00 under non- B : REIfEHR AR 10,000,000.00
current liabilities due within one year) were loans provided to Shaanxi T —FERNIBENERDEBEAR
Heavy-duty Motor Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, from Rural ¥ 10,000,000.00 7T ) HY 3K 3 {5 3% -
Credit Cooperative of Qishan County, Shaanxi Province, and secured by BRI L RS A A R A
machinery and equipment with a carrying amount of RMB46,332,752.17. RARBZ FRARARAERNRES
The RMB10,000,000.00 under long-term borrowings will mature on BARER  UWEEEBEARK
4 September 2019 and the RMB10,000,000.00 under non-current 46,332,752 17 T #2258 & A R 3K
liabilities due within one year will mature on 28 August 2018. # - Z AR¥10,000,000.00 7T 8 &

HMERAEN2019F9 4B 28 - A
R #10,000,000.00 7T &) — 4F A | H3
MIERB B EEN2018F8 H28H
] o




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
34. Long-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 2:

Note 3:

An amount of RMB650,227,751.45 under long-term borrowings (31
December 2017: RMB674,517,751.45) was loan provided to Weichai
(Chongging) Automotive Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, from
the Chongging Branch of China Construction Bank Corporation and
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd., and secured by the
assets under phase one light-duty vehicle project of the company, as
stipulated in the loan agreement. As at 30 June 2018, the assets already
invested by the company in the project included fixed assets with a
carrying amount of RMB311,243,509.42 and intangible assets with
a carrying amount of RMB250,303,251.70; the intangible assets had
been pledged and mortgage in respect of the fixed assets had not been
registered. The long-term borrowings will mature on 10 March 2025.

The loans amounting to RMB149,000,000.00 under long-term
borrowings and amounting to RMB500,000.00 under non-current
liabilities due within one year (31 December 2017: nil) were loans
provided to Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
from CDB Capital Co., Ltd., and the loan agreed in the loan agreement
were used in medium-duty and light-duty gear boxes and new energy
transmission system projects. The RMB149,000,000.00 under long-term
borrowings will mature on 22 October 2030 and the RMB500,000.00
under non-current liabilities due within one year will mature on 21
September 2018.

35. Bonds payable
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PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201846 H30H (A E¥T)

G OF B AR R IH H R R
(%)
34. REEBRUE)

2 REIER R AR 650,227,751.45
L (2017F 12 A31H + AR
674,517,751.4570) AR B ZRRIT
BHBERAREETHTRILRET
SEUBBERARALRRAZFAT
WL (BE)AEERRDAER  EX
BHEROEARAERE—HIEEEE
EARIEHE - HZ=2018F6A30H * A
R EECRENEEREREEE
ARM311,243,509.42 LW B F B =
M AR®250,303,251.70 R EE
EG BREECHEERE ETEE
MAWEBERERL - XERBABRE
202543108 EIH -

23 REERF AR 149,000,000.007T

E—FERNEBHNETHEERARE

500,000.007T (2017412 8318

Bm)AAHEREESBERAAALA

Rz FRAABRFEELHERERET

RAIBHR ERBBEOTEZERBRA

AR REREREB RHE

g - Z AR 149,000,000.007 LM &

HE B R 203010 A22 B B -

A R #500,000.00 7T &) — & & 2| ]

KRB AEBR20185F9A218 5

;aj,q °

35. ENEZ

30 June 2018

31 December 2017

201856 A30H 2017912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (fE#EZ)

Bonds payable

FEfHREZ

11,916,122,424.42 10,459,780,084.07
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M2018%F6A30H © [EFH{EHHEES

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
35. Bonds payable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2018, balance of bonds payable are listed as follows:

UK ¢
Fair value
Isuing ~ Bond At the beginning Issued ~ Accrued interest hedging Exchange gains ~ Repaid At the end
(Unaudited) Face value date  period Issued amount of period this period this period adjustments  Amortization and losses  this period of period
(7E5#) iE  BFRS EHER ifiE1 HI8E KRG AENRAE MAREESER  FRERS EifE  KERE HrHE
Medium-term note 7,367,304,000.00  2017:2-21 Note &0 7,344,731,360.00  7,859,147,557.80 - 43,688364.59 - 222,975.00  (147,706,186.30) 1,113,714,346.50
Medium-term note 1,504,120,000.00 0186 7yearsE  1,500,359,700.00 - 1,500,359,700.00 368,825.41 44,256,276.00 22,288,800.00 1,566,904,776.00
Corporate bonds 2,544520,000.00 2015-9-30 5yearsE  2,522,317,954.03  2,600,632,526.27 - 63,566,250.00 - 22304189 32,638353.76 2,635,503,301.92
Total 11,415,984,000.00 10,459,780,084.07  1,500,359,700.00  107,623,440.00  44,256,276.00  4,505,396.89  (92,779,032.54) 11,916,122,424.42
As at 31 December 2017, balance of bonds payable are listed as R2017F 128310 @ ER &A%
follows: BRT
Exchange
Issuing Bond Atthe beginning Issued ~ Accrued interest gains and Atthe end
(Audited) Face value date period Issued amount of period this period this period Amortization losses Repaid this year of jear  Note
(21 AE  EORE  GRER 2728 2] RERR REHRAS bt Eiks RERE ERBE
Medium-termnote #8925  7,367,344000.00  2017-2-21 Note & 7,344,731,360.00 - 7,344,731,360.00 93,210,222.00 3,746,722.80  510,669,475.00 - 7,859,147,557.80 (1)
Coporatebonds ~ %&5  2,544,52000000  2015:9-30  Syears®  2,522,317,954.03  2,756,201,597.01 - 116,055,373.41 455992341 (160,128,994.15) - 2,600,632,526.27 (3)
Total Adt 9,911,864,000.00 2,756,201,597.01 7,344,731,360.00  209,265,595.41 8,306,646.21  350,540,480.85 - 10,459,780,084.07
(1) KION GROUP AG, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes (1) AR ZF2AFKON GROUP AG -
with total par value of EUR1,010 million on 21 February 2017, which will MR2017F 2821 BT EZEMAE A
mature in May 2022, April 2024 and April 2027, at floating interest rate 101 BTV IR E - H 5102022
based on EURIBOR. F57 0 2024F 4202754 A5
H - I BLAEURIBOR(BRTIR1T R
TR ER) REENFENE -
(2) KION GROUP AG, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes (2) AR RFZFAFKON GROUP AG -
with total par value of EUR200 million in June 2018 with bond period of M2018F 6 A BITRE AT R2BRATT
7 years. Nominal amount of EUR100 million of such notes are at floating WHERER  BFHERATE  ZE
interest rate based on EURIBOR while the other nominal amount of B A 1B BT E #E R 3 & LAEURIBOR
EUR100 million are at fixed interest rate. (RTiRITRIEREN R ) REENZ
PBHE B1EBRTEBENEAEE
= o
(3)  Weichai International Hong Kong Energy Group Co., Limited, a subsidiary (3) ARBZFRAMEBER(EE)ER

of the Company, issued medium-term notes with registered amount of
USD400 million on 30 September 2015, nominal interest rate of 4.125%,
maturity of 5 years and interest payable at every six months.

EBHARADA - N2015F9H30H %
TAMES RIBETHR AR
SEANEKRAEL125% 0 EHBRAS
F - FEEXRA6MEA -
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
36. Long-term payables
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RS i 2 BT 5 (48

201846 H30H (A RHET)

T G OF B R 2 B IH H RERE
(%)

36. REAEAR

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201846 H30H 2017912 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f&FE%)

Rental payable for sale and leaseback JENEEALHEER

Finance lease RMEHRE
Other financial liabilities Etmemas
Special payables HIERER R

6,225,130,324.50 6,227,780,255.40
3,186,773,235.00 2,982,756,871.60
4,099,775.50 7,895,306.10
23,000,000.00 23,000,000.00

9,439,003,335.00 9,241,432,433.10

The change in special payables is as follows:

January to June 2018

HHEENKESHMT

20184 1-6 A

Opening Increase during  Decrease during Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period the period balance
(REER) BARE KHE AERD HAREAE
Interest subsidy for liquid fund B RERTH
granted by provincial finance office 7#& & BB 23,000,000.00 23,000,000.00
2017 20174
Opening Increase during Decrease during Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year balance
(BER) FNHE RELEM RERD ERHE
Interest subsidy for liquid fund granted 7 87 B BB 5 {F 49
by provincial finance office RBESERES 23,000,000.00 - - 23,000,000.00
National debt special fund - EEEES
establishment of key industry —EHERREM
revitalization and technological RsEE B R
renovation projects 20,000,000.00 - 20,000,000.00 -
43,000,000.00 - 20,000,000.00 23,000,000.00

As at 30 June 2018, the balance of unrecognized finance costs
in finance lease payables amounted to RMB831,052,369.50 (31
December 2017: RMB839,543,441.76).

R201846 A30H ' g EHEE
HERERREEANSREL i
831,052,369.50 7T (20
H: AR¥839,:
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it & 2 IH H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
37. Long-term payroll payable 37. £ HPE {3 B8 I % o

Defined benefit obligations BREXmERTE
Long-term severance benefits REIBERET
Cash-settled share-based payments LR & S E MR D A5

Other long-term payroll payable Hth = EARE T M

Defined benefit obligations

The Group operates defined benefit schemes for its staff in some
overseas subsidiaries who meet conditions. The scheme requires
that contribution be made to an independently administered fund.
Under the scheme, staff are entitled to enjoy retirement benefit

provided for under defined benefit of the plans.

The Group's defined benefit scheme is one requiring contribution
prior to termination of service. The scheme requires that
contribution be made to an independently administered fund. The
scheme is administered by an independent trustee in the legal form
of a fund. The assets held under the fund is held separately with
assets of the Group. The trustee is responsible for the investment

strategies of the scheme.

The trustee assesses the level of capital of the scheme. The
assessment includes asset-liabilities matching strategies and
investment risk management strategies. The trustee determines the

amount to be deployed based on the result of its annual assessment.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, risk of change of
anticipated age of beneficiaries of the pension, and risks of the

securities market.

actuarial valuation of the assets under the scheme and

efined benefit obligations determined by

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201846 H30H 2017412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&ER)

8,666,398,828.75 8,702,957,010.83
126,964,273.01 122,580,290.88
81,855,747.00 138,108,512.30
269,195,030.00 273,127,243.01

9,144,413,878.76 9,236,773,057.02

AEERBDRINFRBERT A KD
BTEFETREX S - &aT 8
ERABUEENESHEFER
ZAt Bl - BT ERFXRER M
B ERRINER -

AL B RE X w582 BEBATH K
BRADEE - ZAEBRABILER
MESHEEM - Zt8IRE2RZE
B THBIIEALTERE
HEHBANEERARENEESERD
Bl e REABBRBEZTENRER
BS o

ERABZEANED KT - ZEX
BREE-ABCRERBENRERR
EHEERE - REARBFERRNE
RRERBIFHE -

ZAtBIZ A ERER  RAREREAN
TEHS  E B AR AE ST 5 AR

2 45
2=

ZAt BB EMNRMBEEEMRER
SRGHRECRRBRERMEN
SEHETE e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)

37. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 37. REAERB T &M (&)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued) REXmEB(E)
The following table sets out the key actuarial assumptions used as TRAEEBERAMERANEIER
at the balance sheet date: CACE

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
2018%6 A30H 2017912 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEXK) (RB&EZ)
Discount rate (%) IR 2R (%) 1.45%-4.15% 1.41%-3.60%
Expected growth rate of future pension  FEHAK AR IR S B LR K (%)

expenses (%) 0.00%-3.40% 0.00%-3.40%
Expected rate of salary increment (%) TEERF 1B R R (%) 0.00%-4.25% 0.00%-4.25%

The actuarial valuation illustrates that the market value of assets BEMEENTIEENTEAAR

under the scheme is RMB5,986,314,767.40 (31 December 2017: ¥ 5,986,314,767.407C (2017 F 12

RMB6,182,857,501.63). A31H : AR#6,182,857,501.63
JC) °

Scheme recognized in the income statement is set out below: EFERTPBRNGETEET

January-June 2018 2017
20185 1-6 A 20174
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (CREEEZ)

Current period/year cost of service EHFRRIEA A 163,184,195.00 311,859,616.88
Historical cost of service B ERRTEACAN - (694,402.80)
Interest expenses ISNE=-] 80,509,907.14 166,215,124.09

Net amount of the cost of BERL SRR K A E 2R

post-employment benefit 243,694,102.14 477,380,338.17
Credited to cost of sales FTABERA 94,571,170.00 183,162,092.40
Credited to distribution and HAEEER

selling expenses 25,834,865.00 49,600,200.00
Credited to general and administrative st ABEE A

expenses 42,778,160.00
Credited to financial expenses H A EE R 80,509,907.14

243,694,102.14
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
37. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 37. REAEAB T &M (&)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued) REXmEB(E)
The change in defined benefit obligations and the change in fair HEXRERENAEEEAAE
value of assets under the scheme are as follows: BEEBHWT :
January to June 2018 2018 1-6 H
Net liabilities/
Present value of Fair value under (Net assets) of
defined benefit defined benefit assets under
(Unaudited) scheme obligations the scheme
RES a8l 3 FEEE
(REER) EBHE FEE/(FEE)
Opening balance RS 14,696,928,631.76 (6,182,857,501.63)  8,514,071,130.13
Taken to profit or loss in the FAEHER
current period
Cost of services RAEEA 163,184,195.00 163,184,195.00
Net interest FEFE 154,192,822.14 (73,682,915.00) 80,509,907.14
Taken to other comprehensive income st AR 47 & Nzt &
Actuarial (gains)/losses (F58) /8% (144,965,319.00) (144,965,319.00)
Return on assets under the scheme &+ &4 E B3k
(net of amount included in net (FTAFIB 3
interest) BRI 124,497,556.50 124,497,556.50
Adjustment for exchange ERERDE
differences (5,004,081.00) (5,004,081.00)
Benefits paid E Xt (178,810,710.78) 113,363,665.00 (65,447,045.78)
Contribution from employers EX4F 259,672.23 (13,052,498.71) (12,792,826.48)
Other changes E b2 H) (200,532,343.20) 45416,926.44  (155,115,416.76)
Closing balance HARBE 14,485,252,867.15 (5,986,314,767.40)  8,498,938,099. 7500wl
Note: As of 30 June 2018, the assets under the scheme amounting in aggregate $ 1 R2018F6A30BEIEE+RH K5t
to RMB167,460,729.00 were accounted for under other non-current AE#167,460,729.00 7T 1 H M 3E7%

assets. BEERZE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& ff I % it 3% 1 B IH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (#)
37. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 37. REAERB T &M (&)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued) REXmEB(E)
BREXmBBEHNAREELAE
BEHOT - (K)

The change in defined benefit obligations and the change in fair

value of assets under the scheme are as follows: (Continued)

2017 20174
Net liabilities/
Present value of Fair value (Net assets) of
defined benefit of defined assets under
(Audited) scheme obligations benefit scheme the scheme
FEX w8l BEX @i E HEEE
(BER) EBRE MREE  FEE/(FEE)
Opening balance BT 13,803,168,602.96 (5,830,951,970.18)  7,972,216,632.78
Business combinations not involving ~ 3E[E —#EEI T EA G
entitles under common control 3,660,706.80 - 3,660,706.80
Taken to profit or loss in the FAEHER
current period
Cost of services RAGEA 311,165,214.08 = 311,165,214.08
Net interest FEFE 313,342,628.86 (147,127,504.77) 166,215,124.09
Taken to other comprehensive income 5t A E {145 & Ui 5
Actuarial gains RENEG 55,453,451.14 (3,499,339.82) 51,954,111.32
Return on assets under the scheme HEBERR
(net of amount included in net (GFAFI B FEM
interest) BN = (264,622,806.80)  (264,622,806.80)
Adjustment for exchange differences (& ¥ =B HE (11,305,532.74) - (11,305,532.74)
Benefits paid B X B (362,340,593.23) 225,497,456.83 (136,843,136.40)
Contribution from employers EX4F (9,591,283.65) (72,659,704.17) (82,250,987.82)
Other changes Hin2s) 593,375,437.54 (89,493,632.72) 503,881,804.82
Closing balance FRNBE 14,696,928,631.76 (6,182,857,501.63) 8,514,071,130.13Motel(&)

Note: As of 31 December 2017, the assets under the scheme amounting in
aggregate to RMB188,885,880.70 were accounted for under other

non-current assets.

2 R2017F12A31 Bt 8IBEF A H
H AR#188,885,880.70 T E fth IE
MBEERIZH -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
38. Accruals and provisions
January to June 2018

(%)

38. FEFrEE
2018%F1-6 H

Increase Decrease Adjustment for
Opening during during exchange Closing
(Unaudited) Balance the period the period T ENES balance
(*E#H) EDES | AL AEHS  ExzEEE BRHE
Product quality assurance  ERESRESR
deposit 170,246,186.00 14,392,940.00 (29,533,265.00) (3,828,054.50) 151,277,806.50
Pending litigation EEEN 60,491,231.90 1,826,085.00 (4,792,510.00) (2,862,490.90) 54,662,316.00
Debt restructuring EBEAR 4,213,242.00 = (547,055.00) (77,633.50) 3,588,553.50
Others Hit 109,972,386.80 10,255,355.00 (8,097,955.00) (1,688,616.90) 110,441,169.90
344,923,046.70 26,474,380.00 (42,970,785.00) (8,456,795.80) 319,969,845.90
2017 20174
Increase Decrease Adjustment for
Opening during during exchange Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year differences balance
(&%) FNeR REEN RERD ERERRE ERBE
Product quality assurance deposit EmEERES 132,201,932.40 75,766,213.20 (41,793,891.60) 4,071,932.00 170,246,186.00
Pending litigation RARFFR 50,153,875.20 20,694,729.60 (9,156,960.00) (1,200,412.90) 60,491,231.90
Debt restructuring BREM 5,721,224.40 335,755.20 (2,151,885.60) 308,148.00 4,213,242.00
Losses in contract BEAR 14,715,895.20 - (15,368,431.20) 652,536.00 -
Others b} 108,240,666.00 21,854,611.20 (24,605,820.60) 4,482,930.20 109,972,386.80
311,033,593.20 118,651,309.20 (93,076,989.00) 8,315,133.30 344,923,046.70
39. Deferred income 39. EEW &=

30 June 2018

31 December 2017

20186 H30H 2017912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (e ®|HZ)

Government grant

Deferred income of indirect leasing

Deferred income of sale and
leaseback sub-leases

Others

BT BY

MEAE 2R S

SR AEBEAER 2 RIERS

HAl

Deferred income of forklift trucks services X & R 7% %} & 2 #E FEUL =5

1,330,649,053.67

248,360,038.50

1,074,155,827.50

2,653,164,919.67

1,282,880,662.98
271,871,143.50

1,261,686,526.10
264,903,689.60
40,322,286.40

3,121,664,308.58
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ B 0H H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
39. Deferred income (Continued) 39. B Wz ()
January to June 2018 20185 1-6 H

Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) HO8E rHEM RS HASRE
Government grant HR e 1,282,880,662.98 74,264,577.00 26,496,186.31 1,330,649,053.67
Deferred income of indirect leasing HEHE BT iE 271,871,143.50 - 23,511,105.00 248,360,038.50
Deferred income of sale and ERNDEERER
leaseback sub-leases BTN E 1,261,686,526.10 187,530,698.60 1,074,155,827.50
Deferred income of forklift trucks services X B fR 75 4 8 2 B2 264,903,689.60 264,903,689.60 -
Others Hit 40,322,286.40 40,322,286.40 -
3,121,664,308.58 74,264,577.00 542,763,965.91 2,653,164,919.67
2017 20174
Opening Increase during Decrease during Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year balance
(&ER) HHE REEM RERD RS
Government grant TR B 1,092,367,633.72 256,739,121.54 66,226,092.28 1,282,830,662.98
Deferred income of indirect leasing FEEE R e 238,194,373.20 33,676,770.30 - 271,871,143.50
Deferred income of sale and PGS
leaseback sub-leases 4130 968,333,670.00 293,352,856.10 - 1,261,686,526.10
Deferred income of forklift trucks services X ERBEHE 2 EE Wz 253,640,948.40 17,069,780.00 5,807,038.80 264,903,689.60
Others Hi 21,693,889.19 18,628,397.21 - 40,322,286.40
2,574,230,514.51 619,466,925.15 72,033,131.08 3,121,664,308.58
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
39. Deferred income (Continued)
As at 30 June 2018, the liability items related to government grant

are as follows:

Taken to
Opening Increase during other income
(Unaudited) balance the period  during the period
R A
(REE%) HILE L Fip Hibh
Land-related government 1134 ER)
grant BREY 817,871,760.31 23,369,000.00 11,320,759.65
Special funds for industry — E¥RERE
revitalization and HEEES
technological renovation 329,270,758.60 3,015,633.29
Special assistance fund EEERES
23,604,155.73 5,732,177.00 472,065.52
National debt special fund ~ BIEEIEE 4
9,904,347.32 43,445.13
Special research funds issued B ZIERIET
by government e 44,460,000.00
Position-based allowances ~ EE A7 B
for project teams Bi2EE 99,820,566.55 703,400.00 8,145,672.18
Others Hih

2,409,074.47 = 51,570.54

1,282,880,662.98 74,264,577.00 23,049,146.31

As at 31 December 2017, the liability items related to government

(%)

39. IEE W (&)
MR2018%F 06 A30H
WEaEEBENT

Other decreases

Closing balance

AR

829,920,000.66

3,447,040.00 322,808,085.31
28,864,267.21
9,860,902.19
44,460,000.00
92,378,294.37

- 2,357,503.93

3,447,040.00 1,330,649,053.67

G OF B R R IH H RE R

3 R BT 6 B

Related to
assets/income
hEEE

Related to assets

REERS

Related to assets
HEERE
Related to assets
HEERE
Related to assets
HEERE
Related to income
elbesyil
Related to income
Jallgagi]
Related to assets

HEERR

MN2017%12 8318 - B REBFH

grant are as follows: WEBEEBEEWT
Taken to other
Opening Increase during income during Related to
(Audited) balance the year theyear ~ Other decreases Closing balance assetsfincome
REHA BhE/
(&&%) Efe% REHHE s Hfpd EXBE et
Land-related government  E431EEH Related to assets
grant ot 781,178 886.58 60,483,883.99 23,79,010.26 - 817,871,760.31 HEEIH
Special funds for industry ~ EZEEA

revitalization and e Related to assets
technological renovation 237,653,157.89  112,950,000.00 21332,399.29 - 329270,758.60 HEERE
Special assistance fund VR Related to assets
12,477,130.71 11,343,400.00 216,374.98 - 36041573 HEERY
National debt specialfund ~ EIEZIEE % Related to assets
9,961,013.99 - 56,606.67 - 9,904,347.32 HEERE
Position-based allowances ~ EE A7 Bl Related to income
for project teams H2EE 48,585,229.00 71,956,837.55 16,691,500.00 4,030,000.00 99,820,566.55 el eyl
£y Related to assets
251221555 - - 103,141.08 240907447 HEERR

092,367,633.72  256,739,121.54 62,092,951.20

4133,141.08

1,282,880,662.98
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
40. Share capital 40. BB
January to June 2018 2018 1-6 H

Increase

(decrease) of

shares in
Opening balance current period Closing balance
HAHRE /() RY HASRE
(Unaudited) No. of shares Proportion No. of shares Proportion
(RBER) e | Lo 4(%) e | t (%)
|, Restricted shares - EREREHKRSH
State-owned legal person shares HBEAER 1,642,531,008.00 - 1,642,531,008.00
Other domestic shares HthRERR 96,335,291.00 5,033,596.00  101,368,887.00
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned HEd o ERHEEE
legal person shares EARR
Domestic natural person BRERA
shares Bk 96,335,291.00 . 5,033,596.00 101,368,887.00
1,738,866,299.00 5033,596.00  1,743,899,895.00
Il Non-restricted shares Z. ERERERKRR
RMB ordinary Shares ARBE®T 4,315,332,257.00 (5,033,596.00) 4,310,298,661.00
Domestic listed foreign shares BRETRINER = = -
Overseas listed foreign shares BN E TR ANVE R 1,943,040,000.00 - 1,943,040,000.00

6,258,372,257.00 (5,033,596.00)  6,253,338,661.00

lll. Total no. of shares PrREEE: 7,997,238,556.00 - 1,997,238,556.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& ff i % it 3 1 B IH H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (#)
40. Share capital (Continued) 40. BRA(4E)
2017 20174
Increase
(decrease) of
shares in
Opening balance current year Closing balance
ENRE REE (R RE ERBE
(Audited) No. of shares Proportion No. of shares Proportion
(B%%) ies £ 5(%) ied £ 51(%)
| Restricted shares - EREREHKRH
State-owned legal person shares BBEARR 821,265,504.00 2054 821,26550400  1,642,531,008.00 2054
Other domestic shares HERERR 46,378,011.00 1.16 49,957,280.00 96,335,291.00 1.20
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned Ed o ERHEEE
legal person shares EAER - - - - -
Domestic natural person BRERA
shares Bk 46,378,011.00 1.16 49,957,280.00 96,335,291.00 1.20
867,643,515.00 21.70 871,222,784.00  1,738,866,299.00 21.74
Il Non-restricted shares Z. ERERARG
RMB ordinary Shares ARELBR 2,159,455,763.00 54.00  2,155,876,494.00  4,315,332,257.00 53.96
Domestic listed foreign shares B ETRINER - - - - -
Overseas listed foreign shares B ETRSNER 971,520,000.00 2430 971,520,000.00  1,943,040,000.00 2430
3,130,975,763.00 7830 3,127,39,494.00  6,258,372,257.00 78.26

lIl. Total no. of shares R EE 3,998,619,278.00 100.00  3,998,619,278.00  7,997,238,556.00 100.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ B 0H H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)

41. Capital reserve 41. EXRQHE
January to June 2018 2018 1-6 H

Opening Increase during  Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) BARE R ) BRRE
Share premium (Note 1) RARE (1) 25,592,887.14 = (25,592,887.14) =
Wholly state-owned capital reserve BB Z EANTE 77,000,000.00 - - 77,000,000.00
Other capital reserve (Note 2) HipEARRE(G2) 33,305,867.85 1,315,292.83 - 34,621,160.68
135,898,754.99 1,315,292.83 (25,592,887.14)  111,621,160.68
2017 20174
Opening Increase during Decrease during

(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(8F%) EMHE RELEM KERD ERHE
Share premium BB - 50,317,267.53  (24,724,38039)  25592,887.14
Wholly state-owned capital reserve BBEZEALE - 77,000,000.00 = 77,000,000.00
Other capital reserve HiEADHE 30,139,859.91 3,166,007.94 - 33,305,867.85

30,139,859.91 130,483,275.47 (24,724,380.39) 135,898,754.99

Note 1: In June 2018, the Company acquired 1.74% minority interests of KION 1 201856 R  ADABBHKE N
GROUP AG in the secondary market at a consideration of approximately (EREB)ERBERRA ([ HELER
EUR150 million through Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding S.a B )50 TR ER ZRT
r.l. ("Weichai Lux”). Upon the completion of such transaction, the % B B KION GROUP AG 1.74% #)
percentage of shareholding increased from 43.26% to 45.00%. The LEBRE AR TEKE - FR
above equity transaction led to a decrease of RMB25,592,887.14 in the bt 5 B 43.26% £ FF £45.00% © £
share premium, a decrease of RMB616,811,881.87 in the surplus reserve MEEER IR EEARE
and a decrease of RMB238,258,458.60 in the retained earnings. 25,592,887.147C ' HRABBATEA

R#616,811,881.877C ' HEADE
FEAR#238,258,458.607T °

Note 2: For the increase in capital reserve arising from equity-settled share-based 2 ERAZENRMINSIBERHNERATE
payment, please refer to Note XI. Share-based Payment. B3 - 2RME+— BRI -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
42. Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income, on a cumulative basis, attributable to

parent as shown in balance sheet is as follows:

R 3% B G (7
201846 H30H (A RHIT)
e EHREEEEHA R
(%)
42. HnRE W&
BEABRTEBAIRAANE b

e 2T EREE
Adjustments upon
(Audited) 1January 2017 Increase/(Decrease) 31 December 2017 changes in standards 1 January 2018
(BER) 201751518 BEEH 20175128318 RRBTAE 201851718
Changes arising from BHMERE
re-measuring defined Xt 2288
benefit plan (559,951,639.63) 104,152,091.25 (455,799,548.38) - (455,799,548.38)
Those other comprehensive 13575 T8¢
income nottobe takento ~ EIEHH)
profit or loss under E bz lg
equity method (165,577,229.27) 3,280,767.28 (162,296,461.99) (162,296,461.99)
Those other comprehensive #2574 T A&
income to be taken to profit  BHME 4
or loss under equity method 434 Wiz 34,674,207.98 1,967,785.30 36,641,993.28 - 36,641,993.28
Change of fair value of MRLESREE
available-for-sale financial A4 BEEEH
assets 53,200,000.00 6,353,967.55 59,553,967.55 (59,553,967.55)
Change of fair value of HiERTARE
investment in other equity A7 BEEH
instruments = = - 96,451,054.25 96,451,054.25
Effective portion of cashflow B4R EEHH
from hedging BHEn (59,830,990.05) (25,984,960.43) (85,815,950.48) - (85,815,950.48)
Exchange differences on MEBTBRE
foreign currency translation EER 155,927,72030  (1,165,770,648.29)  (1,009,842,927.99) S (1,009,842,927.99)
Relevantincome tax effect ~ BEMAERTE 121,985,402.42 (31,992,630.14) 89,992,772.28 (9,252,583.00) 80,740,189.28
(419,572,528.25)  (1,107,993,627.48)  (1,527,566,155.73) 2764450370  EMURIEERPANEYANL))
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B 5 R B T (4
2018%6/30H (ARKT)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~# f B % it % 3 2 EH H 5 5

Statements (Continued) (#)

42. Other comprehensive income (Continued) 42. HtsRE W (&)
(Unaudited) 1 January 2018 Increase/(Decrease) 30 June 2018
(REER) 201851418 EREY 20186430

Changes arising from B ERTE
re-measuring defined Rt HE BT
benefit plan (455,799,548.38) 17,077,390.51 (438,722,157.87)
Those other comprehensive 2% TR gE
incomenottobetakento  EIEZA)
profit or loss under Hipira s
equity method (162,296,461.99) (1,135,343.38) (163,431,805.37)
Those other comprehensive  #Ez & T o/ &
income to be taken to profit Bz fIE
or loss under equity method £ & U2 36,641,993.28 1,002,941.82 37,644,935.10
Change of fair value of HiEHTERE
investment in other equity A% BEEZE)
instruments 96,451,054.25 (75,817,187.93) 20,633,866.32
Effective portion of cashflow B4R EEHH)
from hedging BiEs (85,815,950.48) (42,626,448.70) (128,442,399.18)
Exchange differences on BB BERR
foreign currency translation EER (1,009,842,927.99) 36,448,951.56 (973,393,976.43)
Relevant income tax effect ~ HERFMERTE 80,740,189.28 23,694,807.03 104,434,996.31
(1,499,921,652.03) (41,354,889.09) (1,541,276,541.12)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
42. Other comprehensive income (Continued) 42. HtiRE W (&)
Incurred in current period for other comprehensive income as FERAPEMIGE WS S A L5

shown in the income statement:

January to June 2018 20185 1-6 A

Less: Amount
recognized in other
comprehensive

income in previous
period and

recognized in Attributable Attributable

profit or loss in to parent to minority

(Unaudited) Incurred pre-tax current period Less: income tax company interests
B EEEA

AfbiRalE FR

(REEH) HARER EHEABRE B RN BRELH SERRER

Other comprehensive income TEENBEBREN
not to be reclassified into EtEelEER
profit or loss HERTREHEN
Changes arising from 29
re-measuring defined
benefit plan 25,471,843.50 (658,029.00) 17,362,053.85 8,767,818.65

Those other comprehensive income #3574 T M EE I8 H)
not to be taken to profit or loss EgalE
under equity method (2,624,464.50) (1,135,343.38) (1,489,121.12)

Change of fair value of investment ~ Efthi#% T &
in other equity instruments REMBEEY (92,086,648.13) (10,483,846.50) (65,902,072.83) (15,700,728.80)

Other comprehensive income to BEAERBRNEL
be reclassified into profit or loss SAEREET

Those other comprehensive TEERN
income to be taken to profit el
o loss under equity method 2,318,404.50 1,002,941.82 1,315,462.68
Effective portion of cashflow from B4R EEHH
hedging BUES (18,235,060.47) 86,578,477.03 (31,195,165.50) (29,131,420.11) (44,486,951.89)
Exchange differences on foreign ~~ SMERERTEZHE
currency translation (35,377,468.19) - - 36,448,951.56 (71,826,419.75)

(120,533,393.29) 86,578,477.03 (42,337,041.00) (41,354,889.09) (123,419,940.23)
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

42. Other comprehensive income (Continued)

43.

January to June 2017
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PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201846 H30H (A E¥T)

N f‘ﬁg{a‘{;,ﬁa‘%%&%igiﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
12, EAbE A (8)
20179F1-6 A

Less: Amount
recognized in other
comprehensive
income in previous
period and
recognized in

profit or loss in Attributable to Attributable to
(Unaudited) Incurred pre-tax current period Less: income tax parent company minority interests
A BTEEA
Ethira ks 5B
(REEER) Rages EHE RS B R BESAA PERRER
Other comprehensive income THEHNEREED
not to be reclassified into EtiEalEESR
profit or loss TERTREHEN
Changes arising from 298
re-measuring defined
benefit plan 453,956,068.80 - 125,597,767.20 161,064,157.23 167,294,144.37
Those other comprehensive income €2 TR B4
not to be taken to profit EgalE
or loss under equity method 3,464,071.20 - - 1,498,557.20 1,965,514.00
Other comprehensive income BESBERRNER
tobe reclassified into profitorloss AW EERE T A E
Those other comprehensive income  BZE)Ethiz & %
to be taken to profit or loss
under equity method 4,277,779.20 - - 1,850,567.27 242121193
Changes of fair value of available- T HESFERE
for-sale financial assets LREEEY 30,589,388.80 - (2,240,539.20) 4,556,426.85 28,273,501.15
Effective portion of cashflow from B4 A2 EHMA LS
hedging (144,617,149.19) (240,725,080.75) 23,814,520.80 46,750,523.02 25,542,887.74
Exchange differences onforeign ~ MERETEZR
currency translation (1,739,621,190.38) - - (969,726,225.88) (769,894,964.50)
(1,391,951,031.57) (240,725,080.75) 147,171,748.80 (754,005,994.31) (544,391,705.31)
Special reserve 43. BE#E
January to June 2018 20184 1-6 H
At the Increase Decrease
beginning during during At the end
(Unaudited) of period the period the period of period
(REER) BHE A2 AERD HAREE
Safety funds RELEE 118,355,897.38 50,145,391.94 (24,589,005.85) 143,912,283.47

—
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)
43. Special reserve (Continued) 43. BIEf#E (E)
2017 20174
Increase Decrease
At the beginning during during At the end
(Audited) of year the year the year of year
(&%) FNHE REEM KERD FRBE
Safety funds ZEEEER 98,711,320.61 61,531,924.51 (41,887,347.74) 118,355,897.38
44. Surplus reserve 44, BEANTE
January to June 2018 2018 1-6 H
At the Decrease
beginning Increase during during At the end
(Unaudited) of period the period the period of period
(REER) BURE A H 58 0 XEED BARHE
Statutory surplus reserve EERBLE 616,811,881.87 - (616,811,881.87)
2017 20174
At the Increase Decrease
beginning during during At the end
(Audited) of year the year the year of year
(&&EZ) FNHE REEM KERD FRBE
Statutory surplus reserve EERBLE - 616,811,881.87 - 616,811,881.87
According to the provisions of Company Law and the articles of BREAREMARREZERMNBET + &
association, the Company appropriated statutory surplus reserve NEEFFBENI10%RIVEE A S
at 10% of the net profit. Where the accumulated amount of the NIEE ATERBRABRTBALEAR
statutory surplus reserves reaches 50% or more of the Company’s AlFEMEARS50% A EH) » A T H iR
registered capital, additional appropriation is not needed. EY o
The decrease in surplus reserve this period was due to equity AERBATEHRLD EZHBE L EHRK

transaction of acquisition of minority interests. Please refer to Note BOERER SR  2RMER -
41 (Note 1). 41(5E1) »
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ B 0H H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)
45. Retained earnings 45. R BEFHE
January-June 2018 2017
2018%1-68 20174
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERK) (&&%)
Retained earnings at the end of last year before  FE AT FFFRADALAE
adjustment 27,898,783,968.43 27,905,900,916.04
Add: Change of accounting policies e eERER 208,898,780.20 -
Adjusted retained eamings at the beginning of ~ FAZI&H /FEMA D BF|E
period/year 28,107,682,748.63 27,905,900,916.04
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the ~ SBREATIREHEHE
parent 4,392,587,359.49 6,808,342,544.23
Less: Appropriation of surplus reserves B RBBSAE Note
V.44
fiasrm
44 - 616,811,881.87
Dividend payable on ordinary shares in cash TE L@ 2 IR 1,999,309,639.00 2,199,240,602.90
Dividend payable on ordinary shares in RS RRRERT
shares 3,998,619,278.00
Addition and reduction of shares of B RS FARRS Note
subsidiaries and others REAM V.41
MR -
41 238,258,458.60 787,729.07
Retained earnings at the end of period/year H/ERROEAE 30,262,702,010.52 27,898,783,968.43
Distribution of the dividend payable on ordinary shares in cash ERETBERIESERINARK
amounting to RMB1,999,309,639.00 was completed during the 1,999,309,639.00 TR EEB B X
period from the balance sheet date to the date of approval of HEAMBREA AERE B 2 BHE R
these financial statements. For details, please refer to Note XIII. BHEE A= BEARE

Subsequent Events. Hi&%E1E o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (#)

46. Minority interests 46. LR RER

January-June 2018 2017
2018%1-6 B 20174
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (BER)
Minority interest attributable to FERNEERE

ordinary share holders RRER RS 16,561,106,594.09 16,062,191,085.87

Minority interest attributable to other FEROERRAMERTA
equity instrument holders BEENER 5,053,277,241.69 5,053,277,241.69

21,614,383,835.78 21,115,468,327.56

On 14 September 2017, Weichai International Hong Kong Energy
Group Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, issued perpetual
bond of par value of USD775 million, nominal interest rate of 3.75%
and with interest payable every six months. Total net proceeds after
deduction of issue expenses amounted to RMB5,053,277,241.69.

The perpetual bond was issued with the guarantee provided by the
Company for its subsidiary Weichai International Hong Kong Energy
Group Co., Limited, without maturity date, without conversion
right, and dividend distribution may be deferred for an indefinite

number of times at the discretion of the Company.

As at 30 June 2018, change in other equity instruments issued and

outstanding was as follows:

R2017F9 8148 » KRR ZFA
BB (BB ERERBR DA
BTEEARTISEEL  BEEAE
73.75% N ESEX A6E A 8 K&
& MRBETEAREEECHER
ANR#5,053,277,241.697T °

ZEXEEHARBRFRE MRS
BR(EB)EREEBRARIRHER
BT BIHA > BEERE - BOR
BERRARRREESR - ATXR
R B o

20186 A30H » BITHEINHAD
B TAZSHMT :

At the
beginning Issued during Redeemed during At the end
(Unaudited) of period the period the period of period

(REER) HABE rERT TR MR

Perpetual bond 5,053,277,241.69 - 5,053,277,241.69




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
47. Revenue and Cost of Sales
Revenue includes turnover and other revenue that arise in the
course of the Group’s ordinary activities. The Group's turnover,
which arises from the principal activities of the Group, represents
the value of services rendered or the net invoiced values of goods
sold after allowances for returns and trade discounts; and gross

rental income received and receivable from investment properties.
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RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201846 H30H (A RHET)
T G OF B R 2 B IH H RERE
(%)
47. EER AR KK

WABEAEBEREEBBRETEL
MEXBEREMBEA  AEEBEE
BEEBHELNEEBIRFANGKRER
g REEFHNAREEREHNEER
FEHEEMHERFREUARRE N
FiHEC KK EEHEES WAL -

January-June 2018 January-June 2017

2018%1-68 2017%1-6A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REER)
Revenue Revenue Cost
/0N RA 0N 2
Revenue from principal operations TEEHR PRL T PIRPASS N I RIGPRRIIS  70,595,730,065.54  55,450,390,027.24
Other revenue LS 1,969,461,787.96 1,731,219,590.65 1,717,535,524.57 1,537,021,156.32

82,263,906,908.88

The revenue is listed as follows:

64,335,849,214.51 72,313,265,590.11 56,987,411,183.56

BRWATIRAT

January-June 2018 January-June 2017

2018%1-6 A 20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)

FERBUIA
HEREmRHEMD
NEAE  RERMK

Revenue from principal operations
Sales of goods and others

Forklift trucks production, warehousing

50,473,207,154.38 42,538,969,266.20

technology and supply chain solutions RS RR R ZRARS WA
services 29,821,237,966.54 28,056,760,799.34
80,294,445,120.92 70,595,730,065.54
Other revenue e PN
Sales of materials SHEE M 1,436,913,288.95 1,281,061,173.29
Lease income HEWA 114,148,433.81 60,486,099.04
Labour income 5B I A 26,668,028.45
Income from trial production of vehicles — zELE UL A 61,560,815.78
Others Hh 330,171,220.97

1,969,461,787.96

82,263,906,908.88
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)

47. Revenue and Cost of Sales (Continued) 47. EEWARRA(E)
Reporting segment: HEDE
January to June 2018 20185 1-6 A

Automobiles and

other major Forklift trucks and
automobile Import & supply chain
(Unaudited) Diesel engines components  Other components export services solution
REREM XER
(RBEH) Kl TERERHA A BHH EHORE  HEEBARE
Major regions of E
operation: BEHE
Mainland China hE AR 16,289,391,462.82  33,347,362,378.39 140,512,073.27 32,642,774.30 - 49,809,908,688.78

Other countries and regions ~ ZfEIR Ak & 207,065,883.50 1,460,605,896.39 914,309,040.32 50,779433.35  29,821,237,966.54  32,453,998,220.10

Total At 16,496,457,34632 34,807,968, 274.78 1,054,821,113.59 8342220765  29,821,237,966.54  82,263,906,908.88

Time for recognition of WA

revenue: B
Goods (transferred at AR(EE-KS
a certain point of time) 23) 16,428,928 543.10 34,703,861,685.95 1,034,245,495.79 58,161,600.03 18,261,034,612.12  70,486,231,936.99
Services (provided at BB (EE-E&
a certain period of time) ) 67,528,803.22 104,106,588.83 20,575,617.80 25,260,607.62 11,560,203,354.42  11,777,674,971.89
Total At 16,496,457,346.32 34,807,968,274.78 1,054,821,113.59 83422,207.65  29,821,237,966.54  82,263,906,908.88
48. Taxes and Surcharges 48. Bi& KK
January-June 2018 January-June 2017
20185 1-6 8 2017%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REFZ) (REEZ)
City maintenance and construction tax A ERERT 132,973,278.94 125,354,845.27
Educational surtax HE BN 96,054,689.78 90,647,330.23
Others Hih 170,266,388.82 157,187,815.82

399,294,357.54 373,189,991.32
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Statements (Continued) (%)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

49. Distribution and selling expenses

49. SHEEH

January-June 2018

January-June 2017

2018%1-6 8 20174 1-6 8

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REBEX) (REgER)

Staff costs 8 I 2,145,275,364.27 1,874,145,723.42
After-sales and repair fee —BRERREER 1,032,833,230.86 1,138,573,100.05
Freight and packaging BERBEE 604,005,155.05 481,295,363.27
Marketing expenses mSFREER 383,665,118.40 344,236,121.73
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEEENE 240,846,194.35 245,523,708.44
Travel expenses EIRE 174,792,102.11 148,536,364.17
Lease expenses HE? 164,281,095.86 152,945,419.55
Office expenses WAE R 51,187,159.39 52,319,019.46
Others Hity 676,710,055.99 589,849,579.00

5,473,595,476.28

50. General and administrative expenses

50. EEEH

January-June 2018

5,027,424,399.09

January-June 2017

2018%1-6 A 2017%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REERK) (REEEZ)

Staff costs 8 TR 1,860,081,711.57 1,644,670,000.12
External support fee EINSIEE ST 332,151,084.86 287,138,656.40
Depreciation of fixed assets BEBEENE 213,623,911.44 235,485,366.08
Office expenses MAE 162,487,298.77 153,734,246.71
Lease expenses HESE 69,118,946.21 77,110,490.11
Travel expenses ERE 53,233,120.86 38,116,179.46
Repair expenses BIEE 29,434,643.56 22,853,568.40
Fuels and materials PR R MK B 22,055,990.28 12,800,165.41
Others Hith 453,992,386.28 589,198,419.89

3,196,179,093.83

3,061,107,092.
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
51. Research and development costs

52.

53.

PR 3 B 5 (48D
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G OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)
51. HBEH

January-June 2018
20185 1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(RBEX)

877,680,165.05
392,730,357.63

161,963,954.57

133,145,057.64
49,731,108.48
26,839,213.19
109,042,596.32

1,751,132,452.88

52. (i & A

January-June 2018
2018%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RRBER)

Staff costs 8 THA

Testing costs ERHAAE

Depreciation and BEEEENER
amortization of fixed assets ey

External intellectual property and HNER N EE A N
published documents licensing costs i SR R B

Fuels and utility fees BB R B B

Travel expenses EIRE

Others HA,

Finance expenses

Interest expenses FEZH

Less: interest income B FLEA

Exchange gains and losses P& H i85

Handling fees and others FREBREAM

612,147,513.99

563,067,891.29
20,027,383.89

(12,461,492.30)

56,645,514.29

Impairment loss of assets

53. EERERX

January-June 2018
2018%1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(RBEXK)

Loss from bad debts

BERBR

Loss due to decline in value of inventories 77 & (B8 %

BlEEERERE

ERIRRE
B%
&EMERRK

136,249,879.02
20,000,000.00

11,170,845.44
11,905,493.16

179,326,217.62

January-June 2017
20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEER)

836,219,985.91
374,233,281.43

150,605,396.85

45,207,632.97
25,474,336.36
20,921,670.67
79,323,887.66

1,531,986,191.85

January-June 2017
20174F1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEER)

664,527,888.68
470,373,560.53
97,196,505.05
77,365,637.61

368,716,470.81

January-June 2017
2017%F1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEER)

309,842,979.47
171,098,159.62
83,593,515.12

16,842,546.88
371,696,846.38

953,074,047.47

LL
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it & £ IH H 5 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
54. Credit impairment losses 54. ERABERX%
January-June 2018 January-June 2017
20185 1-6 A 2017%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REEER)
Loss from bad debts BERE K 105,247,274.82 -
55. Other income 55. Hibik =
Government grants charged to profit or loss for the current period FFABHESENBNHEIAT

are presented as follows:

Extraordinary
profit and loss

recognised

January - June January - June Related to from January to

(Unaudited) 2018 2017 assets/income June 2018
HEE/ HA2018%1-68

(REER) 20185 1-64 20175 1-6 7 il ] FREMEES

Income of financial subsidies BT B B A 23,252,755.35 21,198,697.20 EMEEICRAIE] 23,252,755.35

el Erycl

Government support fund BR%E: 11,052,200.00 3,153,244.14 RN 11,052,200.00

el Erycl
Amortization of deferred income i FE YR 25 4 5 23,049,146.31 14,773,972.39 EEEEERRGERES 23,049,146.31
HEERH

QOthers Hit 985,336.11 743,857.11  EEEH TR <o) 985,336.11
el Erycl

58,339,437.77 58,339,437.77

During the period, the government subsidy received by the AN BB BB i i S Y A S U

Company and amortized via deferred income amounted in total to HWEIFFARNHERSBETARKE

RMB58,339,437.77, including the following: 58,339,437.777C © Hr :

(1) During the period, the Company and its subsidiaries received (1) AEHARRKETRAARIECE
the subsidy on insurance for first products from the Gaoxin REB2017F 8 & (E) i
District National Wealth Centre, Weifang City under the & B A% 0 T EB R B (E
“Notice Regarding Subsidizing Insurance for First Technical TER @A ) ERAS AT T = #T
Equipment and Core Parts and Components in 2017"; the ERERLZNEAREERR
central special funding in year 2017 in support of external R AL - RIRCBAR B S2017
trade and economic development from the central clearing FHRIMGCERREEESE
on external trade and economic development 2017 under the HIEROEM)ENIGF20174

“Notice Regarding the Budget for Central Special Funding
in Support of External Trade and Economic Development
in Year 2017"; and other income including financial
subsidies and refund of land use taxes, in a total amount of
RMB23,252,755.35.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
55. Other income (Continued)

(2)  During the period, the Company and its subsidiaries received
funding in the total amount of RMB11,052,200.00 including
the technological innovation incentive support subsidy from
the Finance Bureau of Jiangjin District, Chongqging City,
and the Xi‘an Outbound Economic Development Special
(Export Incremental Incentive) Fund for Year 2017 from
Xi'an Economic Technology Development Area Management

Committee.

(3) During the period, the Company and its subsidiaries
amortized, via deferred income, government grants including
land refunds and special funds, in a total amount of
RMB23,049,146.31.

56. Investment income

(%)
55. Hfth ez (&)
(2) AHMARRRTRARKINEE

L0 [ B B B B BT 3B
R B) - R A BT R
BRELZEALBE07FAL
Mo A g B R B IR (O
HEREM AeSFHTARE
11,052,200.007T °

(3) AHEARARTRAAEER S
BEEBEIHRERAREIE
EeSHNMBAFARE
23,049,146.317T °

56. RE W=
January-June 2018 January-June 2017
20185 1-6 B 20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (CREEEZ)

Gain on long-term equity investments EmEZE W
under the equity method & BAIR 4 & e
Investment income arising from BEERIREBEREEEDN

BE W
At ESREERR

disposal of long-term equity investments

Investment income during the period in
which the available-for-sale financial
assets were held

Gain on interest rate swap and exchange
gains and losses realized in cross

Hth

currency interest rate swap contracts
Others

B IR E W

RXXE¥FNEREBRE T
EERNHE = Bz

136,233,044.06 120,804,392.87

17,101,283.06 -

12,500,531.87

44,200,906.81 =
23,640,771.91 1,899,797.83

221,176,005.84 135,204,722.57
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (48)
57. Profit or loss on change of fair value 57. AREEEHER

January-June 2018 January-June 2017

20185 1-6 A 20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RIBER) (CREEER)
Forward contracts at fair value through AR R BET & B &85 A
profit or loss for the current period SHEZHNERES YD (47,923,556.47) 142,460,083.61
Warrants and cash compensation RAREFERESHEE 18,821,947.94 -
Cross currency at fair value through profit A A # BEEE B8 A
or loss for the current period BHIBEMR XN EE

Swap instruments (Note V.65) BT E(KER - 65) 55,975,444.78 -

26,873,836.25 142,460,083.61

58. Non-operating income 58. EEIMIA

Extraordinary profit
and loss recognised

January - June January - June from January to
2018 2017 June 2018
T A2018%1-6 A
201851-6 4 20174 1-6 1 FEEHES
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Reversal of provision for other liabilities £ fth & (&% [0 3,151,195.89 5,927,607.00 3,151,195.89
Net penalty income SFFBA 7,518,864.16 2,240,983.72 7,518,864.16
Others Hip 131,520,911.76 108,722,668.28 131,520,911.76
142,190,971.81 116,891,259.00 142,190,971.81
59. Non-operating expenses 59. B¥EHZH
Extraordinary profit
and loss recognised
January - June January - June from January to
2018 2017 June 2018
i A2018%1-6 8
20185 1-6 4 20174 1-6 8 FREMRS
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (REER) (REEZR)
Donation expenditure N B B 1,427,000.00 ' 3 1,427,000.00
Others Hih 51,099,096.81 51,099,096.81
52,526,096.81 52,526,096.81
N
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60. ERAEMEDE
REBEERK  HEBR  TEE
A HEERRREESENBRE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
60. Expenses by nature
The supplemental information of the Group’s cost of sales,

distribution and selling expenses, general and administrative

expenses and research and development expenses which are

categorized by nature is as follows:

BT

January-June 2018

January-June 2017

2018%1-6 8 20174 1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RREX) (REEEZ)

Materials used FEF B M R SUACEERON PAPIER I 49,453,022,507.10
Movement of inventories of finished ERNGNMEERSE

goods and work in progress FE# (863,489,334.13) (2,622,809,708.82)

Staff remuneration B T 2 11,659,265,952.58 11,389,495,558.73

Depreciation and amortization expenses  #7 & 2 11 §4 & 3,646,255,422.38 3,664,172,526.06

Rental He 240,366,625.24 235,747,564.67

Others HAb 2,181,356,359.12 4,488,300,419.34

74,756,756,237.50 66,607,928,867.08

EHEEIBENHEENTE
REBIER—ZHTEESNP B
ERRERCESHRATERER
AIEREEMBE AR FEE
E-BEUAAREBEARTETERE
AE(EHEE #]) - A5EES
REHEEIEEZZRE KEKION
GROUP AG K Dematic Group @ ZAHi
FRRIBEEHEES B RNEER
AIFEAREE7.39BL(2017F 156
A AR¥13.83187T) °

Effect of purchase price allocation on total profit

For a business combination involving enterprises not under common
control, the cost of business combination should be allocated
between the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired on the
date of acquisition, and assets and liabilities should be accounted
for at fair value and are subsequently measured (“purchase price
allocation”). The purchase price allocation of the Group primarily
arose from the acquisition of KION GROUP AG and Dematic Group.
In this period, the two purchase price allocations stated above
resulted in a decrease in profit before tax of RMB739 million (January
—June 2017: RMB1,383 million).
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
61. Income Tax Expenses

EA ~ﬁgﬁ;ﬁﬁ%$ﬁﬁiglﬁ SRR
61. FEBEE

January-June 2018
2018%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REBEZX)

Current tax expenses
Deferred tax expenses

EHMEHER
EXFEHER

January-June 2017

2017%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

1,898,277,774.00 1.1
(613,629,237.45)

98,469,202.97

(291,263,754.18)

1,284,648,536.55

The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is

listed as follows:

907,205,448.79

PRS T B A 27 B AR BB O B & 51 R 4D

Total profit

Tax at statutory tax rate
Effect of different tax rates applicable to
parent company and some subsidiaries
Effect of the change of tax rates on
opening deferred tax balance
Adjustments to current tax of previous periods
Profits and losses attributable to associates and
jointly controlled enterprises
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax incentives on eligible
expenditures
Utilization of deductible losses from prior years
Unrecognized deductible losses
Effect of unrecognized deductible
temporary differences
Others

MBRE

BEEREARNBIR
SYNSISE S SN
ERTRRENZE
BEEHHRTRITHREH
HENTE
HARHIRE A EROREE
RENBENSEEE
ighissey
BRMBABMA
TABMNER
AR R AL
bikEs
MANAT R AT ENER
AR A B R
RERN A RHEREER
T E
it

(547,096,487.49)

3,824,908.76
25,659,572.83

(27,410,938.79)
(71,912,112.51)
80,527,215.96

(70,655,486.24)
(52,822,872.14)
133,107,532.27

12,953,692.88
6,754,105.66

Tax expense at the Group's effective
tax rate

BAKEERHEER
FEHER

™
January-June 2018 January-June 2017
20185 1-6 A 201751-6
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (RigE=Z)
7,166,877,621.45 4,383,296,592.54
Note 71 1,791,719,405.36 1,095,824,148.14
Note 2

(280,506,907.75)

(37,886,351.97)

(18,120,658.93)
(28,023,411.89)
80,767,496.83

(44,616,330.47)
(72,685,777.75)
128,419,971.50

13,181,690.23
70,851,580.85

1,284,648,536.55

Note 1: The Company is subject to a statutory tax rate of 25%.

907,205,448.79

1 AARDEEBEA25

% ©

Note 2: The PRC income tax of the Group is calculated based on the estimated 32 AEEERBEEAMEHZREA

taxable income gained in the PRC and applicable tax rate. Tax arising = e 4 B T S BB K i B R
from the taxable income in other regions is calculated at applicable A E 1 3t [ 8 49 T

tax rate according to existing laws, interpretations and practices of the
country in which the Group operates.

S 402

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax has been made as the Gro
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 £ 20 H 51

Statements (Continued) (#)

62. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 62. BRW =
The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit of the current ERFRWZRIRBEBARNA G L
period attribute to the ordinary shareholders of the Company by XX B EY S BASF R - B ABSSTAE SN
the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares. B A I EGTE -
The calculation of basic EPS is detailed as follows: EXRGRKEHAEBHENT

January-June 2018 January-June 2017

2018%1-6 B 2017%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REEER)
Earnings g 2%
Net profit of the current period attribute to 52 B A AR 7] & @AY

ordinary shareholders of the Company R ER HY & 2% A 4,392,587,359.49 2,650,042,739.83

Shares & 15
Weighted average number of the QR BEITHEING B

ordinary shares outstanding of the B hNE T g ()

Company (Note 1) 7,997,238,556.00 7,997,238,556.00
Basic EPS (RMB/share) EARGRWE T/ ]) 0.55 0.33
The Company holds no potential shares that are significantly REBEBEAMEEELR -
dilutive.

Note 1: The Company’s 2016 profit distribution proposal was considered and H1: ARFI0FERRAFARE -
approved at the Company’s 2016 annual general meeting, the first 2017F E—RARBRREZEM2017F
class meeting of the holders of A shares in 2017 and the first class E-ARHRBRREAETHRBB2016F
meeting of the holders of H shares in 2017. The Company distributed ERREFR  MEEBREEF10R
to all shareholders a cash dividend of RMB2.50 (including tax) and 10 IRERSAMARE2.50T(EH) -
bonus shares (including tax) for every 10 shares. Such distribution was FEEXRABRIOB(EH)  2F4KR
completed in July 2017. Pursuant to the Accounting Standards for R2017F7AERERE - BEDSE
Business Enterprises, the earnings per share was calculated again based IR - KR A LA EE AR
on the adjusted number of shares of 7,997,238,556 shares for the 7,997,238,556 % E ¥t E Lt & HI M

comparative period. K Z IR ER ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~# ff B % it % 3 2 1EH B 5 5

Statements (Continued) (#)
63. Notes to items in cash flow statement 63. REREREEIRE
Other cash received relating to operating activities W B B 4th 84X R B) A B A
Re

January-June 2018 January-June 2017
2018%1-6 8 2017%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEERZ) (REgEER)

Interest income ) B U A 484,713,750.68 428,727,874.88
Government grants AT+ B 80,453,691.46 45,999,249 35
Others Hh 220,989,383.68 21,431,975.28

786,156,825.82 496,159,099.51

Other cash paid relating to operating activities YT HE A R SE B A R IR
&

January-June 2018 January-June 2017

2018 1-6A 2017%1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RREEX) (REBEZR)

Cash settlement of confirmation business 1R X, 2 %7#%HE 4T & 1,630,174,673.14 836,057,735.63
After-sales and repair fee =B RERRIE 831,370,117.19 432,347,094.55
Marketing and external support fee MEFREERINBELIFE 735,055,637.87 693,250,386.47
Freight and packaging BEBEROKE 619,794,092.03 577,690,189.62
Travel expenses EIRE 254,864,436.16 207,574,214.30
Office expenses WRE 216,479,442.05 222,683,010.31

Others EHAib 2,658,720,031.25 1,209,250,002.90

6,946,458,429.69 4,178,852,633.78
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f i % $it 3 £ B0H H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)

63. Notes to items in cash flow statement 63. AEeMEREEITE(E)
(Continued)
Other cash received relating to investing activities WHEMEgEZEEBENRE

January-June 2018 January-June 2017

20184 1-6 H 20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REFEZ)
Asset-related government grants B 7 MBI O IR A B 29,101,177.00 18,903,450.87
Others Hih - 1,117,179.18
29,101,177.00 20,020,630.05

Other cash paid relating to financing activities TRHEMBRESTHEENRS
January-June 2018 January-June 2017
2018%1-6 B 2017%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEXR) (REEZ)

Acquisition of minority interests in BETF AR e

subsidiaries 1,123,266,396.81 -
Handling fee for guarantee for borrowings f& R IER MR K FEE 22,953,195.00 45,143,878.50
Pledge of fixed deposits TE BA1F S0 - 421,060,000.00
Others Hith 20,418,250.00 38,403,144.63

1,166,637,841.81 504,607,023.13
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)

64. Supplement to cash flow statement 64. REREXRBAER
(1) Supplement to cash flow statement (1) WEeErRERGRER

January-June 2018

January-June 2017

2018%1-6 A 2017%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEXR) (REEZR)
Net profit 75 A 5,882,229,084.90 3,476,091,143.75
Add: Impairment loss of assets e BEMEERK 179,326,217.62 953,074,047.47
Impairment loss of credit EHREE% 105,247,274.82 -
Increase in special reserve EIAGEE A IE 25,961,010.72 14,089,449.75
Depreciation of fixed assets and EEEERKE LR E
investment properties e 2,575,463,528.38 2,433,961,164.95
Amortization of intangible assets T E 1,026,465,462.50 1,186,505,624.59
Amortization of long-term REGEBREHE
prepaid expenses 44,326,431.50 43,705,736.52
(Gain)/loss on disposal and BEEMBEERTEE -
retirement of fixed assets, B A EFE MR Ef
intangible assets and other BEM () 1BK
long-term assets (2,728,432.58) 5,032,604.91
Finance expenses MBER 375,878,137.93 418,654,082.39
Investment income WA (221,176,005.84) (135,204,722.57)
Gain on change of fair value N BEZH W (26,873,836.25) (142,460,083.61)
Increase in deferred tax assets BEFTSHREE/EM (227,513,003.87) (632,447,874.34)
(Decrease)/Increase in deferred tax RIEFETHAEBDN
liabilities GRA),/8m (459,331,132.37) 341,184,120.16
Increase in inventories FEHIE N (1,400,749,245.51) (3,235,076,125.96)
Increase in operating receivables 4 a8 E LG TE B A9 3 N (G N pyXcWrIN (13,340,718,311.00)
Increase in operating payables 4R e < IE B A9 LN 4,879,498,818.16 13,374,440,331.27
Others Hih 24,323,700.91 4,956,224.96

Net cash flow from operating activities

REEPELNRSREFR

8,484,325,579.80

4,765,787,413.24
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements %, Continued)
64. Supplement to cash flow statement
(Continued)
(1)  Supplement to cash flow statement (Continued)
Non-cash payment of material investment and financing
activities:

Acquisition of long-term assets from the  $5& 7 5 - 124t & U B &Y
endorsement of bank acceptance bills RITARNIEZEE
received from the sale of goods and ERBERPEE
provision of services

Net change in cash and cash equivalents: ReERREEBYWFEE -

The closing balance of cash Remi,/ FR%HE

Less: The opening balance of cash B RenE/ FNHE
Less: The opening balance of cash equivalents J& : IR & S EWHNEF 158

ReRRESEMFEME

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

(2) Information related to acquisition or disposal of
major subsidiaries and other business units
Information relating to disposal of major subsidiaries and
other business units:

RBREFRAREMEREN
KB

RETARREMEREN
YRR MRS FEY

Consideration for disposal of subsidiaries
and other business units
Cash and cash equivalents received for
disposal of subsidiaries and
other business units
Less: Amount of cash and cash equivalents
in subsidiaries and other business
units disposed of
ash received for disposal of subsidiaries
business units

B BRETARRAMEREND
RFENRS MRS FEY

EETRRREMEEENIREN
e FR

PR 5 2 M R (4)
201846304 (A E¥T)

* Y’?ﬁﬁ?ﬂa‘%%ﬁi@i%ﬁi H iR

64. RERERBXTER(E)

(1) BEerRERBERER(E)
THRBREHMEREEMEE

EEI

January-June 2018
2018%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

3,234,365,173.89

30 June 2018
201856 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

30,670,147,348.79
26,254,590,256.11

4,415,557,092.68

January-June 2017
20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
CREEEZ)

2,380,554,377.86

31 December 2017
2017F12H318
(Audited)
(BER)

26,254,590,256.11
21,598,831,905.22

4,655,758,350.89

(2) BB EETETRAIR

HiEXEMER
EEI%%’A CISE- YA
BRER
January-June 2018 January-June 2017
2018%1-6 A 20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (CREEEZ)

211,615,695.00

211,615,695.00

81,596,649.32

130,019,045.68
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

64. Supplement to cash flow statement

(Continued)
(3) Cash and cash equivalents

Interim Report 2018 R HEAZRE

RS i 2 BT 5 (48
201846 H30H (A RHET)
1. ﬁ%ﬁﬁj%ﬁﬁiglﬁ H ik R

64. BERERBRER (H)

(3) BHEeMREFEY

65.

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
2018%6H30H 2017F12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBHERK) (m%%)
Cash He 30,670,147,348.79 26,254,590,256.11
Incl: Cash at bank Hih:EFES 57,937,270.15 138,172,603.17
Bank deposits on demand RN AR NERITER 30,551,043,363.51 26,110,295,839.47
Other cash equivalents on demand AEBERASNNEMESES 61,166,715.13 6,121,813.47
Other cash equivalents LR e EED = -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period/year B/ ERESRBSEEHE 30,670,147,348.79 26,254,590,256.11
30 June 2018 31 December 2017
2018%6A30H 2017128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BERZ)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period/year B/ ERERELHE 37,040,344,786.58 34,221,837,770.90
Other cash equivalents at the end of period/year B/ 5 KB SENBE = -
Less: Balance of restricted cash and cash equivalents 5 : BEXHBHNELEL B 6,370,197,437.79 7,967,247,514.79
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents at 8/ EXBLRBLSENHE
end of period/year 30,670,147,348.79 26,254,590,256.11
Hedges 65. %Eﬁ
Fair value hedging ARt BEEH
7 2018 F 6 A F 7~ A KION

On June 2018, KION Group AG, a subsidiary of the Company,
signed interest rate swap contracts, conducted fair value hedging
on the interest rate risk of fixed-rate medium-term notes issued
this period of par value of EUR100,000,000.00. As at 30 June
2018, the aforesaid hedged items of the Group were presented
as bonds payable in the financial statement with a book value
of RMB763,237,125.00 (EUR99,750,000.00), the book value
of the accumulated changes and adjustments of fair value of
hedged items accrued to hedged items was RMB44,256,276.00
(EUR5,784,000.00). There was no material invalid hedge for the

current period.

GROUPAG# ] 7 M X H #2 &
B EBEEHABRBETHNEMERERT
100,000,000.00 ) [ & F| & 1 #5 =
BHOAERRBRETAAEBEESR - N
201856 A30H - ALK E Lt E &
EHREMBHRERTITAENES
BEmMEEAARKT63,237,125.00
7t ( Bt 7T 99,750,000.00 ) @ # %
HER AR BEEZDH?
TAWE BT

211




212 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT

PR 5 2 M R (4)
201846304 (A E¥T)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f I % $it 3 1 20 H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
65. Hedges (Continued) 65. EHI (&)

Cash flow hedging

On 1 July 2016, Weichai International Hong Kong Energy Group
Co., Limited (“Hong Kong Energy”), a subsidiary of the Company,
treated the cross currency swaps as hedging instrument, of
which cash flow hedges were conducted to the bonds in foreign
currencies amounting to USD400 million against the cash flow
fluctuation incurred by change in exchange rates. As at 30 June
2018, the total cash flow of the hedged items amounted to
RMB2,919,574,750.00 (EUR381,568,940.73), of which the amount
due within 1 year was RMB109,173,900.00 (EUR14,268,300.33),
the amount due within 1-3 years was RMB109,173,900.00
(EUR14,268,300.33), and the remaining portion will become due
in 2020. The hedged items would affect the profit and loss until
2020. From January to June 2018, the gain arising from changes
in fair value of the hedging instrument recognized as other
comprehensive income was RMB56,573,655.03 (EUR7,197,620.36),
and the amount recognized in profit or loss in current period was
RMB51,787,106.53 (EUR6,453,573.44). There was no material
invalid hedge for the current period.

RenEEH

201657 A1H - FRAAIMEBERR
BREREBAERAA([EHEERR])
BRXEBERERIEARESRTIA
FEEEHABETHINEES HRE XK
BYSIRNBESRERDETHRS
mEEH - HE2018F6H30H -
WEBMBENRSRELBENER
A K % 2,919,574,750.00 7t ( B T
381,568,940.73) + H & 15 A Z
HrHmeEAARK109,173,900.00
7t (B 7T 14,268,300.33) * 1 &34
NEEBR B AR®109,173,900.00
Jr (BT 14,268,300.33) » Tl &k &
D HER2020F | H - WEHIER &
ZETMHEKFEZR 20204 -
2018F 1A E6H  2EHTI AR
AHMEEREN AR EEEHK
#% B AR #56,573,655.03 70 (BT
7,197,620.36) - EHfE L EE Y
A ANRYS51,787,106.53 7T (&
J06,453,573.44) c AEIME X EH
BmEROILD o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B i R BT (48

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (AR #or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # ~& 0F i % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (748)
65. Hedges (Continued) 65. EH(E)

Cash flow hedging (Continued)

At the commencement of the hedging, KION GROUP AG, a
subsidiary of the Company, has conducted cash flow hedging on
forward currency contracts designated to the exchange rate risk
of forecast sale, forecast purchase and firm commitment. As at 30
June 2018, the total cash flow of the hedged item amounted to
RMB2,427,317,797.00 (EUR317,234,241.26), of which the amount
due within 1 year was RMB2,288,767,755.60 (EUR299,126,675.24),
and the remaining portion will become due in 2019. The hedged
items would affect the profit and loss for the period of 2018 to
2019. From January to June 2018, the loss arising from changes
in fair value of the hedging instrument recognized as other
comprehensive income was RMB5,585,595.00 (EUR730,000.00),
the amount recognized in profit or loss in current period was
RMB26,543,053.50 (EUR3,469,000.00). There was no material

invalid hedge for the current period.

KION GROUP AG, a subsidiary of the Company, has conducted cash
flow hedging on interest rate swap contracts designated to the
interest rate risk of floating rate borrowings in acquiring Dematic
Group, a subsidiary of the Company. As at 30 June 2018, the total
cash flow of the hedged item amounted to RMB31,090,110.41
(EUR4,063,270.00). including project cashflow of RMB3,916,496.79
(EUR511,860.00) which become due between 2019 and
2022, while the balance in the amount of RMB27,173,613.62
(EUR3,551,410.00) will become due between 2023 and 2027. The
hedged items would affect the profit and loss for the period from
2017 to 2027. From January to June 2018, the loss arising from
changes in fair value of the hedging instrument recognized as other
comprehensive income was RMB46,276,272.00 (EUR6,048,000.00).
No amount was taken to profit or loss for current period. There was

no material invalid hedge for the current period.

ReEMEEHE)
WEBMBBBE - F 2 A KON
GROUP AG 5 iz HHHNIE & R 38 &
HEHHEE  BHHEBUALEE
AEHNERBETRSREE
H - # ®2018F 6 A30H & #
EHEERSAREEBITEAA
R ® 2,427,317,797.00 7t ( B 7T
317,234,241.26) + EF1F N E H
We BB ARY2,288,767,755.60
7T (B 7C299,126,675.24) - Rl 6
DHER2019F EH - WEHIER A
My EEaiif /20184 %2019
F-2018F1AE6A  ZEHIA
HAEMEENEHN AR EBEED
BR A ARES,585,595.0070 (BT
730,000.00) r EHEAERN
BA AR 26,543,053.50 7T (BT
3,469,000.00) - AEifEE R EH &
MEER S o

F 2R AIKION GROUP AGH#F| R &
}@é%ﬁ%i%ﬂ&ﬁ%%“aﬂmmatic
Group 8% B) F| & {5 5 #) 7 &=
ﬂkﬁﬁ$m5§%°@§mw
F6H30R WEHMEERERE
WEITHE B AR 31,090,110.41
7t ( Bt JT 4,063,270.00) @ H i &
A ANR®3,916,496.79 70 (B T
511,860.00) W18 B ] € & H K
2019 4F B 2022 F 2 HY + o 84 &6 5
& B A ARM27,173,613.62 7T
(B 7T 3,551,410.00 ) # 1 2023 2|
20273 H - WEHIEREBHEE
B M AE2017F E2027F -
2018F1AE6A ' 2% EH T A5
AHMGEREN AR EBEEHIE
KB ANRA46,276,272.00 7T (BT
6,048,000.00) « & H 14 #E 88 A B 25
WEHE AEESAERAERN

%), ©

%

tl/
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

VI. The Change in Scope of Consolidation N~ D I Y A )
The Group had no material change in scope of consolidation during the KEAREEES KA HHENES -
period.

VILInterest in Other Entities AL T BE P R RE 2R
1. Interest in subsidiaries 1. EF AP HERE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are AABBEEFRENBERAT :

presented as follows:

Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of
operation registration business capital  shareholding (%)
TELER i B3 3cd EMER BRIAI%)
Direct Indirect
HE G
Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment
BBRUIRESEHAMGHFAT
0] Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Shandong Shandong Manufacturing RMB460,150,000.00  100.00 -
Co., Ltd. IE g industry  AX7460,150,000.007T
BEBH ) BRERAR RE%
) Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology Shanghai Shanghai  Manufacturing RMB490,000,000.00  100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. & i industry  AK#490,000,000.007
BEBN(LE)REBRERAT HER
3) Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Jiangsu Jiangsu  Manufacturing RMB793,885,379.17 - 66.78
Engine Co., Ltd. L& L& industry ~ AK%793,885,379.177C
BEBNHENEREERERARR BEx
(4) Weichai Power (Chongging) Western Chongging Chongging Manufacturing RMB339,504,500.00  100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. L 1 industry  AR¥339,504,500.007
BEHN(EE)AREEARAR RiEx
(5)  Weichai Power (Beijing) International Beijing Beijing Project RMB300,000,000.00  100.00 -
Resources Investment Co., Ltd. Bl 5z Investment  AK300,000,000.007C
BEBN (AR BERERREERAA BARE
(6)  Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Luxembourg Luxembourg Project EUR100,000.00 - 100.00
Holding S.ar.l. ERE ERE Investment B70100,000.00
HEH N (ERE)ERERAT BARE
(7)  Weichai Power (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong Services USD336,242,497.00  100.00 -
International Development Co., Ltd. B s % %71336,242,497.00
BB (BR)EEEEERAR
Shandong Heavy Industry India India India  Manufacturing Rupee823,889,270.00 = 97.68
Private Limited HE HE industry [£££823,889,270.00

SARAMERA RiEF
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
VIL.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) e H AL E P A RERS ()
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. BEFR AIFHIER(E)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company RABEEFRANBERNOT : (8)

are presented as follows: (Continued)

Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of
operation registration business capital  shareholding (%)
TEREH i #HUE Fili-u BREAI%)
Direct  Indirect
HE GE3

Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not involving entities under common control

IR~ T AR AHREH T AT

9 Shandong Huadong Casting Co., Ltd. Shandong Shandong ~ Manufacturing RMB450,150,000.00 - 100.00
LREDHZEERAT W WE industry  AJR#450,150,000.007T
HEZ
(100 Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd Shaanxi Shaanxi Manufacturing RMB3,706,330,000.00  51.00 -
RAENAEERAF R %) industry  AR#%3,706,330,000.007
HEZ
(1) Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi Manufacturing RMB320,000,000.00 3.06 94.00
RAEZEERERAF PR B industry  AR#320,000,000.007T
HEZ
(12)  Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi Manufacturing RMB435,360,000.00 - 100.00
RESEEFRAA PR bR industry  AKR435,360,000.007T
HEZ
(13)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi Manufacturing RMB256,790,000.00  51.00 -
REZTHERERETAR i i industry  AR#256,790,000.007
HEZ
(14)  Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan Manufacturing RMB531,314,951.00  87.91 -
HNERBERELAT il pil industry  AKR531,314,951.007T
HEZ
(150 Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan Manufacturing RMB282,480,000.00  100.00 -
A EAEEREREA AT e pil industry  AJK#282,480,000.007T
HEE
(16)  Weichai (Chongging) Automotive Chongging Chongging  Manufacturing RMB2,530,410,000.00  84.33 15.67
Co., Ltd. i T industry  AR¥2,530,410,000.0070
HE(EE)AEERAR HiE%
(17)  Société International des Moteurs France France  Manufacturing EUR33,311,180.00 - 100.00
Baudouin EE EE industry E7033,311,180.00
ZEEHZBNERERAR g%

(18)  KION GROUP AG (Please refer to Germany Germany  Manufacturing EUR118,090,000.00
Note 1 of capital reserves) & B industry Et70118,090,000.00
KION GROUP AG(F R EAATE1) HiEk

(19)  Weichai America Corp. USA. USA.
BB L EERAT 28
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

VIL.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) L EH AL P R R ()

1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. EFRAAHPHER(E)
Changes in paid-in capital of principal subsidiaries in January-June FEFRAEWER2018F1-6 A 5
2018 are detailed as follows: EEEMFFIBINT ¢
31 December Increase in the Decrease in the 30 June

(Unaudited) 2017 current period current period 2018
(REER) 2017%12A318 REE KBRS 2018F6H30H

Weichai America Corp. 2 bl NS USD12,180,980.00  USD70,000,000.00 - USD82,180,980.00
%7012,180,980.00  %7£70,000,000.00 %7(82,180,980.00

Changes in paid-in capital of principal subsidiaries in 2017 are FTETFRARABWER2017TFHLE
detailed as follows: fEFBMT :
31 December Increase in Decrease in 31 December
(Audited) 2016 2017 2017 2017
(BEZ) 2016F 128318 2017F 500 2017FHD  2017F12A318
Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel HEE BN R
Engine Co., Ltd. BRAF 400,000,000.00 393,885,379.17 - 793,885,379.17
Weichai Power (Chongging) Western WLEn(EE) Y
Development Co., Ltd. ERERDA 240,000,000.00 99,504,500.00 - 339,504,500.00
KION GROUP AG (EUR) KION GROUP AG
(BLL) 108,626,000.00 9,303,171.00 - 117,929,171.00
Weichai (Chongaing) Automotive ik (EE)RE

Co., Ltd. BB 1,895,410,000.00 635,000,000.00 - 2,530,410,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
VIL.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) e H AL E P A RERS ()
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. BEFR AIFHIER(E)
Subsidiaries with material interests of minority shareholders are as GFEEZIHREEZOFRAMN
follows: N
January to June 2018 2018 1-6 H

(Unaudited)

(REER)

KION GROUP AG KION GROUP AG
Shaanxi Heavy-cuty Motor Co., Ltd. REENAEERAT

Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.

REZIEERARALAR

Percentage of

shareholding
minority
shareholders
PHRR
BRLA

55.00%
49.00%
49.00%

Attributable to
minority
interests
BROH
ES L

502,584,904.21

308,793,584.72
354,171,601.06

Dividends

paid to minority

shareholders
HPHRR
XARA

495,597,487.53

Accumulated
minority
interests at

the end of period
HBARRst
LURRER

8,312,067,924.38
3,365,924,204.02
4,451,661,018.31

2017 20174
Percentage of Accumulated
shareholding Attributable to Dividends minority
minority minority paid to minority interests at
(Audited) shareholders interests shareholders  the end of period
SEBER GEOH [ HEHR FREGH
(8%F7) R RRER TR LERFRES
KION GROUP AG KION GROUP AG 56.74%  1,496,658,478.77  399,235,110.56  8,681,508,693.39
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. REENABEERAT 49.00%  278,262,41094  114,023,000.00 3,033,288,505.35
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co,, Ltd. REALHERAREMALA 4900%  520,583550.56  183,684,755.69  4,093,379,016.26
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)
VIL.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) + Eﬁf&fﬁﬁ R RE S (%)
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) EFARH E’J#E%‘E(,%E)
The following table illustrates the summarized financial information THRIRT L FA ZH%E
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any B oo Ek(E ,mﬁ$%@ W%m%Zﬁsﬁ
inter-company eliminations: HERIEAH SR

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Shaanxi Fast

(Unaudited)

(REER)

30 June 2018 018%F6A30H

Current assets MBEE

Non-current assets ERBEE

Total assets BEAG

Current liabilities REaE

Non-current liabilities EnRBAaE

Total liabilities BEAR

January to June 2018 018F1-61

Revenue =EION

Net profit EAE

Total comprehensive income Galimas

Net cash flows from/(used in) WEESEL/(FE)K
operating activities RengFs

31 December 2017

0174124318

KION GROUP AG

KION GROUP AG

21,634,723,371.00
59,541,168,417.59
81,175,891,788.59
24,405,760,005.00
41,534,338,088.90
65,940,098,093.90

29,860,496,966.55
890,215,411.90
675,085,569.65

376,905,485.00

Motor Co., Ltd.
REERAE
ERAT

26,955,129,033.04
4,678,358,954.79
31,633,487,987.83
24,208,274,461.60
833,353,202.38
25,041,627,663.98

27,950,817,342.99
650,345,677.00
650,469,146.75

3,612,987,275.35

Gear Co., Ltd.
BEELTEES
BREEAF

11,266,225,883.49
2,755,546,803.59
14,021,772,687.08
4,918,530,097.96
300,360,000.00
5,218,890,097.96

8,051,130,146.08
837,461,266.11
833,858,199.38

(348,134,869.33)

Current assets RBEE 19,361,142,171.80 28,526,839,777.12 10,358,898,523.75
Non-current assets ERBEE 60,199,532,911.91 4,640,599,745.75 2,795,625,846.01
Total assets BEAH 79,560,675,083.71 33,167,439,522.87 13,154,524,369.76
Current liabilities TEAE 22,233,551,114.50 26,178,924,353.86 5,041,427,877.49
Non-current liabilities E eI 42,091,054,033.19 1,061,368,443.12 151,360,000.00
Total liabilities AEARE 64,324,605,147.69 27,240,292,796.98 5,192,787,877.49
January to June 2017 01741-6 7
Revenue EEWPA 28,573,711,459.10 22,374,839,011.62 6,802,676,508.26
Net profit SEF| 58 651,310,789.31 254,504,193.71 518,744,750.58
Total comprehensive (loss)/income RA(ER) /e (386,233,525.49) 254,486,569.68 511,462,829.27
Net cash flows from/(used in) BETHEL/(FR)H

operating activities B4 heFE 1,498,258,660.50 2,405,925,506.01 (486,158,312.18)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
VIL.Interest in other entities (Continued) L EH A R P R R ()
2. Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and 2. ERELENBELES
associates A RE =
Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled enterprise and associates RARBEZEEENBECENE
of the Company are presented as follows: ST
Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of Accounting
operation  registration Business capital shareholding (%) treatment
TERER Bl EHiE HREx BRHLAI%) SHEE
Direct Indirect
E& B
Associates
Betz
(1) Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. Beijing Beijing  Finance lease 1,100,000,000.00 19.565 19.565  Equity method
WEREREBRAR bl bl HERE BwA
) Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Shandong Shandong Finance 1,000,000,000.00 31.25 6.25  Equity method
Co., Ltd. L& L& company Bk

LWRETREHMBERLA g NG
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VIl.Interest in other entities (Continued)

2. Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and
associates (Continued)
The Group holds 37.50% equity interest of Shandong Heavy
Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Heavy Industry
Finance Co."), which provides the Group with services of deposits,
credit lending, settlement and other financial services. It is a key
associate of the Group and is accounted for using equity method in
the Group's accounts.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of Shandong Heavy Industry Finance Co.. The amounts disclosed
are adjusted for differences in accounting policies and reconciled to
the carrying accounts in this financial statement:

PR 5 2 M R (4)
201846304 (A E¥T)

t Eﬁf&fﬁﬂqﬂ%%ﬁ(%ﬁ)
EEELENBELEH
WJ*E%E(%E)
AREBEELURETEHYKERA
BI([IWREIHBRAL)37.50%0
# - LREIHMB AR ANEERME
G- 8 FAEREMSRRE
RALEEEMHEDE $%@“@
ZEMECERAERERE

TRIR T IWREIE B R R
B8 GUEMBEERABTAASG
BRERZAFHEAPBHREIEE S
L

30 June 2018

31 December 2017

2018%6H30H 2017912 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (L ®|HZ)

19,392,542,159.89
13,385,121,229.86
6,570,712,315.71

25,963,254,475.60

23,565,559,060.05

23,565,559,060.05

Current assets MBEE
Incl: cash and cash equivalents Hp BEMBELEEY

Non-current assets EREEE

Total assets BEA

Current liabilities nEAE

Non-current liabilities EREBBE

Total liabilities BESE

Minority interests LERRER

Shareholders’ equity attributable
to the Parent

BENES QRN RER

2,397,695,415.55

Share of net assets based on
percentage of shareholding
Carrying value of investment

BERLIZENFEENE

KREMREEE

899,135,780.83
936,033,730.61

January to June

17,606,355,393.06
11,496,560,615.14
6,257,307,742.03

23,863,663,135.09

21,360,351,767.57

21,360,351,767.57

2,503,311,367.52

938,741,762.82
962,366,597.64

January to June

2018 2017
2018%1-6 8 20174 1-6 R
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)

Revenue EERA
Income tax expenses Frigii &M
et profit/(loss) BB (B18R)
srehensive income E h 4R & Wz

e W EE

330,212,217.19
(49,664,207.81)
148,992,623.42

148,992,623.42

185,579,787.86
(33,026,065.84)
99,078,197.50

99,078,197.50
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Vll.Interest in other entities (Continued)
2.
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PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201846 H30H (A E¥T)

Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and

associates (Continued)

The Group holds 39.13% equity interests of Shanzhong Finance

Leasing Co., Ltd. (“Shanzhong Finance Leasing”), which provides

the Group and its distributors with finance leasing services. It is

a key associate of the Group and is accounted for using equity

method in the Group's accounts.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information

of Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.. The amounts disclosed are

adjusted for differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the

carrying accounts in this financial statement:

+ Eﬁf@fﬁﬂqﬂ%’lﬁﬁﬁ(%ﬁ)

HEELENBELESD
Eﬂ%é(@)
AEBRELEREBEERAR
(TIEMAME])39.13%KE - 1L
BREMEAREERAEENOLH
BRERATARGESY - 255E
BEMWELCYE  FEEHZIME
%R ALE -

TRIRTWEMEHEBRQAN
MBER  ELMBEEAETHE
SRR ER BRASMHEARM B RKREER

Current assets
Incl: cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets

MEEE
Hep - e MRS EEY
FRBEE

Total assets BEAGT
Current liabilities nEBE
Non-current liabilities FRBARE
Total liabilities BfEEF
Minority interests DB RS

Shareholders’ equity attributable
to the Parent

bV SSYNSENE T F

Share of net assets based on
percentage of shareholding

BERRLIZENFEENE

Carrying value of investment HARREEE
Revenue EEKA
Income tax expenses FiigHi &R

Net profit ) E

Other comprehensive income H b iR & W
Total comprehensive income RE W R

[Eiisa-E0

30 June 2018
201856 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

3,129,446,222.27
525,379,721.51
2,055,784,040.85

5,185,230,263.12

3,229,046,152.04
749,603,339.21

3,978,649,491.25

1,206,580,771.87

472,135,056.03
472,452,758.88

January to June
2018

20185 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

31 December 2017
201712 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

4,039,618,427.45
357,158,613.19
906,214,006.89

4,945,832,434.34

3,051,818,481.73
715,688,167.77

3,767,506,649.50

1,178,325,784.84

461,078,879.61
461,023,063.87

January to June
2017

20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEER)

142,689,045.93 w—

(9,422,210.78)

28,284,507.95

28,284,507.95
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Vll.Interest in other entities (Continued)
2. Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and
associates (Continued)
The following illustrates the combined financial information of the
associates which, individually, are not significant to the Group:

PR 5 2 M R (4)
201846304 (A E¥T)

€ Eﬁfﬁiﬁﬂ'?%%ﬁ(%ﬁ)
EEELXNBELXF

E’J*E:’é(%g)
TRINRTHAREHSEIE N E 25
ERENEGTMBER
30 June 2018 31 December 2017
2018%6H30H 201712 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREX) (REZ)

B
KRERMEES

Associate
Total carrying value of investments

1,352,801,499.80 1,109,302,210.02

The total amount of the following calculation based on the
percentage of shareholding:

THEBEEFRLL O ENAF 8

January-June 2018 January-June 2017

2018%1-6A 20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REE&HER) (REEZ)

Net profit b
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hibars (E5E), W
Total comprehensive income ﬁé”ﬁlﬁﬁ?@%’ﬁ

68,841,080.96
(9,955,009.69)
58,886,071.27

104,473,161.56
20,897,297.64
125,370,459.20

As the Group takes no responsibility for additional losses incurred
by Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd., in recognizing the net losses
incurred by Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd., the writing-off of
carrying values of long-term equity investments and other long-
term interests constituting effectively net investments in Shaanxi
Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd. is limited to zero. The Group’s unrecognized
investment losses, for this period and on an accumulative basis,
amounted to RMB907,899.06 and RMB51,324,364.99 (2017:
RMB50,416,465.93) respectively.

As the Group takes no responsibility for additional losses incurred
by Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile Co., Ltd., in recognizing
the net losses incurred by Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile
Co., Ltd., the writing-off of the carrying values of long-term equity
investments and other long-term interests constituting effectively
net investments in Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile Co., Ltd. is
limited to zero. The Group's unrecognised investment losses, for this
iod and on an accumulative basis, amounted to RMB168,585.79
1 8.43 (2017: RMB7,266,532.64) respectively.

HRAEBEE ARG FAERNDE
RARTBBERERIMNEBEERT -
[ It fE HE R PR A BR AT R /R AR D B BR
NRIBERFEER  URHKRER
EMEAEBEAREMESL LBKEH
By‘cﬁ@ﬁ%miﬁmmﬁﬂﬂﬁ&ﬁ
) = B 2R TARR - NEBEX
Hﬁ&i%aﬁkﬁﬁwaﬁxﬁia%@%ﬁ
Bl A AR #907,899.06 T M A R
51,324,364.997T (20174 « AR¥
50,416,465.937T) °

MR AKBHRERAKRST TEER
QE$EE%F$%E%%%’E
HEBRRBRERIRFIEARA

%EW@EE%’ME%&%&ﬁW
FREBEENAREMED EBKER
ERARFEAEERATFREN

FHESRLEZTAR  AEEX
AR B2 AERNREBRREED

Al A AR #168,585.79 T M A R
7,435,118.437L (20175 : AR¥
7,266,532.647T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B i R BT (48

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (AR #or)

VIILTransfers of Financial Assets J\ G RlE EER
Transferred financial assets that had not been CEBEREEALIBRNS
derecognised in their entirety MEE
As at 30 June 2018, the Group has no transferred financial assets M2018F6A30H  AEEED#EBER

that had not been derecognised in their entirety (31 December 2017:
RMB7,321,000.00).

Transferred financial assets that had been
derecognised in their entirety but continuously
involved

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had endorsed to its suppliers bank
acceptance bills, which remained outstanding, for settling account
payables with a carrying amount of RMB11,998,020,396.92 (31 December
2017: RMB11,897,133,700.14); and the Group had discounted bank
acceptance bills, which remained outstanding, with a carrying amount
of RMB214,187,942.56 (31 December 2017: RMB19,718,076.84). As
at 30 June 2018, they were due in 1 to 12 months. If acceptance banks
dishonor the bills, endorsees shall have the right to turn to the Group for
recourse (“Continuing Involvement”) according to the Law of Negotiable

Instruments.

The Group considered substantially all risk and reward of the bills had
been transferred. Therefore, the Group derecognized the book value
of the related accounts payable that have been settled by the bills. The
undiscounted cash flow and maximum loss of continuing involvement
were equal to the book value of the bills. The Group considers the fair

value of continuing involvement is not significant.

From January to June 2018, the Group did not recognize any significant
profit or loss at the date of transfer. The Group had no current or
accumulated gain or expense arising from the continuing involvement
in financial assets which had been derecognized. The endorsement and

discount were incurred evenly throughout the period.

BREKIERANSMEE(2017F12A31
B : AR#®7,321,000.007T) °

CERLALIBRITEEEIAN
CEBEMERE

20184 6 A30H » AN & B X 2
WMEESELHEESRRNEEEMNIER
METERLEENEEEEARARYE
11,998,020,396.92 7L (2017 F12 A 31

- NER®11,897,133,700.147T) & 7
E@ﬂi HEMBARRITALIEZNER
BEAANRE214,187,942.56 (20174
128318+ AR#19,718,076.847L) °
%2018¢6H3OE| CHBEIRR1E121E

CIRBCRBERBRTE - AR R IR
%E%@ﬁ A R BABRAASEEER
(F -+ 7NN

AEERE  AEECKER THETR
BRRRMBH - Bt - RIEERE LA
ZHBANCHEERMEROEREEE - #
B ABRRBRNAFRASRESFNE
RHEE AKERR  BBESARAE
BEITERX o

@

20185 1-6 A » AEBMNHER B #ER
MEXBRIETEK - AEBEEEEES
ABRIIEREMEES N AT HERL
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value

1. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value 1. UAAREBEETENEEN
=R
30 June 2018 201846 830H

Inputs used in the measurement of fair value

ARBEGTREANGAE

Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable

active markets inputs inputs

EZWER EZFRTER

ERMERE BWAE BAE
(Unaudited) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(REER) (B—FR) (B=BR) (B=ER) &t
Financial assets held for trading RHUERMEE - 919,593,972.00 171,169,080.20  1,090,763,052.20
Investments in other equity instruments  E % T B & 224,009,878.00 - 120,922,793.75 344,932,671.75
Other non-current financial assets HMERBemEE - 234,694,459.50 - 234,694,459.50
224,009,878.00  1,154,288,431.50 292,091,873.95  1,670,390,183.45
Financial liabilities held for trading THECRARE 379,338,525.97 379,338,525.97
Other non-current liabilities HEEngas 82,490,821.50 82,490,821.50

461,829,347.47

461,829,347.47




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

1. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(Continued)
31 December 2017

Interim Report 2018 A HAZRE

PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201846 H30H (A E¥T)

Ju ~ 2 o AR A R 9 5 (4)

1. AAREEFENEEAN
a8E(&)
20174124318

Inputs used in the measurement of fair value

AREEAEEANBAE
Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
ERTSRE BZUBEHAE SETABREAE
(Audited) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(BE=R) (B—EBR) (BZER) (BE=ER) Ch
Continuously measured at fair value ~ HEH AL EEE
Financial assets at fair value through AR % BEEE R
profit or loss HEHHAZH
RENEHAE - 233,897,349.40  150,169,737.92  384,067,087.32
Available-for-sale financial assets AREESRHEE
Available-for-sale listed equity A E
instruments ExRTA 319,262,446.10 - - 319,262,446.10
319,262,446.10 233,897,349.40 150,169,737.92 703,329,533.42
Financial liabilities at fair value NAnEETEE
through profit or loss HEBE NS
RaEmeRAR - 497,595,237.74 - 497,595,237.74
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)
2.

Assets and liabilities disclosed at fair value

30 June 2018

RS ik R B 5 (48
201846 H30H (A RHIT)
Ju -~ S AEAE W 1 B (48
2. URAARBEERENEEMN
=R
20186 H30H

Inputs used in the measurement of fair value

AREEHEEANBAE
Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
EZTHE EETARE
ERTSHRE BAE WAE
(Unaudited) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(REER) (B—FR) (B=BR) (B=ER) L
Long-term receivables REEWH 4,092,649,623.00 4,092,649,623.00
Long-term borrowings REIER - 14,274,232,286.35 - 14,274,232,286.35
Bonds payable fEfFEH 2,662,322,953.81  9,258,315,000.00 11,920,637,953.81
Long-term payables REERZ - 8,281,484,824.00 - §8,281,484,824.00
31 December 2017 2017%F12H31H
Inputs used in the measurement of fair value
ARBEFEEANEAE
Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
EZNHR ERTAEE
BRI RE EPNE N
(Audited) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(&& %) (B—ER) (E=ER) (5=ER) Ch
Long-term receivables REEUGR - 5086,764,101.10 - 5086,764,101.10
Long-term borrowings REET - 17,810,131,082.56 - 17,810,131,082.56
Bonds payable R ES 2,761,153,144.16  7,966,382,369.00 - 10,727,535,513.16
Long-term payables REEM T - 9,269,833,985.50 - 9,269,833,985.50




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

3.

Estimation of fair value

Fair value of financial assets/liabilities

The management has assessed the cash and cash equivalents, notes
receivable and accounts receivable, non-current assets due within
one year, short-term borrowings, notes payable, accounts payable
and long-term liabilities due within one year and long-term payables
due within one year. In each case, the fair value and carrying value

are similar due to short remaining period.

The finance team of the Group is led by the head of finance
department. It is responsible for formulating policies and procedures
applicable to the measurement of the fair value of financial
instruments. The finance team directly reports to the Chief Financial
Officer and the Audit Committee. On each balance sheet date, the
finance team analyzes the change in value of financial instruments
and ascertain the key inputs which apply to the valuation. The
process and result of valuation is subject to approval by the Chief

Financial Officer.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined as the
amount at which well-informed parties undergo exchange of assets
or settlement of debts out of free will and in a fair transaction. The
following methods and assumptions are used in estimating fair

values.

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
the forward contracts of subsidiaries. The Group believes that the
fair value estimated using valuation techniques is reasonable and

the most appropriate value as of the balance sheet date.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

3.

Estimation of fair value (Continued)
Fair value of financial assets/liabilities (Continued)

The fair values of listed equity instruments are determined according
to quote prices on the market. The fair values of investments in
non-listed equity instruments are estimated using the valuating
model of market comparison approach, and the assumptions
adopted are not supported by observable market price or interest
rate. The Group needs to estimate unobservable market parameters
such as price-to-book ratio. The Group believes that the fair value
and its changes estimated using valuation techniques is reasonable

and the most appropriate value as of the balance sheet date.

Fair values of long-term borrowings are determined using
discounted cash flows, at rates equal to market yield of other
financial instruments with similar contract terms, credit risks and
remaining term. As at 30 June 2018, non-performance risks

underlying long-term borrowings were appraised as insignificant.

Fair values of long-term receivables/ long-term payables are
determined using the present value of net leasing receipts/ net
leasing payments, at rates equal to the market yield of other finance

leases with similar contract terms, credit risks and remaining term.

The fair values of bonds payable are determined as quoted prices

on the market.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued) Ju~A REE YR ()
4. Unobservable inputs 4. FHBE@[AE
The key unobservable inputs of Level 3 of the measurements of fair MTREZEBRAABEASENER
value are summarized as follows: AR g A Bt
Closing/opening Range
(Unaudited) fair value Valuation technique Unobservable inputs (weighted average)
HFK/EH) #HERMA
(REER) AREE BERN TBEGAE (METHE)
Warrants and cash compensation 171,169,080.20/ Monte Carlo simulation method ~ Share price and EBITDA of
AREERASHE SHFRERZE the Company

RARERITEEE IR
150,169,737.92 Monte Carlo simulation method ~ Share price and EBITDA of

SRTERREA the Company
RARERITERESHAAE
Xiamen Fengtai Bus and 32,620,000.00/ Market comparison approach Price-Earnings multiple 107
Coach International Co., Ltd. TiEHLEE MREREY
EMERER R AEERAR 32,620,000.00  Market comparison approach  Price-Earnings multiple 10.7
ELEA MREEY
Huarong Xiangjiang Bank 49,560,000.00/ Market comparison approach Price-to-Book ratio 1.0
ERMIRG MELEA mEE
49,560,000.00 Market comparison approach Price-to-Book ratio 1.0
sLEA [ilz:2:
Others 38,742,793.75/
Eft 40,042,376.88

292,091,873.95/
272,392,114.80
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued) Ju~A REE RN YR ()

. - -
5. Adjustments for fair value measurement 5. AREEFENAS
The adjustments for the continuous Level 3 measurement of fair BENE=ZERIXARBEFENHAE
value are as follows: EEWT
January - June 2018 2018 1-6 H
Total current profit/loss
ESHREALE
Changes of unrealized
Recognized current gain/loss of
Recognized  through other Foreign assets held at the end
Opening  Transferinto ~ Transfer out through  comprehensive exchange Closing ~ of period recognized
(Unaudited) balance Level 3 of Level3  profit or loss income  Acquisition Issuance Sale  Settlement R balance  through profit/loss
BREENEE
fTABENES
L) it tALf AERAEY
(%828 BU48E $=BR ZER itABE GAkE § E EiER BRBE B4H29
Financial assets held for rading RHhEREE 150,169,737.92 = - 18,821,947.94 = = = = - 217739434 171,169,080.20
Investment in equity instruments ERIARE 12222037688 = - - (1299583.13) - - - - - 12092279375

212,392,11480 = - 1882104794 (1299583.13) = = = - 217739434 292,091,873.95

2017 20174

Total current profitloss

EENRARRRE
Changes of unrealized
Recognized current gain/loss of
Recognized  through other Foreign assets held at the end
Opening ~ Transferinto ~ Transfer out thiough  comprehensive exchange Closing of year recognized
(Audited) balance Level 3 oflevel3 profitor loss income~~ Acquisition Issuance Sle Settlement gainfoss balance through profitfoss
ERRENEE
FAREfEE
EIN Ehir HALR AERAEL
(i54) 8% £ER £ER tARE Gals B kil h& el ERAs FRBE BxnZd

Financial assets held for rading RAteREE = = - 14,589,198.32 - 18371445261 - - - (8,133,913.01) 150,169,737.92 =
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued) Ju~A REE YR ()

5. Adjustments for fair value measurement 5. ARAEBEFENADS(E)
(Continued)
For the continuous Level 3 measurement of fair value, the profit or BENE="BAONALBETED
loss relating to financial assets and non-financial assets of gain and STABBEEMFSAEBERTES R
loss recognized through current profit and loss are as follows: BEMFCRMEEFBANIBRESN
T

January —June 2018
2018%1-6 B
(Unaudited)

(RBER)

Profit or loss Profit or loss

relating to relating to

financial assets non-financial assets

BELREE HESHMEE
BENER FENEAER
Total gain or loss recognized FFAEBEEMFE K
through current profit or loss (BN 18,821,947.94
Changes of unrealized current gain -~ HIR#H A EET AW
or loss recognized through assets EHREIR A
held at the end of period BANES)
6. The level change in the fair value 6. AREBEERER
From January to June 2018, there were neither transfers between R2018F1-68  WESHMEEMNS
Level 1 and Level 2 for the measurement of fair value of financial REBEARBEFEEE-—EANE
assets and liabilities, nor transfer into or out of Level 3 (January to “EBAZENER  JEE A
June 2017: nil). HE=ZBRNBERN(2017F1-67 :

&) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions + ~Bi ¥ 77 Bl & R H 32 5

The related parties defined in these financial statements included the RN HREPRENBEE B E2TE
related parties under accounting standards and related parties under the A RAENENS  LEEREENRS
information disclosure requirements of SFC and Stock Exchange. FEEEREREP R ENBE S -

1. Parent 1. BAFE

Proportion of Proportion of

ownership voting
Registered Nature of Registered interest in power in
address business capital the Company the Company
HARE HADT
Bl 34131 iEx BRLA TAELA
(%) (%)
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Weifang City, External investment financial quarantee RMB1,200,000,000.00 16.98 16.98
HEEREEERAT Shandong Province investment advisory planning and AJR#1,200,000,000.007
WE4 organization/coordination and
i} management of production operating
activities of corporates under the Group
HNREREERRESHREAE/
hREREENBLELELERD
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. is the ultimate controller RABHERBESIARLURETRE
of the Company. BERAF e
2. Subsidiaries 2. FAH
Details of subsidiaries are set out in Note VII.1. FREGEEFRMEFLE 1
3. Associates 3. BEhE

Details of associates are set out in Note VII.2. BEMEFHRANELE 2




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4,

Particulars of other related parties which

Interim Report 2018 R HEAZRE

PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201846 H30H (A E¥T)

entered into material transactions with the

Group

Related party relationships
B S BR

+ B Bk 5 B AR e A 5 ()

4, HAEAKEBRLEEARSZH
HibBAM S B

Referred to as

lLE:]

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd
WRETEEERDE

Weichai Group Holdings Limited
HEEREERRAA

Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
IR HEEELAFRAA

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.
HEERRHARDA

Yangzhou Yaxing Coach Co., Ltd.

PNGEERERHERAA

Yangzhou Shengda Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

BN EREEERAA

Weichai Electric Equipment Co., Ltd

B NRBARLDA

Chongging Weichai Diesel Engine Limited

EERXBEDRAERAT

Shandong Weichai Real Estate Co., Ltd.

ISR EE X ARAF

Yangzhou Yaxing Commercial Vehicles Co., Ltd.

BMNEEBRAEGRAT

Weichai (Yangzhou) Yaxing New Energy Commercial
Vehicles Co., Ltd.

MR (BN EEFRREAEARAR

Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd.

I TR AR 1D BRR A A

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.

IWRETIREHMBEERAA

Dezhou Degong Machinery Co., Ltd.
BNETEBAERAR
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co.,Ltd.

ILWERMEBEFR AR

Ultimate controller
RAREHA

Parent

SR

Common control by parent
[ — & 2 )2
Common control by parent

A—8aaAEH

Common control by parent
R — & R A
Common control by parent
R — & 2 A
Common control by parent
R — & 2 A
Common control by parent
Rl —& 2 &
Common control by parent
R —& 2 &
Common control by parent
R —& 2 &
Common control by parent

R — & 2 Al

Same ultimate controller
Rl — & A HIA
Same ultimate controller
Rl — & HIA

Same ultimate controller
Al — SR AL FEHIA
Same ultimate controller

A — &K EHA

Shandong Heavy Industry

HWRET

Weichai Group Holdings

HESTE IR

Weichai Import and Export

HESER D

Weichai Heavy-duty
Machinery

ML B

Yangzhou Yaxing

BMNEE

Shengda Special Vehicles

BERESR

Weichai Electric

HEE N

Chongging Weichai

g3 3

Weichai Real Estate

L E

Yaxing Commercial Vehicles

DEMAE

New Energy Commercial
Vehicles

#eeRE A E

Shantui Engineering

TR

Shandong Heavy Industry
Finance Company

WRETIHB AR

Dezhou Degong

=
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.,

Particulars of other related parties which
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

PR 3 B 5 (48D
201846304 (A E¥T)

Related party relationships

+ B Bk 5 B AR S R 5 ()

4, BEAEEBLEEARSH
HibBAME S B R ()

Referred to as

BAE T B R [k

Shanzhong Jianji Co., Ltd. Same ultimate controller Shanzhong Jianji

WEREERRA R — &AL HE A H=—g=47)

Shantui Road Machinery Co., Ltd Same ultimate controller Shantui Road

LB EMBR A A Al —m a4zl A e 8 B

Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. Same key management personnel Beigi Foton

ARHEAERNERAA F—BAREEAR it H

Shaanxi Automobile Industry Co., Ltd. Associate of substantial shareholder(s) Shaanxi Industry

RAAEEXBRDA of subsidiary(ies) PAE
FRARAEERRZHEA

Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd. Associate of substantial shareholder(s) Shaanxi Automotive

B AEEEEREMEAF of subsidiary(ies) PEREE
FRAEERRZBEA

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Associate of substantial shareholder(s) Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive

Co., Ltd. of subsidiary(ies) Bk EE)

REETHAEEHEEAEREELA FRRAEERRZBEA

Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd. Associate of substantial shareholder(s) Huazhen Parts

PREEZEHAFER AR of subsidiary(ies) I
FRAEERRZBEA

Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and Associate of substantial shareholder(s) Huazhen Services

Trading Services Co.,Ltd. of subsidiary(ies) ERIRE

PREEZTZRBE AR AR FRRAEERRZBEA

Shaanxi Tongli Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd. Associate of substantial shareholder(s) Tongli Special Purpose

REBNZRTEERETAR of subsidiary(ies) BB
FRAEERRZBHEA

Shaanxi Lantong Transmission Axle Co., Ltd. Associate of substantial shareholder(s) Lantong Transmission

REEREHHERAF of subsidiary(ies) EREDH
FRARAEERRZBEA

Baoji Huashan Engineering Vehicles Co., Ltd. Associate of substantial shareholder(s) Baoji Vehicle

BHE | TREFERETLA of subsidiary(ies) EHEG
FRARAEERR ZBHEA

nde New Energy Automotive Technology Associate of substantial shareholder(s) Lande New Energy
of subsidiary(ies) HEHAEIR

FRAIBERRZBEA
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

4. Particulars of other related parties which

entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

Related party relationships
B A

Referred to as

E:

Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and Components Co. Ltd.

REES TETHREARATF

Shaanxi Fangyuan Automobile Standard
Components Co. Ltd.

REAEFEAEFEGFFRADF

Shaanxi Automobile Group Xunyang Baotong
Special Purpose Vehicles Co., Ltd.

REAEEERGEREREERAA

Shaanxi Automobile Group Yan'an Special
Purpose Vehicles Co., Ltd.

RAAEEETEZERAERR AT

Shaanxi Dongming Automobile System Co., Ltd

RARLEHRGEROERAA

Shaanxi Zhongfu IDT Techology Co., Ltd
PR =W R RIS AR A 8]

Shaanxi Shaangi Auto City Hotel Co., Ltd.
PRARSEFEERRDA

Shanghai Yuanxing Supply Chain
Management (Group) Limited

LERTHREREEERAF

Shaanxi Zhongjiao Tianjian Vehicle Net Information

Technology Co., Ltd.
RAEPTREEHBESKMERDA
Shaanxi Deyin Logistic Services Co., Ltd.

REERDRRBEBRAA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERFZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAREERRZBMEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERFZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAREERRZBMEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERFZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAREERRZBHMEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERFZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRARAEERRZBHMEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEZERRZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAREERR ZBHEA

Shaanxi Wanfang
PRESET

Fangyuan Automobile

TEAE

Xunyang Baotong
AGER

Yan'an Special Purpose
Vehicles

LERERE

Dongming Automobile

REEE®H

Shaanxi Zhongfu
BRAETE

Shaangi Auto City
BROTERH

Yuanxing Supply Chain
BITHESR

Zhongjiao Tianjian

FRXRE

Deyin Logistic
BRI
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.,

Particulars of other related parties which
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)
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Related party relationships
B &

+ B Bk 5 B AR S R 5 ()

4, BEAEEBLEEARSH
HibBAME S B R ()

Referred to as

E:

Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd
ERRMEAERRAA

Shaanxi Dongfeng Axle And Transmission

System Co., Ltd
RAREEBEDRARODER DA

Shaanxi Tongchuang Huaheng Vehicle Radiator Co. Ltd.

RERAIEZ TEHAERATAF

Shaanxi Automobile Group Changsha Huantong

Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

REAEERERDRBAEREARAT

Shaanxi Automobile Group Wenzhou Yunding

Automobile Co., Ltd.
RAAEEERMNEBTIEERAA
Shaanxi Wanfang Tianyun Vehicle

Equipment Co. Ltd.
RABAFREAEERERAA

Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Component Parts Co., Ltd.

REERIETHREARAF

Shaanxi Sanzhen Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd.
RE=%SETHHAERAA

Shaanxi Automobile Group Properties

Development Co., Ltd.
RAEAEEEFSHEREFRAA

Eaton Industries Private Limited

FRIXLABRRA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERFZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERRZBEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERFZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERRZBEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERFZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAREERRZBHMEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERFZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAREERRZBHMEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRARIEERRZBEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRAREERR ZBHMEA

Deyin Leasing

BRHEE

Dongfeng Axle
REER

Tongchuang Huaheng
FEIEF

Changsha Huantong
RORB

Wenzhou Yunding

BMET

Wanfang Tianyun
BHRE

Huazhen Component

EHTI

Sanzhen Vehicles

“BEAE

Shangi Properties
BRIAEHE

Eaton Private
RIBFAA
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

4. Particulars of other related parties which

entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

Related party relationships
B SRR

Referred to as

k]

Inner Mongolia Yuanxing Supply Chain

Management Co., Ltd.
ARLERITHEREREFARDA
Shaanxi Huazhen Automobile Filtration System Co., Ltd.

REERTERBERRER QA

Baoji Tongli Auto Frame Company Limited

BERBNEGARAMEAF

J. Eberspaecher (Xi'an) GmbH & Co. KG
%A BRI (AR)BRAF

Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd.

AREREEESHERAT

Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd.
REEE TR AR LA

CIMC = SHAC (Xi'an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
FERAER(AL)EREFRAT

Xi'an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd.

AL REAHTE BB R N A

Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile Co., Ltd
RERARETEFR QA

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.
PREBEA TR ERAR

Shaanxi Automobile Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
RASEBERAEERAA

Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.
TR RERE N BR AR

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRAEERRZHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRAEERRZBEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRAEERRZHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRAEERRZBEA

Jointly-controlled enterprise of
subsidiary(ies)

FRAEZEEDRE

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FARIZBERE

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FARIZHBERE

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FARIZHBERE

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FARIZHBERE

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FARZHERE

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FARZHERE

Associate of parent

BRRZBERE

Inner Mongolia Yuanxing
AR LETT

Huazhen Filtration

EERE

Tongli Auto Frame

BHES

J. Eberspaecher

BRE

FC Intelligence Transmission

S5

Tonghui Transportation
BEVIR

CIMC - SHAC
FEER

Xi'an Cummics

78 % FR AR AR

Shangi Tianma
BRARS

Eurostar

BR&F 4%

Shaanxi Wuhai
RASHE

Westport New Energy
Fa BRI
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi % 5 B8 L HAZ 5 (5)

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINIER
related parties Z
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BBAIERMEERS
parties
Purchase of goods from related parties B EAR 7 i B B an

January-June

2018
2018%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEX)

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
Baoji Vehicle

Shaanxi Wuhai

Westport New Energy
Shaanxi Wanfang
CIMC-SHAC

Xi‘an Cummics

Wanfang Tianyun

Tongli Special Purpose
Huazhen Components
Weichai Import and Export
Weichai Group Holdings
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
Zhongjiao Tianjian
Tongchuang Huaheng
Lantong Transmission
Fangyuan Automobile

FC Intelligence Transmission

J. Eberspaecher

Others

SR
e
(RN
AR
RS
REEFR
% AT
BHRE
mOEA
EFT I
HESE O
LT R
4 B
PR K
FAIES
EiREDH
FESE
& 5 {EE)
# B ik
Hh

2,461,733,576.54
1,074,958,345.53
1,004,250,622.74
805,434,315.76
713,478,461.58
527,125,671.42
458,983,818.37
449,354,293.90
448,087,568.28
313,761,819.00
310,390,020.99
200,023,572.29
176,406,753.15
145,890,734.90
140,167,829.05
110,837,021.97
52,147,605.28
50,751,532.72
33,941,538.71
486,665,316.65

9,964,390,418.83

January-June
2017

20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(Rg&EZ)

2,108,622,597.95
963,850,521.68
687,155,453.21
2,052,490,999.52
632,166,686.46
161,078,741.88
401,835,651.90
410,908,805.80
308,630,214.42
289,384,900.05
220,513,049.96
171,682,474.60
149,983,485.78
79,587,987.47
92,444,159.45
99,341,493.12
49,031,036.88
10,908,284.21
35,605,769.16
531,754,358.09

9,456,976,671.59
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

+ B Bk s B AR e AR 5 ()

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBABINIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (48)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BB TR MBS
parties (Continued) (&)
Sales of goods to related parties [7] BB 77 85 & I
January-June January-June
2018 2017
20184 1-6 8 2017%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REEZ)
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive 7)) 1,089,350,349.80 1,039,877,932.67
Shaanxi Wuhai PR SE 822,731,615.94 558,211,661.56
Westport New Energy BT 535,324,525.71 1,010,713,397.43
Weichai Import and Export HESEHE O 450,868,867.83 294,497,741.68
Baoji Vehicle A=k 349,511,589.30 324,318,261.27
Shaanxi Zhongfu PR E 248,701,829.71 224,658,763.16
Beiqi Foton SRk =ais 175,626,287.71 256,788,282.27
Weichai Electric HESEE ) 165,603,394.48 112,968,030.64
Yangzhou Yaxing e 2 156,771,097.04 73,159,975.00
Shantui Engineering Ly TH2 145,703,659.80 108,527,298.02
Shengda Special Vehicles BREREE 122,241,537.78 42,369,401.71
Wanfang Tianyun B KE 105,165,157.94 151,860,386.64
Huazhen Components EHET I 84,798,337.09 82,294,519.48
CIMC-SHAC FEER 78,762,951.32 46,303.86
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery ML B 60,590,623.58 58,220,181.08
Shaanxi Wanfang Tt 54,896,447.02 117,828,812.11
Shantui Road L ¥ 7 K 46,319,388.70 16,239,933.29
Shaanxi Automotive pTEE 37,719,123.73 1,091.24
Others Hith 998,714,680.81 1,017,566,517.06
5,729,401,465.29 5,490,148,490.17
Receiving services from related parties BB
January-June January-June
2018 2017
2018%1-6 A 2017%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (REEE
Tonghui Transportation EE Y Note 71 157,104,932.61
Shaanxi Industry RIS E ¥ 38,995,858.79

Others 135,726,695.48

331,827,486.88
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W 75 ik 3R B 5 (4
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi 5 5 B8 L HAZ 5 (4)

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINIER
related parties (Continued) Z (&)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related () A ATERNEBRS
parties (Continued) (%)

Rendering services to related parties [ B B 7T HR AR S5 7
January-June January-June
2018 2017
2018%1-6 A 20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
Others Hith 77,032,523.22 39,032,253.86
77,032,523.22 39,032,253.86
Note 1: From January to June 2018, Tonghui Transportation provided 1 R2018F1-6 A BEMR
comprehensive services including agency procurement, RARBZFRAIKRAELR
warehousing, logistics distribution and receipt and payment AEBARAAREARER
services to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd, a subsidiary B e DRREZERRA
of the Company. Agency services provided by Tonghui WHEHEEaR® o &K HK
Transportation to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. BEAAEARAAER
amounted to RMB157,104,932.61 (January — June 2017: BEYRAORERE & E
RMB119,488,162.92). B AN R ® 157,104,932.61

JL(2017%F1-6 A AR
119,488,162.927T) ©

B AEBERBBOHEER
CRESH REBEARE
BHEMERZ2EMHERR

o

During the period, the prices for the Group's sale of goods
and rendering services to related parties as well as purchase

of goods and receiving services from related parties were

f i Bo B

determined with reference to market rates.




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

5.

)

Leasing with related parties

Type of leased property
HEEEREH

As lessor Buildings, equipment & land
ERHEEA FERE L
Type of leased property
HEEEES
As lessee Buildings
TERAETEA FE

During the period, the prices for the Group’s leasing with
related parties were determined with reference to market

rates.
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AEEHEBEBINEIER

Z (%)

(2) BELHEE

January-June

2018

2018 1-6 A
Lease revenue
HEWRA
(Unaudited)
(REEX)

25,940,177.62

January-June
2018

20185 1-6 A
Lease fee
HEH
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

21,130,943.81

January-June
2017

20174 1-6 A
Lease revenue
HE®KA
(Unaudited)
(CRgER)

30,238,128.19

January-June
2017
20174 1-6 A
Lease fee
HESE
(Unaudited)
(CREgER)

21,308,809.68

AH - AREHEREKR S HEX
BEBRSEMHEBRRE °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W 75 ik 3R B 5 (4
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi % 5 B8 L HAZ 5 (5)

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (&)
(3) Transfer of assets with related parties (3) EEEt A EEEE
January-June January-June
Particulars of transaction 2018 2017
REAR 2018%1-6 A 20174 1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Others Purchase of fixed assets
Hh BEBRTEE 12,507.50 55,639.07
Others Sale of fixed assets
Hith HEBEEE 152,669.44 101,247.09
During the period, the price for the Group’s purchase ANER - NS E M) BB T B R A
and sale of fixed assets from and to related parties were HERTEEEBRSEMSE
determined with reference to market rates. FERE o
Except for the transactions with associates, all the above BrEEEEE QBT 2R HIN
transactions of goods and services with related parties, PR Dt BEEE 5 M AR
leasing with related parties and transfer of assets with related % BT HEERBE T EE
parties also constitute connected transactions or continuing EERREX(EB LETRED
connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the FUAEREENBPEZH K

Hong Kong Listing Rules. RERER S -




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

(4)

Other related party transactions

(a)

(b)

Deyin Leasing provides Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, with services of
financial leasing. It was agreed among Deyin Leasing
and third-party distributors that for the vehicle monies
of related business to be receivable by the Group from
distributors, Deyin Leasing may take up the payment
obligation on behalf of the distributors. In January —
June 2018, the amount of vehicle sales through this
business mode amounted to RMB1,211,735,300.00
(January — June 2017: RMB2,070,960,972.00).

Shanzhong Finance Leasing provides Shaanxi Heavy-
duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, with
services of financial leasing. In January — June 2018,
the amount of vehicle sales through this business mode
amounted to RMB1,137,160,000.00 (January — June
2017: RMB1,467,633,538.00). Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Co., Ltd. provided guarantee for repurchase of
physical assets upon presentation in respect of failure
of the lessee under finance lease to settle instalment
payments plus interest. The balance of rental of

repurchase of physical assets upon presentation (being

outstanding balance of principal on finance lease
borrowings) amounted to RMB1,744,304,000.00 (31
December 2017: RMB1,507,220,000.00). For details,
see Note XII.3.
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+ B Bk s B AR e AR 5 ()
5. AKEERBEINEER

7 (&)
(4) HEbEB RS
(a) RREEAFAANZTA
ARFEELAEERA
ARHBABEEY

EIRTAEME = HEHE
B 75 36 1A AN [ A A 8
EEREEES IR
AHRERAERCHES
EENRER © 20184
1-6ABBZEEBERN
HEMNBWMSEAAR
# 1,211,735,300.00 J©
(2017 1-6 A : AR®
2,070,960,972.007C) °

LWEREREARANR A
ZFRAIBRAERNR
BEHERAGEERE
HEE® ' 2018F 1-6
Al iRz e R E
ENEWeEAARYE
1,137,160,000.00 7T
(2017F1-6 A : AR®
1,467,633,538.007T ) °
PREERTBEHR AR A
BEMRENAMES Kk
TN BERED B
A EA B R MR Y B E
EF - EYWEERASH®
E(ENHAEHM R E MR
EERASHRB)AAR
# 1,744,304,000.00 j©
(2017128318 : A
K # 1,507,220,000.00C
TL) ° HEBEN
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

(4)

Other related party transactions (Continued)
©

On 30 March 2016, the Group entered into the
Financial Services Agreement with Shandong Heavy
Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Shandong
Heavy Industry Finance Company”). Pursuant to
the agreement, Shandong Heavy Industry Finance
Company provided deposit, credit, accounting and
clearing services as well as other financial services
to the Company and its controlling subsidiaries. The
interest rates for credit relating to financial services
as well as fee rates are determined according to the
Financial Services Agreement and based upon the
relevant requirements of the People’s Bank of China’s
under which the lending rate shall not exceed the
minimum level permitted under the interest rates
and fee rates for money lending of similar types and
categories available to the Group from other major
commercial banks in the PRC.

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.
provides distributors of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary in the Group, with credit line
to apply for establishing bank acceptance bills for
the purchase of products from Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Co., Ltd.. In 2018, the credit line amounted to
RMB1,300,000,000.00 (2017: RMB1,200,000,000.00).
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. assumes security
obligation in favour of the distributors for the
difference between amount of notes and guarantee
money. As at 30 June 2018, open position of
outstanding acceptance bill was RMB699,329,650.00
(31 December 2017: RMB869,863,962.00). For details,
see Note XII.2.

S 5 R A R (A

2018464308 (A RET)
T BT B AR e H AL 5 ()
5. AEEHEHBEBEINEER

2 (&)
(4)
(0)

Hib B 5 (&)

AEERLREIEH
HHBERAR([LURE
ITHBRAAL)R201643
FA30H %52 ARG
Z) RERE LRE
T RRARRRIER
FRARRBESR  FE -
HEREMSBRES -
B SRR EF XM
BRRB(E R HE)
MEFBEARBITEHEE
AR BR AR E R ER
TER A K EEE i E
B A E ZEERITIER
FEEREBREEMNERE
KR TAWREKTHEE -

IWREIHBARALRA
Al FARIPRAER TS
ERD AL H AR MR
5888 - HEFARITE
HEZANREERKRAE
MAHEFRQAEMR
2018 F M EEHEE A A
R *# 1,300,000,000.00
7T (2017 F « AR ¥
1,200,000,000.007C ) °
PREER RBEHRA A
REHEPMREHRER R
HRFSZEEZENE
HREBEEMF - B E2018
F6H30H ' HKEH
mAREZ®RAEARA
E # 699,329,650.00
L (201712 A31H
A R ¥ 869,863,962.00
JL) o AEER2 M
+=-2-



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)
(4) Other related party transactions (Continued)
Amounts of transactions with Shandong Heavy Industry
Finance Company are as follows:
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5. AEEHEHBABINEER
7 (#&)
(4) HbBEM TR 5 (E)
AEERLRE TR
EMRERSEMT

January-June January-June
2018 2017
2018%1-6 A 2017%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)

srepuEl bl PR 23,126,502,258.07

63,875,295.98 59,263,957.57

Bank deposit placed FRERITIE R
Interest income LR A
Interest expenses FEZH

8,988,583.65 9,066,172.06

Acquisition of short-term borrowings 1S58 BRfE R

50,000,000.00 >

Establishment of bank acceptance bills B B $R17/% 4 [EZ

1,724,692,266.07 1,067,914,863.38

Balances of accounts with Shandong Heavy Industry Finance
Company are as follows:

AEBELNRETIHB LA
BIRERBBEWT ¢

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201846 H30H 2017912 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (')
Cash and cash equivalents placed GEHEEITNESES

with related parties 18,886,602,699.51 17,157,898,821.63
Interest receivable FE W T2 75,433,401.08 23,116,750.00
Short-term borrowings HHIE 110,000,000.00 60,000,000.00
Long-term borrowings REERK 309,427,751.45 315,117,751.45

Balance of bank acceptance bills AR RITHE L EREREE
established 1,616,303,549.11 1,290,579,547.03

Note: Other than the aforementioned finance businesses, Shaanxi Hande
Axle Co., Ltd. (“Hande Axle”, a subsidiary of Weichai Power Co.,
Ltd.) entrusted Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.
to issue short-term loan to Hende Axle (Zhuzhou) Gear Co., Ltd. (a
subsidiary of Hande Axle), and the balance of such entrusted loan
as at 30 June 2018 was RMB190,000,000.00 (31 December 2017:
RMB190,000,000.00). The entrusted loan was offset in preparation
of consolidated financial statements.

B

B e@EBIN  KRRARZ

FRRREAEBERBERAR

(TERER/BDERILRET

BBRARAERER/BZ FA

AERER(KMN) BHE R
ETS
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi % 5 B8 L HAZ 5 (5)
(Continued)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAEES FEWFE(SRIBEREE

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
2018%6A30H 2017412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERK) (&%)
Gross carrying Provision for Gross carrying Provision for
amount bad debt amount bad debt
BRH SARE RIRES R R ERER

Accounts receivable
R

Weichai Electric
HLEE S 240,475,952.24 VR EEERE)  71,435,775.57 (3,571,788.78)
Weichai Import and Export
s O 207,893,683.96 (6,296,582.55) 53,526,646.62 (2,312,581.18)
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
S S 200,027,183.38 WGP 167,162,805.37 (12,174,001.33)
FC Intelligence Transmission
ERED) 161,130,589.17 U Ep G Eviety 132,671,268.07 (45,293,628.88)
Yangzhou Yaxing
B2 139,110,709.89 (4,986,018.75) 28,369,108.89 (1,418,455.44)
Shengda Special Vehicles
RiERES 80,400,448.54 (2,986,372.25) 31,485,858.29 (1,925,985.88)
Changsha Huantong
RORM 66,364,433.92 (59,338,627.83) 33,808,426.00 (27,046,740.80)
Beigi Foton
it)5%&8 | 65,739,159.14 (3,286,957.96) 31,682,677.47 (1,643,829.28)
Shaanxi Wuhai
RASE 64,170,859.75 (EPILRTYICI)N  16,535,006.53 -
Eurostar
BLAT A ekl RSV 35,047,716.48  (33,341,158.85)
Shantui Engineering
LT 72 34,140,342.41 (1,129,472.01) 12,118,942.89 (605,947.14)
Baoji Vehicle
At 30,108,162.35 (1,503,666.29) 33,317,361.32 (2,337,927.00)
Others
Hfh 405,381,569.98 Q{0 R 406,546,131.70 (12,135,912.20)

(RN PR AV I ey Y WEVR ) 1,053,707,725.20  (143,807,956.76)

Other receivables

H oty FE UK

167,877,263.63 ((EWZERRVIN 136,151,059.74 (13,781,240.01)

167,877,263.63 ((ENZER RV 136,151,059.74 (13,781,240.01)

LL
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

6. BELTEWENREKRE
(%)

31 December 2017
2017912 A31H

30 June 2018
20186 H30H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (L ®|HZ)

Notes receivable (Bank acceptance bills)
BURREB(RITEALER
Yangzhou Yaxing

BMELE

Weichai Import and Export
S O

Shantui Engineering

W T2

Baoji Vehicle

BHER

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
ML E

Dezhou Degong

EMET

Shengda Special Vehicles
BEFRE

Others

Hil

276,370,535.65 330,188,571.83

202,037,497.37 242,400,764.43
199,217,200.00 105,737,160.00
158,600,000.00 140,500,000.00
100,200,000.00 250,538,450.43
46,000,000.00 =
45,000,000.00 36,815,039.10

14,468,458.00 379,106,336.60

1,041,893,691.02 1,485,286,322.39

Prepayments
BNRE
Others

HAh

32,422,779.40 42,604,072.47

32,422,779.40 42,604,072.47

Dividends receivable

P R R
Shandong Heavy Industry Finance Company

IIERETIHB AR

82,205,100.81

82,205,100.81
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties

6. BHBLTEWENREKRE

(Continued)

(%)

30 June 2018 31 December 2017

2018%6H30H 20174128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&= z)
Accounts payable
FE AT IR X
Baoji Vehicle
EHEH 493,317,769.28 340,450,408.43
Shaanxi Wanfang
perE R 415,125,988.35 395,678,614.68
Tongli Special Purpose
BAOER 245,613,744.58 139,115,540.70
Weichai Import and Export
ML O 231,302,465.14 171,920,049.40
FC Intelligence Transmission
E352EE) 142,695,348.08 120,104,029.37

Huazhen Components
EHTHH
Xi‘an Cummics

134,178,452.82 162,136,522.00

o % AT 132,024,428.98 121,846,970.08
Wanfang Tianyun

BHRE 123,027,322.19 141,983,093.96
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive

POEES 88,150,565.34 313,643,049.62
Tonghui Transportation

FEE YR 76,305,101.72 61,974,938.31
Westport New Energy

S B R 67,789,648.00 109,825,882.97
Lantong Transmission

ERESH 65,495,460.65 66,106,042.74
Tongchuang Huaheng

FRIZES 64,365,014.78 69,660,468.38
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery

M E 61,455,787.92 21,000,943.73

Zhongjiao Tianjian
R R

34,525,259.27 109,195,712.50

203,096,198.90 201,294,152.20

2,578,468,556.00 2,545,936,419.07

‘.Ih-.j.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions + ~B 5 5 B8 L HAZ 5 (4)

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAB A EWENREBESRE
(Continued) (#&)

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201846 HA30H 2017912 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (gE=)
Notes payable (Bank acceptance bills)
ENREBE(RITARESR)
Westport New Energy
S8R 282,066,185.27 1,469,711,159.77
Others
Hi 13,098,843.95 26,766,645.23

295,165,029.22 1,496,477,805.00

Contract liabilities

ERARE

Shaanxi Wuhai

BRASE 221,951,069.99 =
Others

Eh 2,571,721.60 =

224,522,791.59 =




250 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi % 7 B8 L HAZ 5 (4)

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BB AT EWENRIBESRE
(Continued) (4&)

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
20186 H30H 2017912 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (fE®|HZ)
Advances from customers
FE W R E
Shaanxi Wuhai
ORI 45,247,953.07
Others
Hi 19,732,602.27

64,980,555.34

Other payables
H fth 8 4 3K
Others

EAh 137,450,110.28 157,764,786.11

137,450,110.28 157,764,786.11

Dividends payable

FE A3 B

Weichai Group Holdings
S IR 339,426,650.75 -
Others
Hit - 151,016,140.79

339,426,650.75 151,016,140.79

Long-term payables
REEMNR

Other immaterial associates
HihgF BB AR S B % 229,284,849.00 279,993,337.80

Non-current liabilities due within one year
—FREAHNERBERE
Other immaterial associates
HAth 3T AR & % 267,534,697.50 151,466,049.90

Other than long-term payables and non-current liabilities due within BRERHEMNZK - —FA2HIERE
amounts due from/to related parties were non-interest BEASN - FEU I FE A BA 7 ;IR S
red. Of which the terms of repayment for DEEFLE -~ IR Edh - EHEXK
ill follow the requirement of terms of HEBFPERESEFETE  EESH

ature have no fixed terms E R A [E R R R o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
XI. Share-based Payment = B X AT

Share-based Payment Project Applicable to Staff
Members of KION

As at 30 June 2018, 49,337 (31 December 2017: 50,166) bonus shares
were granted by KION GROUP AG. The decrease in the number of shares
from last year was due to the lapse of 829 shares (2017: 1,675). From
January to June 2018, total costs recognized in respect of equity-settled
share-based payments in relation to the project was EUR382,000.00,
equivalent to RMB2,973,730.97 (January to June 2017: EUR394,000.00,
equivalent to RMB3,030,093.60).

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Managers

In 2018, a Share Incentive Scheme implemented by KION GROUP AG
became applicable to managers from 1 January 2018, for a term of three
years (KION 2018 Senior Management Long-term Incentive Scheme).
At the beginning of the period subject to appraisal, on 1 January 2018,
183,541 (2017: 171,573) virtual shares with specific fair value were
granted to managers. Such virtual shares were apportioned in proportion
to the total annual remuneration of the respective managers who were

granted such shares.

The cash-settled share-based payment granted in 2015 is subject to

appraisal for business performance during a period ending 31 December
2017, and was settled in March 2018.

KIONEIR#® X {FEE
#Z=201846 A30H * KION GROUP AG
% T49,337 AR (2017412 A318 -
50,166 /%) * IR EF R 2 BN E
P 820 B KM (20174 : 1,675 ) »
20184 1-6 4 - WA E AN AER
HFENBROEINBANEBERRAE AR T
382,000.00 * 1A AR®2,973,730.97 T
(20174 1-6 A : B JL394,000.00 * #T &
AR #3,030,093.607T) °

KIONZE R RE B B st &

7E20184F + KION GROUP AGH i IE B i
TH2018F1 A1 AR AR =FAIREE
T EI(KION2018 G m E R B ET &) -
£2018F 1 A1 BEMEZYE - LB I
T183,541 ABRFEA L BENERK
(20174 : 171,57310) » ZEBRMIZ
RBEMARERR TR EEALFHHE
FELL BT DL ©

2015 R FHUNBE S EENRMN I HIE
EEZHE2017F12A831BER > T2
MR2018F3AFER T -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20186 H30H (AR #oT)
XI. Share-based Payment (Continued) T By 2 A (48)

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Managers (Continued)

As at 30 June 2018, accumulated liabilities incurred from the cash-settled
share-based payments amounted to EUR15,800,000.00, equivalent to
RMB120,893,700.00 (31 December 2017: EUR23,000,000.00, equivalent
to RMB179,452,900.00). In particular, EUR9,300,000.00 belonged to the
2016 tranche, which was equivalent to RMB71,158,950.00 (31 December
2017: EUR7,800,000.00, equivalent to RMB60,857,940.00), and
EUR4,800,000.00 belonged to the 2017 tranche, which was equivalent
to RMB36,727,200.00 (31 December 2017: EUR3,900,000.00, equivalent
to RMB30,428,970.00). EUR1,700,000.00 belonged to the 2018 tranche,
which was equivalent to RMB13,007,550.00.

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Executive Board

As part of the Share Incentive Scheme of KION GROUP AG, members
of the Executive Board were granted virtual shares over a fixed period
of time (3 years). The remuneration component measured over the long
term of members of the Executive Board is on the same basis of the share
incentive scheme applicable to managers. On 1 January 2018, i.e. the
beginning of the period subject to appraisal, 61,433 virtual shares (2017:
82,265 shares) with specified fair value were granted to members of the
Executive Committee and apportioned in ways stipulated in the service

contract of each member of the Executive Committee.

KIONKE R EBBE (&)

HE2018F6 8308 LLBE&EH
RO EXNELENRABEBEESER
B 7T 15,800,000.00 @ #1 & A R #
120,893,700.00 7T ( 2017 % 12 A 31
B : B JT 23,000,000.00 @ T A& AR
# 179,452,900.00 7T ) * HE & - BT
9,300,000.00 8 M 2016 F M & T 15 -
A ARM71,158,950.007T (20174 12
A318 : Biyc7,800,000.00 * A AR
60,857,940.00 7T ) * BX JT 4,800,000.00
BR207TFHERTHE  TEAR
¥ 36,727,200.00 jT ( 2017 % 12 A 31
H : Bt 7T 3,900,000.00 @ & AR
30,428,970.00 7T ) * B 7t 1,700,000.00
BR2018FHETMHE TEARK
13,007,550.007C °

KIONBIITZESRERBGT &

YEAKION GROUP AGRX i M B st 81 1 —
By TZEEREBE—EEEREE
WF)WETFTEERRD - AITEZEFK
ERREBHRN T2 E Fill B IR AE
STEI A - 1201841 B 1 B &M
EZZNE - BITEEERBERIET61,433
PEBREAREBEMNERRD (20174 -
82,2651 ) * ZEBBRMIZBEMLNTE
EEgRENMBEERPHRENTADE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Share-based Payment (Continued)

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Executive Board (Continued)

The cash-settled share-based payment granted in 2015 is subject to
appraisal for business performance during a period ending 31 December
2017, and was settled in March 2018.

As at 30 June 2018, accumulated liabilities incurred from the cash-settled
share-based payments amounted to EUR7,600,000.00, equivalent to
RMB58,151,400.00 (31 December 2017: EUR15,100,000.00, equivalent
to RMB117,814,730.00). EUR4,900,000.00 belonged to the 2016
tranche, which was equivalent to RMB37,492,350.00 (31 December
2017: EUR4,000,000.00, equivalent to RMB31,209,200.00), and
EUR2,100,000.00 belonged to the 2017 tranche, which was equivalent to
RMB16,068,150.00 (31 December 2017: EUR1,600,000.00, equivalent to
RMB12,483,680.00). EUR 600,000 belonged to the 2018 tranche, which
was equivalent to RMB4,590,900.00.

KION#{TZESREME 2
(&)

015 B TFHURSCEENRN INNE
BEEZZEN2017F12A31HER - W E
M2018F3 AFEMEZ AL »

HZE=2018F6 A30RH ' UBE2HFE
RN EINEENRTEBEESE A
B st 7,600,000.00 ra AR
58,151,400.00 7T ( 2017 % 12 A 31
B : BUJT 15,100,000.00 @ 1 & A R
117,814,730.00 ) ° BX Jt 4,900,000.00
BR2016FHETHE  TEAR
*& 37,492,350.00 7t ( 2017 & 12 A 31
B : B JT 4,000,000.00 © & AR
31,209,200.00 7t ) * Bk 7t 2,100,000.00
BR2017FHERTHE  TEAR
* 16,068,150.00 7t ( 2017 & 12 A 31
B : BT 1,600,000.00 @ & AR
12,483,680.00 7t ) * B JT 600,000 /&
R2018FHNETHE  TEARE
4,590,900.007T °
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30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

XII. Commitments and Contingencies +ookEE A B IE
1. Significant commitments 1. EEARER

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201846 A30H 2017912 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (T %)

Contracted but not provided for EENERER
Capital commitments B AR 1,213,854,211.35 1,802,974,738.68
Investment commitments 15 B S = 4,920,000.00

2. Exposure to confirmation risks
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tri-party cooperation agreement with distributors and
endorsing bank. Distributors will deposit guarantee money of no
lower than 30% to the bank and apply for establishment of bank
acceptance bill for the purchase of products of Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Co., Ltd. according to the amount of credit facility provided
by the bank. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. assumes security
obligation in favour of the distributors for the difference between
amount of notes and guarantee money. As at 30 June 2018, open
position of outstanding acceptance bills was RMB3,863,956,487.00
(31 December 2017: RMB3,522,367,332.15). Further, pursuant
to the tri-party indemnity agreement entered into among Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., the distributors and the guarantors
of the distributors, the distributors shall indemnify Shaanxi Heavy-
duty Motor Co., Ltd. in respect of the aforesaid security obligation
for the said difference in amount or losses suffered, and their

guarantors shall be jointly liable for the same.

1,213,854,211.35 1,807,894,738.68

FREBHORR
RARZFARIRAERTEHRA
RIELHEE  ARBIT=ZFFET=
FalEmE  SHEERRITEANK
MR30%BREFES - RIBERITHTH
—EEAREE  PHERAMRITELE
EAREERAERR TEARARE
m RAERREERQFALHRE
RUERSHEERESCHEZEOR
FRFBEMT - HE2018F6A30H ¢
MARB AR SEZHOEAAR
# 3,863,956,487.00 7T (2017 F 12
A318 : AR®3,522,367,332.15
JT) e WA RIEBERAER REARR
DA EEEREHEEOREANS
FREFEER - LHEEEERAER AR
BERARFRENEZEERE EE
ZHIBL  ERBEAREEFREER
£
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

XII. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 1= 7?( o B A B E ()

3. Business related to finance lease company HBmEEELATNEHENE
%
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, ARARZFARIRAER FEFRA
entered into a cooperation agreement with Shanzhong Finance AELEMEHEBRATEEGE
Leasing Co., Ltd.. It is agreed by and between the two parties that W EANFTLEREHERR
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. shall provide finance lease NRBRAERTEGR AR SEL
service to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. or its distributors. HERHBRERERY  RAERSR
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. shall guarantee repurchase of BEERARAMEMENAE S K
physical assets upon presentation in respect of the leasee’s failure to TR ERE D AR RF SR
pay the instalment payments and interests under the finance lease. RYBESEME - -#HZE2018%6 430
As at 30 June 2018, risk exposure in respect of possible guarantee A @fEARFEBRBAAAR
for joint liabilities was RMB1,744,304,000.00 (31 December 2017: #1,744,304,000.00 7T (2017 F 12
RMB1,507,220,000.00). A31H : AR#1,507,220,000.00
TL) e
4. Guarantee 4. EREBHE

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
20186 H30H 2017912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (&%)

Other guarantee HA(RE 487,270,474.50 376,307,409.45
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20186 H30H (AR #oT)
XIIL. Subsequent Events = BEAEFEARFH
Distribution of dividend for year 2017 IKEE2017 EEAF

On 14 June 2018, the Company’s 2017 profit distribution proposal
was considered and approved at the Company’s 2017 annual general
meeting. Based on the total share capital of 7,997,238,556 shares as at
31 December 2017, the Company distributed to all shareholders a cash
dividend of RMB2.50 (including tax) for every 10 shares held, without any
capitalisation of reserve. Distribution of the bonus shares was completed
during the period from the balance sheet date to the date on which the

issue of the financial statements was approved.

Distribution of interim dividend for year 2018

On 28 August 2018, under the authority granted by the shareholders
of the Company, the Board considered and approved the distribution
to all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB1.80 (including tax) for
every 10 shares held, based on the total share capital of the Company of

7,997,238,556 shares, without any capitalisation of reserve.

Major investment

In July 2018, the Company and Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Technology”), a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Agreement on Participating in (Withdrawing
from) Huzhou Yingcan Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) with,
among others, Hangzhou Gaomu Asset Management Company Limited,
pursuant to which the Company and Shanghai Technology as a limited
partner and a general partner respectively, participated in Huzhou Yingcan
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Yingcan Investment”)
by way of taking up the subscription amounts of RMB1,405.80 million
and RMB200,000. Yingcan Investment subscribed for 367,957,139 new
issue shares of XCMG Construction Machinery Co., Ltd. ("XCMG"),
representing 4.70% of the total shares of XCMG upon completion of the

capital increase.

M2018F6 A14H » ARF2017FERE
AFEREEZBBAT2017FEMNEIRA
X ARRAFILA2017F12A31B AR ER
B #AR% A 7,997,238,556 1k A E & - &
BERFFIORKERSANMARK2.507T
(BR)  TEHABSEIERA - ZF4
FREEABRBEAMB RS IERD
HzHBRETE -

TKE2018F R HIAT R

R2018F 8 A28  ARAIEEEIR
BERFEgEE TZRBUAQALRAK
7,997,238 556 R R EE - MEERRE
10K IR SALFAREKE1.80T(ER) -

TERAESEERA -

EARESHE

M2018F7H » RRAIREFRAIMLEE
N(EE)MEERERAR(TREILEE
B EmMNESEEEEEARAASE
BEECAMNBRIEEARECE(BREE)
ZACGR)BRE)  ARRARLEERES
AMEABRABRANBTBE R ARBA
R 140,580 B LA AR 208 T E
mE - ABRAMNBREESEGE(ER
ER)(THIBRREE]) - BEREEARE
THISEIEEMRNHERAA(THE
[ % TR 1)367,957,139 % JE R 377
ARG R IRMAXEEEERDE
4.70% °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events
1.

Leases

As the lessor

Finance leases: As at 30 June 2018, the balance of unrealized
finance income is RMB725,568,790.50 (31 December 2017:
RMB674,563,451.10) and is apportioned to the leasing period using
effective interest rate method. Pursuant to the leasing contract
signed with the lessee, the minimum lease receivables under non-

cancellable leases are as follows:

Interim Report 2018 A HAZRE

PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201846 H30H (A E¥T)

T3
1.

MEMEEREEA

Finance lease, as lessor

For fixed assets leased out under operating lease, refer to Note V.17.

As the lessee

Finance leases: As at 30 June 2018, the balance of unrecognised
finance costs is RMB831,052,369.50 (31 December 2017:
RMB839,543,441.76) and is apportioned to the leasing period using
effective interest rate method. Pursuant to the leasing contract
signed with the lessor, the minimum lease payables under non-

cancellable leases are as follows:

BMEREEREEA

Finance lease, as lessee

1

For fixed assets leased in under finance lease, refer to Note V.17.

fth ¥ B = T

HE

YEREMEA

FhEFME : 201868308
AEAMEWNZNHBERARKE
725,568,790.50 7T (20174 12 A 31
H: AR#674,563,451.1070) @ #%
AERMREERAEHANS AR E
Tol - BIBERARAZITNHEES
A TAIREEENREREWRRE
W

30 June 2018 31 December 2017

201846 A30H 2017912 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BFEZ)

7,774,375,438.50

7,507,536,908.30

KEMEBETEE  2RMER -
17 »

YEBEFMA

FhEME - R20184F6AH30A8 ¢
AEAMEEANBEARARE
831,052,369.507T (2017412 A 31
H : AR®839,543,441.767T) *
AERMEZERAEHANSESRMEE
T - RBENAAZINEES
A FAREEENSERENRE
R

30 June 2018
2018%F6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

31 December 2017
2017912 831H
(Audited)
(REZ)

3,748,490,654.00 13,888,944,80

257
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

1.

Leases (Continued)

As the lessee (Continued)

Material operating lease: Pursuant to the leasing contract signed
with the lessor, the minimum lease payables under non-cancellable

leases are as follows:

PR 3 B 5 (48D
201846304 (A E¥T)

M ﬁﬂbﬁ%%ﬁ(%ﬁ)

Operating lease, as lessee mEHEERAEA

Segment reporting

Operating segments

The Group organizes and manages its operating business in
accordance with the nature of business and provision of products
and services. Each operating segment of the Group is one operating
group, providing products and services with risks and rewards

different from those of other operating segments.

The details of operating segments are as follows:

(@) manufacturing and sale of diesel engines and related parts

("Diesel engines”);
(b)  manufacturing and sale of automobiles and major automobile
components other than diesel engines (“Automobiles and

other major automobile components”);

(0 manufacturing and sale of other automobile components

(“Other components”);

provision of import and export services (“Import & export

services”);

production, warehousing technology and

2.

HE(#E)

VEBEMAN ()

EALERE - BREEBBARITHN
HMEER TAREHENRERAE
PR

Minimum lease payments
REHEENRE
30 June 2018 31 December 2017

201846 HA30H 2017912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (REZ)

3,290,306,394.03 3,507,897,316.16

pal b e
REENEEEBREEBH O
T B HR 00 7 5 RO IR S ) B 4B 0
B AEENSEGEE S BR—ER
BEE  RHUERTRR LG E S
HORBALRETARELMLE DS
B TR0 2 AR 7% o

AT 8 & & B A E B B HE

(a) HEMHESHEREBTRN
f(T5mH ) -

(by HEERHERERFERES
B (T RELRE)([RER
HiEx 2T M)

(0 HERFEEEMAETHME
(TEAZ B

(d) REEDLBARB(MEH QR
%)

() XRELE - RERMKHER
R IR ([ B R EE
FRRTIER]) -




Interim Report 2018 FHAsksE 259

PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201846 H30H (A E¥T)

M ﬁﬂi’é%%ﬁ(%ﬁ)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

Management monitors the results of operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted total
profits. The adjusted total profits are measured consistently with
the Group’s total profits, except that finance expenses, investment
income, dividend income, gains from changes in fair value of
financial instruments as well as head office expenses are excluded

from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss for the current period, derivative instruments,
dividends receivable, interests receivable, equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income, long-term equity
investments, goodwill, deferred tax assets and other unallocated

head office assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative instruments, borrowings,
income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
head office liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

Inter-segment transfers are transacted with reference to the prices

used in the transactions carried out with third parties.

7 R & ()

e (E)
ERRERARE DRI EREOR
AN HEEBETHEEXRS
FETTEIR - HHEME - ABRENS
HHBAEREITIE - ZIEERY
MR T AR NEE  BRTE
RSB A - BRI
SRT AR EES KU KA
BRI RIEREAEEFBAE
e GO

AWEETBEUNAREEFESAE
BHAALHBRENERERE - 17
ATAR - BREF - BRAE - AR
REEAELAEEHFALMEEK
A EaERE  RERERE &
B RERMSHREEMEMAD KM
mEHAEE REENELEESIHAN
SEE—FEE-

DBABTBRETEIR - R E

RATSH - BEFREREBENA R EM
*nmm%%ﬁﬁ'ﬁlﬁﬂmbﬁ
EHBEAEESR —E

DEENEBEE  2RAF=T#
IR SRMBEERFIE °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) 0 Al R BE SR (4
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. pEHE(E)
Operating segments (Continued) i E ()
Automobiles Forklift
and other major trucks and
automobile Other Import & supply chain
(Unaudited) Diesel engines components components export services solution
RERf XER
(#EER) Ll TZRESHA Bt 34 EHNEE BAER
January to June 2018 201851-67
Seqment revenue: APA -
Sale to external customers NERPHE 16,496,457,346.32  34,807,968,274.78  1,054,821,113.59 83,422,207.65  29,821,237,966.54  82,263,906,908.88
Inter-segment sale HPREE 6,663,563,794.49 11,226,433.97 679,127,201.26 15,406,153.73 39,259,000.00
Total At 23,160,021,14081  34819,194708.75  1,733,948,314.85 98,828,361.38  29,860,496,966.54  89,672,489,492.33
Adjustment: i
Elimination of inter-segment sale P HmEEE (7,408,582,583.45)
Revenue WA 82,263,906,908.88
Seqment results DR 410223161470 1,361,431,828.76 55,961,308.60 (10,874439.06)  1,444,754,489.16  6,953,504,802.16
Adustment g
Elimination of inter-segment results BErHMEEE (67,696,383.51)
Interest income V0N 563,067,891.29
Dividend income and unallocated income &M ARA S B 390,240813.90
Corporate and other unallocated expenses A2 RELAIRRR (52,526,09.81)
Finance expenses STERA (619,713,405.58)

Profit before tax RartE 7,166,877,621.45




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)
2.

Segment reporting (Continued)
Operating segments (Continued)

(Unaudited)

(%EEH)

30June 2018 2018564308

Segment assets AHEE

Adustment: g

Elimination of inter-seqment assets BN PHEE

Corporate and other unallocated assets ¥ REMANEEE

Total assets 4%E

Seqment liablties AHEE

Adjustment g

Elimination of inter-segment liabilties BHABEEE

Corporate and other unallocated liabites £ REMAHEE B

Total ibiftes hak

January to June 2018 20185161

Other segment information: AAHER -

Share of profit and oss from: EIETSIARNERER :

Gainfloss) from associates and jointly BENLELE
controlld enterprises Wi/ (B%)

Loss of impairment of inventories HFERESRX
Reversalloss) of impairment of accounts — FEWEFT R EfEUES
receivable and other receivables HREEE/(BX)

Lossof impaimment of non-currentassets MBI AR EEL

Depreciation and amortization EREE

Gainfloss) fiom disposal of fied assets AR AEREMNS/(B%)

Investment n associates and jointly NEERALrE
controlled enterprises fRE

Capital expenditure BAER

Diesel engines

3L

37,801,572,290.07

31,308,687,466.72

55,527,230.40
(12,582,989.37)

(39,085,124.66)
(570,845.44)
(406,725,424.93)
1,439,200.12

1,223,547,603.17
(428,561,075.11)

Automobiles
and other major
automobile
components
RERAM
TEREEHH

32,719,245,407.9

28,748,016,883.86

31,500,030.36
(74,676,316.88)

(36,107,796.92
(30,600,000.00
(452,717,518.98
(608,887.36,

755,820,352.12
(589,902,945.80)
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SRS R A (A

201846 H30H (A E¥T)

193 Al 2 2 5 0 (4
2. DEHE ()

rEDE(E)

RL'E 7] R

Other Import &

components export services

B EHARE

18,829,018,090.57  11,916,99,454.15

12,806,003,761.01  2,129,330376.87

= (23,303,785.12)
(1,430,891.78) =

(1,460,074.84) 13,165.61

(100,941,796.85)
152,573.44

(9.172,672.02)
6,819.99

195,332,294.51

(109,082,164.59) (331,057.44)

Forklift

trucks and

supply chain

solution
XER RS
BAng

76,683,428,336.09

36,078,306,891.00

72,509,568.42
(47,559,680.99)

(28,607,444.01)
(11,905,493.16)
(2,676,698,00.60)
3,196,453.29

692,921,817.75
(3,509,419,465.00)

177,950,260,578.84
(23,760,559,718.94)
43,000,825,745.42
197,399,526,605.32
111,070,345,379.46
(16,825,286,034.19)
44,565,885,954.72

138,810,945,299.99

136,233,044.06
(136,249,879.02)

(105,247,274.82)
(43,076,338.60)
(3,646,255,422.38)
4,186,159.48

2,867,622,067.55
(4,637,296,707.94)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) T At B R (4)

7 EHE ()

gD A ()

2. Segment Reporting (Continued) 2.
Operating segments (Continued)

Autornobiles Forkift
and other major trucks and

automobile Other Import & supply chain
(Unaudited) Diesel engines components components export services solution Total

REREM REREEE
(R&21) Kl TERETIH EfpZHe EHOER L VES it
January to June 2017 W01751-68
Seqment revene: FHUA
Sale to external customers NHEPEE 1404348358868 28,440,049,250.93  1,187,866,585.93 08,154,705.47  28573,711,459.10  72,313,265,590.11
Inter-segment sale AHRRE 6,410,150,667.23 531,039.20 625,155,077.86 11,015,386.80 - 7,046,852,171.09
Total At 2045363425591 28440,580,290.13  1,813,021,663.79 79170,092.27 2857371145910 79,360,117,761.20
Adustment Fo
Elimination of inter-segment sale BN IEYE (7.046,852,171.09)
Revenue WA 72,313,265,590.11
Seqment results A%E 2,877,280,998.80 764,763274.91 74,915,166.52 (1420130229)  1,166,791,446.87  4,869,549,584.81
Adjustment: g
Eimination of nter-seqment results BHAUEEE (308,147,046.12)
Interest income HEMA 47037356053
Dividend income and unallocated income k& RARKSE A 263,160,705.90
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ~ REREHAPERR (72,550,181.24)
Finance expenses HERA (839,090,031.34)
Profit before tax HaifE 4,383,296,592.54
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) Ttk EE B SR UE (4)
2. Segment Reporting (Continued) 2. DEHE (&)
Operating segments (Continued) rmE D E (&)

Automobiles Forklft
and other major trucks and
automobile Other Import & supply chain
(Audited) Diesel engines components components export services solution Total
REREM NERfEE
(5% Khig  TERETHR EfnZHe EHOER LHVES At
31 December 2017 017512318
Seqment assets AHEE 3771852680373 32471,332,085.77  18.251,755,485.49  11,966,343480.78  75,034,006,89041  175,501,964,746.18
Adjustment: Fi
Elimination of inter-segment assets RO BHEE (25,214,008,750.78)
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMAIRNER 39,350,210,634.12
Total assets BEE 189,638,166,629.52
Seqment liabliies AHaE 27,007,000538.90  31,023,164,67862  13,019,140,067.07 149230627260  35725,701,79%.40  108,287,313,353.59
Adjustment: FL8
Elimination of inter-segment iabliies BHEAIEAE (17,957,220,509.52)
Corporate and other unallocated liablities — REREMXSEAE 42,953,082,554.95
Total liabilties ek 133,283,175,399.02
(Unaudited)
(ri2H)
January to June 2017 0175168
Other seqment information: L ABER
Share of profit and loss from: EETHIDAFBRER :
Gain/{loss) rom associates and jointly BENAELE
controlled enterprses h&/(8%) 2488,840.34 545,131.81 - 735970 95:89,831.01 120,804,398
Reversalioss) of impairment of inventories £ EER /(18%) (1451687361)  (114,668,354.07) 2,695,184.63 - (sAe08,11657)  (171,098,1596)
Reversalioss)of impairment of accounts R RE M EAE R A
receivable and other receivabls HEEE/(B%) (11550,10450) (15954780687  (280853259) 294009 (20059560 (30984297947)
Loss of impairment of non-current assets FRYEERERR (9.810355.64)  (90,625,706.36) - - (169684638 (472,132908.38)
Depreciation and amortization TERES (39999384456)  (472,378,641.86)  (115,920,796.17) (12864,471.22)  (2663,014,772.25)  (3,664,172,526.06)
Gain{oss) from dlisposal of fixed assets BREERETIR/(BX) 124354214 (86857901)  (4450,864.70) - 1403,36067
Investment in associates and jointy REERAELEN
controlled enterpries %E 65935084213 48384321943 -
Capita expenditure EXRR (20094233132 (297495,771.98)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment Reporting (Continued)
Group information
Information about products and services

Revenue from external transactions

R 3% B G (7
201846 H30H (A RHIT)
Al T O ()
2. DEHE(E)
SEBER
Edn 5158
IR B WA

Complete vehicles and key components B2 25 J% 784 T 2f 14
Non-automobile engines EREREEH

Other non-major automobile components E i 3E = & )78 T 5[4
Forklift trucks and supply chain solution X E J% i jie §# i S 77 22
Others EAh

Geographic information

Revenue from external transactions

Mainland China o B K RE

Other countries and regions HAth B R A [

Revenue from external transactions is attributable to the areas

where customers are located.

January-June 2018

20184 1-6 H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

January-June 2017
2017%1-6 4
(Unaudited)
(REER)

40,057,321,537.92
3,689,801,288.17
5,374,539,079.42
29,821,237,966.54
3,321,007,036.83

31,374,075,026.15
5,610,440,235.25
4,941,517,806.37
28,056,760,799.34
2,330,471,723.00

82,263,906,908.88

72,313,265,590.11

I 15 8
HINZH WA

January-June 2018
20185 1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(REER)

January-June 2017
2017%F1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

49,809,908,688.78
32,453,998,220.10

41,695,452,653.33
30,617,812,936.78

82,263,906,908.88

72,313,265,590.11

HIRXZGBARBREFP GRS -




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment Reporting (Continued)
Group information (Continued)
Geographic information (Continued)

Total non-current assets
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W % B 5 ()
201846 H30H (A RHIT)
Al T O ()
2. DEHHE(E)
SEEE(E)
W= B (&)
EREEELEE

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
20186 H30H 2017912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Mainland China Fh B K R
Other countries and regions Hth B K b &R

16,955,411,032.23 17,096,411,403.27
61,036,114,131.33 61,858,166,824.96

77,991,525,163.56 78,954,578,228.23

Non-current assets are attributable to the areas where the assets

are located, excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue of RMB3,425,111,762.01 (January to June 2017:
RMB2,811,205,577.70) was derived from sales by Diesel engines
segment and Automobiles and other major automobile components
segment to a single customer, including sales to a group of entities

which is known to be under common control by that customer.

FRBEERBNZEEMBERS -
TEREEREEMELERSHEE -

FEEFPEEE
BEWAARE3,425,111,762.01
oL (2017 16 A : ARE
2,811,205,577.707T ) 3 B FA 4 Jh 1%
DEMAEREMEZTEETHBHS
HBHE-—BEATF(AEEMARZE
FPESITERE ) BWA -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) - ﬁﬂi&ﬁg$lﬁ (%)

3. Comparative Figures BB

As stated in Note Ill. 33, in compliance with the requirement under M= 33pTM - AR AE
the Notice on Revising and Circulating General Corporate Financial HITCEARNEETEE2018F E — &
Statement Formats 2018 (Cai Kuai [2018] No.15), adjustments have CEUEREEANBO)(B2
been made to the accounting treatment and presentation of certain [201811558 )M E K - BIISkE+R A
items in the financial statements and the amounts in financial FI18 B /& 51 EEIR A 51 A K B 7% 3R
statements in order to conform with the new requirements. KPS BEELBER  UWHEHMK
Accordingly, certain prior year data have been adjusted and certain Tk o fHREH BT UAIFEEESEDS
comparative data have been reclassified and restated to conform CRE  BETUHREECEBES S
with the requirements on presentation and accounting treatment in WE + AFA RN RAN 55

the current period. I o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements
1. Notes receivable and accounts receivable

Notes receivable e
Accounts receivable FEUAR R
Less: Provision for bad debts o EEREE
Notes receivable

Bank acceptance bills RITHEH ER

Among which, notes receivable which had been pledged are

presented as follows:

Bank acceptance bills RITHEGEES

PR R B K B W AR

30 June 2018
20186 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEX)

21,662,601,313.39
2,577,956,012.55

24,240,557,325.94
94,062,738.27

24,146,494,587.67

Y

30 June 2018
2018%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REFEX)

21,662,601,313.39

31 December 2017
2017912 A31H
(Audited)
(EE'%)

23,018,971,007.38
1,581,980,702.54

24,600,951,709.92
89,097,053.93

24,511,854,655.99

31 December 2017
2017%12A31H
(Audited)
(&E=Z)

23,018,971,007.38

Hep - EERMBERENT :

30 June 2018
2018%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEX)

10,302,351,441.14

31 December 2017
2017912 A31H
(Audited)
(EB'%)

10,584,550,074.03
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PR 3 B 5 (48D
201846304 (A E¥T)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)

1.

Notes receivable and accounts receivable
(Continued)

Notes receivable (Continued)

Notes receivable which had been endorsed but not yet expired as at
the balance sheet date are presented as follows:

i ﬁ;ﬂ)ﬂi%ﬁi%‘*ﬁ%ﬁ H kR
1. BEREERERRNK(E)

el =iz (&)
EEEEAEEERABRAHRIIAN
FEMETINT -

30 June 2018 31 December 2017

2018456 H30H 2017412 A31H
Derecognition Derecognition
RIEER #®IEHER
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Bank acceptance bills RITAEH [ESR

177,243,487.14

305,381,126.35

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had not transferred any notes
into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure in performance (31
December 2017: Nil).

Accounts receivable

The Company trades with its customers primarily on credit terms,
and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new
customers. Credit period is generally one to six months. Accounts

receivable is non-interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on the invoice dates is

presented as follows:

MH2018F6A30H  ARRERHE
ANENBAMBEZEE AEKERN
=4 (20175128318 : &) -

& W B K
ARRBEFPHEMNEZERFRAEAR
HRE  B—REFHEFLEMRK
REERN R ET  ERHMER
31-61AA o BURBRRIL G R

RERAZAE  EEERRERS TN
T

30 June 2018 31 December 2017

20186 H30H 2017912 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BEZ)

Within 1 year 1 AR
1 to 2 years 1FE24
2 to 3 years 2FEE3EF

Over 3 years

2,494,441,506.58
41,390,974.20
31,479,050.25
10,644,481.52

1,520,777,337.88
36,377,612.60
21,357,222.02
3,468,530.04

2,577,956,012.55
94,062,738.27

1,581,980,702.54
89,097,053.93

2,483,893,274.28 1,492,883,648.61

_.j-
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial -2 &) 32 % B % 8 % 086 H 5E

Statements (Continued) (%)

1. Notes receivable and accounts receivable 1. EWEBRERERER(E)
(Continued)
Accounts receivable (Continued) FEUEE = (48)
Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of accounts receivable FEUBE ZIZER BB EBIMT ¢

are presented as follows:

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201846 HB30H 2017%12A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (FFEZ)
Opening balance Bl Y 89,097,053.93 59,650,280.52
Provision for the period/ year NEFEHR 4,965,684.34 29,486,373.41
Decrease during the period/ year: NEFR A
Written off 2 5 (39,600.00)
Closing balance By S FEREpEE 94,062,738.27 89,097,053.93

30 June 2018

2018%F6H30H

Gross carrying Provision

(Unaudited) amount  Proportion for bad debt Percentage
(REER) ok} k61 HEREE R B
(%) (%)

Items for which provision for & I8 5 78 #i{2
bad debts is recognized FiBkatieE
and expected credit loss is  BR %4
assessed separately

Items for which provision for 3% {5 FA B\ & 58
bad debts is recognized 44 FTE TR H
and expected credit loss EABRER
is assessed by group ZAREE
with distinctive credit risk
characteristics 2,577,956,012.55 94,062,738.27

2,577,956,012.55 94,062,738.27
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T2 ) BB B R I H Rk

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
Notes receivable and accounts receivable

1.

(Continued)

Accounts receivable (Continued)

(%)

1. BREBRERRR(E)

FEU BR R (48

31 December 2017
2017%12A31H

Provision
(Audited) Amount Proportion for bad debt Percentage
(&%) T L i BERERE FHELE B
(%) (%)
Individually significant items BESEEKX
for which provision for bad W B IHATR
debt is recognized separately EIRERE - - - -
Items for which provision RiEBRREE
for bad debt is recognized HEFTRER
by group with distinctive P}
credit risk characteristics 1,581,980,702.54 100.00 89,097,053.93 5.63
Not individually significant BIHSHH T
items for which provision EREEE
for bad debt is recognized TRIZIRE
separately - - - -
1,581,980,702.54 100.00 89,097,053.93 5.63

The Company’s accounts receivable for which bad debts are

ARBRA KB DRI RER

provided for using aging analysis are presented as follows: B EUBR RIF R AT -

30 June 2018
201846 H30H

Expected credit

Carrying amount Expected loss during

credit loss the entire
rate (%)
BHER
K%
(%)

estimated to
be in default
At BEEN

HY B T B 3R

(Unaudited) subsistence

BEFES

(REER) BAHERRX

Within 1 year 477,106,411.43 4.64
38,036,032.84 15.00
31,479,050.25 30.00

7,257,831.49 50.00

3,386,650.03 100.00

22,145,203.89
5,705,404.93
9,443,715.08
3,628,915.75
3,386,650.03

557,265,976.04 7.95

44,309,889.68
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial -2 &) 32 % B % 8 % 086 H 5E

Statements (Continued) (%)

1. Notes receivable and accounts receivable 1. EWEEREWERR(E)
(Continued)
Accounts receivable (Continued) JEUBR R (4E)

31 December 2017
2017%12831H

Provision

(Audited) Amount Proportion for bad debt Percentage
(R&EZ) k-] =]l AR s
(%) (%)
Within 1 year 1F AN 1,520,777,337.88 96.13 73,805,655.39 4.85
1-2 years 18224 36,377,612.60 2.30 5,456,641.89 15.00
2-3 years 2E3F 21,357,222.02 1.35 6,407,166.61 30.00
3-4 years 3E45F 81,880.01 0.01 40,940.01 50.00
Over 5 years S5 3,386,650.03 0.21 3,386,650.03 100.00
1,581,980,702.54 100.00 89,097,053.93 5.63
Bad debt provision for the Group’s accounts receivable with good EHEEEENEZBEARS IRE

credit history are presented as follows: BREENIF AT ¢

30 June 2018
20186 H30H

Expected credit

Carrying amount Expected loss during

estimated to credit loss the entire

(Unaudited) be in default rate (%) subsistence

B EEQOW RHER EEFES

(REER) IREERRE =P BHEREX
(%)

Accounts receivable with ZHEEEER
good credit history FEMRIEHE S 2,020,690,036.51 . 49,752,848.59

2,020,690,036.51 5 49,752,848.59
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)

1.

Notes receivable and accounts receivable
(Continued)

As at 30 June 2018, the top five balances in respect of accounts
receivable had a sum of closing balance of RMB1,431,548,548.10
(31 December 2017: RMB934,596,324.81), accounting for 55.53%
(31 December 2017: 59.08%) of the total of closing balance of
accounts receivable. The closing balance in respect of bad debt
provided for the top five amounted to RMB35,887,599.48 (31
December 2017: RMB46,729,816.24).

In January-June 2018, provision for bad debts of RMB4,965,684.34
(2017: RMB29,486,373.41) was made, and no provision for bad
debts (2017: nil) was reversed. In January-June 2018, no accounts
receivable was written off (2017: RMB39,600.00).

As at 30 June 2018, no accounts receivable (31 December 2017:
Nil) was pledged for securing bank borrowings of the Company.

Other receivables

PR 3 B 5 (48D
201846304 (A E¥T)

T /A\ﬁ)igﬁﬂ%iﬁiéiﬁ H iR

1.

Interest receivable FEU TS
Fixed deposits TEH
Dividends receivable JE AR
Weichai (Weifang) After-sales TELE (AL ) 18 T 5 IR
Market Service Co., Ltd. HR 2 E]
Shandong Heavy Industry Group U RETEEHERLA]
Finance Co, Ltd.
Others H
Advance to subsidiaries FRALER

Corporate lending and payment
on behalf

Employee advance

Others

EREBRRAMAR

wRE
Hith

B IRARER

PR R 5 & B AR ()

M2018F6 A30H @ #AREATAEZ M
FEWERNBRGEATAARE
1,431,548,548.10 7T ( 2017 £ 12
A31H : AR #934,596,324.81
L) HERERERBRESGTH
B £ 7 4 55.53% (2017 % 12 A 31
H :59.08% ) ' 3% Bl 71 & #H FE &
REHNEEREEPRBEAARE
35,887,599.48 7L (2017 F 12 A 31
H: AR%46,729,816.247T) °

2018F 1-6 AT IREIREHFHARKE
4,965,684.347L (2017F + AR
29,486,373.4170)  ME L MIT R
HEFH (20174 : £8) - 20184 1-6 A
EERZENEWER(20174 + A
R #39,600.007T) °

MR2018F6H30H © AR A ESEW
BRF(2017F12A31H + &)EHHA
RIS IRITEROBR

H th JE WX
30 June 2018 31 December 2017
201846 HA30H 2017%12831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (&= %)

75,433,401.08
75,433,401.08
143,995,245.08

72,962,782.03

71,032,463.05

293,130,433.56

6,350,399.53
5,876,832.84
4,126,724.81

528,913,036.90
14,792,566.68

514,120,470.22

23,116,750.00
23,116,750.00
240,204,169.02

240,204,169.02
357,846,133.92

6,350,399.53
7,874,106.75
3,118,696.12

638,510,255.34
14,749,851.41

623,760,403.93
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)

2.
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RS i 2 BT 5 (48

201846 H30H (A RHET)

ThoE] EEM R R IEH R
(%)

Other receivables (Continued)
An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:
Within 1 year 1F AR
1-2 years 1224
2-3 years 2E3F
Over 3 years 3F LA £
Less: Provision for bad debts R LA R AR
in respect of other receivables

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables
are as follows:
Opening balance B FRE
Provision for the period/year RHE TR
Decrease during the period/year: NE R

Reversal o]
Closing balance B FERRE

Gross carrying
amount

(Unaudited) BRI EREE
(REER)
[tems for which provision for BIE TR

bad debts is recognized and ERBXET

expected credit loss is assessed  #21EBR &

separately 506,193,839.36
Items for which provision for  1Z{z Fi &k

bad debts is recognized and BEEA T

expected credit loss is assessed 78 Hi{= FI 8 & 5t

by group with distinctive credit  $2ZE IR

risk characteristics 22,719,197.54

528,913,036.90
= .

Proportion

2. HtpEW (%)

Hip UK BRER D AT AN T

30 June 2018 31
201846 HB30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)

December 2017

2017412 A31H

(Audited)
(FFEZ)

509,719,602.36
1,919,039.72

4,208,531.79
13,065,863.03

614,008,086.05
11,436,306.26

13,065,863.03

528,913,036.90

14,792,566.68

638,510,255.34

14,749,851.41

514,120,470.22

623,760,403.93

Hip ERFRRERNEFIOT ¢

30 June 2018 31
20186 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEZR)

December 2017

2017912 A31H

(Audited)
(f&FE%)

14,749,851.41
42,715.27

24,200,665.63

(9,450,814.22)

14,792,566.68

14,749,851.41

30 June 20 18
20186 H30H

Provision for

bad debt
£e Bl HERER
(%)

14,792,566.68

14,792,566.68

Percentage
iRt A
(%)

2.80
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 1% -2 & 32 B B % 3 % 386 H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (7))
2. Other receivables (Continued) 2. HttEW(E)
Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables EfEWREREENE SO T
are as follows: (Continued) (&) :
31 December 2017
2017912A31H
Gross carrying Provision for
(Audited) amount Proportion bad debt Percentage
(&%) REEAE L i B St Ll
(%) (%)
Individually significant items for B IE &% E A
which provision for bad debt I BB R
is recognized separately AR 263,320,919.02 41.24 - -
Items for which provision for Z{E AR B RFE
bad debt is recognized by HEFREE
group with distinctive EH
credit risk characteristic 375,189,336.32 58.76 14,749,851.41 3.93
Not individually significant items B IE % %8 T
for which provision for bad EREES
debt is recognized separately FHREEREE - - - -
638,510,255.34 100.00 14,749,851.41 2.31
The Company’s other receivables for which bad debts are provided RABRBERE D ITERHRIERER
for using aging analysis are presented as follow: B E M BRI R T ¢

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
2018%6A308 2017%12A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEH) (#27)

Expected credit

Carryingamount ~ Expected loss during
estimatedto  credit loss the entire Provision for
beindefault  rate (%) subsistence Amount  Proportion bad debt  Percentage
fHRERN  BHER RHER RERER
WEERE Bz g% ] st St it

(%) (%)
Within 1 year 3,525,763.00 VEpEiRb  350,687,167.03 9347 53457248 0.15
1-2 years 1919,039.72 LIRSERIN  11436,306.26 3.05 114941590 10.05
i 4,208531.79 1,262,559.54 = = = =
13,065,863.03 13,005,863.03  EAEXLERE 348 1306586303 100.00

10000 1474985141 393

2,119,197.54 (LNEZRXI  375,189,336.32

L
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 1% -2 & 3 B B % 3% % 386 H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
2. Other receivables (Continued) 2. HpEW(E)
As at 30 June 2018, the top 5 other receivables are presented as R201846H300 » HibjE K S 4E
follows: AABNT :
Closing
Percentage of balance of
total other bad debts
(Unaudited) Closing balance receivables  Nature provision
hEf
W eh R
CEE
(REER) HRERE sl #=E R
(%)
First place 286,765,193.20 5422  Advance to subsidiaries ~ Within one year
-4 FARERRK 1R
Second place 72,962,782.03 13.79  Dividend receivable Within one year
£-4 FE i B R 1EUR
Third place 71,032,463.05 13.43  Dividend receivable Within one year
F=% FE i B R 1EUR

Fourth place 6,350,399.53 120  Corporate lending and Over five years 6,350,399.53
EuEA payment on behalf SEME

EEXTERRAMR
Fifth place 6,240,954.85 . Advance to subsidiaries  Over five years 6,240,954.85
ESikA FRAREMER SENRLE

443,351,792.66 12,591,354.38
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W 75 ik 3R B 5 (4
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 1% -2 & 3 B B % 3 % 386 H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (#)
2. Other receivables (Continued) 2. HEWR(E)
As at 31 December 2017, the top 5 other receivables are presented MR2017F 128318 - EElR RS
as follows: FEARAEBWMAT :
Percentage of Closing balance of
total other bad debts
(Audited) Closing balance receivables  Nature Age provision
HEM
(B5=R) ERHE  AFEMRH  HE ik FRHBE
(%)
First place 351,605,179.07 55.07  Advance to subsidiaries Within two years -
-4 FRAERER 25 AR
Second place 92,142,500.00 1443 Dividend receivable Within one year -
-4 FEU AR F 1A
Third place 83,025,940.85 13.00  Dividend receivable Within one year -
B=4% FEMA 1E LA
Fourth place 60,598,728.17 9.49  Dividend receivable Within one year -
EuEA FEU AR F 1A
Fifth place 6,350,399.53 0.99  Corporate lending and Over five years 6,350,399.53
kS payment on behalf SENE
EEREEFRRER
593,722,747.62 92.98 6,350,399.53
3. Long-term equity investments 3. RHEBR#ERE

30 June 2018 31 December 2017
20186 H30H 2017912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&ER)

Non-listed investment under cost method 3E_E & & s 40k 11,793,835,443.40 11,414,665,233.11
Non-listed investment under equity FEEMREEZRE
method 1,252,366,382.20 1,173,738,284.99

13,046,201,825.60 12,588,403,518.10

B REIBRE R R EER

investment -

ion for impairment of

13,046,201,825.60 12,588,403,518.10

y e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R B 5 (48
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial -2 &) 32 % B % 8 % 086 H 5E

Statements (Continued) (%)

3. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 3. RERERE(E)
As at 30 June 2018, the breakdown of long-term equity investments R2018FE6A30H » FAE R B #
under cost method was as follows: RERMBIT

Changes during the period
¥ ]
Closing
Opening Other Other Increase in Closing ~provisionfor  Distribution of

(Unaudited) balance increases decreases investment  carryingamount  impairment  cash dividend
(RE%H) BO688 i AfbHS EmRE  HAREEE HBARERE  SRAERA
Weichai Power (Hong Kong) EaH(FREARLE 2,087,069,782.12 2,087,069,782.12

Interational Development Co,, Ltd. BRAF
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co, Ltd ~~ BEERSEARA 1,992,116,00085 1992,116,000.85
Shaani Fast Gear Co,, L. REZIHERERAT 1,082,558,680.59 1,082,558,680.59
Weichai (Chongging) Automotive A (ER)EERLR 2,162,905,500.00 2,162,905,500.00

(o, Ltd.
Zhuzhou Gear Co, Ltd i ERERAEAA 532,334,743.21 532,334,74321
Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting #4877 (#3580 AR AT LU0 460,150,000.00 25,115,545.65

(o, Ltd.
Weichai Power (Shanghai EXN(LHNRER 490,000,000.00 490,000,000.00

Technology Development Co, Ltd. BRAA
Weichai Power (Befing) International ~ #44& (1 %) Bl &8 300,000,000.00 300,000,00000 309,028.79

Resource Ivestment Co, Lid. RELH
Weichai America Corp. Weichai America Corp. 290,338,047.28 441,641,00000  731,979,047.28
Thuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co, Ltd.  #EIEREAEE 205,574,858.40 - 557485840

RRELAT

Weichai (Weifang) Medium-duty B () s UATI247543 UATI247583 105,674,30145

Diesel Engine Co,, Ltd. BRAA
Weichai Power (Chongging) B8N (2B RYLE 339,504,500.00 339,504,500.00

Wester Development Co,, Ltd. BRAR
Other subsidiaries which are not BERERMEM TR 1,187,400,645.23 (89,163469.71)  26,692,680.00  1,124,929,855.52 239,462,842.91

indiidually significant

11,414,665,233.11 (89,163,469.71)  468333,680.00  11,793835443.40 370,561,718.80
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 1% -2 & 32 B B % 3 % 386 H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (7))
3. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 3. RERERE(E)
As at 30 June 2018, breakdown of long-term equity investments M2018F6A308 » AR E
under equity method was as follows: ERMMT
Changes during the period
A543
Increase upon  Investment gains
acquisition by and losses Other Incl: Provision
Opening Additional way of underthe  comprehensive  Declaration of Closing ~ for impairment
(Unaudited) balance investment absorption  equity method income  cash dividend balance  at end of period
B#xT 2 AR
(RE%H) LRI BnRg  ThaHED REEE  HbGANE  SERERA BRBE REER
Asodiates BEt%
Shandong Heavy Industry Group WRETEMEHE 797488,81941 46,560,19482 (1103246305 773,016,551.18
Finance Co,, Ltd. BRAF
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.  WWEFEMS 230,531,695.05 5,533,863.98 236,065,559.03
BRAT
Other associates which are not EETNERNENM 145,717,710.53 68,445,000.00 A.9,03.27 1,200,478.19 243,284,271.99
indvidually significant Bebz

117373828499 6844500000 2792102321 53,294536.99 (71,032,463.05)  1,252,366,382.20




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
Long-term equity investments (Continued)

3.

As at 12 December 2017, breakdown of long-term equity

Interim Report 2018 A HAZRE

PO 5 i 2 M R (4)
201846 H30H (A E¥T)

T2 W) B BRI H kR

(%)
3. RIRERE(HE)

M2017%128318 » KAERERK

investments under cost method was as follows: W ERAN T -
Changes during the year
REZY
Closing
Opening Other Other Increase in Closing provisionfor ~ Distrbution of
(Audited) balance increases decreases investment ~ camying amount impairment — cash dividend
(&77) E8% Efpien L) BikE  FABREBE  EREERE  BRRLRA
Weichai Power (Hong Kong) Ex80 (3% ARLE 2,087,069,782.12 - - - 2,087,069782.12 - -
International Development Co,, Ltd. ERAE
Shaansi Heavy-duty Motor Co, Ltd. RAEEHAEARAT 1992,116,000.85 - - - 1,992,116,000.85 - 11424000000
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co,, Ltd. REETEEREREALA 1,082,558,680.59 - - - 1,082,558,680.59 - 191,182,092.65
Weichai (Chongging) Automotive L (BE)AERRAT 1,627,410,000.00 - - 53549550000 2,162,905,500.00 - -
(o, Ltd.
Thuzhou Gear Co, Lid HEEERERLT 530,334,74321 - - -SRI - -
Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting 53 () 2HERAR 460,150,000.00 - - - 460,150,000.00 - -
(o, Ltd.
Weichai Power (Shanghai Technology %48 71( -5 ) BE %R 490,000,00000 - - - 490,000,000.00 = -
Development Co, Ltd. ERRA
Weichai Poweer (Befjng)Infemational #5871 (417 AR ER 300,000,000.00 - - - 30000000000 s -
Resource Investment Co, Lid. REDNA
Weichai America Corp. Weichai America Corp. 290,338,047.28 = = - 290338,047.28 - -
Thuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co,, Ltd. FHEAEAEERERRT 24557485840 = = - M557485840 - 100,580,598.05
Weichai (Weifang) Medium-duty EXOED)PHERBERRE  MT104753 - - - MDA - 6687795435
Diesel Engine o, Ltd.
Weichai Power (Chongging) Western #5811 (25 )R S%E 240,000,000.00 - - 9950450000 33950450000 - -
Development Co, Ltd. BRAA
10 subsidiaries which are not EBRREMI0RTAT 946,996,565.23 = = 240,404,080.00  1,187,400,645.23 - Ao A5 84647

indivicually significant

10,539,261,153.11

875404080.00  11,414,665233.11

279
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) R 3% B G (7
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E®T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 11/ 7 3 % B % %08 H i &

Statements (Continued) (7))
3. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 3. REKRERE(E)
As at 31 December 2017, the breakdown of long-term equity M2017F12A8318 @ #FEREK
investments under equity method was as follows: W ERANT -
(Changes during the period
r82E
Increase upon Investment Including:
acquisition gains and Other provision for
Opening Increase in by way of lossesunder ~ comprefensive Declaration of impairment
(Audited) balance investrment absorption ~ the equity method income cash dividend Closing balance ~at end of period
BEET LLRETS
(z4) B Mg RAeHER RERE  HtBakE  EERARN gruE HEEE
Associates BELE
Shandong Heavy Industry Group LRETE@EH 267,76444023  486,155,460.00 - 4356891918 - - 797,488,819.41 -
Finance Co, Ltd BRAR
Shanzhong Finance Leasing o, Lid. LERERE 20387373024 17,608,695.65 - 9,049,269.16 - - 230,531,695.05 -
BRAT
Other associates which are not BEREANAL 140,865,135.67 4,950,000.00 - (97,365.14) - - 145717,77053 -
indiidually significant Betx

61250330614 508714,155.65 - 525208320 - - 1173,738,284.99 -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)

T ﬁgz%ﬁi%%ﬁﬁiﬁ H kR

4. Revenue and cost of sales 4. BERAFEA
January-June 2018 January-June 2017

2018%1-6 A 2017%1-6 A3

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REBER) (Rig#EZ)
Revenue Revenue Cost
B WA A
Principal operations TEEK 20,076,439,211.19 14,146,989,456.06 17,625,668,748.91 13,374,776,810.19
Other revenue Hih %5 728,926,586.11 632,309,300.10 720,507,166.82 607,260,694.61
Nl el R 18,346,175,915.73  13,982,037,504.80

Revenue is listed as follows: EEWRATIROT ¢

January-June 2018

January-June 2017

20184 1-6 8 20174 1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RE&EZ) (REFEZ)

Motors B ENHE 19,555,263,207.66 17,251,326,111.41
Automotive components REZ I 516,235,727.76 370,538,598.82
Sale of raw materials R K& 267,764,617.04 298,934,910.46
Leasing of fixed assets HHEEEEE 63,070,739.33 52,601,736.77
Others Hith 403,031,505.51 372,774,558.27
Total &t 20,805,365,797.30 18,346,175,915.73
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

R 3% B G (7
201846 H30H (A RHIT)
XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 1% -2 & 32 B B % 3 % 386 H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
5. Investment income 5. REWSE

January-June 2018 January-June 2017
2018%1-6 B

20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RREX) (REERZ)
Gain on long-term equity investments BmAZENRDY
under the equity method iR 1% & W a 53,294,536.99 24,288,840.34
Investment income arising from EERIRBEREEEDN
disposal of long-term equity wEWE
investments 151,035,130.29 -
Gain on long-term equity investments KA EZE B R ER IR
under the cost method HE W 370,561,718.80 308,866,800.82
Investment income during the period AtHESRMEETERA
in which available-for-sale financial HAR A A48 & W e
assets were held 2,080,000.00
574,891,386.08

335,235,641.16
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)
XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial 1% -2 & 3 B B % 3% % 386 H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
6. Supplement to cash flow statement 6. REREXRFAER
January-June 2018 January-June 2017
2018%1-6 A 20174 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RREX) (REER)
Net profit F 3,786,152,453.71 2,367,064,216.01
Add: Impairment loss of assets s BERERL 1,480,858.42 148,452,692.05
Impairment loss of credit ERRBEERX 5,008,399.61 -
Increase in special reserve EIFFEERIE 9,575,450.60 5,454,017.54
Depreciation of fixed assets and EE&EERKEN
investment properties EETE 286,573,482.12 263,718,491.88
Amortization of intangible assets |y AEEH 4,322,418.36 5,191,407.33
Amortization of long-term deferred REGHBREHE
expenses 1,245,498.00
Gains on disposal of fixed assets, REETEE
intangible assets and other mREE
long-term assets MEAM R AEES W R (196,809.34) (1,151,456.74)
Finance expenses M%ER (11,389.25) (14,196.77)
Investment income 188 W 2 (574,891,386.08) (335,235,641.16)
Increase in deferred tax assets IRIEFTIS L& ERIE M (155,318,902.33) (334,653,634.98)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEHGEM R (406,309,159.19) 407,815,294.19
Decrease/(increase) in operating wEEERIEE R
receivables WA (g hn) LEEIOPENE N (6,938,624,130.76)
Increase in operating payables 4R M e < IE B A9 LN 1,939,455,215.78 5,402,255,682.20

Net cash flow from operating activities

KEEPHELNRSREFR

5,036,180,661.01

991,518,238.79
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Supplemental Information on

Financial Statements
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

1.

Schedule of Extraordinary Profit and Loss

(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

R e
GBI

201846304 (A E¥T)

1~ FRACH PR4R &5 W AR

Gains or losses from disposal of non-current assets, including
the offset portion of impairment provision for such assets

Government grants charged in profit or loss for the current
period, except for those closely related to the ordinary
operation and gained constantly at a fixed amount or
quantity according to certain standard based on state
policies

Profit and loss from entrusted investment or management of
assets

Profit and loss on the changes in fair value generated from
financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading and
investment income received from disposal of financial assets
held for trading, financial liabilities held for trading and
investment in other equity instruments, other than effective
hedging business relating to ordinary operating business of
the Company

Reversal of impairment provision of receivables tested
individually

Non-operating income and expenses other than the above

FRBEERERT  BESFR
BEREEFENHHDD

FRAEHEENBAHE (BRIESR
REXBEYERE  FEEX
BERRE BB —EREERNL
EERBEZZOBRTHBIRSN)

ZREMAREREEEENER

BRRARIERERLZEHHBOE N
EMREERBI - HEXZMUER
MEE RFHUCHEBBEEED
ARBEZPEGZ  UREER
ZUETHMEE RXHUTHEBE
MEfMED TRARERGHIRE
Yoz

B EITRER S SRR E
RO

B Lt & IR 2 SME) E 2 S IMRA

items Mz
Tax effect Frisfi s B H
Effect on minority interests LR R IER T EH

The Group recognized extraordinary profit and loss items in accordance
with the provisions in Explanatory Announcement on Information

Disclosure for Companies Offering their Securities to the Public No. 1 —

Extraordinary Items (CSRC Announcement [2008] No. 43).

Amount in

January to June 2018

2018 1-6 B £ %

21,287,442.54

58,339,437.77

41,228,530.14

80,216,884.83

48,650,573.86

89,664,875.00
339,387,744.14
(68,184,093.28)

(57,509,914.66)

213,693,736.20

REBMEIECFEEIEETEE WEREKB(A
RETESNAREERBERELASE
- IR B EBE)(FBEFRE[2008]43
5% ) BRI HIT
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Supplemental Information on A S R
Financial Statements (Continued) M 72 E R ()
30 June 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2018F6H30H (A E¥T)

2. Return on Net Assets (“RONA”) and 2 F%& a8 8K
Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

January to June 2018 20184 1-6 B
Weighted
average RONA
hn#E 35
BEERSE
(Unaudited) (%) Diluted
(REERK) e
Net profit attributable to the EBRARLER
Company’s ordinary shareholders % 5 A 7F F) B
Net profit attributable to the MR IR B M ERRE

Company's ordinary shareholders BERARLBR
after extraordinary profit and loss % A9 A

January to June 2017 20174 1-6 A
Weighted
average RONA EPS
hnEE
FEE WA TR =
(Unaudited) (%) Basic Diluted
(REBEZ) BN e
Net profit attributable to the HERAREBER
Company’s ordinary shareholders iR 0p=w b 8.10 0.33 0.33
Net profit attributable to the MNBRFLEEMEBERE
Company's ordinary shareholders FBERARLBER
after extraordinary profit and loss F& 3R B 5 7 E 7.76 0.32 0.32
The Company holds no potential ordinary shares that are significantly AEEES AMEEEE SR -
dilutive.
The Group presents RONA and EPS in accordance with Compilation Rules N6 E HTF A E W e A AR W A 19 51 3R
No. 9 for Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the RBR B EEe(ARETESNA A
Public — Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings WERBIEEFEIR —FEEY

per Share (Revised in 2010) of the CSRC.
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Other Information

Directors’” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares & 2 % B 35 i B A0 & M BH A
and Underlying Shares o A

As at 30 June 2018, the interests and short position (if any) of the directors, R=-Z—N\FEXA=+H % ZHETEAB
the chief executive and the supervisors in the shares, underlying shares and REERAQA T RAREB LB (TERESFLH
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning — & 1{& 0 ([ &5 R EAE &6 1) EXVED) B9RL D ~ 48
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in ~ BERxp N E5F » A RBEZES LB EKHE
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, 352{§RE AR FIBFEMN S LMATCs: - iR
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange 1§ FTARIEEHETEASX HMIZESTA|([1Z%#
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed  <rBI)i#RFEEME AR DT RE B FrEER &

Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows: ISH-NQIF-DEUNNE
Percentage of
the issued
Number of Number of share capital

Name of Director Capacity “A" shares held “H" shares held of the Company
EAR2EE
EEpnE =37) s TAl RE(B fi%s TH] REE BROBREESL
Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 58,842,596 (Note 1) - 0.74%
EE EmEAA (BFF&ET)
Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.17%
3R IR EnlEA (BFF&ET)
Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.17%
RIE EnlEE A (BFF&ET)
Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.17%
RLOE EmEAA (BFF&ET)
Yuan Hongming Beneficial owner 500,440 - 0.0063%
N EnlEA
Interest held by spouse 444 = 0.000006%
[N EESE A 5o
Yan Jianbo Beneficial owner 522,404 - 0.0065%
BX 2 40 EnaA
Wen Daocai Beneficial owner 21,940 - 0.0003%
BE A EnlEaA
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth R} (48)

5% B o A K A B B 4
M (4)

Directors’” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Continued) iy

Percentage of

the issued

Number of Number of share capital

Name of Supervisor Capacity "A" shares held "H" shares held of the Company
HAEARE

EEEpE 54 iR TAl R#EE fiRs TH] REE BITRABSL

Lu Wenwu Beneficial owner 600,000 - 0.0075%

BXR EnEEA

Wu Hongwei Beneficial owner 4,789,516 - 0.06%

SAE EnlaA

Notes: B 3E -

1. These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. The 1. ZEBRMZABARRTRNER - RERRARFH
domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi- THOEBE - AARKIIE - SREEARK1.00
denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for and paid up in T MARBRBERBRIARIRARE - ZFR
Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became “A" shares of the Company MRARRARERINESLRZ G EHEKAERR
upon the “A” share listing of the Company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Bl AR ©

2. All the shareholding interests listed in the above table are “long” position. 2. ERAFINFERERRE RTE -

3. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 7,997,238,556 issued shares 3. BFRESLEDIBREBEARARARZ=ZZ—-NFXRA
of the Company as at 30 June 2018 (comprising 6,054,198,556 “A” shares and =+ BH#7,997,238556 RE BHTKRMH (B
1,943,040,000 "H" shares). 6,054,198,556 iX AR% K 1,943,040,000 B H A ) 5+ 5

@it
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Other Information (Continued)

Interests in the shares of associated corporations
of the Company

oAty BB (A1)

TP A 2 ] A R 2 T M oy 4 2

Approximate

Class and percentage

number of interest in the

securities entire issued

interested share capital

Name of associated or deemed of associated

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest to be interested corporations

HEERYE 1HAEBEE 23

RAEFEREN ERITRAN

EEpg HEEEER ERHtE EHERREA EREENEIL

Gordon Riske (Note) KION Group AG (“KION”) Beneficial owner 114,060 ordinary shares 0.10%
(Pf3E) Em#EB A % i AR

Interest held by spouse 93,940 ordinary shares 0.08%
R BRHANER S 3 AR

Note: Gordon Riske, a non-executive Director, was the beneficial owner of 114,060 shares in MizE + JE$NTTE F Gordon Riske AKIONH)114,0600% B 17

KION and he was also deemed to be interested in 93,940 shares in KION which were
beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Benita Riske.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, none of the Directors, the chief
executive nor the supervisors had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations that was recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to

Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to
the Model Code.

ME=EAA - WHEHEAREZE FBenita Riskez+
B A 93,940 KIONR (D R A HER -

B EXPrEEN R E—N\FRA=1TH "
BEEE SRTBRABRESNARALEE
A AEBEENBR D - HEROIEFTHEERE
&7 R B AR D) 55352 1648 R RC B IR % (& B P
AFENELMANERIAR - RIRBZREST
AIZEMERRARINERIORE -
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Other Information (Continued)

e 7K A Bl A1 3 B M A B 17 L

() BREBEER
BAZBHERE(BE_FT-N\FX

Details of Changes in Share Capital and
Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings
(I) Changes in share capital

Changes in share capital (as at 30 June 2018)

A=+H)
Before the movement Increase/decrease in the movement (+, -) After the movement
LY Lk FREER (+-) LY il

Percentage  New shares Capitalisation Percentage
No. of shares (%) issued  Bonusissue of reserve Others Sub-total ~ No. of shares (%)
HE B Al(%) BHR R MESER Eft Nt HE K Al(%)
. Resticted circulaing shares ERERHRD 1738866209 2174% - - SSIB% 50B% 174389985 2181%
1. State-owned shares Pty - - - - - - - - -
2. State-owned legal person shares BEEARR 1,642,531,008 2054% - - - - - 1,642,531,008 2054%
3. Shares held by other domestic entities ERERR 96,335,291 1.20% - - - 5,033,596 5,033,5% 101,368,887 1.27%
including: Shares held by domestic non-state-owned £ : ERIEARE AR - - - - - - - - -

legal persons
Shares held by domestic natural persons BRERAER 96,355,291 1.20% - - - 5,033,596 5,033,59 101,368,887 1.27%
4. Shares held by foreign entities SVERk - - - - - - - - -
including: Shares held by overseas legal persons £ : ENE A - - - - - - - - -
Shares held by overseas natural persons BMARABR - - - - - - - - -
I Nonestricted circulating shares ERERERS 6,258,372,257 78.26% - - - (503359%) (503359  6,253,338661 78.19%
1. RMB ordinary shares NREERR 4315332257 53.96% - - - (5,033,5%) (5033596)  4,310,298,661 53.89%
2. Domestic isted foreign shares BN EHHINER - - - - - - - - _
3. Overseaslisted foreign shares B EAIANER 1,943,040,000 24.30% - - - - - 1,943,040,000 24.30%
4 Others Hif - - - - - - - - -
[Il. Total number of shares R 7,997,238 556 100% - - - - - 7,997,238,556 100%




290 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT

Other Information (Continued) HoAth R} (48)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial i 7% % B i1 32 2 B 50 #5 B O
Shareholders’ Shareholdings (Continued) (%)
(I) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as (Il) FERFEFRBER(R==—N
at 30 June 2018) FXA=+AH)
Total number of Shareholders The number of shareholders is BREAZ #167,535F » EFRARRARER

167,535 among which 167,271 are 167,271 + HIRRRE 2645 ©

shareholders of “A" shares and 264

are shareholders of “H" shares.

Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders

AT 108 IR R i

Approximate
percentage of Number of Number of
sharesheld  Total number of restricced  shares pledged
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder (%) shares held shares held or frozen
BRESEDL BRERE ERGRER
BRER BR#E (%) BRAH ko#e Be#e
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 24.23% 1,937,880,936 - N/A
EENREEREAGRAF MERR A
Weichai Group Holdings Limited State-owned legal person 16.98% 1,357,706,603 1,345,905,600 -
BEEREEARAT BEEA
Weifang Investment Group Company Limited State-owned legal person 3.71% 296,625,408 296,625,408 -
BATRESEERAT BEEA
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited Domestic non-state-owned legal person 2.90% 231,813,190 - -
REESERRAERAT BRFEEEA
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited Overseas legal person 2.17% 173,400,784 - -
EERREEARAT BINEA
[VM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H Overseas legal person 1.78% 142,510,000 - -
B MIVMR T AL O A ERAF BINEA
Central Huijin Assets Management Company Limited ~ State-owned legal person 1.36% 108,492,800 - -
MRESEEERAREMAAR HEEA
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Domestic non-state-owned legal person 0.83% 66,149,960 - -
Company Limited
WRECXFELERAERAT BREEREA
Domestic natural person 0.74% 58,842,5% 44,131,947 -
BREAA
d, wealth management 0.65% 52,163,940 = =
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Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial

Shareholders’ Shareholdings (Continued)

(1) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as
at 30 June 2018) (Continued)

Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted shareholders

Name of shareholder

IR A

BFERREFRTROBE
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HoAt R (21)

Hﬁzﬁﬂiﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂigﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%
(%)
(I EERHREBRBR(R=ZF—N
£XA=1+H)(HE)
B 104 IR & (51 AR B IR 1B R

Number of

the non-restricted

shares held Types of shares

R ER

HKSCC Nominees Limited
BEBPREEREABRAA

China Securities Finance Corporation Limited

TEESSRBENERAF

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited

BEPREEBRAF

IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H
B0 FIVM BT 3 s 4 th A B BR A A

Central Huijin Assets Management Company Limited

FRESEEEEBEREMEAQF

Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited

WRELCEEELERNBERAR

National Social Security Fund — 116 Portfolio
ZEMRES —— G

National Social Security Fund — 102 Portfolio
ZREMRES—T_MAE

National Social Security Fund — 105 Portfolio
2EMRES—TAAS

Shanghai Gaoyi Asset Management Partnership (LP) —
Gaoyi Xiaofeng No. 2 Zhixin fund
FERREEEBARCR(ARER) SRFE2FHEED

Notes:

1. Among the aforesaid shareholders, Mr. Tan Xuguang is the chairman of Weichai Group
Holdings Limited. It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship among the
top ten shareholders and the other top ten non-restricted shareholders or whether there is
any acting in concert relationship among them.

2. No earmarked repurchase transaction has been conducted by the top ten shar
and the top ten non-restricted shareholders of the Company during the reporti

1,937,880,936  Qverseas listed foreign shares

Fo EHINE IR

231,813,190 RMB ordinary shares
AR EBR

173,400,784 RMB ordinary shares

AREELER

142,510,000 RMB ordinary shares
ARBEBR

108,492,800 RMB ordinary shares
AR I @R

66,149,960 RMB ordinary shares
ARBEBRK

52,163,940 RMB ordinary shares
AR I ER

49,999,898 RMB ordinary shares
AR EBR

47,520,183 RMB ordinary shares
AR I @R

39,399,709 RMB ordinary shares
AR LB

1. AERRS - BEAEERBRERER
EER - ARRKRAMEMA + B
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth &R (4)

Substantial Shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with the Hong Kong Stock

FEERE

AKRARBE(EHFLPEKRAIFEIEIFENE
EREELHM(BREREEBHABERNOF )
BR RZE—N\FNA=1+H  TIHAT(E

Exchange) shows that as at 30 June 2018, the following persons (other thanthe = - AT EABEREFHRIN EEARAIKRD &

directors, chief executive and supervisors) had the following interests and the

short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

HERN T HEE TSGR (IE)

Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital total
Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising issued
Name Capacity position Ashares  only Ashares Hshares  only H shares share capital
HARRA EHRRA HERTRE
&R 5t 8/ e AR#E BAt HIREA Aol L Ep 1
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long 1,357,706,603 22.43% - - 16.98%
RS ERRAR BRARA e
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co,, Ltd. (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation Long 1,357,706,603 22.43% - - 16.98%
LRETEEERAR (M) hRIEEEER e
Brandes Investment Partners, LP (Note 3) Investment manager Long - - 78,578,612 16.18% 3.93%
(MzE3) REER e
Lazard Asset Management LLC (Note 2) Investment manager Long - - 245,891,812 2531% 6.15%
(MzF2) REER e
Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio (Note 4) Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 142%
(Btzta) RE&ER e
Barclays PLC (Note 3) Person having a security interest in shares ~ Long - - 525,552 0.11% 0.03%
(h3) HiEhEEREERNA e
Interest of corporation controlled by Long - - 25,453,050 5.24% 127%
the substantial shareholder
NERAEH A ERR e
25,978,602 5.35% 1.30%
Interest of corporation controlled by the  Short - - 24,102,475 4.96% 121%
substantial shareholder
NERAEH A ERR e
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth &R (4)
Substantial Shareholders (Continued) EHERHR(H)
Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital total
Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising issued
Name Capacity position Ashares  only Ashares Hshares  only H shares share capital
HARRA HEHRBRA LG
£ 5t e/ %8 AREE BAt HR#E Bal L EY
Morgan Stanley (Note 2) Interest of corporation controlled by the  Long - - 49,335,508 5.08% 123%
(B3t2) substantial shareolder
NERAEH M EERR e
Interest of corporation controlled by the ~~ Short - - 42,078,545 4.33% 1.05%
substantial shareholder
RRERFEHNERRR He
BlackRack, Inc. Interest of corporation controlled by you ~ Long - - 188,080,865 9.68% 2.35%
{RAEE AR e
Interest of corporation controlled by you  Short - - 216,000 0.01% 0.00%
fRErsIn £ R R e
Citigroup Inc. Interest of corporation controlled by you  Long - - 16,347,027 0.84% 0.20%
{reriE AR RS e
Approved lending agent Long - - 103,705,778 5.34% 1.30%
HERLREA e
120,052,805 6.18% 1.50%
Interest of corporation controlled by you  Short - - 13,582,565 0.70% 0.17%
{rAEHE AR RS e
JP Morgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner Long - - 12,283,812 0.63% 0.16%
ERERA e
Investment manager Long - - 41,570,896 214% 052%
REER e
Trustee Long - - 66,480 0.00% 0.00%
FHA fie
Approved lending agent Long - - 43,295,221 2.23% 0.54%
RERLREA 7
97,216,409 5.00%

Beneficial owner

LT

2,791,600
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Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes:

1. Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd., being a subsidiary of the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of Shandong Province, held the entire share
capital of Weichai Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Weifang Diesel Engine
Works).

2. The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017 as there is no disclosure of interest obligation
under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings for a substantial
shareholder.

3. The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017 and 20 August 2015 as there is no disclosure of
interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings
for a substantial shareholder.

4. The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017, 20 August 2015 and 17 August 2012 as there is
no disclosure of interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in percentage
of shareholdings for a substantial shareholder.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2018.

Emolument Policy
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group's operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
At no time during the Period was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

HoAt &R (2)

FEBR ()

GEX

1 WEBEZENHBARILRETEEARAANAE
S S 7 R 28 ) B TR A A i ) ) 2
WA -

2. LRERHZAMIBREREZAREE (REWR
RED L)L RARAAR - F—EFLA=+—
BEALIRR S T8 « 1T i IR 838 % B 5 15
Pl MEBREZRET AL EED - BB AR
B -

3. P25 2 ERERRREE ZHREE (RERR
BEADL)TEA RARTAR _E—tF LA+ —
AR-ZE-—AFNA-TENABRIKETE @ WD
HRBRBEEFLAEHED - WMEERRZBREE S
tear B - BIBRKEER -

4. FR25NERERRRETE ZHREE (RERR
BEA) W EFARARAR-_TE—LtFLA - +—
H ZZ-aN \A-+tBER-_Z-—-"FN\A+t
AMARKETS  EHRREES BB K

Pl MEBRRZBEES LI EEE - BIHARK
vk e
B b EE SN —NERA=THAEXR
A x%%ﬂﬁ$@ xﬁﬂx$qﬂ B (] H At
HEERIORR -
7 T 1 SR
AEERENFHBRRAFHEZEGREREN
RIE - EERIIER NER -
ARBAEENFHEFTHEESKERAKEL
EEE  BAARBERAE LM S R BURBRR
5 o

Ji B Mty AR 27 B K B

AR RE AR R R R ABRIEE R -
O RANEAR T EFBBRBARDRER
H Ak A BB S UIBFIH N -



Other Information (Continued)

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of the
Company
During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
five independent non-executive Directors of the Company. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Wang Gongyong, an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Wang has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules for the purpose of this appointment. During the Period, the Audit
Committee discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial
results and internal control matters of the Company. In accordance with the
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee has

reviewed the reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

Throughout the Period, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan”), and that
certain directors of the Company did not attend the Company’s annual general
meeting held during the Period due to other essential business engagements,
the Company has complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate

Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The Company
considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and implementation
of the Company’s strategies which will enable the Group to grasp business
opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers that through the
supervision of its board and its independent non-executive Directors, there is

adequate balance of power and authority in place.
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Other Information (Continued)

Compliance with the Model Code

During the Period, the Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the

required standard set out in the Model Code for the Period.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained

the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period were approved by
the Board on 28 August 2018.

Publication of the Interim Report on the
Websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company

The 2018 interim report will be despatched to the shareholders as well as made
available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk

and the Company’s website at www.weichaipower.com in due course.

oAty BB (A1)

3 R S

RABE  AAFERETRTESRHRME
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Fax
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Service hotline
E-mail
Website

CILREBEG T SR EER R RS R 1975 F
: +86-536-8197777 (##%)

1 +86-536-8197073

1 261061

1 400 618 3066

. weichai@weichai.com

. http://www.weichaipower.com

: Section A 197, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province
: +86-536-8197777 (Gen)

: +86-536-8197073

: 261061

: 400 618 3066

: weichai@weichai.com

: http://www.weichaipower.com
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